
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING

REGULAR MEETING 
October 9, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Board Conference Room 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 350 

Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public. 

3. Approve minutes from the August 28 and September 11, 2019 meetings. 

4. Routine items for October 9, 2019. 

a. Approve certifications of membership.
b. Approve service and disability allowances.
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required.
d. Approve death benefits.
e. Accept Asset Allocation Report.
f. Accept Liquidity Report.

CLOSED SESSION 

5. The Board will go into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to 
consider recommendations from the medical advisor and/or staff regarding the 
following disability retirement applications: 

Member Type Sought Recommendation 
a. Randall Crane Service Connected Service Connected 
b. Theresa Draper Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected 



 

 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

OPEN SESSION 
 

6.  Consider and take possible action to accept the GASB 68 Report from Segal 
Consulting. 
 

7.  Presentation from Segal Consulting regarding the December 31, 2018 Valuation 
Report. 
 

8.  Presentation on mental health conditions. 
 

9.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 
a. Trustees’ Roundtable, CALAPRS, October 25, 2019, Oakland, CA.   

 
10.  Miscellaneous 

a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

August 28, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

Present: Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay Kwon, David 

MacDonald, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Todd Smithey and Russell Watts 

Absent: Donnie Finley and Mike Sloan 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; 

Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally 

Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry 

Gudino, Accounting Manager and Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Eileen Neill Verus Investments 

Thomas Garrett Verus Investments 

Board member Andersen attended remotely from 1516 Kamole Street, Honolulu, Hawaii. 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

3. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes from the July 24, 2019 meeting with the following wording

added to Item 7 – “The Board directed staff to continue conversations with ECCFPD and CCCFPD

and report back at a future Board meeting.” (Yes:  Andersen, Holcombe, Kwon, MacDonald,

Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

Gordon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

4. Review of total portfolio performance for the period ending June 30, 2019

a. Presentation from Verus

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#3



Page 2 

August 28, 2019 

 

 

Neill reviewed CCCERA’s investment fund performance for the period ending June 30, 

2019.  

Kroll and Pigeon were present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

b. Presentation from staff 

Price reviewed CCCERA’s sub-portfolios noting all of them are meeting expectations 

except for achieving positive real returns in the Risk Diversifying sub-portfolio.  He reported 

AFL-CIO will be making a presentation to the Board in a few months. 

 

5. Review of portfolio rebalancing report 

Price reviewed the portfolio rebalancing report. 

6. Update from Chief Investment Officer on Trident and TPG Healthcare Partners 

Price reported commitments of $40 million and $24 million were made to Trident VIII, L.P. and 

TPG Healthcare Partners, L.P., respectively. 

7. Investment education session: currency 

An education session on currency was conducted. 

 

8. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. There was no action taken on this item - 2019 Annual Limited Partners Meeting, DLJ Real Estate 

Capital Partners, September 24, 2019, Boston, MA.  

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 4 Board members at the 7th Annual California 

Institutional Forum, Markets Group, December 4, 2019, Santa Rosa, CA.  (Yes: Andersen, 

Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

 

9. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 

 

Price reported that Scott Hart from StepStone is moving into a Co-CEO position and there will 

be a sale of minority interest in the firm; TT announced they are selling their entire firm to 

Sumitomo Matsui Financial Group and are going from a partnership structure to a bank 

subsidiary noting there are no immediate concerns at this time; we will be reviewing the role 

and function of the Growth sub-portfolio at the second meeting in September, the Diversifying 

sub-portfolio at the second meeting in October and StepStone will be presenting at the second 

meeting in November. 

 

Strohl reported the Benefit Statements will be mailed out in September; CCCERA will open at 

the new location on September 17 and the September 25 Board meeting will be held in the 

conference center at the new location. 

 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report – 

 

None 

 

(c) Trustees’ comments -  

 



Page 3 

August 28, 2019 

 

 

Smithey reported an Audit Committee meeting will be held following this meeting. 

 

 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, 

Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

 

 

 

 

             

Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 

 

 



MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

September 11, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 

The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 

Concord, California 

Present: Candace Andersen, Donald Finley, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay 

Kwon, David MacDonald, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Mike Sloan, Todd Smithey and 

Belinda Zhu (Deputy Treasurer, present and voting in Russell Watts’ absence) 

Absent: None 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; 

Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally 

Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry 

Gudino, Accounting Manager; and Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

None 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

3. Approval of minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the August 14, 2019 Board meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Finley,

Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu).

4. Routine Items

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the September 11, 2019 meeting. (Yes: Andersen,

Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu)

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) and 54957. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#3



Page 2 

September 11, 2019 

 

 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 6. 

 

The Board moved into open session. 

 

6. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability 

benefits: 

a. Felipe Barreto – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, 

MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

 

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

 

b. Steven Grubka – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, 

Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Zhu) 

c. Peter Marshall – Service Connected - Pigeon recused himself from this item and was not present 

for subsequent discussion and voting. It was M/S/C that the Board finds that Peter Marshall has 

not provided sufficient evidence showing: 1) permanent incapacitation; 2) that his conditions 

arose out of and in the course of his employment; and 3) that the employment contributed 

substantially to the disability. CCCERA will offer the member the opportunity to request a 

hearing before a hearing officer.  (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, 

Phillips, Smithey and Zhu)   

d. Kevin Prescott – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, 

Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Zhu) 

 

5. There was no reportable action related to CCCERA v. Salgado, Contra Costa County Superior Court, 

Case No. MSC19-00580. 

Andersen and Pigeon were no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

7. Presentation of Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report 

Hoppe reviewed the semi-annual disability report noting there were 21 disability retirement 

applications (20 service connected, and 1 non-service connected) accepted during the first six months 

of 2019. 

8. Review of the Procurement of Products and Services Policy 

Strohl reported the policy is required to be reviewed every three years. Based on the review there are 

not any recommended changes to the policy. 

 

9. Consider and take possible action on SACRS voting proxy form 

It was M/S/C to appoint Mike Sloan as the Voting Delegate and David MacDonald as the Alternate 

Voting Delegate to vote on behalf of CCCERA at the upcoming SACRS Fall Conference. (Yes: 

Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

10. Report from Audit Committee Chair on August 28, 2019 Audit Committee meeting 

Phillips provided an update on the August 28, 2019 Audit Committee meeting noting the items 

discussed were: a job description for an Internal Auditor, procedures regarding tax payments, and the 

CCCERA employer audit. 

 

 



Page 3 

September 11, 2019 

 

 

11. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 2 Board members at the 2019 CRCEA Fall 

Conference, October 28-30, 2019, Rohnert Park, CA. (Yes: Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, 

Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 12 Board members at the SACRS Fall Conference, 

November 12-15, 2019, Monterey, CA. (Yes:  Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, 

MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

 

12. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 

Strohl reported on the Request For Proposal for an oversight project manager and noted staff have 

been evaluating the proposals received; staff has been packing for the office move; and, 

CCCERA will be open for business at the new location on Tuesday, September 17th. She noted 

this is the last Board meeting at this location and the next Board meeting will be held at 1220 

Concord Avenue in the Conference Center on the first floor. 

 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    
 

None 

 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 

 

Sloan reported on the CALAPRS Principles of Pension Governance Conference he and Finley 

attended. 

 

Gordon complimented and thanked Strohl and the staff for all their hard work transitioning for 

the move to the new office location. 

 

Holcombe asked we adjourn the meeting in memory of the 2,997 people who died on September 

11, 2001, which included 422 first responders.  

 

 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting in memory of the 2,997 people who died on September 11, 2011, 

which included 422 first responders.  (Yes: Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, 

Phillips, Smithey and Zhu) 

 

 

 

             

Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#4





sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#4









Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of August 31, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 1,052,823,818 11.6% 12.0% -0.4%

Sit 545,812,356 6.0% 6.0% 0.0%

Dimensional Fund Advisors 515,337,279 5.7% 6.0% -0.3%

Total Liquidity 2,113,973,453 23.4% 24.0% -0.6% 24.0% -0.6%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners 225,198,501 2.5% 2.5% -0.0%

Jackson Square 231,011,937 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%

BlackRock Index Fund 184,445,767 2.0% 2.0% 0.0%

Emerald Advisors 147,745,988 1.6% 1.5% 0.1%

Ceredex 149,794,381 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%

Total Domestic Equity 938,196,574 10.4% 10.0% 0.4% 5.0% 5.4%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) 439,908,718 4.9% 5.0% -0.1%

William Blair 446,688,224 4.9% 5.0% -0.1%

First Eagle 364,772,124 4.0% 4.0% 0.0%

Artisan Global Opportunities 368,952,264 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 323,529,118 3.6% 4.0% -0.4%

TT Emerging Markets 312,446,512 3.5% 4.0% -0.5%

Total Global & International Equity 2,256,296,960 25.0% 26.0% -1.0% 24.0% 1.0%

Private Equity 1,010,886,094 11.2% 11.0% 0.2% 11.0% 0.2%

Private Credit 421,525,152 4.7% 5.0% -0.3% 12.0% -7.3%

Real Estate - Value Add 173,831,065 1.9% 4.0% -2.1% 4.0% -2.1%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 491,717,420 5.4% 4.0% 1.4% 4.0% 1.4%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 78,699,080 0.9% 1.0% -0.1% 1.0% -0.1%

High Yield (Allianz) 242,126,342 2.7% 2.0% 0.7% 0.0% 2.7%

Risk Parity 5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 0.0%

AQR GRP EL 228,759,927 2.5%

PanAgora 223,723,055 2.5%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,871,268,135 31.8% 32.0% -0.2% 37.0% -5.2%

Total Growth Assets 6,065,761,669 67.1% 68.0% -0.9% 66.0% 1.1%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO 340,659,461 3.8% 3.5% 0.3% 3.0% 0.8%

Parametric Defensive Equity 201,283,382 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%

Wellington Real Total Return 189,320,931 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 731,263,774 8.1% 8.0% 0.1% 10.0% -1.9%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) 24,164,197 0.3% 0.3%

Cash 103,729,204 1.1% 1.1%

Total Cash and Overlay 127,893,401 1.4% 0.0% 1.4% 0.0% 1.4%

Total Fund 9,038,892,296.47      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#4



P
ri

va
te

 M
ar

ke
t 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

ts

A
s 

o
f 

A
u

gu
st

 3
1

, 2
0

1
9

  
 

 
 

 

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 -
 V

al
u

e 
A

d
d

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 II
05

/3
0/

07
12

/3
1

/1
5

in
 f

u
ll 

liq
.

8
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
1

,8
58

0.
00

%

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 II
I

08
/0

1/
13

08
/0

1
/2

0
3

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

,4
1

1
,5

98
0.

04
%

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 IV
12

/0
1/

14
12

/0
1

/2
1

3
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
2

,2
4

6
,5

09
0.

25
%

5,
19

1,
26

1 

In
ve

sc
o

 IR
EF

 V
09

/1
1/

18
09

/1
1

/2
5

7
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
8

,4
7

4
,8

09
0.

20
%

56
,9

81
,2

66
 

Lo
n

g 
W

h
ar

f 
FR

EG
 IV

08
/1

4/
13

09
/3

0
/2

1
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
7

,0
2

1
,7

13
0.

08
%

Lo
n

g 
W

h
ar

f 
FR

EG
 V

10
/3

1/
16

09
/3

0
/2

4
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

3
,6

7
2

,8
98

0.
48

%

La
Sa

lle
 In

co
m

e 
&

 G
ro

w
th

 F
u

n
d

 V
I

01
/3

1/
12

01
/3

1
/1

9
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

8
,2

5
0

,9
49

0.
31

%
3,

94
6,

00
0 

La
Sa

lle
 In

co
m

e 
&

 G
ro

w
th

 F
u

n
d

 V
II

10
/3

1/
16

09
/3

0
/2

4
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
5

0
,7

4
0

,7
31

0.
56

%
20

,8
36

,6
46

 

5
8

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

7
3

,8
3

1
,0

6
5

1.
9

2%
8

6
,9

5
5

,1
7

3
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

8
6

,9
5

5
,1

7
3

 

To
ta

l
2

6
0

,7
8

6
,2

3
8

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 -
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

is
ti

c 
&

 D
is

tr
e

ss
ed

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. I

II
06

/3
0/

05
06

/3
0

/1
4

in
 f

u
ll 

liq
.

7
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
1

,3
2

7
,1

20
0.

24
%

4,
03

1,
33

8

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. I

V
12

/3
1/

07
09

/3
0

/1
8

1
0

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
8

0
,1

2
5

,2
79

0.
89

%
2,

89
0,

80
9

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. V

07
/3

1/
13

12
/3

1
/2

2
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
5

1
,6

5
8

,3
45

0.
57

%
15

,6
35

,8
16

D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. V

I
02

/2
8/

19
01

/3
1

/2
9

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
9

,2
3

0
,6

47
0.

32
%

20
,3

86
,9

99

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

02
/0

1/
11

02
/0

1
/2

1
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,7
1

3
,2

71
0.

05
%

25
,7

50
,0

00
 

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

I
09

/3
0/

13
09

/3
0

/2
0

8
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
2

,6
7

2
,1

67
0.

36
%

18
,4

00
,0

00
 

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

II
02

/2
8/

15
02

/2
8

/2
3

6
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
5

,6
2

3
,6

91
0.

62
%

20
,0

20
,0

00
 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 D

is
tr

es
se

d
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

p
p

. F
u

n
d

07
/3

0/
11

07
/3

0
/2

2
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

2
,8

1
7

,7
08

0.
36

%
5,

62
5,

00
0 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 D

is
tr

es
se

d
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

p
p

. F
u

n
d

 II
08

/3
1/

13
08

/3
1

/2
5

7
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
8

,9
2

4
,3

86
0.

54
%

9,
59

0,
00

0 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 D

is
tr

es
se

d
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

p
p

. I
I C

o
-I

n
v

01
/3

1/
16

10
/3

1
/2

5
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

4
,1

9
5

,0
10

0.
27

%
4,

46
2,

13
8 

P
au

ls
o

n
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Fu

n
d

 II
11

/1
0/

13
11

/1
0

/2
0

2
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
5

,5
4

8
,0

28
0.

28
%

65
4,

37
7 

A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ea
lt

y 
Fu

n
d

 V
III

12
/3

1/
11

12
/3

1
/1

8
8

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

3
,4

6
2

,0
72

0.
26

%
4,

59
8,

14
5 

A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ea
lt

y 
Fu

n
d

 IX
10

/1
0/

14
10

/1
0

/2
2

6
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

6
1

,4
1

9
,6

96
0.

68
%

9,
42

5,
00

0 

8
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

9
1

,7
1

7
,4

2
0

5.
4

4%
1

4
1

,4
6

9
,6

2
2

 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

1
4

1
,4

6
9

,6
2

2
 

To
ta

l
6

3
3

,1
8

7
,0

4
2

P
R

IV
A

TE
 C

R
ED

IT
In

ce
p

ti
o

n
Ta

rg
et

# 
o

f
D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

N
e

w
 T

ar
ge

t
Fu

n
d

in
g

M
ar

ke
t

%
 o

f
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

To
rc

h
lig

h
t 

D
eb

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

Fu
n

d
 II

I
09

/3
0/

08
06

/3
0

/1
6

2
n

d
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

6
/3

0
/1

8
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

0.
00

%
0

To
rc

h
lig

h
t 

D
eb

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

Fu
n

d
 IV

08
/0

1/
12

08
/3

0
/2

0
6

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

5
,0

1
7

,2
76

0.
17

%
0

To
rc

h
lig

h
t 

D
eb

t 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

Fu
n

d
 V

12
/3

1/
14

09
/1

7
/2

2
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

4
,3

6
9

,3
92

0.
49

%
15

,0
00

,0
00

A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 E

n
er

gy
 C

re
d

it
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
09

/1
0/

15
09

/1
0

/2
0

1
6

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,3

3
7

,7
52

0.
05

%
2,

31
9,

78
3

C
C

C
ER

A
 S

te
p

St
o

n
e

12
/0

1/
17

11
/3

0
/2

7
9

2
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
5

7
,8

0
0

,7
32

3.
96

%
57

5,
31

8,
98

5 

1
,2

7
4

,5
0

0
,0

0
0

4
2

1
,5

2
5

,1
5

2
4.

6
6%

5
9

2
,6

3
8

,7
6

8

 
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts
5

9
2

,6
3

8
,7

6
8

To
ta

l
1

,0
1

4
,1

6
3

,9
2

0



P
ri

va
te

 M
ar

ke
t 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

ts

A
s 

o
f 

A
u

gu
st

 3
1

, 2
0

1
9

P
R

IV
A

TE
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

P
ar

tn
er

s
12

/2
2/

95
1

2/
22

/2
5

2
6

9
,5

6
5

,6
1

4
1

4
8

,9
7

2
,4

97
1.

65
%

27
,0

25
,0

80
 

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

II
12

/3
1/

08
1

2/
31

/2
0

3
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

8
,0

7
7

,6
21

0.
09

%
1,

63
5,

00
0 

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

V
10

/3
1/

12
1

0/
31

/2
2

4
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

   
   

   
   

 
2

1
,6

6
0

,4
33

0.
24

%
9,

38
8,

10
0 

A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

V
en

tu
re

 In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
03

/0
9/

16
0

3/
09

/2
8

7
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
5

,6
2

5
,0

10
0.

50
%

35
,2

12
,5

00
 

A
E 

In
d

u
st

ri
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
Fu

n
d

 II
05

/1
8/

18
0

5/
18

/2
8

3
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

4
,4

7
1

,7
62

0.
05

%
29

,8
96

,3
16

 

B
ay

 A
re

a 
Eq

u
it

y 
Fu

n
d

06
/1

4/
04

1
2/

31
/1

4
2

n
d

 2
 Y

R
LP

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

1
7

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,4

0
7

,5
45

0.
03

%

B
ay

 A
re

a 
Eq

u
it

y 
Fu

n
d

 II
2

/2
9/

09
1

2/
31

/1
9

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
2

,3
4

6
,5

71
0.

14
%

C
ar

p
en

te
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

B
an

cF
u

n
d

10
/3

1/
09

1
0/

31
/1

9
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0.

00
%

EI
F 

U
SP

F 
II

06
/1

5/
05

0
6/

15
/1

5
3

rd
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

6
/1

5
/1

8
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
8

,0
8

9
,5

12
0.

09
%

0

EI
F 

U
SP

F 
III

02
/2

8/
07

0
2/

28
/1

7
1

st
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

2
/2

8
/1

8
6

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

7
,6

1
5

,0
68

0.
19

%
0

EI
F 

U
SP

F 
IV

06
/2

8/
10

0
6/

28
/2

0
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

7
,6

2
2

,7
99

0.
53

%
4

A
re

s 
EI

F 
V

09
/0

9/
15

1
1/

19
/2

5
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

4
,8

3
7

,8
21

0.
50

%
6,

75
6,

16
0 

G
en

st
ar

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s 
IX

, L
.P

.
02

/2
1/

19
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

49
,8

13
,3

47
 

O
ak

tr
ee

 P
ri

va
te

 In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Fu
n

d
 2

00
9

02
/2

8/
10

1
2/

15
/1

9
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
6

,4
7

5
,5

01
0.

07
%

6,
30

8,
96

1

O
ce

an
 A

ve
n

u
e 

Fu
n

d
 II

05
/0

7/
14

0
5/

07
/2

4
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

9
,9

5
9

,8
08

0.
33

%
3,

90
0,

00
0

O
ce

an
 A

ve
n

u
e 

Fu
n

d
 II

I
12

/0
9/

15
1

2/
09

/2
5

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

5
4

,1
5

5
,3

72
0.

60
%

8,
00

0,
00

0

P
al

ad
in

 II
I

08
/1

5/
08

0
8/

15
/1

8
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

9
,1

9
6

,6
29

0.
32

%
62

6,
91

1

P
at

h
w

ay
11

/0
9/

98
0

5/
31

/2
1

1
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

6
,2

3
8

,0
67

0.
18

%
10

,9
25

,3
54

 
N

o
ga

le
s 

In
ve

st
m

en
t

02
/1

5/
04

0
2/

15
/1

4
so

ld
 la

st
 in

v.
1

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

P
at

h
w

ay
 2

00
8

12
/2

6/
08

1
2/

26
/2

3
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

9
,1

9
2

,1
75

0.
21

%
3,

35
4,

15
8 

P
at

h
w

ay
 6

05
/2

4/
11

0
5/

24
/2

6
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

5
,2

6
1

,4
42

0.
39

%
4,

27
6,

92
4 

P
at

h
w

ay
 7

02
/0

7/
13

0
2/

07
/2

3
7

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
6

8
,9

6
9

,3
68

0.
76

%
8,

76
5,

25
4 

P
at

h
w

ay
 8

11
/2

3/
15

1
1/

23
/2

5
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

3
,5

9
3

,2
69

0.
48

%
15

,5
75

,6
58

 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 C

C
C

ER
A

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

06
/0

3/
14

0
5/

31
/2

5
2

0
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
6

3
,6

9
6

,0
20

1.
81

%
61

,2
24

,7
72

 

Si
gu

le
r 

G
u

ff
 S

ec
o

n
d

ar
y 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

12
/3

1/
16

1
2/

31
/2

6
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

7
5

,8
71

0.
00

%
49

,3
56

,0
46

 

Si
ri

s 
P

ar
tn

er
s 

IV
05

/1
8/

18
0

5/
18

/2
8

3
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,3
3

3
,8

94
0.

11
%

24
,3

27
,0

36
 

TP
G

 H
e

al
th

ca
re

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
.

06
/2

8/
19

2
4

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

0
24

,0
00

,0
00

 

Tr
id

en
t 

V
III

, L
.P

.
05

/2
4/

19
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
0

40
,0

00
,0

00
 

R
e

al
 A

ss
et

s

A
et

h
er

 II
I &

 II
I S

u
rp

lu
s

11
/3

0/
13

1
1/

30
/2

0
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
7

0
,7

8
9

,4
11

0.
78

%
7,

60
7,

04
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

A
et

h
er

 IV
01

/0
1/

16
0

1/
01

/2
8

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
9

,4
0

6
,9

53
0.

44
%

16
,7

78
,6

71
   

   
   

   
  

C
o

m
m

o
n

fu
n

d
 C

ap
it

al
 N

at
u

ra
l R

es
o

u
rc

es
 IX

06
/3

0/
13

0
6/

30
/2

0
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

3
,7

7
1

,6
73

0.
48

%
6,

67
5,

00
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
Fu

n
d

12
/3

1/
15

1
1/

30
/2

2
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

7
,9

4
4

,0
02

0.
20

%
4,

35
3,

02
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
,8

1
8

,5
6

5
,6

1
4

1
,0

1
0

,8
8

6
,0

9
4

11
.1

8%
4

5
5

,7
8

1
,3

2
2

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

4
5

5
,7

8
1

,3
2

2

To
ta

l
1

,4
6

6
,6

6
7

,4
1

6

M
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
eq

u
al

s 
th

e 
m

o
st

 r
ec

en
t 

re
p

o
rt

ed
 n

et
 a

ss
et

 v
al

u
e,

 p
lu

s 
ca

p
it

al
 c

al
ls

 a
ft

er
 n

et
 a

ss
et

 v
al

u
e 

d
at

e,
 le

ss
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

af
te

r 
n

et
 a

ss
et

 v
al

u
e 

d
at

e.

Th
e 

Ta
rg

et
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n

 c
o

lu
m

n
 is

 t
h

e 
b

eg
in

n
in

g 
o

f 
liq

u
id

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fu

n
d

, h
o

w
ev

er
, s

o
m

e 
fu

n
d

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ex

te
n

d
ed

 f
o

r 
an

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

w
o

 o
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

 

 



Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Liquidity Report – August 2019 

August 2019 Performance 

Cash Flow Coverage Ratio 

Benefit Cash Flow Projected by Model $41,000,000 

Liquidity Sub-Portfolio Cash Flow $41,000,000 100% 

Actual Benefits Paid $40,717,635 101% 

Next Month’s Projected Benefit Payment $41,500,000 

Monthly Manager Positioning – August 2019 

Beginning Market 
Value 

Liquidity Program 
Cash Flow 

Market Value 
Change/Other 

Activity 

Ending      
Market Value 

Sit $538,837,001 ($1,250,000) $8,225,355 $545,812,356 

DFA $527,265,321 ($14,000,000) $2,071,958 $515,337,279 

Insight $1,072,817,411 ($25,750,000) $5,756,407 $1,052,823,818 

Liquidity $2,138,919,733 ($41,000,000) $16,053,720 $2,113,973,453 

Cash $108,715,756 $282,365 ($5,268,917) $103,729,204 

Liquidity + Cash $2,247,635,489 ($40,717,635) $10,784,803 $2,217,702,657 

Functional Roles 

Manager Portfolio Characteristics Liquidity Contribution 
Sit High quality portfolio of small balance, 

government guaranteed mortgages 
with higher yields. 

Pays out net income on monthly basis.  

DFA High quality, short duration portfolio of 
liquid, low volatility characteristics. 

Pays out a pre-determined monthly amount.  DFA 
sources liquidity from across their portfolio. 

Insight Buy and maintain (limited trading) 
portfolio of high quality, short duration, 
primarily corporates. 

Completion portfolio makes a payment through net 
income and bond maturities that bridges the gap 
between other managers and projected payment. 

Cash STIF account at custodial bank. Buffer in the event of any Liquidity shortfall/excess. 

Notes 
The eighth cash flow for 2019 from the liquidity program was completed on August 23rd.  The actuarial model cash 
flow was slightly higher than actual experience, producing $282 thousand more than the actual benefits paid.  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#4



 
 

2 
 

 

Cash Flow Structure 

The chart below shows the sources of cash flow for the next several years of CCCERA’s projected benefit payments.  

This table will change slightly as the model is tweaked and as the portfolios receive new rounds of funding each 

August as part of the Annual Funding Plan. 

 

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

45,000,000

50,000,000

Dollar Investment by Cashflow Period - Current & Future Investments

Sit Contribution DFA Contribution
PV of Principal Maturities PV of Coupon Payments
Growth of Current Insight Investments  Investment Growth (to be sourced)
Future Contributions and Investment Growth



1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300, Concord, CA 94520     Phone: (925) 521-3960      Fax: (925) 521-3969     cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: October 9, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:     Consider and take possible action to accept the GASB 68 report from Segal 
       Consulting. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 68 in June 2012 to 
be effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.  This Statement’s objective is to 
improve accounting and financial reporting.  CCCERA’s participating employers can utilize the 
information contained in the GASB 68 report in their own reporting.  Employers are currently 
assessed a pro-rata share of the report preparation cost. The Segal Consulting report is based 
on a December 31, 2018 measurement date for employer reporting as of June 30, 2019. 

Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to accept the GASB 68 report from Segal Consulting. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#6



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#6



























C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s 
(G

AS
) 6

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r E
m

pl
oy

er
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

as
 o

f  
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

at
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

t t
o 

as
si

st
 th

e 
sp

on
so

rs
 o

f t
he

 F
un

d 
in

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
th

ei
r 

fin
an

ci
al

 re
po

rt 
fo

r t
he

ir 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

C
C

ER
A 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

. T
hi

s 
va

lu
at

io
n 

re
po

rt 
m

ay
 n

ot
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
be

 c
op

ie
d 

or
 

re
pr

od
uc

ed
 in

 a
ny

 fo
rm

 w
ith

ou
t t

he
 c

on
se

nt
 o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
 o

f R
et

ire
m

en
t a

nd
 m

ay
 o

nl
y 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 o

th
er

 p
ar

tie
s 

in
 it

s 
en

tir
et

y,
 

un
le

ss
 e

xp
re

ss
ly

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
Se

ga
l. 

Th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
is

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fo
r o

th
er

 
pu

rp
os

es
. 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 ©

 2
01

9 
by

 T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#6



  18
0 

H
ow

ar
d 

St
re

et
 S

ui
te

 1
10

0 
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

, C
A 

94
10

5-
61

47
 

T 
41

5.
26

3.
82

00
  w

w
w

.s
eg

al
co

.c
om

 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

01
9 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 R
et

ir
em

en
t 

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
12

00
 C

on
co

rd
 A

ve
nu

e,
 S

ui
te

 3
00

 
C

on
co

rd
, C

A 
94

52
0  

D
ea

r B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

rs
: 

W
e 

ar
e 

pl
ea

se
d 

to
 su

bm
it 

th
is

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s (
G

AS
) 6

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e 

fo
r e

m
pl

oy
er

 re
po

rt
in

g 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
9.

 It
 c

on
ta

in
s v

ar
io

us
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 fo
r C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ir

em
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(C
C

C
ER

A)
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s t
o 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 G
AS

 6
8.

 
Th

is
 re

po
rt

 w
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l p
ri

nc
ip

le
s a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 a
t t

he
 re

qu
es

t o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 
to

 a
ss

is
t t

he
 sp

on
so

rs
 in

 p
re

pa
ri

ng
 th

ei
r f

in
an

ci
al

 re
po

rt
 fo

r t
he

ir
 li

ab
ili

tie
s a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

C
C

ER
A 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

. T
he

 
ce

ns
us

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 w
hi

ch
 o

ur
 c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

ba
se

d 
w

as
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 C

C
C

ER
A.

 T
ha

t a
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

is
 

gr
at

ef
ul

ly
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
ed

.  
Th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 sh
ow

n 
in

 th
is

 a
ct

ua
ri

al
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ur
po

se
s. 

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
ua

ria
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 
m

ay
 d

iff
er

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 fr
om

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 th
is

 re
po

rt
 d

ue
 to

 su
ch

 fa
ct

or
s a

s t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g:
 p

la
n 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
 d

iff
er

in
g 

fr
om

 th
at

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 o
r d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
; c

ha
ng

es
 in

 e
co

no
m

ic
 o

r d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
; a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
la

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

. 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 J

oh
n 

M
on

ro
e,

 A
SA

, M
AA

A,
 E

nr
ol

le
d 

Ac
tu

ar
y.

 W
e 

ar
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

m
er

ic
an

 A
ca

de
m

y 
of

 A
ct

ua
ri

es
 a

nd
 w

e 
m

ee
t t

he
 Q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

St
an

da
rd

s o
f t

he
 A

m
er

ic
an

 A
ca

de
m

y 
of

 
Ac

tu
ar

ie
s t

o 
re

nd
er

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l o
pi

ni
on

 h
er

ei
n.

 T
o 

th
e 

be
st

 o
f o

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
su

pp
lie

d 
in

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
va

lu
at

io
n 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

. F
ur

th
er

, i
n 

ou
r o

pi
ni

on
, t

he
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

s a
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ar

e 
re

as
on

ab
ly

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
ex

pe
ri

en
ce

 o
f a

nd
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 fo

r C
C

C
ER

A.
 

Si
nc

er
el

y,
 

Se
ga

l C
on

su
lti

ng
, a

 M
em

be
r o

f T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

.  
   By

: 
 

 
 

Pa
ul

 A
ng

el
o,

 F
SA

, M
AA

A,
 F

C
A,

 E
A 

 
Jo

hn
 M

on
ro

e,
 A

SA
, M

AA
A,

 E
A 

Se
ni

or
 V

ic
e 

Pr
es

id
en

t a
nd

 A
ct

ua
ry

 
 

Vi
ce

 P
re

si
de

nt
 a

nd
 A

ct
ua

ry
 

EK
/jl



  SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

 
 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

 
 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 3
 

VA
LU

AT
IO

N
 S

U
M

M
AR

Y 
 

G
AS

 6
8 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N
 

 
 

 
 AC

TU
AR

IA
L 

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
N

S 
AN

D
 M

ET
H

O
D

S 
AN

D
 

AP
PE

N
D

IC
ES

 

Pu
rp

os
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

i 
G

en
er

al
 O

bs
er

va
tio

ns
 o

n 
G

A
S 

68
 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n .
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
i 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 Is

su
es

 in
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

Y
ea

r..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 ii
 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 A
ct

iv
e 

Pa
rti

ci
pa

tin
g 

Em
pl

oy
er

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
iv

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 K

ey
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. v
 

Im
po

rta
nt

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
ns

  .
...

...
...

...
 vi

 
 

 
EX

H
IB

IT
 1

 
G

en
er

al
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
– 

“F
in

an
ci

al
 

St
at

em
en

ts
”,

 N
ot

e 
D

is
cl

os
ur

es
 a

nd
 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 C

os
t-S

ha
rin

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Pl

an
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

1 
EX

H
IB

IT
 2

 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y .

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

5 
EX

H
IB

IT
 3

 
Ta

rg
et

 A
ss

et
 A

llo
ca

tio
n .

...
...

...
...

. 7
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 4
 

D
is

co
un

t R
at

e 
Se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 ..
...

...
. 1

0 
EX

H
IB

IT
 5

 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f C
ha

ng
es

 in
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 –
 L

as
t T

w
o 

Pl
an

 
Y

ea
rs

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

11
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 6
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f E

m
pl

oy
er

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 –

 L
as

t T
en

 P
la

n 
Y

ea
rs

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

12
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

Sh
ar

e .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
4 

 

 
EX

H
IB

IT
 8

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
2 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

an
d 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 6
3 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

Sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y .
...

.. 
85

 
EX

H
IB

IT
 1

1 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 ...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 1
06

 
EX

H
IB

IT
 1

2 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
12

7 
EX

H
IB

IT
 1

3 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 C

ha
ng

es
 in

 T
ot

al
 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y .
...

...
...

...
. 1

29
 

 

 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 

M
et

ho
ds

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
35

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
of

 P
la

n’
s F

id
uc

ia
ry

 
N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 fo

r U
se

 in
 

C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 D

is
co

un
t R

at
e 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
...

. 1
55

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

B
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 T
er

m
s .

...
...

...
...

.. 
15

7 
 

 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

: 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
fo

r C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 

i 

Pu
rp

os
e 

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
ha

s b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
Se

ga
l C

on
su

lti
ng

 to
 p

re
se

nt
 c

er
ta

in
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
by

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s (

G
A

S)
 6

8 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

er
 re

po
rti

ng
 a

s o
f J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
9.

 T
he

 re
su

lts
 u

se
d 

in
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
is

 G
A

S 
68

 re
po

rt 
ar

e 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
to

 th
os

e 
us

ed
 in

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
St

an
da

rd
s (

G
A

S)
 6

7 
re

po
rt 

fo
r t

he
 p

la
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 

re
po

rti
ng

 d
at

e 
an

d 
a 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

e 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 T
hi

s v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n:
 


 

Th
e 

be
ne

fit
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f C

C
C

ER
A

, a
s a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

t; 


 

Th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s o
f c

ov
er

ed
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, i

na
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, a

nd
 re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s a
s o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 C
C

C
ER

A
; 


 

Th
e 

as
se

ts
 o

f t
he

 P
la

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 C
C

C
ER

A
; 


 

Ec
on

om
ic

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
fu

tu
re

 sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 fo

r t
he

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n;
 a

nd
 


 

O
th

er
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
, r

eg
ar

di
ng

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 te

rm
in

at
io

ns
, r

et
ire

m
en

t, 
de

at
h,

 e
tc

. a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 fo

r t
he

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

G
en

er
al

 O
bs

er
va

tio
ns

 o
n 

G
A

S 
68

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

n 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
is

 G
A

S 
68

 re
po

rt:
  


 

Th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

St
an

da
rd

s B
oa

rd
 (G

A
SB

) r
ul

es
 o

nl
y 

de
fin

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

e 
fo

r f
in

an
ci

al
 

re
po

rti
ng

 p
ur

po
se

s, 
an

d 
do

 n
ot

 a
pp

ly
 to

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

am
ou

nt
s f

or
 p

en
si

on
 fu

nd
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
. E

m
pl

oy
er

s a
nd

 p
la

ns
 st

ill
 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

ad
op

t f
un

di
ng

 p
ol

ic
ie

s u
nd

er
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

.  


 

W
he

n 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

pe
ns

io
n 

lia
bi

lit
y 

G
A

SB
 u

se
s t

he
 sa

m
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l c
os

t m
et

ho
d 

(E
nt

ry
 A

ge
 m

et
ho

d)
 a

nd
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

ty
pe

 
of

 d
is

co
un

t r
at

e 
(e

xp
ec

te
d 

re
tu

rn
 o

n 
as

se
ts

) a
s C

C
C

ER
A

 u
se

s f
or

 fu
nd

in
g.

 T
hi

s m
ea

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(T
PL

) m
ea

su
re

 fo
r f

in
an

ci
al

 re
po

rti
ng

 sh
ow

n 
in

 th
is

 re
po

rt 
is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 o
n 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
ba

si
s a

s C
C

C
ER

A
’s

 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(A
A

L)
 m

ea
su

re
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

. W
e 

no
te

 th
at

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
is

 g
en

er
al

ly
 tr

ue
 fo

r t
he

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 o
f t

he
 a

nn
ua

l p
la

n 
co

st
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g.
 


 

Th
e 

TP
L 

an
d 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 in
cl

ud
e 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s a
nd

 a
ss

et
s h

el
d 

fo
r t

he
 P

os
t R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
 

R
es

er
ve

. T
he

 T
PL

 o
nl

y 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 li
ab

ili
ty

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 th

e 
Po

st
 R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
R

es
er

ve
. T

hi
s i

s 
be

ca
us

e 
w

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

po
st

 re
tir

em
en

t d
ea

th
 b

en
ef

it 
is

 a
 n

on
ve

st
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

an
d 

on
ce

 th
e 

re
se

rv
e 

is
 d

ep
le

te
d 

no
 

fu
rth

er
 b

en
ef

its
 w

ou
ld

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

: 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
fo

r C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 

ii 


 

Th
e 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) i

s e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

di
ff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

TP
L 

an
d 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

. T
he

 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 o
f a

ss
et

s a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e,
 th

e 
N

PL
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 v
er

y 
si

m
ila

r t
o 

an
 U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(U

A
A

L)
 o

n 
a 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 b
as

is
.  


 

Fo
r t

hi
s r

ep
or

t, 
th

e 
re

po
rti

ng
 d

at
es

 fo
r t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 a
re

 Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

9 
an

d 
20

18
. T

he
 N

PL
s w

er
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
as

 o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
20

17
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 T
he

 P
la

n’
s F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 (p
la

n 
as

se
ts

) w
as

 v
al

ue
d 

as
 o

f t
he

 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
es

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
TP

Ls
 w

er
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
ro

lli
ng

 fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

ns
 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
an

d 
20

16
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
, a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r p

la
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 

th
at

 o
cc

ur
re

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

re
fle

ct
ed

. C
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 
of

 G
A

S 
68

, t
he

 a
ss

et
s a

nd
 li

ab
ili

tie
s m

ea
su

re
d 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
20

17
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

dj
us

te
d 

or
 ro

lle
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 

th
e 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

9 
an

d 
20

18
 re

po
rti

ng
 d

at
es

, r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 Is

su
es

 in
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

Y
ea

r 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
fin

di
ng

s w
er

e 
th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

is
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n:

 


 

Th
e 

N
PL

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 $

0.
81

 b
ill

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
to

 $
1.

43
 b

ill
io

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

pr
im

ar
ily

 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
-2

.3
%

 re
tu

rn
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

f a
ss

et
s d

ur
in

g 
20

18
 (t

ha
t w

as
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 
re

tu
rn

 o
f 7

.0
0%

), 
of

fs
et

 to
 so

m
e 

de
gr

ee
 b

y 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f t

he
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. C
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

es
e 

va
lu

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
la

st
 tw

o 
pl

an
 y

ea
rs

 e
nd

in
g 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

in
 E

xh
ib

it 
5.

 


 

Th
e 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

ne
w

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 fo
r u

se
 in

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 in

cl
ud

ed
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
se

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s b

y 
(1

) r
ev

al
ui

ng
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

TP
L 

as
 o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(b
ef

or
e 

th
e 

ro
ll 

fo
rw

ar
d)

 a
nd

 (2
) u

si
ng

 th
is

 re
va

lu
ed

 T
PL

 in
 ro

lli
ng

 fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 fr

om
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
to

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8.
  


 

Th
e 

di
sc

ou
nt

 ra
te

 u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

TP
L 

an
d 

N
PL

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
20

17
 w

as
 7

.0
0%

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
by

 C
C

C
ER

A
 in

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 a

s o
f t

he
 sa

m
e 

da
te

s. 
Th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
de

riv
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

di
sc

ou
nt

 ra
te

 o
f 7

.0
0%

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
TP

L 
an

d 
N

PL
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

in
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
A

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
3.

 V
ar

io
us

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 E

xh
ib

its
 1

 
th

ro
ug

h 
13

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2.

 


 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
di

sc
us

si
on

s w
ith

 C
C

C
ER

A
 a

nd
 th

ei
r a

ud
ito

rs
, s

ta
rti

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
7 

re
po

rti
ng

 d
at

e 
fo

r t
he

 
em

pl
oy

er
s, 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 n
ow

 e
xc

lu
de

 a
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
y 

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
s s

ho
w

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ex

hi
bi

ts
 1

 th
ro

ug
h 

13
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2.
 

Th
is

 c
ha

ng
e 

ha
s n

ot
 b

ee
n 

ap
pl

ie
d 

on
 a

 re
tro

ac
tiv

e 
ba

si
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
7 

re
po

rti
ng

 d
at

e.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

: 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
fo

r C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 

iii
 


 

Pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7 
re

po
rti

ng
 d

at
e,

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e,

 N
PL

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 re

su
lts

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 th
es

e 
th

re
e 

te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s:
 (1

) D
el

ta
 D

ia
bl

o 
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n 

D
is

tri
ct

, (
2)

 D
ia

bl
o 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
 a

nd
 (3

) C
ity

 o
f P

itt
sb

ur
g 

w
er

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 o

th
er

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s w

ith
in

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 C

os
t G

ro
up

s. 
St

ar
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

fu
nd

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 th

e 
as

se
ts

 a
nd

 li
ab

ili
tie

s a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ov

ed
 to

 th
ei

r o
w

n 
C

os
t 

G
ro

up
. T

he
re

fo
re

, w
e 

ha
ve

 d
ire

ct
ly

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
es

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s t

he
ir 

pe
ns

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

an
d 

N
PL

 
st

ar
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
7 

re
po

rti
ng

 d
at

e.
 In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, t

he
 T

PL
 fo

r e
ac

h 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s i

s o
bt

ai
ne

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 

fr
om

 in
te

rn
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 fo
r t

ha
t s

pe
ci

fic
 e

m
pl

oy
er

. F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 fo

r e
ac

h 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
t e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 th

ei
r r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
bo

ok
ke

ep
in

g 
ac

co
un

t. 


 

R
es

ul
ts

 sh
ow

n 
in

 th
is

 re
po

rt 
ex

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

af
te

r t
he

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

e 
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 F
or

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s t

ha
t p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 th
e 

pr
ep

ay
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
, i

t i
s o

ur
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 th
at

 th
e 

po
rti

on
 

of
 th

e 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

t m
ad

e 
in

 Ju
ly

 2
01

8 
th

at
 w

as
 fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d 

fr
om

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
9 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

9 
ha

s a
ls

o 
be

en
 

ex
cl

ud
ed

1 . E
m

pl
oy

er
s s

ho
ul

d 
co

ns
ul

t w
ith

 th
ei

r a
ud

ito
rs

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
de

fe
rr

ed
 o

ut
flo

w
 th

at
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

cr
ea

te
d 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
. 


 

A
ll 

C
os

t G
ro

up
s e

xc
ep

t C
os

t G
ro

up
s #

1,
 #

2,
 #

6 
an

d 
#8

 o
nl

y 
ha

ve
 o

ne
 a

ct
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

er
, s

o 
al

l o
f t

he
 N

PL
 fo

r t
ho

se
 C

os
t 

G
ro

up
s a

re
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

at
 e

m
pl

oy
er

. T
he

 N
PL

 h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 re
du

ce
d 

by
 a

ny
 p

ro
ce

ed
s f

ro
m

 P
en

si
on

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

B
on

ds
 a

nd
 a

ny
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
. 

Fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

s #
1,

 #
2,

 #
6 

an
d 

#8
, t

he
 N

PL
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
by

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
os

t G
ro

up
. T

he
 st

ep
s w

e 
us

ed
 a

re
 a

s f
ol

lo
w

s:
 

 
- 

C
al

cu
la

te
 ra

tio
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

er
's 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

to
ta

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
os

t G
ro

up
. 

 
- 

M
ul

tip
ly

 th
is

 ra
tio

 b
y 

an
 “

ad
ju

st
ed

” 
N

PL
. T

hi
s a

dj
us

te
d 

N
PL

 is
 la

rg
er

 th
an

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 N

PL
 a

s i
t e

xc
lu

de
s p

ro
ce

ed
s 

fr
om

 P
en

si
on

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

B
on

ds
 a

nd
 a

ny
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

os
t G

ro
up

’s
 a

ss
et

s w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
PL

 fo
r t

he
 C

os
t G

ro
up

. I
t a

ls
o 

ex
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

N
PL

s f
or

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 
em

pl
oy

er
s. 

 
- 

Su
bt

ra
ct

 fr
om

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 N
PL

 th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 fr

om
 a

ny
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 a
nd

 
an

y 
U

A
A

L  
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
ho

se
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s i
n 

ea
ch

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 th

at
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
es

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
.  

 
- 

If 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 is

 in
 se

ve
ra

l C
os

t G
ro

up
s, 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
to

ta
l a

llo
ca

te
d 

N
PL

 is
 th

e 
su

m
 o

f i
ts

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
N

PL
 fr

om
 

ea
ch

 C
os

t G
ro

up
. 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 to
ta

l p
la

n 
N

PL
 is

 th
en

 th
e 

ra
tio

 o
f t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

’s
 to

ta
l a

llo
ca

te
d 

N
PL

 to
 th

e 
to

ta
l N

PL
 o

f a
ll 

em
pl

oy
er

s. 
Th

e 
N

PL
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

ca
n 

be
 fo

un
d 

in
 E

xh
ib

it 
7 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2.

 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1   
W

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
6-

m
on

th
s o

f c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s F
ir

e 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
18

 c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r t
ha

t w
er

e 
pr

e-
pa

id
 

fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r. 
Th

os
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
re

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 o
f a

ss
et

s o
f C

C
C

ER
A.

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

: 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
fo

r C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 

iv
 


 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e 

co
nt

ai
ns

 a
 su

m
m

ar
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

na
m

es
 fo

r a
ll 

ac
tiv

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tin

g 
em

pl
oy

er
s i

n 
C

C
C

ER
A

. A
ls

o 
sh

ow
n 

ar
e 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 n
am

e 
ab

br
ev

ia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 n
um

be
rs

 th
at

 a
re

 u
se

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

re
st

 o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t. 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 A

ct
iv

e 
Pa

rt
ic

ip
at

in
g 

E
m

pl
oy

er
s w

ith
in

 C
C

C
E

R
A

 

# 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 N
am

e 
A

bb
re

vi
at

io
n 

1 
B

et
he

l I
sl

an
d 

M
un

ic
ip

al
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t D
is

tri
ct

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

2 
B

yr
on

-B
re

nt
w

oo
d-

K
ni

gh
ts

en
 U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
D

is
tri

ct
  

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
3 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 M
os

qu
ito

 &
 V

ec
to

r C
on

tro
l D

is
tri

ct
  

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

4 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
5 

C
en

tra
l C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tri

ct
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

6 
Fi

rs
t 5

 C
C

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 F
am

ili
es

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

7 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

8 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s' 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
9 

Ea
st

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

10
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
10

 - 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

11
 

In
-H

om
e 

Su
pp

or
tiv

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

12
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 L
oc

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
Fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
13

 
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
14

 
R

od
eo

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
15

 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
16

 
Sa

n 
R

am
on

 V
al

le
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

17
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 S
up

er
io

r C
ou

rt 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

18
 

D
el

ta
 D

ia
bl

o 
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 (T
er

m
in

at
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

er
) 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 
19

 
D

ia
bl

o 
W

at
er

 D
is

tri
ct

 (T
er

m
in

at
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

er
) 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
20

 
C

ity
 o

f P
itt

sb
ur

g 
(T

er
m

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

) 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

: 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
fo

r C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 

v 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
R

es
ul

ts
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

AS
 6

8 
 

6/
30

/2
01

9(1
)  

 
6/

30
/2

01
8(1

)  
M

ea
su

re
m

en
t D

at
e 

fo
r E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

AS
 6

8 
 

12
/3

1/
20

18
 

 
12

/3
1/

20
17

 
D

is
cl

os
ur

e 
el

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
: 

 
 

1.
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
os

t(2
) 

$2
29

,0
98

,5
52

  
$2

12
,2

57
,6

26
 

2.
 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
9,

57
8,

02
9,

93
7 

 
9,

20
2,

01
7,

66
0 

3.
 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 
8,

14
9,

98
5,

79
3 

 
8,

39
0,

58
1,

04
9 

4.
 

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
1,

42
8,

04
4,

14
4 

 
81

1,
43

6,
61

1 
5.

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
30

3,
34

7,
05

1 
16

2,
33

3,
06

8 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
: 

 
 

6.
 

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(3

)  
$3

24
,8

63
,1

03
  

$3
14

,5
12

,5
61

 
7.

 
A

ct
ua

l e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(3

)  
32

4,
86

3,
10

3 
 

31
4,

51
2,

56
1 

8.
 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

de
fic

ie
nc

y 
(e

xc
es

s)
 (6

) –
 (7

) 
0 

 
0 

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 d
at

a 
fo

r 
pl

an
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
:(4

)  
 

 
9.

 
N

um
be

r o
f r

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

9,
54

7 
9,

26
7 

10
. 

N
um

be
r o

f i
na

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

(5
)  

3,
47

7 
3,

32
7 

11
. 

N
um

be
r o

f a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 
10

,0
21

 
10

,0
38

 
K

ey
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

31
: 

 
 

12
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

 
7.

00
%

 
7.

00
%

 
13

. 
In

fla
tio

n 
ra

te
 

2.
75

%
 

2.
75

%
 

14
. 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s (6
)  

G
en

er
al

: 3
.7

5%
 to

 1
5.

25
%

 a
nd

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 4
.2

5%
 to

 1
6.

25
%

 
G

en
er

al
: 4

.0
0%

 to
 1

3.
25

%
 a

nd
 

Sa
fe

ty
: 4

.0
0%

 to
 1

3.
75

%
 

(1
)  T

he
 re

po
rt

in
g 

da
te

s a
nd

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

es
 fo

r t
he

 p
la

n 
ar

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

20
17

, r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

(2
)  E

xc
lu

de
s a

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
. T

he
 se

rv
ic

e 
co

st
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r’

s v
al

ua
tio

n,
 m

ea
ni

ng
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
va

lu
es

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
st

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

va
lu

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 th
os

e 
us

ed
 in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 
(3

)  S
ee

 fo
ot

no
te

 (1
) u

nd
er

 E
xh

ib
it 

6 
on

 p
ag

e 
12

. 
(4

)  D
at

a 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

is
 u

se
d 

in
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t o

f t
he

 T
PL

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8.
  

(5
)  I

nc
lu

de
s i

na
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 o
n 

de
po

sit
. 

(6
)  I

nc
lu

de
s i

nf
la

tio
n 

at
 2

.7
5%

 p
lu

s r
ea

l a
cr

os
s-

th
e-

bo
ar

d 
sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s o
f 0

.5
0%

 p
lu

s p
ro

m
ot

io
na

l a
nd

 m
er

it 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

ha
t v

ar
y 

by
 se

rv
ic

e 
as

 o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
20

17
. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

: 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
fo

r C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 

vi
 

Im
po

rt
an

t I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t A

ct
ua

ri
al

 V
al

ua
tio

ns
 

A
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
 b

ud
ge

tin
g 

to
ol

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

ng
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 o
f a

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n.
 It

 is
 a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 fo

re
ca

st
 –

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 c

os
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 b

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s p

ai
d 

an
d 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pl

an
. 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n,

 S
eg

al
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 (“
Se

ga
l”

) r
el

ie
s o

n 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f i
np

ut
 it

em
s. 

Th
es

e 
in

cl
ud

e:
 


 

Pl
an

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 P

la
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 d

ef
in

e 
th

e 
ru

le
s t

ha
t w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
m

en
ts

, a
nd

 th
os

e 
ru

le
s, 

or
 th

e 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

em
, m

ay
 c

ha
ng

e 
ov

er
 ti

m
e.

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 to
 k

ee
p 

Se
ga

l i
nf

or
m

ed
 w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

pl
an

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s a

nd
 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, a
nd

 to
 re

vi
ew

 th
e 

pl
an

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

in
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

(a
s w

el
l a

s t
he

 p
la

n 
su

m
m

ar
y 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 o

ur
 

fu
nd

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n 
re

po
rt)

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

at
 S

eg
al

 h
as

 c
or

re
ct

ly
 in

te
rp

re
te

d 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

f b
en

ef
its

. 


 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
t d

at
a 

A
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
fo

r a
 p

la
n 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

da
ta

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

by
 C

C
C

ER
A

. S
eg

al
 d

oe
s n

ot
 

au
di

t s
uc

h 
da

ta
 fo

r c
om

pl
et

en
es

s o
r a

cc
ur

ac
y,

 o
th

er
 th

an
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

it 
fo

r o
bv

io
us

 in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 p

rio
r d

at
a 

an
d 

ot
he

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

at
 a

pp
ea

rs
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e.

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 fo
r S

eg
al

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
be

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 to
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 a

bo
ut

 a
ny

 k
no

w
n 

in
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

 d
at

a.
 


 

A
ss

et
s T

hi
s v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 o
f a

ss
et

s a
s o

f t
he

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

e,
 a

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 C
C

C
ER

A
.  


 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 In

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
an

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n,
 S

eg
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s t
he

 b
en

ef
its

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
pl

an
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s f

or
 th

e 
re

st
 o

f t
he

ir 
liv

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
liv

es
 o

f t
he

ir 
be

ne
fic

ia
rie

s. 
Th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
re

qu
ire

s a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

ob
ab

ili
ty

 o
f d

ea
th

, d
is

ab
ili

ty
, t

er
m

in
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 re
tir

em
en

t o
f e

ac
h 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
os

e 
ev

en
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
r r

ef
le

ct
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

s t
o 

sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 

co
st

-o
f-l

iv
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
. T

he
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
its

 a
re

 th
en

 d
is

co
un

te
d 

to
 a

 p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
, b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 ra
te

 o
f 

re
tu

rn
 th

at
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

pl
an

’s
 a

ss
et

s. 
Th

er
e 

is
 a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 ra

ng
e 

fo
r e

ac
h 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 m

ay
 v

ar
y 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 se

le
ct

ed
. I

t i
s i

m
po

rta
nt

 fo
r a

ny
 u

se
r o

f a
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
is

 c
on

ce
pt

. A
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 p
er

io
di

ca
lly

 re
vi

ew
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 fu

tu
re

 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 re
fle

ct
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 p
la

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e.

 W
hi

le
 fu

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 

on
 th

e 
re

po
rte

d 
re

su
lts

, t
ha

t d
oe

s n
ot

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

. 

Th
e 

us
er

 o
f S

eg
al

’s
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

(o
r o

th
er

 a
ct

ua
ria

l c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

) s
ho

ul
d 

ke
ep

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

 m
in

d:
 


 

Th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
is

 p
re

pa
re

d 
at

 th
e 

re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
 to

 a
ss

is
t t

he
 sp

on
so

rs
 o

f t
he

 F
un

d 
in

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
ite

m
s r

el
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 th

ei
r f

in
an

ci
al

 re
po

rts
. S

eg
al

 is
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 u
se

 o
r m

is
us

e 
of

 it
s r

ep
or

t, 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 b
y 

an
y 

ot
he

r 
pa

rty
. 


 

A
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n’
s a

ss
et

s a
nd

 li
ab

ili
tie

s a
t a

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

da
te

. A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, e
xc

ep
t w

he
re

 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

no
te

d,
 S

eg
al

 d
id

 n
ot

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

an
ge

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 m

ea
su

re
s. 

Th
e 

ac
tu

al
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 1

: 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
fo

r C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

 

vi
i 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 p

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s p
ai

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. 


 

If 
C

C
C

ER
A

 is
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 e
ve

nt
 o

r t
re

nd
 th

at
 w

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
th

at
 m

ay
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 

of
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 S
eg

al
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
vi

se
d,

 so
 th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
ev

al
ua

te
 it

. 


 

Se
ga

l d
oe

s n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 in
ve

st
m

en
t, 

le
ga

l, 
ac

co
un

tin
g,

 o
r t

ax
 a

dv
ic

e.
 S

eg
al

’s
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ou
r u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s a
nd

 o
f t

he
 p

la
n’

s p
ro

vi
si

on
s, 

bu
t t

he
y 

m
ay

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
ns

. T
he

 
B

oa
rd

 sh
ou

ld
 lo

ok
 to

 th
ei

r o
th

er
 a

dv
is

or
s f

or
 e

xp
er

tis
e 

in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s. 

A
s S

eg
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 h

as
 n

o 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r a

ss
et

s o
f C

C
C

ER
A

, i
t i

s n
ot

 a
 fi

du
ci

ar
y 

in
 it

s c
ap

ac
ity

 a
s a

ct
ua

rie
s a

nd
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
C

C
C

ER
A

. 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

1 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
 

G
en

er
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

– 
“F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

”,
 N

ot
e 

D
is

cl
os

ur
es

 a
nd

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
Su

pp
le

m
en

ta
ry

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r a

 
C

os
t-S

ha
rin

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Pl

an
 

Pl
an

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

Pl
an

 a
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n.

 T
he

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(C
C

C
ER

A
) w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 in

 1
94

5.
 C

C
C

ER
A

 is
 g

ov
er

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t L

aw
 o

f 1
93

7 
(C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
31

45
0 

et
 se

q.
), 

th
e 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 P

ub
lic

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 P
en

si
on

 R
ef

or
m

 A
ct

 o
f 2

01
3 

(P
EP

R
A

), 
an

d 
th

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, a
nd

 p
ol

ic
ie

s a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

C
C

C
ER

A
’s

 B
oa

rd
 o

f R
et

ire
m

en
t. 

C
C

C
ER

A
 is

 a
 c

os
t-s

ha
rin

g 
m

ul
tip

le
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 p
ub

lic
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
tir

em
en

t a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

w
ho

se
 m

ai
n 

fu
nc

tio
n 

is
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 se
rv

ic
e 

re
tir

em
en

t, 
di

sa
bi

lit
y,

 d
ea

th
 a

nd
 su

rv
iv

or
 b

en
ef

its
 to

 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
. C

C
C

ER
A

 a
ls

o 
pr

ov
id

es
 re

tir
em

en
t b

en
ef

its
 to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
em

be
rs

 fo
r 1

6 
ot

he
r p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f C
CC

ER
A

. 

Th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f C
C

C
ER

A
 is

 v
es

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
C

C
ER

A
 B

oa
rd

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

t. 
Th

e 
B

oa
rd

 c
on

si
st

s o
f t

w
el

ve
 tr

us
te

es
. O

f t
he

 
tw

el
ve

 m
em

be
rs

, t
hr

ee
 a

re
 a

lte
rn

at
es

. F
ou

r t
ru

st
ee

s a
re

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
B

oa
rd

 o
f S

up
er

vi
so

rs
; f

ou
r t

ru
st

ee
s (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Sa

fe
ty

 a
lte

rn
at

e)
 a

re
 e

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
C

C
C

ER
A

’s
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
; t

w
o 

tru
st

ee
s (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
on

e 
al

te
rn

at
e)

 a
re

 e
le

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

re
tir

ed
 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p.

 B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 se

rv
e 

th
re

e-
ye

ar
 te

rm
s, 

w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
ea

su
re

r w
ho

 is
 e

le
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ge

ne
ra

l 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 se
rv

es
 d

ur
in

g 
hi

s t
en

ur
e 

in
 o

ff
ic

e.
 

Pl
an

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p.

 A
t D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8,

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
co

ns
is

te
d 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g:

 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

 o
r b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s c

ur
re

nt
ly

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s 
9,

54
7 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

, b
ut

 n
ot

 y
et

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s(1
)  

3,
47

7 
A

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 

10
,0

21
 

To
ta

l 
23

,0
45

 
(1

)  I
nc

lu
de

s i
na

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 o
n 

de
po

sit
 

N
ot

e:
 D

at
a 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
is

 n
ot

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f t

he
 T

PL
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

  

Be
ne

fit
s p

ro
vi

de
d.

  C
C

C
ER

A
 p

ro
vi

de
s s

er
vi

ce
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

di
sa

bi
lit

y,
 d

ea
th

 a
nd

 su
rv

iv
or

 b
en

ef
its

 to
 e

lig
ib

le
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s. 
A

ll 
re

gu
la

r f
ul

l-t
im

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s o

f t
he

 C
ou

nt
y 

of
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 o

r p
ar

tic
ip

at
in

g 
ag

en
ci

es
 b

ec
om

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f C
C

C
ER

A
 e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

on
 th

e 
fir

st
 d

ay
 o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t f
ul

l p
ay

 p
er

io
d 

af
te

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
Pa

rt-
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s i

n 
pe

rm
an

en
t p

os
iti

on
s m

us
t w

or
k 

at
 le

as
t 2

0 
ho

ur
s a

 w
ee

k 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 b
e 

a 
m

em
be

r o
f C

C
C

ER
A

. T
he

re
 a

re
 se

pa
ra

te
 re

tir
em

en
t p

la
ns

 fo
r G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
. 

Sa
fe

ty
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
is

 e
xt

en
de

d 
to

 th
os

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 a
ct

iv
e 

la
w

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t, 
fir

e 
su

pp
re

ss
io

n,
 a

nd
 c

er
ta

in
 o

th
er

 “
Sa

fe
ty

” 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

2 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

ns
. T

he
re

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 fi

ve
 ti

er
s a

pp
lic

ab
le

 to
 S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
. S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 T
ie

r A
 (E

nh
an

ce
d 

an
d 

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d)
. C

ou
nt

y 
Sh

er
iff

’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

 h
ire

d 
on

 
or

 a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

00
7,

 b
ut

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

ar
e 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 E

nh
an

ce
d.

 A
ny

 n
ew

 S
af

et
y 

M
em

be
r w

ho
 

be
co

m
es

 a
 m

em
be

r o
n 

or
 a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3 
is

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

PE
PR

A
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

 o
r E

 (S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 c
er

ta
in

 
ba

rg
ai

ni
ng

 u
ni

ts
) a

nd
 is

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

od
e 

75
22

 e
t s

eq
. 

A
ll 

ot
he

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

re
 c

la
ss

ifi
ed

 a
s G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
. T

he
re

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 e

ig
ht

 ti
er

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

. G
en

er
al

 
Ti

er
 1

 (E
nh

an
ce

d 
an

d 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 in
cl

ud
es

 g
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 h
ire

d 
be

fo
re

 Ju
ly

 1
, 1

98
0 

an
d 

el
ec

tin
g 

no
t t

o 
tra

ns
fe

r t
o 

Ti
er

 2
 

Pl
an

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 c
er

ta
in

 G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

hi
re

d 
by

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

em
pl

oy
er

s w
ho

 d
id

 
no

t a
do

pt
 T

ie
r 2

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 T

ie
r 1

. G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 in

cl
ud

es
 m

os
t G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 h

ire
d 

on
 o

r a
fte

r A
ug

us
t 1

, 1
98

0 
an

d 
al

l 
G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 h

ire
d 

be
fo

re
 Ju

ly
 1

, 1
98

0 
el

ec
tin

g 
to

 tr
an

sf
er

 to
 th

e 
Ti

er
 2

 P
la

n.
 E

ff
ec

tiv
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 1
, 2

00
2,

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nt

y,
 

Ti
er

 2
 w

as
 e

lim
in

at
ed

 a
nd

 a
ll 

C
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s (
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

C
N

A
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s)
 in

 T
ie

r 2
 w

er
e 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 T
ie

r 3
 (E

nh
an

ce
d 

an
d 

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d)
. E

ff
ec

tiv
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

00
5,

 a
ll 

C
N

A
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s i
n 

Ti
er

 2
 w

er
e 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 T
ie

r 3
. N

ew
 G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 

be
co

m
e 

a 
m

em
be

r o
n 

or
 a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3 
ar

e 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 a
s P

EP
R

A
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (h
ire

d 
by

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

em
pl

oy
er

s w
ho

 d
id

 
no

t a
do

pt
 T

ie
r 2

) a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 (w

ith
 2

%
/3

%
 m

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

s)
 a

nd
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e 
75

22
 e

t s
eq

. 

G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 p
rio

r t
o 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3,

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 to
 re

tir
e 

on
ce

 th
ey

 a
tta

in
 th

e 
ag

e 
of

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 o
r a

t a
ge

 5
0 

an
d 

ha
ve

 a
cq

ui
re

d 
10

 o
r m

or
e 

ye
ar

s o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 c
re

di
t. 

A
 m

em
be

r w
ith

 3
0 

ye
ar

s o
f s

er
vi

ce
 is

 e
lig

ib
le

 to
 re

tir
e 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f a
ge

. G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 a
re

 fi
rs

t h
ire

d 
on

 o
r a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3,
 a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 to

 re
tir

e 
on

ce
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

at
ta

in
ed

 
th

e 
ag

e 
of

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 o
r a

t a
ge

 5
2,

 a
nd

 h
av

e 
ac

qu
ire

d 
fiv

e 
ye

ar
s o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 c

re
di

t. 

Sa
fe

ty
 m

em
be

rs
 p

rio
r t

o 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3,
 a

re
 e

lig
ib

le
 to

 re
tir

e 
on

ce
 th

ey
 a

tta
in

 th
e 

ag
e 

of
 7

0 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 o

r a
t a

ge
 5

0 
an

d 
ha

ve
 a

cq
ui

re
d 

10
 o

r m
or

e 
ye

ar
s o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 c

re
di

t. 
A

 m
em

be
r w

ith
 2

0 
ye

ar
s o

f s
er

vi
ce

 is
 e

lig
ib

le
 to

 re
tir

e 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f a

ge
. S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 a

re
 fi

rs
t h

ire
d 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3,

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 to
 re

tir
e 

on
ce

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
at

ta
in

ed
 

th
e 

ag
e 

of
 7

0 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 o

r a
t a

ge
 5

0,
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

ac
qu

ire
d 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

s o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 c
re

di
t. 

Th
e 

re
tir

em
en

t b
en

ef
it 

th
e 

m
em

be
r w

ill
 re

ce
iv

e 
is

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

ag
e 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

fin
al

 a
ve

ra
ge

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

re
tir

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 c
re

di
t a

nd
 re

tir
em

en
t p

la
n 

an
d 

tie
r. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 b
en

ef
its

 a
re

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f S

ec
tio

ns
 §

31
67

6.
11

 a
nd

 §
31

67
6.

16
 fo

r N
on

-
En

ha
nc

ed
 a

nd
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

be
ne

fit
 fo

rm
ul

ae
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 T
he

 m
on

th
ly

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

 1
/6

0t
h 

(N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d)
 a

nd
 1

/5
0t

h 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

 o
f f

in
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
tim

es
 y

ea
rs

 o
f a

cc
ru

ed
 re

tir
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 c

re
di

t t
im

es
 a

ge
 fa

ct
or

 fr
om

 e
ith

er
 se

ct
io

n 
§3

16
76

.1
1 

(N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d)
 o

r §
31

67
6.

16
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

. N
ot

e 
th

at
 fo

r m
em

be
rs

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

co
ve

re
d 

un
de

r t
he

 N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
fo

rm
ul

a 
(§

31
67

6.
11

), 
th

ey
 a

re
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 a
t l

ea
st

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s t

he
y 

co
ul

d 
ha

ve
 re

ce
iv

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
fo

rm
ul

a 
(§

31
67

6.
11

). 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 2

 b
en

ef
it 

is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f S
ec

tio
ns

 §
31

75
2.

 G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
r b

en
ef

its
 fo

r 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

3 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

(P
EP

R
A

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

) a
re

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 fo
un

d 
in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
§7

52
2.

20
(a

). 
Th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
fin

al
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 y

ea
rs

 o
f a

cc
ru

ed
 re

tir
em

en
t c

re
di

t m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

ag
e 

fa
ct

or
 fr

om
 S

ec
tio

n 
§7

52
2.

20
(a

). 

Sa
fe

ty
 m

em
be

r b
en

ef
its

 a
re

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
ns

 §
31

66
4 

an
d 

§3
16

64
.1

 fo
r N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

an
d 

En
ha

nc
ed

 fo
rm

ul
ae

, r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
 T

he
 m

on
th

ly
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 1

/5
0t

h 
(o

r 2
%

) o
f f

in
al

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

tim
es

 y
ea

rs
 o

f a
cc

ru
ed

 re
tir

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 c
re

di
t t

im
es

 a
ge

 fa
ct

or
 fr

om
 S

ec
tio

n 
§3

16
64

 (N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d)
 o

r 3
%

 o
f 

fin
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
tim

es
 y

ea
rs

 o
f a

cc
ru

ed
 re

tir
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 c

re
di

t t
im

es
 a

ge
 fa

ct
or

 fr
om

 §
31

66
4.

1 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

. F
or

 th
os

e 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
r w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

(P
EP

R
A

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

) b
en

ef
its

 a
re

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 fo
un

d 
in

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
§7

52
2.

25
(d

). 
Th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 a

llo
w

an
ce

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
fin

al
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 y
ea

rs
 o

f a
cc

ru
ed

 re
tir

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

 c
re

di
t m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 th

e 
ag

e 
fa

ct
or

 fr
om

 S
ec

tio
n 

§7
52

2.
25

(d
). 

Fo
r m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3,
 th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 m

on
th

ly
 re

tir
em

en
t a

llo
w

an
ce

 is
 1

00
%

 o
f f

in
al

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n.

 T
he

re
 is

 n
o 

fin
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
lim

it 
on

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 re
tir

em
en

t b
en

ef
it 

fo
r m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3.

 H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

ea
rn

ab
le

 th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r 2
01

8 
fo

r m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s o
n 

or
 a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 1
99

6 
bu

t b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

is
 $

27
5,

00
0.

 F
or

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s o

n 
or

 a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f p

en
si

on
ab

le
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

ta
ke

n 
in

to
 

ac
co

un
t f

or
 2

01
8 

is
 e

qu
al

 to
 $

12
1,

38
8 

fo
r t

ho
se

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
 ($

14
5,

66
6 

fo
r t

ho
se

 n
ot

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
). 

Th
es

e 
lim

its
 a

re
 a

dj
us

te
d 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
. M

em
be

rs
 a

re
 e

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 p

ay
in

g 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s a

re
 

ex
em

pt
 fr

om
 p

ay
in

g 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

n 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
 e

xc
es

s o
f t

he
 a

nn
ua

l c
ap

. 

Fi
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
co

ns
is

ts
 o

f t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 1
2 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

m
on

th
s f

or
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

, G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 (n

on
-d

is
ab

ili
ty

) 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r A
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t 3
6 

co
ns

ec
ut

iv
e 

m
on

th
s f

or
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 2

, G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 (d

is
ab

ili
ty

), 
PE

PR
A

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

, P
EP

R
A

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 5
, S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

, P
EP

R
A

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 P

EP
R

A
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 E

 m
em

be
rs

. 

Th
e 

m
em

be
r m

ay
 e

le
ct

 a
n 

un
m

od
ifi

ed
 re

tir
em

en
t a

llo
w

an
ce

, o
r c

ho
os

e 
an

 o
pt

io
na

l r
et

ire
m

en
t a

llo
w

an
ce

. T
he

 u
nm

od
ifi

ed
 

re
tir

em
en

t a
llo

w
an

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
s t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
an

d 
a 

60
%

 c
on

tin
ua

nc
e 

to
 a

n 
el

ig
ib

le
 su

rv
iv

in
g 

sp
ou

se
 o

r d
om

es
tic

 
pa

rtn
er

. A
n 

el
ig

ib
le

 su
rv

iv
in

g 
sp

ou
se

 o
r d

om
es

tic
 p

ar
tn

er
 is

 o
ne

 m
ar

rie
d 

to
 o

r r
eg

is
te

re
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

m
em

be
r o

ne
 y

ea
r p

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

re
tir

em
en

t d
at

e 
or

 a
t l

ea
st

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f d

ea
th

 a
nd

 h
as

 a
tta

in
ed

 a
ge

 5
5 

on
 o

r p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f d

ea
th

. 
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

fo
ur

 o
pt

io
na

l r
et

ire
m

en
t a

llo
w

an
ce

s t
he

 m
em

be
r m

ay
 c

ho
os

e.
 E

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
op

tio
na

l r
et

ire
m

en
t a

llo
w

an
ce

s r
eq

ui
re

s a
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

un
m

od
ifi

ed
 re

tir
em

en
t a

llo
w

an
ce

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

m
em

be
r t

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
er

ta
in

 b
en

ef
its

 to
 a

 
su

rv
iv

in
g 

sp
ou

se
, d

om
es

tic
 p

ar
tn

er
, o

r n
am

ed
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
 h

av
in

g 
an

 in
su

ra
bl

e 
in

te
re

st
 in

 th
e 

lif
e 

of
 th

e 
m

em
be

r. 

C
C

C
ER

A
 p

ro
vi

de
s a

n 
an

nu
al

 c
os

t-o
f-l

iv
in

g 
be

ne
fit

 to
 a

ll 
re

tir
ee

s. 
Th

e 
co

st
-o

f-l
iv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t, 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 th

e 
C

on
su

m
er

 
Pr

ic
e 

In
de

x 
fo

r t
he

 S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co
-O

ak
la

nd
-H

ay
w

ar
d 

A
re

a,
 is

 c
ap

pe
d 

at
 3

.0
%

 fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

, G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 (n

on
-d

is
ab

ili
ty

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

4 

be
ne

fit
s)

, P
EP

R
A

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
, P

EP
R

A
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

-3
%

 (n
on

-d
is

ab
ili

ty
 b

en
ef

its
), 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 P
EP

R
A

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 
D

. T
he

 c
os

t-o
f-

liv
in

g 
ad

ju
stm

en
t i

s c
ap

pe
d 

at
 4

.0
%

 fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 (d
is

ab
ili

ty
 b

en
ef

its
), 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 a

nd
 P

EP
R

A
 G

en
er

al
 

Ti
er

 5
-3

%
 (d

is
ab

ili
ty

 b
en

ef
its

). 
Th

e 
co

st
-o

f-l
iv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t i

s c
ap

pe
d 

at
 2

.0
%

 fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

-2
%

, S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 a

nd
 

PE
PR

A
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 E

. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

of
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 a

nd
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

re
tir

em
en

t p
la

n 
ba

se
d 

up
on

 a
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f R
et

ire
m

en
t. 

Em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s a
re

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 C
C

C
ER

A
’s

 a
ct

ua
ry

 a
fte

r t
he

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n.
 T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r b

eg
in

ni
ng

 Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
8 

(b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

va
lu

at
io

n)
 w

as
 3

8.
08

%
 o

f c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

M
em

be
rs

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 C

C
C

ER
A

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f t
he

 re
tir

em
en

t p
la

n 
or

 ti
er

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

. 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 fi
sc

al
 y

ea
r b

eg
in

ni
ng

 Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
8 

(b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

va
lu

at
io

n)
 w

as
 1

2.
08

%
 o

f c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

5 

EX
H

IB
IT

 2
 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 
M

ea
su

re
m

en
t D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

7 
Th

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s o
f t

he
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$9

,5
78

,0
29

,9
37

  
$9

,2
02

,0
17

,6
60

  
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 

(8
,1

49
,9

85
,7

93
) 

(8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
) 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$1

,4
28

,0
44

,1
44

  
$8

11
,4

36
,6

11
  

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

85
.0

9%
 

91
.1

8%
 

Th
e 

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 (N
PL

) w
as

 m
ea

su
re

d 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

20
17

. T
he

 P
la

n’
s F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 (p
la

n 
as

se
ts)

 
w

as
 v

al
ue

d 
as

 o
f t

he
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e 

w
hi

le
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 (T

PL
) w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
ro

lli
ng

 fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

TP
L 

fro
m

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

ns
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

an
d 

20
16

, r
es

pe
ct

iv
el

y.
 

Pl
an

 p
ro

vi
sio

ns
. T

he
 p

la
n 

pr
ov

isi
on

s u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f t

he
 N

PL
 as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

20
17

 a
re

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 th
os

e 
us

ed
 in

 th
e 

CC
CE

RA
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
20

17
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 T
he

 T
PL

 a
nd

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

sit
io

n 
in

cl
ud

e 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s a

nd
 a

ss
et

s h
el

d 
fo

r t
he

 P
os

t R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 B
en

ef
it 

Re
se

rv
e. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 m
et

ho
ds

.  
Th

e 
TP

L 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

th
at

 w
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

an
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

as
 o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7,

 w
as

 re
-m

ea
su

re
d 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 th

at
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t h

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

fo
r u

se
 in

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 T
ho

se
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f a

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

st
ud

y 
fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
as

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fu

nd
in

g 
va

lu
at

io
n 

fo
r C

CC
ER

A
 a

nd
 a

re
 o

ut
lin

ed
 o

n 
pa

ge
 1

3 
of

 th
is 

re
po

rt.
 In

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r, 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 al

l p
er

io
ds

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t: 

In
fla

tio
n 

2.
75

%
 

Sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s  

G
en

er
al

: 3
.7

5%
 to

 1
5.

25
%

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y:

 4
.2

5%
 to

 1
6.

25
%

, v
ar

yi
ng

 b
y 

se
rv

ic
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fla

tio
n.

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 

7.
00

%
, n

et
 o

f p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

fla
tio

n.
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 fo

r 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n 
1.

10
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s o

f t
he

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
at

es
 fo

r t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r. 
O

th
er

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 th

os
e 

us
ed

 in
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fu
nd

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

6 

EX
H

IB
IT

 2
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

Th
e T

PL
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

w
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

an
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6.
 T

he
 ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

us
ed

 w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f a

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

stu
dy

 fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

2 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4.

 T
he

y 
ar

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

fu
nd

in
g 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
fo

r C
CC

ER
A

. I
n 

pa
rti

cu
la

r, 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
to

 al
l p

er
io

ds
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t: 

In
fla

tio
n 

2.
75

%
 

Sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s  

G
en

er
al

: 4
.0

0%
 to

 1
3.

25
%

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y:

 4
.0

0%
 to

 1
3.

75
%

, v
ar

yi
ng

 b
y 

se
rv

ic
e,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fla

tio
n.

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 

7.
00

%
, n

et
 o

f p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 in

fla
tio

n.
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 fo

r 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

va
lu

at
io

n 
1.

13
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s o

f t
he

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
at

es
 fo

r t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r. 
O

th
er

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 th

os
e 

us
ed

 in
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

fu
nd

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

7 

EX
H

IB
IT

 3
 

Ta
rg

et
 A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 

Th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 2
01

9 
us

in
g 

a 
bu

ild
in

g-
bl

oc
k 

m
et

ho
d 

in
 w

hi
ch

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
fu

tu
re

 re
al

 ra
te

s o
f r

et
ur

n 
(e

xp
ec

te
d 

re
tu

rn
s, 

ne
t o

f i
nf

la
tio

n)
 a

re
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

m
aj

or
 a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
. T

he
se

 re
tu

rn
s a

re
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
by

 w
ei

gh
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

fu
tu

re
 re

al
 ra

te
s o

f r
et

ur
n 

by
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
, a

dd
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 in

fla
tio

n 
an

d 
su

bt
ra

ct
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s a

nd
 a

 ri
sk

 m
ar

gi
n.

 T
he

 ta
rg

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ar

ith
m

et
ic

 re
al

 ra
te

s o
f r

et
ur

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
m

aj
or

 a
ss

et
 

cl
as

s, 
af

te
r d

ed
uc

tin
g 

in
fla

tio
n 

bu
t b

ef
or

e 
de

du
ct

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s, 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
de

riv
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ar

e 
su

m
m

ar
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e.

 T
hi

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
w

ill
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

er
y 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

st
ud

y.
 

 

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 
T

ar
ge

t 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

L
on

g-
T

er
m

 
E

xp
ec

te
d 

A
ri

th
m

et
ic

 R
ea

l 
R

at
e 

of
 R

et
ur

n 
La

rg
e 

C
ap

 U
.S

. E
qu

ity
 

5%
 

5.
44

%
 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

qu
ity

 
13

%
 

6.
54

%
 

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
t E

qu
ity

 
11

%
 

8.
73

%
 

Sh
or

t-T
er

m
 G

ov
t/C

re
di

t 
23

%
 

0.
84

%
 

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y 
3%

 
1.

05
%

 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 
8%

 
9.

27
%

 
R

is
k 

D
iv

er
si

fy
in

g 
7%

 
3.

53
%

 
G

lo
ba

l I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

3%
 

7.
90

%
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

C
re

di
t 

12
%

 
5.

80
%

 
R

EI
T 

1%
 

6.
80

%
 

V
al

ue
 A

dd
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
5%

 
8.

80
%

 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

st
ic

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

4%
 

12
.0

0%
 

R
is

k 
Pa

rit
y 

5%
 

5.
80

%
 

T
ot

al
 

10
0%

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

8 

 EX
H

IB
IT

 3
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Ta

rg
et

 A
ss

et
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

Th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 2
01

6 
us

in
g 

a 
bu

ild
in

g-
bl

oc
k 

m
et

ho
d 

in
 w

hi
ch

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
fu

tu
re

 re
al

 ra
te

s o
f r

et
ur

n 
(e

xp
ec

te
d 

re
tu

rn
s, 

ne
t o

f i
nf

la
tio

n)
 a

re
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

m
aj

or
 a

ss
et

 c
la

ss
. T

he
se

 re
tu

rn
s a

re
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
by

 w
ei

gh
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

fu
tu

re
 re

al
 ra

te
s o

f r
et

ur
n 

by
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
, a

dd
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 in

fla
tio

n 
an

d 
su

bt
ra

ct
in

g 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s a

nd
 a

 ri
sk

 m
ar

gi
n.

 T
he

 ta
rg

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ar

ith
m

et
ic

 re
al

 ra
te

s o
f r

et
ur

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
m

aj
or

 a
ss

et
 

cl
as

s, 
af

te
r d

ed
uc

tin
g 

in
fla

tio
n 

bu
t b

ef
or

e 
de

du
ct

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s, 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
de

riv
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ar

e 
su

m
m

ar
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ta

bl
e.

 T
hi

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
w

ill
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

er
y 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

st
ud

y.
 

 

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss

 
T

ar
ge

t 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

L
on

g-
T

er
m

 
E

xp
ec

te
d 

A
ri

th
m

et
ic

 R
ea

l 
R

at
e 

of
 R

et
ur

n 
La

rg
e 

C
ap

 U
.S

. E
qu

ity
 

6%
 

5.
75

%
 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

qu
ity

 
10

%
 

6.
99

%
 

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 E
qu

ity
 

14
%

 
8.

95
%

 
Sh

or
t-T

er
m

 G
ov

t/C
re

di
t 

24
%

 
0.

20
%

 
U

.S
. T

re
as

ur
y 

2%
 

0.
30

%
 

R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

7%
 

4.
45

%
 

C
as

h 
&

 E
qu

iv
al

en
ts 

1%
 

-0
.4

6%
 

R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

St
ra

te
gi

es
 

2%
 

4.
30

%
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

C
re

di
t 

17
%

 
6.

30
%

 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 
17

%
 

8.
10

%
 

T
ot

al
 

10
0%

 
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

9 

EX
H

IB
IT

 3
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Ta

rg
et

 A
ss

et
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

D
is

co
un

t r
at

e:
 T

he
 d

is
co

un
t r

at
e 

us
ed

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
TP

L 
w

as
 7

.0
0%

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7.

 T
he

 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

of
 c

as
h 

flo
w

s u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

di
sc

ou
nt

 ra
te

 a
ss

um
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
at

 
ra

te
s e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s. 
Fo

r t
hi

s p
ur

po
se

, o
nl

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 th
at

 
ar

e 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 fu
nd

 b
en

ef
its

 fo
r c

ur
re

nt
 p

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 th
ei

r b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s a
re

 in
cl

ud
ed

. P
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
th

at
 a

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 fu
nd

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
st

s f
or

 fu
tu

re
 p

la
n 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 th
ei

r b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s, 
as

 w
el

l a
s p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
fr

om
 fu

tu
re

 p
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
, a

re
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
. B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
os

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
, t

he
 P

la
n’

s F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 w

as
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

al
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 fu
tu

re
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r c
ur

re
nt

 p
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
. T

he
re

fo
re

, t
he

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ra

te
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

 o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 w
as

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 a

ll 
pe

rio
ds

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
TP

L 
as

 o
f b

ot
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
an

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7.

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 4
 

D
is

co
un

t R
at

e 
Se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 

Se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
. T

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

N
PL

 o
f t

he
 C

C
C

ER
A

 a
s o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8,

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 a
ll 

em
pl

oy
er

s, 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 u
si

ng
 th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 o

f 7
.0

0%
, a

s w
el

l a
s w

ha
t t

he
 

C
C

C
ER

A
’s

 N
PL

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
if 

it 
w

er
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 u

si
ng

 a
 d

is
co

un
t r

at
e 

th
at

 is
 1

-p
er

ce
nt

ag
e-

po
in

t l
ow

er
 (6

.0
0%

) o
r 1

-p
er

ce
nt

ag
e-

po
in

t h
ig

he
r (

8.
00

%
) t

ha
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t r

at
e.

 T
he

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
N

PL
 b

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 is

 sh
ow

n 
la

te
r i

n 
Ex

hi
bi

t 7
. 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

1%
 D

ec
re

as
e 

 
(6

.0
0%

) 
C

ur
re

nt
 D

is
co

un
t R

at
e 

 
(7

.0
0%

) 
1%

 In
cr

ea
se

 
(8

.0
0%

) 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$6
73

,0
18

  
$3

83
,1

18
  

$1
45

,6
15

  
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

25
7,

54
1 

 
52

,3
48

  
(1

15
,7

57
) 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

8,
32

2,
10

9 
 

4,
73

7,
38

9 
 

1,
80

0,
58

3 
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
29

5,
51

7,
65

6 
 

16
0,

81
7,

31
7 

 
50

,4
63

,1
80

  
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
14

5,
19

3,
99

0 
 

90
,4

30
,1

04
  

45
,5

64
,4

31
  

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
5,

67
8,

97
1 

 
2,

88
1,

75
9 

 
59

0,
12

5 
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
1,

90
6,

54
7,

10
1 

 
97

6,
03

1,
74

7 
 

21
3,

70
0,

93
4 

 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
12

,8
51

,0
99

  
7,

31
5,

53
2 

 
2,

78
0,

48
2 

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

29
,2

62
,2

05
  

18
,2

45
,3

16
  

9,
21

9,
65

7 
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
19

,3
60

,5
17

  
10

,7
96

,4
97

  
3,

78
0,

36
8 

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

2,
30

1,
08

2 
 

1,
30

9,
89

9 
 

49
7,

86
6 

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
55

7,
48

1 
 

30
4,

19
5 

 
96

,6
89

  
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
60

,7
49

,2
06

  
34

,4
18

,8
05

  
12

,8
47

,4
51

  
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
92

0,
71

0 
 

18
7,

14
3 

 
(4

13
,8

37
) 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

17
,8

68
,7

38
  

11
,7

16
,9

80
  

6,
67

7,
11

2 
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
13

1,
38

7,
47

3 
 

69
,5

77
,9

60
  

18
,9

40
,1

11
  

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
54

,7
19

,5
57

  
27

,4
20

,7
45

  
5,

05
6,

01
4 

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

4,
28

4,
83

2 
 

2,
43

3,
19

6 
 

91
6,

23
1 

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

1,
39

2,
36

7 
 

1,
03

4,
72

6 
 

74
1,

72
6 

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
14

,3
10

,8
78

  
7,

94
9,

36
8 

 
2,

73
7,

65
9 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 a

ll 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

$2
,7

12
,1

56
,5

31
  

$1
,4

28
,0

44
,1

44
  

$3
76

,0
26

,6
40

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 5
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f C

ha
ng

es
 in

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
– 

La
st

 T
w

o 
Pl

an
 Y

ea
rs

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

9 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

T
ot

al
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

 
 

1.
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

co
st

 
$2

29
,0

98
,5

52
  

$2
12

,2
57

,6
26

 
2.

 
In

te
re

st
 

64
7,

73
4,

05
8 

 
61

6,
27

2,
84

8 
3.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
of

 b
en

ef
it 

te
rm

s 
0 

 
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
52

,8
52

,8
41

  
(2

9,
19

2,
22

1)
 

5.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

(9
2,

41
8,

91
5)

 
0 

6.
 

B
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 re

fu
nd

s o
f m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(4

61
,2

54
,2

59
) 

(4
36

,2
95

,0
20

) 
7.

 
N

et
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 T
ot

al
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$3
76

,0
12

,2
77

  
$3

63
,0

43
,2

33
 

 
 

 
8.

 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 –

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 

9,
20

2,
01

7,
66

0 
 

8,
83

8,
97

4,
42

7 
9.

 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 –

 e
nd

in
g 

 
$9

,5
78

,0
29

,9
37

  
$9

,2
02

,0
17

,6
60

 
 

 
 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 
 

 
10

. 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 –

 e
m

pl
oy

er
(1

)  
$3

25
,1

17
,1

03
  

$3
14

,8
36

,5
61

 
11

. 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 –

 p
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
(1

)  
10

3,
54

1,
52

9 
 

96
,4

66
,9

06
 

12
. 

N
et

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e(2
)  

(1
95

,0
30

,8
88

) 
98

7,
41

5,
98

1 
13

. 
B

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 re
fu

nd
s o

f m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(4
61

,2
54

,2
59

) 
(4

36
,2

95
,0

20
) 

14
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
(9

,3
37

,0
53

) 
(9

,1
46

,1
15

) 
15

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
(3

,6
31

,6
88

) 
(1

,2
16

,7
68

) 
16

. 
N

et
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
la

n’
s F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 
($

24
0,

59
5,

25
6)

 
$9

52
,0

61
,5

45
 

 
 

 
17

. 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 –

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 

8,
39

0,
58

1,
04

9 
 

7,
43

8,
51

9,
50

4 
18

. 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 –

 e
nd

in
g 

 
$8

,1
49

,9
85

,7
93

  
$8

,3
90

,5
81

,0
49

 
 

 
 

19
. 

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 –
 e

nd
in

g 
(9

) –
 (1

8)
 

$1
,4

28
,0

44
,1

44
  

$8
11

,4
36

,6
11

 
 

 
 

20
. 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

85
.0

9%
 

91
.1

8%
 

21
. 

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll(3

)  
$8

50
,9

29
,1

06
  

$8
09

,9
60

,0
88

 
22

. 
Pl

an
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 a

s p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
16

7.
82

%
 

10
0.

18
%

 
 

 
 

 

(1
)  S

ee
 fo

ot
no

te
 (1

) u
nd

er
 E

xh
ib

it 
6 

on
 p

ag
e 

12
. 

(2
)  I

nc
lu

de
s C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t D

is
co

un
t. 

(3
)  C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 6
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 –

 L
as

t T
en

 P
la

n 
Ye

ar
s 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

(1
)  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 in

 
R

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 
D

et
er

m
in

ed
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
(1

)  
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

D
ef

ic
ie

nc
y/

(E
xc

es
s)

 
C

ov
er

ed
 P

ay
ro

ll(2
)  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

s 
 

a 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

C
ov

er
ed

 P
ay

ro
ll 

20
09

 
$1

95
,6

31
,6

73
 

$1
95

,6
31

,6
73

  
$0

 
$7

04
,9

47
,6

68
  

27
.7

5%
 

20
10

 
18

3,
95

0,
93

0 
18

3,
95

0,
93

0 
 

0 
69

4,
44

3,
99

9 
 

26
.4

9%
 

20
11

 
20

0,
38

8,
99

4 
20

0,
38

8,
99

4 
 

0 
68

7,
44

3,
20

6 
 

29
.1

5%
 

20
12

 
21

2,
32

1,
32

5 
21

2,
32

1,
32

5 
 

0 
66

6,
39

4,
14

6 
 

31
.8

6%
 

20
13

 
22

8,
01

7,
45

2 
22

8,
01

7,
45

2(3
)  

0 
63

8,
63

5,
91

2 
35

.7
0%

 
20

14
 

28
8,

76
0,

41
3 

28
8,

76
0,

41
3(4

)  
0 

67
1,

48
5,

79
8 

43
.0

0%
 

20
15

 
32

1,
22

0,
27

0 
32

1,
22

0,
27

0(5
)  

0 
70

9,
81

8,
85

8 
45

.2
5%

 
20

16
 

30
7,

90
9,

50
9 

30
7,

90
9,

50
9 

0 
75

5,
13

8,
88

2 
40

.7
8%

 
20

17
 

31
4,

51
2,

56
1 

31
4,

51
2,

56
1(6

)  
0 

80
9,

96
0,

08
8 

38
.8

3%
 

20
18

 
32

4,
86

3,
10

3 
32

4,
86

3,
10

3(7
) 

0 
85

0,
92

9,
10

6 
38

.1
8%

 
(1

)  S
ta

rt
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6,
 in

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 
m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 P
ri

or
 to

 th
at

 y
ea

r, 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 e

xc
lu

de
d 

“m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 
su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 
 (2

)  C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
(3

)  E
xc

lu
de

s a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
w

ar
ds

 U
AA

L 
of

 $
7,

00
0,

00
0.

 
(4

)  E
xc

lu
de

s a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
w

ar
ds

 U
AA

L 
of

 $
5,

00
0,

00
0.

 
(5

)  E
xc

lu
de

s a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
w

ar
ds

 U
AA

L 
of

 $
2,

50
0,

00
0.

 
(6

)  E
xc

lu
de

s a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
w

ar
ds

 U
AA

L 
of

 $
32

4,
00

0.
 

(7
)  E

xc
lu

de
s a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

w
ar

ds
 U

AA
L 

of
 $

25
4,

00
0.

 
Se

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

no
te

s t
o 

th
is

 sc
he

du
le

 o
n 

ne
xt

 p
ag

e.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

13
 

N
ot

es
 to

 E
xh

ib
it 

6 

M
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
“a

ct
ua

ri
al

ly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n”

 r
at

es
: 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
 

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 tw

o 
an

d 
a 

ha
lf 

ye
ar

s p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r i

n 
w

hi
ch

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
re

 re
po

rte
d 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 c

os
t m

et
ho

d 
En

try
 A

ge
 A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d 
A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

m
et

ho
d 

Le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
ri

od
 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
U

A
A

L 
is

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 fi
xe

d 
(d

ec
re

as
in

g 
or

 c
lo

se
d)

 p
er

io
d 

w
ith

 5
 

ye
ar

s r
em

ai
ni

ng
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7.

 A
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 U

A
A

L 
af

te
r D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

w
ill

 b
e 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
 

am
or

tiz
ed

 o
ve

r a
 fi

xe
d 

18
-y

ea
r p

er
io

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
at

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3,
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 

in
 U

A
A

L 
du

e 
to

 p
la

n 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 (w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

n 
of

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
du

e 
to

 re
tir

em
en

t i
nc

en
tiv

es
) w

ill
 b

e 
am

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 1
0-

ye
ar

 fi
xe

d 
pe

rio
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

at
 v

al
ua

tio
n.

 T
he

 e
nt

ire
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 U
A

A
L 

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 
a 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 re

tir
em

en
t i

nc
en

tiv
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 in

 fu
ll 

up
on

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

in
ce

nt
iv

e.
 

A
ss

et
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d 

M
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 o
f a

ss
et

s l
es

s u
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
re

tu
rn

s i
n 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 la

st 
ni

ne
 se

m
i-a

nn
ua

l a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pe
rio

ds
. 

U
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
re

tu
rn

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 m

ar
ke

t r
et

ur
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 re
tu

rn
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
, a

nd
 is

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 se

m
i-a

nn
ua

lly
 o

ve
r a

 fi
ve

-y
ea

r p
er

io
d.

 T
he

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s i

s 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e 

no
n-

va
lu

at
io

n 
re

se
rv

es
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

na
tio

ns
. 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
V

al
ua

tio
n 

D
at

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
D

at
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

 
7.

00
%

, n
et

 o
f p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

fla
tio

n 
7.

00
%

, n
et

 o
f p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

fla
tio

n 
In

fla
tio

n 
ra

te
 

2.
75

%
 

2.
75

%
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

1.
10

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 

m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s o

f t
he

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
ra

te
s f

or
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r. 

1.
13

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 

m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s o

f t
he

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
ra

te
s f

or
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r. 
R

ea
l a

cr
os

s-
th

e-
bo

ar
d 

sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s(1
)  

0.
50

%
 

G
en

er
al

: 3
.7

5%
 to

 1
5.

25
%

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y:

 4
.2

5%
 to

 
16

.2
5%

 

0.
50

%
 

G
en

er
al

: 4
.0

0%
 to

 1
3.

25
%

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y:

 4
.0

0%
 to

 
13

.7
5%

 
C

os
t o

f l
iv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 
2.

75
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r e
xc

ep
t f

or
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

, P
EP

R
A

 
Ti

er
 E

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 P
EP

R
A

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) a
nd

 
Ti

er
 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) b

en
ef

its
 fo

r m
em

be
rs

 c
ov

er
ed

 
un

de
r c

er
ta

in
 m

em
or

an
da

 o
f u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
re

 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
t 2

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r. 

A
ll 

in
cr

ea
se

s a
re

 
co

nt
in

ge
nt

 u
po

n 
ac

tu
al

 in
cr

ea
se

s i
n 

CP
I. 

2.
75

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r e

xc
ep

t f
or

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
, P

EP
R

A
 

Ti
er

 E
 b

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 P

EP
R

A
 T

ie
r 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) a

nd
 

Ti
er

 5
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) b
en

ef
its

 fo
r m

em
be

rs
 c

ov
er

ed
 

un
de

r c
er

ta
in

 m
em

or
an

da
 o

f u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 a

re
 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

t 2
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r. 
A

ll 
in

cr
ea

se
s a

re
 

co
nt

in
ge

nt
 u

po
n 

ac
tu

al
 in

cr
ea

se
s i

n 
CP

I. 
O

th
er

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 th

os
e 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fu
nd

in
g 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
Sa

m
e 

as
 th

os
e 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

fu
nd

in
g 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
 (1

)  I
nc

lu
de

s i
nf

la
tio

n 
at

 2
.7

5%
 p

lu
s r

ea
l a

cr
os

s-
th

e-
bo

ar
d 

sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s o

f 0
.5

0%
 p

lu
s m

er
it 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s t

ha
t v

ar
y 

by
 se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

14
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
  A

ct
ua

l C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
by

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

8 
to

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 

#1
 &

 2
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 

#1
 &

 2
  

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$2

61
,6

89
  

0.
04

1%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

3,
23

5,
87

6 
0.

50
4%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

33
,7

93
,1

59
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
2,

52
5,

00
4 

0.
39

3%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
60

0,
14

0,
25

3 
93

.5
21

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

4,
99

6,
87

8 
0.

77
9%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

15
1,

63
1 

0.
02

4%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5,

28
8,

21
1 

10
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

89
4,

72
7 

0.
13

9%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

22
8,

63
7 

0.
03

6%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

76
6,

26
5 

0.
11

9%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
70

,7
10

 
0.

01
1%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

3,
80

3,
16

3 
0.

59
3%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

24
,6

42
,2

51
 

3.
84

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) 

   
   

   
   

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

   
   

   
   

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

   
   

   
   

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

To
ta

l 
$6

41
,7

17
,0

85
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
$3

3,
79

3,
15

9 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$5

,2
88

,2
11

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

15
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  A
ct

ua
l C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

by
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
8 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

 
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

2,
93

0 
21

.8
58

%
 

 
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
5,

32
9,

14
9 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

68
9,

72
9 

78
.1

42
%

 
 

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

 
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
 

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
 

 
To

ta
l 

$5
,3

29
,1

49
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
$8

82
,6

59
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
 

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

16
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  A
ct

ua
l C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

by
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
8 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#7
 &

 9
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
 

#7
 &

 9
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

34
,9

43
,4

79
 

92
.1

15
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

95
,6

61
,1

23
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

2,
99

1,
33

8 
7.

88
5%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7,

37
3,

16
8 

10
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
To

ta
l 

$9
5,

66
1,

12
3 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$3
7,

93
4,

81
7 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$7
,3

73
,1

68
  

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

17
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  A
ct

ua
l C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

by
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
8 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

T
ot

al
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
T

ot
al

  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$2
61

,6
89

  
0.

03
1%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

19
2,

93
0 

0.
02

3%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3,
23

5,
87

6 
0.

38
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

40
,2

72
,6

28
 

4.
73

3%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

33
,7

93
,1

59
 

3.
97

1%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
2,

52
5,

00
4 

0.
29

7%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
69

5,
80

1,
37

7 
81

.7
70

%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4,
99

6,
87

8 
0.

58
7%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3,
14

2,
96

9 
0.

36
9%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

5,
28

8,
21

1 
0.

62
1%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

89
4,

72
7 

0.
10

5%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

22
8,

63
7 

0.
02

7%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8,
13

9,
43

3 
0.

95
7%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
68

9,
72

9 
0.

08
1%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

2,
27

5,
54

6 
10

0.
00

0%
 

2,
34

6,
25

6 
0.

27
6%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

20
,6

74
,1

90
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

24
,4

77
,3

53
 

2.
87

7%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
24

,6
42

,2
51

 
2.

89
6%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
To

ta
l 

$2
0,

67
4,

19
0 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$2
,2

75
,5

46
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
$8

50
,9

29
,1

06
  

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

18
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
#1

 &
 2

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
 

#1
 &

 2
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$3

83
,1

18
  

0.
04

1%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

4,
73

7,
38

9 
0.

50
4%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

90
,4

30
,1

04
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
3,

69
6,

65
7 

0.
39

3%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
87

8,
61

7,
62

5 
93

.5
21

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

7,
31

5,
53

2 
0.

77
9%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

22
1,

99
1 

0.
02

4%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

,7
96

,4
97

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
1,

30
9,

89
9 

0.
13

9%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

33
4,

73
0 

0.
03

6%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

1,
12

1,
82

8 
0.

11
9%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

10
3,

52
1 

0.
01

1%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
5,

56
7,

90
9 

0.
59

3%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
36

,0
76

,7
60

 
3.

84
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

To
ta

l 
 $

93
9,

48
6,

95
9 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

 $
90

,4
30

,1
04

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

 $
10

,7
96

,4
97

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

19
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#7
 &

 9
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 

 #
7 

&
 9

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

52
,3

48
 

21
.8

58
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

11
,9

19
,2

03
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
30

8,
22

3,
71

9 
10

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
7,

14
3 

78
.1

42
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

To
ta

l 
 $

11
,9

19
,2

03
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
 $

23
9,

49
1 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

 $
30

8,
22

3,
71

9 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

20
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

21
0,

54
0,

49
7 

92
.1

15
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

18
,0

23
,3

25
 

7.
88

5%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

33
,6

36
,0

62
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
64

,0
10

,0
51

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
To

ta
l 

 $
22

8,
56

3,
82

2 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
 $

33
,6

36
,0

62
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
 $

64
,0

10
,0

51
  

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

21
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

er
m

in
at

ed
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
s 

T
er

m
in

at
ed

 
E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

ot
al

 N
PL

 
T

ot
al

  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$3
83

,1
18

  
0.

02
2%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

52
,3

48
 

0.
00

3%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4,
73

7,
38

9 
0.

27
7%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

22
2,

45
9,

70
0 

13
.0

07
%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
90

,4
30

,1
04

 
5.

28
7%

 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3,
69

6,
65

7 
0.

21
6%

 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

1,
18

6,
84

1,
34

4 
69

.3
92

%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7,
31

5,
53

2 
0.

42
8%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
,2

45
,3

16
 

1.
06

7%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

,7
96

,4
97

 
0.

63
1%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

1,
30

9,
89

9 
0.

07
7%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
33

4,
73

0 
0.

02
0%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
34

,7
57

,8
90

 
2.

03
2%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

7,
14

3 
0.

01
1%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
11

,6
13

,4
59

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

,7
16

,9
80

 
0.

68
5%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

69
,5

77
,9

60
 

4.
06

8%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
36

,0
76

,7
60

 
2.

10
9%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) (1

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

2,
43

3,
19

6 
21

.3
12

%
 

2,
43

3,
19

6 
0.

14
2%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) (1

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

1,
03

4,
72

6 
9.

06
3%

 
1,

03
4,

72
6 

0.
06

0%
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) (1

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7,
94

9,
36

8 
69

.6
26

%
 

7,
94

9,
36

8 
0.

46
5%

 
To

ta
l 

 $
11

,6
13

,4
59

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$1
1,

41
7,

29
0 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$1
,7

10
,3

36
,6

57
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
(1

)  T
he

 N
PL

s f
or

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s a

re
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

bo
ok

ke
ep

in
g 

ac
co

un
t l

et
te

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
TP

Ls
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 in
te

rn
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 (b
y 

ro
lli

ng
 fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ei
r T

PL
s f

ro
m

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7)
. 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

22
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#1
 &

 2
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 

 #
1 

&
 2

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$3
83

,1
18

  
0.

05
3%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
4,

73
7,

38
9 

0.
65

9%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
90

,4
30

,1
04

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

2,
88

1,
75

9 
0.

40
1%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

66
7,

80
8,

02
8 

92
.9

01
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
7,

31
5,

53
2 

1.
01

8%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
22

1,
99

1 
0.

03
1%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
,7

96
,4

97
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

1,
30

9,
89

9 
0.

18
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
30

4,
19

5 
0.

04
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
78

2,
74

3 
0.

10
9%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

10
3,

52
1 

0.
01

4%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
5,

56
7,

90
9 

0.
77

5%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
27

,4
20

,7
45

 
3.

81
5%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

To
ta

l 
$7

18
,8

36
,8

29
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
$9

0,
43

0,
10

4 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$1

0,
79

6,
49

7 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

23
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#7
 &

 9
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#7
 &

 9
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
52

,3
48

 
21

.8
58

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
11

,9
19

,2
03

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

30
8,

22
3,

71
9 

10
0.

00
0%

 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

7,
14

3 
78

.1
42

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
To

ta
l 

$1
1,

91
9,

20
3 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$2
39

,4
91

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$3
08

,2
23

,7
19

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

24
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

14
8,

89
8,

11
4 

89
.2

03
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

18
,0

23
,3

25
 

10
.7

97
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
33

,6
36

,0
62

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

64
,0

10
,0

51
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

To
ta

l 
$1

66
,9

21
,4

39
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
$3

3,
63

6,
06

2 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$6

4,
01

0,
05

1 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

25
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  
 

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

er
m

in
at

ed
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
s 

T
er

m
in

at
ed

 
E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

ot
al

 N
PL

 
T

ot
al

  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 

T
ot

al
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
E

xc
lu

di
ng

 
T

er
m

in
at

ed
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
s(1

)  
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$3
83

,1
18

  
0.

02
7%

 
0.

02
7%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

52
,3

48
 

0.
00

4%
 

0.
00

4%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4,
73

7,
38

9 
0.

33
2%

 
0.

33
4%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

16
0,

81
7,

31
7 

11
.2

61
%

 
11

.3
52

%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

90
,4

30
,1

04
 

6.
33

2%
 

6.
38

3%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
2,

88
1,

75
9 

0.
20

2%
 

0.
20

3%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
97

6,
03

1,
74

7 
68

.3
47

%
 

68
.8

98
%

 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7,

31
5,

53
2 

0.
51

2%
 

0.
51

6%
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

,2
45

,3
16

 
1.

27
8%

 
1.

28
8%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
,7

96
,4

97
 

0.
75

6%
 

0.
76

2%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
1,

30
9,

89
9 

0.
09

2%
 

0.
09

2%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

30
4,

19
5 

0.
02

1%
 

0.
02

1%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

34
,4

18
,8

05
 

2.
41

0%
 

2.
43

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
7,

14
3 

0.
01

3%
 

0.
01

3%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

11
,6

13
,4

59
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
,7

16
,9

80
 

0.
82

0%
 

0.
82

7%
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
69

,5
77

,9
60

 
4.

87
2%

 
4.

91
2%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

27
,4

20
,7

45
 

1.
92

0%
 

1.
93

6%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) (2
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
2,

43
3,

19
6 

21
.3

12
%

 
2,

43
3,

19
6 

0.
17

0%
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) (2

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

1,
03

4,
72

6 
9.

06
3%

 
1,

03
4,

72
6 

0.
07

2%
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) (2
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7,

94
9,

36
8 

69
.6

26
%

 
7,

94
9,

36
8 

0.
55

7%
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
To

ta
l 

$1
1,

61
3,

45
9 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$1
1,

41
7,

29
0 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$1
,4

28
,0

44
,1

44
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

(1
)  F

or
 in

fo
rm

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s;

 th
es

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

s s
ho

w
 th

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
N

PL
 fo

r e
m

pl
oy

er
s e

xc
lu

di
ng

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s. 

(2
)  T

he
 N

PL
s f

or
 th

e 
th

re
e 

te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s a
re

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
bo

ok
ke

ep
in

g 
ac

co
un

t l
et

te
rs

 a
nd

 
th

e 
TP

Ls
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 in
te

rn
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 (b
y 

ro
lli

ng
 fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ei
r T

PL
s f

ro
m

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7)
. 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

26
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

N
ot

es
 R

eg
ar

di
ng

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e:
 

1.
 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
ac

tu
al

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
8 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 C
C

C
ER

A
.  

2.
 

Th
e 

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 (N
PL

) f
or

 e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 is
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 (T

PL
) m

in
us

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 (p
la

n 
as

se
ts

). 
Th

e 
TP

L 
fo

r e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 is
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 in
te

rn
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

C
os

t G
ro

up
. T

he
 P

la
n’

s F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 

Po
si

tio
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
ad

ju
st

in
g 

th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s (
V

V
A

) f
or

 e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 (w
hi

ch
 is

 u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s)
 b

y 
th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l C
C

C
ER

A
 P

la
n’

s F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s’
 a

ss
et

s a
nd

 th
e 

Po
st

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
re

se
rv

e)
 to

 to
ta

l C
C

C
ER

A
 V

V
A

 (e
xc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s’

 V
V

A
). 

Th
e 

Po
st

 R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 B
en

ef
it 

re
se

rv
e 

is
 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
an

d 
#2

. T
he

 li
ab

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 p

os
t-r

et
ire

m
en

t d
ea

th
 b

en
ef

it 
up

 to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 th

e 
Po

st
 R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
re

se
rv

e 
is

 
al

so
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

an
d 

#2
.  

3.
 

Fo
r t

er
m

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s, 
th

e 
TP

L 
is

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 in

te
rn

al
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 fo

r e
ac

h 
em

pl
oy

er
. T

he
 P

la
n’

s F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 fo

r e
ac

h 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
t e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 th

ei
r r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
bo

ok
ke

ep
in

g 
ac

co
un

t. 
Th

e 
N

PL
 is

 th
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 se
pa

ra
te

ly
 fo

r e
ac

h 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. 

4.
 

Fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
on

e 
em

pl
oy

er
, a

ll 
of

 th
e 

N
PL

 fo
r t

ha
t C

os
t G

ro
up

 is
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
g 

em
pl

oy
er

. T
he

 N
PL

 h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 a
ny

 p
ro

ce
ed

s f
ro

m
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s a

nd
 a

ny
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
. 

5.
 

Fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
m

ul
tip

le
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s, 
th

e 
N

PL
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Co
st

 G
ro

up
.  

a.
 

C
al

cu
la

te
 ra

tio
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

er
's 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

to
ta

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
os

t G
ro

up
. 

b.
 

M
ul

tip
ly

 th
is

 ra
tio

 b
y 

an
 “

ad
ju

st
ed

” 
N

PL
. T

hi
s a

dj
us

te
d 

N
PL

 is
 la

rg
er

 th
an

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 N

PL
 a

s i
t e

xc
lu

de
s p

ro
ce

ed
s f

ro
m

 P
en

si
on

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

B
on

ds
 a

nd
 a

ny
 U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(U

A
A

L)
 p

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

os
t G

ro
up

’s
 a

ss
et

s w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
PL

 fo
r t

he
 C

os
t G

ro
up

. I
t a

ls
o 

ex
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

N
PL

s f
or

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s. 

Th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 N
PL

 is
 sh

ow
n 

ab
ov

e 
in

 P
A

R
T 

O
N

E 
of

 E
xh

ib
it 

7.
 

c.
 

Th
e 

am
ou

nt
s o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s f
ro

m
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s a

nd
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
os

e 
em

pl
oy

er
s w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 a
re

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  C
ou

nt
y 

$2
10

,8
09

,5
97

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  C
ou

rt 
$8

,6
56

,0
15

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  M
O

FD
 

$3
39

,0
85

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  L
A

FC
O

 
$3

0,
53

5 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  F
irs

t 5
 

$8
14

,8
98

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8:

  C
C

C
FP

D
 

$6
1,

64
2,

38
3 

 
 

N
ot

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 fr

om
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 fo
r C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
th

e 
Su

pe
rio

r C
ou

rt 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(to
ta

l o
f 

$2
19

,4
65

,6
12

) w
er

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

pr
op

or
tio

na
lly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

27
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

N
ot

es
 R

eg
ar

di
ng

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e:
 

d.
 

Su
bt

ra
ct

 fr
om

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 N
PL

 in
 P

A
R

T 
O

N
E 

th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 fr

om
 a

ny
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s a

nd
 a

ny
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
ho

se
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s i
n 

ea
ch

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 th

at
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
es

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
. T

he
 re

su
lti

ng
 a

ct
ua

l N
PL

 is
 sh

ow
n 

in
 P

A
R

T 
TW

O
 o

f E
xh

ib
it 

7.
 

6.
 

If 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 is

 in
 se

ve
ra

l C
os

t G
ro

up
s, 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
to

ta
l a

llo
ca

te
d 

N
PL

 is
 th

e 
su

m
 o

f i
ts

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
N

PL
 fr

om
 e

ac
h 

C
os

t G
ro

up
. 

7.
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
an

d 
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
2 

w
er

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

an
d 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
an

d 
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
9 

w
er

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
U

A
A

L 
ra

te
 in

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n.

 
 Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ite
m

s a
re

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
g 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
r p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

ab
ov

e 
af

te
r e

xc
lu

di
ng

 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s. 

 
  

- 1
) 

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
 

- 2
) 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
os

t 
 

- 3
) 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

- 4
) 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
 

- 5
) 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

- 6
) 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

 
- 7

) 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
 

- 8
) 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

 
- 9

) 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

stm
en

ts
 

 
- 1

0)
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
 

- 1
1)

 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
 

- 1
2)

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

 
- 1

3)
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

28
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  A
ct

ua
l C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

by
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
7 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 

#1
 &

 2
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 

#1
 &

 2
  

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$1

66
,4

30
  

0.
02

7%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

3,
19

0,
16

9 
0.

52
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

33
,3

06
,9

38
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
2,

40
5,

39
7 

0.
39

4%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
57

0,
30

3,
41

6 
93

.3
36

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

4,
53

1,
80

0 
0.

74
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

61
,1

49
 

0.
01

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5,

18
3,

76
2 

10
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

83
9,

82
1 

0.
13

7%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

22
1,

78
0 

0.
03

6%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

73
9,

82
7 

0.
12

1%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
71

,4
10

 
0.

01
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

3,
64

2,
06

3 
0.

59
6%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

24
,8

51
,8

09
 

4.
06

7%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) 

   
   

   
   

 N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

   
   

   
  N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

To
ta

l 
$6

11
,0

25
,0

72
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
$3

3,
30

6,
93

8 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$5

,1
83

,7
62

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

29
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  A
ct

ua
l C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

by
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
7 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

 
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

6,
89

0 
20

.7
94

%
 

 
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
4,

60
0,

60
2 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

63
5,

68
2 

79
.2

06
%

 
 

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

 
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
 

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
   

   
   

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

   
   

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

 
 

To
ta

l 
$4

,6
00

,6
02

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$8
02

,5
72

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

30
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  A
ct

ua
l C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

by
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
7 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#7
 &

 9
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
 

#7
 &

 9
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

31
,4

28
,1

70
 

91
.6

28
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

91
,2

71
,7

80
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

2,
87

1,
72

2 
8.

37
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
7,

22
0,

38
9 

10
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

 N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

To
ta

l 
$9

1,
27

1,
78

0 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$3

4,
29

9,
89

3 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$7

,2
20

,3
89

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

31
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  A
ct

ua
l C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

by
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
7 

to
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

T
ot

al
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
T

ot
al

  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$1
66

,4
30

  
0.

02
1%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

16
6,

89
0 

0.
02

1%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3,
19

0,
16

9 
0.

39
4%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

36
,0

28
,7

72
 

4.
44

8%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

33
,3

06
,9

38
 

4.
11

2%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
2,

40
5,

39
7 

0.
29

7%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
66

1,
57

5,
19

6 
81

.6
80

%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4,
53

1,
80

0 
0.

56
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

2,
93

2,
87

2 
0.

36
2%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

5,
18

3,
76

2 
0.

64
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

83
9,

82
1 

0.
10

4%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

22
1,

78
0 

0.
02

7%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7,
96

0,
21

5 
0.

98
3%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
63

5,
68

2 
0.

07
8%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

2,
12

3,
19

5 
10

0.
00

0%
 

2,
19

4,
60

5 
0.

27
1%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

20
,1

25
,8

86
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

23
,7

67
,9

50
 

2.
93

4%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
24

,8
51

,8
09

 
3.

06
8%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

   
N

/A
 

   
   

  N
/A

 
   

   
   

 N
/A

 
   

   
  N

/A
 

To
ta

l 
$2

0,
12

5,
88

6 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$2

,1
23

,1
95

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$8
09

,9
60

,0
88

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

32
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
#1

 &
 2

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
 

#1
 &

 2
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$1

57
,4

43
  

0.
02

7%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

3,
01

7,
90

8 
0.

52
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

63
,8

06
,0

00
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
2,

27
5,

51
2 

0.
39

4%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
53

9,
50

8,
48

2 
93

.3
36

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

4,
28

7,
09

4 
0.

74
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

57
,8

47
 

0.
01

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
6,

26
7,

60
4 

10
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

79
4,

47
3 

0.
13

7%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

20
9,

80
5 

0.
03

6%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

69
9,

87
8 

0.
12

1%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
67

,5
54

 
0.

01
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

3,
44

5,
40

1 
0.

59
6%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

23
,5

09
,8

75
 

4.
06

7%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
To

ta
l 

$5
78

,0
31

,2
72

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$6
3,

80
6,

00
0 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$6
,2

67
,6

04
  

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

33
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#7
 &

 9
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
 

#7
 &

 9
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
29

,3
95

 
20

.7
94

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
5,

25
4,

10
3 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
21

4,
27

0,
69

4 
10

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
1,

96
5 

79
.2

06
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

To
ta

l 
$5

,2
54

,1
03

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$1
41

,3
60

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$2
14

,2
70

,6
94

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

34
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

 $
0 

   
0.

00
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 0
   

 
0.

00
0%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
17

8,
30

4,
41

8 
91

.6
28

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 0
  

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 0
   

 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

16
,2

92
,4

15
 

8.
37

2%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 0
   

 
0.

00
0%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

23
,2

02
,1

47
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

 0
   

 
0.

00
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
43

,6
64

,6
95

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
To

ta
l 

$1
94

,5
96

,8
33

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$2
3,

20
2,

14
7 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$4
3,

66
4,

69
5 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

35
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 O

N
E

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

er
m

in
at

ed
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
s 

T
er

m
in

at
ed

 
E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

ot
al

 N
PL

 
T

ot
al

  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

 $
0 

   
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$1

57
,4

43
  

0.
01

4%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
29

,3
95

 
0.

00
3%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
3,

01
7,

90
8 

0.
26

3%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

3,
55

8,
52

1 
15

.9
99

%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

 0
   

 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

63
,8

06
,0

00
 

5.
56

1%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
2,

27
5,

51
2 

0.
19

8%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
75

3,
77

9,
17

6 
65

.6
99

%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

 0
   

 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4,
28

7,
09

4 
0.

37
4%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

 0
   

 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

16
,3

50
,2

62
 

1.
42

5%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
6,

26
7,

60
4 

0.
54

6%
 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
79

4,
47

3 
0.

06
9%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

9,
80

5 
0.

01
8%

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
23

,9
02

,0
25

 
2.

08
3%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
 0

   
 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

1,
96

5 
0.

01
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
11

,6
25

,6
20

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

,6
93

,1
74

 
1.

01
9%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

47
,1

10
,0

96
 

4.
10

6%
 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
23

,5
09

,8
75

 
2.

04
9%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) (1

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

1,
43

5,
25

7 
22

.2
11

%
 

1,
43

5,
25

7 
0.

12
5%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) (1

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

82
7,

52
0 

12
.8

06
%

 
82

7,
52

0 
0.

07
2%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) (1
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4,

19
9,

08
0 

64
.9

83
%

 
4,

19
9,

08
0 

0.
36

6%
 

To
ta

l 
$1

1,
62

5,
62

0 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$6

,4
61

,8
57

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$1
,1

47
,3

22
,1

85
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
(1

)  T
he

 N
PL

s f
or

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s a

re
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

s f
ro

m
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

bo
ok

ke
ep

in
g 

ac
co

un
t l

et
te

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
TP

Ls
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 in
te

rn
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 (b
y 

ro
lli

ng
 fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ei
r T

PL
s f

ro
m

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6)
. 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

36
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
#1

 &
 2

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
 

#1
 &

 2
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$1

57
,4

43
  

0.
05

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

3,
01

7,
90

8 
0.

95
7%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

63
,8

06
,0

00
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
1,

28
9,

08
3 

0.
40

9%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
28

9,
28

8,
21

4 
91

.6
95

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

4,
28

7,
09

4 
1.

35
9%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

57
,8

47
 

0.
01

8%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
6,

26
7,

60
4 

10
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

79
4,

47
3 

0.
25

2%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

18
1,

26
8 

0.
05

7%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

29
6,

42
8 

0.
09

4%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
67

,5
54

 
0.

02
1%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

3,
44

5,
40

1 
1.

09
2%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

12
,6

06
,1

59
 

3.
99

6%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
To

ta
l 

$3
15

,4
88

,8
72

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$6
3,

80
6,

00
0 

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

$6
,2

67
,6

04
  

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

37
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
  

#7
 &

 9
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
   

   
 

#7
 &

 9
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

1 
- B

IM
ID

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
$0

  
0.

00
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
29

,3
95

 
20

.7
94

%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
5,

25
4,

10
3 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
21

4,
27

0,
69

4 
10

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
1,

96
5 

79
.2

06
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

To
ta

l 
$5

,2
54

,1
03

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$1
41

,3
60

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$2
14

,2
70

,6
94

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

38
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

2 
- U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

10
4,

96
1,

24
4 

86
.5

63
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

16
,2

92
,4

15
 

13
.4

37
%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
23

,2
02

,1
47

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

43
,6

64
,6

95
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

To
ta

l 
$1

21
,2

53
,6

59
  

10
0.

00
0%

 
$2

3,
20

2,
14

7 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$4

3,
66

4,
69

5 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

39
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  
 

PA
R

T
 T

W
O

 - 
A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(N

PL
) 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

ns
io

n 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 (P
O

B
) a

nd
 U

A
A

L
 P

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r 
C

er
ta

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s  

E
m

pl
oy

er
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

er
m

in
at

ed
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
s 

T
er

m
in

at
ed

 
E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 
T

ot
al

 N
PL

 
T

ot
al

  
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 

T
ot

al
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
E

xc
lu

di
ng

 
T

er
m

in
at

ed
 

E
m

pl
oy

er
s(1

)  
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$0
  

0.
00

0%
 

$1
57

,4
43

  
0.

01
9%

 
0.

02
0%

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

29
,3

95
 

0.
00

4%
 

0.
00

4%
 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

3,
01

7,
90

8 
0.

37
2%

 
0.

37
5%

 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
0,

21
5,

34
7 

13
.5

83
%

 
13

.6
92

%
 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

63
,8

06
,0

00
 

7.
86

3%
 

7.
92

6%
 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
1,

28
9,

08
3 

0.
15

9%
 

0.
16

0%
 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
50

3,
55

8,
90

8 
62

.0
58

%
 

62
.5

56
%

 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
4,

28
7,

09
4 

0.
52

8%
 

0.
53

3%
 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
16

,3
50

,2
62

 
2.

01
5%

 
2.

03
1%

 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

6,
26

7,
60

4 
0.

77
2%

 
0.

77
9%

 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

79
4,

47
3 

0.
09

8%
 

0.
09

9%
 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

18
1,

26
8 

0.
02

2%
 

0.
02

3%
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

23
,4

98
,5

75
 

2.
89

6%
 

2.
91

9%
 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
1,

96
5 

0.
01

4%
 

0.
01

4%
 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

11
,6

25
,6

20
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

11
,6

93
,1

74
 

1.
44

1%
 

1.
45

3%
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
47

,1
10

,0
96

 
5.

80
6%

 
5.

85
2%

 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

0 
0.

00
0%

 
0 

0.
00

0%
 

12
,6

06
,1

59
 

1.
55

4%
 

1.
56

6%
 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) (2
)  

0 
0.

00
0%

 
1,

43
5,

25
7 

22
.2

11
%

 
1,

43
5,

25
7 

0.
17

7%
 

N
/A

 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) (2

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

82
7,

52
0 

12
.8

06
%

 
82

7,
52

0 
0.

10
2%

 
N

/A
 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) (2

)  
0 

0.
00

0%
 

4,
19

9,
08

0 
64

.9
83

%
 

4,
19

9,
08

0 
0.

51
7%

 
N

/A
 

To
ta

l 
$1

1,
62

5,
62

0 
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$6

,4
61

,8
57

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

$8
11

,4
36

,6
11

  
10

0.
00

0%
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
(1

)  F
or

 in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l p
ur

po
se

s;
 th

es
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
s s

ho
w

 th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

N
PL

 fo
r e

m
pl

oy
er

s e
xc

lu
di

ng
 te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s. 

(2
)  T

he
 N

PL
s f

or
 th

e 
th

re
e 

te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s a
re

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
s f

ro
m

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
bo

ok
ke

ep
in

g 
ac

co
un

t l
et

te
rs

 a
nd

 
th

e 
TP

Ls
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 in
te

rn
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 (b
y 

ro
lli

ng
 fo

rw
ar

d 
th

ei
r T

PL
s f

ro
m

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6)
. 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 n

ot
 a

dd
 d

ue
 to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

40
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

N
ot

es
 R

eg
ar

di
ng

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e:
 

1.
 

B
as

ed
 o

n 
ac

tu
al

 Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
7 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 C
C

C
ER

A
.  

2.
 

Th
e 

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 (N
PL

) f
or

 e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 is
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 (T

PL
) m

in
us

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 (p
la

n 
as

se
ts

). 
Th

e 
TP

L 
fo

r e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 is
 o

bt
ai

ne
d 

fro
m

 in
te

rn
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

su
lts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

C
os

t G
ro

up
. T

he
 P

la
n’

s F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 

Po
si

tio
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
ad

ju
st

in
g 

th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s (
V

V
A

) f
or

 e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 (w
hi

ch
 is

 u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s)
 b

y 
th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l C
C

C
ER

A
 P

la
n’

s F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 (e

xc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s’
 a

ss
et

s a
nd

 th
e 

Po
st

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
re

se
rv

e)
 to

 to
ta

l C
C

C
ER

A
 V

V
A

 (e
xc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s’

 V
V

A
). 

Th
e 

Po
st

 R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 B
en

ef
it 

re
se

rv
e 

is
 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
an

d 
#2

. T
he

 li
ab

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 p

os
t-r

et
ire

m
en

t d
ea

th
 b

en
ef

it 
up

 to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 th

e 
Po

st
 R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
re

se
rv

e 
is

 
al

so
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

an
d 

#2
.  

3.
 

Fo
r t

er
m

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s, 
th

e 
TP

L 
is

 o
bt

ai
ne

d 
fro

m
 in

te
rn

al
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 fo

r e
ac

h 
em

pl
oy

er
. T

he
 P

la
n’

s F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 fo

r e
ac

h 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

se
t e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 in
 th

ei
r r

es
pe

ct
iv

e 
bo

ok
ke

ep
in

g 
ac

co
un

t. 
Th

e 
N

PL
 is

 th
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 se
pa

ra
te

ly
 fo

r e
ac

h 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. 

4.
 

Fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
on

e 
em

pl
oy

er
, a

ll 
of

 th
e 

N
PL

 fo
r t

ha
t C

os
t G

ro
up

 is
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
g 

em
pl

oy
er

. T
he

 N
PL

 h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 a
ny

 p
ro

ce
ed

s f
ro

m
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s a

nd
 a

ny
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
. 

5.
 

Fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
m

ul
tip

le
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s, 
th

e 
N

PL
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Co
st

 G
ro

up
.  

a.
 

C
al

cu
la

te
 ra

tio
 o

f e
m

pl
oy

er
's 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

to
ta

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
os

t G
ro

up
. 

b.
 

M
ul

tip
ly

 th
is

 ra
tio

 b
y 

an
 “

ad
ju

st
ed

” 
N

PL
. T

hi
s a

dj
us

te
d 

N
PL

 is
 la

rg
er

 th
an

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 N

PL
 a

s i
t e

xc
lu

de
s p

ro
ce

ed
s f

ro
m

 P
en

si
on

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

B
on

ds
 a

nd
 a

ny
 U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(U

A
A

L)
 p

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 fr

om
 th

e 
C

os
t G

ro
up

’s
 a

ss
et

s w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
PL

 fo
r t

he
 C

os
t G

ro
up

. I
t a

ls
o 

ex
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

N
PL

s f
or

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s. 

Th
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 N
PL

 is
 sh

ow
n 

ab
ov

e 
in

 P
A

R
T 

O
N

E 
of

 E
xh

ib
it 

7.
 

c.
 

Th
e 

am
ou

nt
s o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s f
ro

m
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s a

nd
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
os

e 
em

pl
oy

er
s w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 a
re

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  C
ou

nt
y 

 $
25

0,
22

0,
26

8 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1:
  C

ou
rt 

 $
10

,9
03

,7
16

  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  M
O

FD
 

 $
40

3,
45

0 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1:
  L

A
FC

O
 

 $
28

,5
37

  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1:

  F
irs

t 5
 

 $
98

6,
42

9 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8:
  C

C
C

FP
D

 
 $

73
,3

43
,1

74
  

N
ot

e 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 fr

om
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
B

on
ds

 fo
r C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
th

e 
Su

pe
rio

r C
ou

rt 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(to
ta

l o
f 

$2
61

,1
23

,9
84

) w
er

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

pr
op

or
tio

na
lly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

41
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 7
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

et
er

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 P
ro

po
rt

io
na

te
 S

ha
re

  

N
ot

es
 R

eg
ar

di
ng

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

of
 P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e:
 

d.
 

Su
bt

ra
ct

 fr
om

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 N
PL

 in
 P

A
R

T 
O

N
E 

th
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

ba
la

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 fr

om
 a

ny
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s a

nd
 a

ny
 U

A
A

L 
pr

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 fo

r t
ho

se
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s i
n 

ea
ch

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 th

at
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
es

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
. T

he
 re

su
lti

ng
 a

ct
ua

l N
PL

 is
 sh

ow
n 

in
 P

A
R

T 
TW

O
 o

f E
xh

ib
it 

7.
 

6.
 

If 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 is

 in
 se

ve
ra

l C
os

t G
ro

up
s, 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
to

ta
l a

llo
ca

te
d 

N
PL

 is
 th

e 
su

m
 o

f i
ts

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
N

PL
 fr

om
 e

ac
h 

C
os

t G
ro

up
. 

7.
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
an

d 
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
2 

w
er

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

an
d 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
an

d 
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
9 

w
er

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
U

A
A

L 
ra

te
 in

 th
e 

an
nu

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n.

 
 Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ite
m

s a
re

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
g 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
r p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

ab
ov

e 
af

te
r e

xc
lu

di
ng

 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s. 

 
  

- 1
) 

N
et

 P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
 

- 2
) 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
os

t 
 

- 3
) 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

- 4
) 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
 

- 5
) 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

- 6
) 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

 
- 7

) 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
 

- 8
) 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

 
- 9

) 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

stm
en

ts
 

 
- 1

0)
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
 

- 1
1)

 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
 

- 1
2)

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

 
- 1

3)
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

42
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e:

 T
ot

al
 fo

r a
ll 

Em
pl

oy
er

s 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$2
29

,0
98

,5
52

  
 $

21
2,

25
7,

62
6 

 
2.

 
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

64
7,

73
4,

05
8 

 
61

6,
27

2,
84

8 
 

3.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

0 
 

0 
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

11
,5

65
,1

73
  

(6
,3

73
,8

48
) 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(2
0,

22
2,

95
7)

 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(1

03
,5

41
,5

29
) 

(9
6,

46
6,

90
6)

 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(5

85
,7

34
,8

55
) 

(5
19

,4
47

,8
95

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

15
6,

15
3,

14
9 

 
(9

3,
59

3,
61

7)
 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
9,

33
7,

05
3 

 
9,

14
6,

11
5 

 
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
3,

63
1,

68
8 

 
1,

21
6,

76
8 

 
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

10
1,

49
7,

33
1 

 
10

1,
36

2,
73

0 
 

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(1

46
,1

70
,6

12
) 

(6
2,

04
0,

75
3)

 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
0 

 
0 

 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$3

03
,3

47
,0

51
  

$1
62

,3
33

,0
68

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

43
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

 - 
B

IM
ID

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$6
1,

95
8 

 
$4

1,
51

5 
 

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
17

3,
99

7 
 

11
9,

67
5 

 
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
20

,2
36

  
26

,3
37

  
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

3,
10

1 
 

(1
,2

73
) 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(5
,4

67
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(2
8,

00
2)

 
(1

8,
86

8)
 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(1
57

,3
53

) 
(1

00
,8

72
) 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
41

,9
51

  
(1

8,
17

3)
 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
2,

52
5 

 
1,

78
9 

 
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
98

2 
 

23
8 

 
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

27
,4

13
  

19
,8

25
  

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(3

9,
34

8)
 

(1
2,

13
4)

 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
28

,7
30

  
2,

52
4 

 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$1

30
,7

23
  

 $
60

,5
83

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

44
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 2

 - 
U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$8
,4

66
  

$7
,7

52
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
23

,7
74

  
22

,3
44

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
8,

90
5 

 
1,

97
4 

 
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

42
4 

 
(2

38
) 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(7
47

) 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(3

,8
26

) 
(3

,5
23

) 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(2

1,
50

0)
 

(1
8,

83
3)

 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

5,
73

2 
 

(3
,3

93
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
34

5 
 

33
4 

 
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
13

4 
 

44
  

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
3,

74
6 

 
3,

70
1 

 
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(5
,3

76
) 

(2
,2

66
) 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

27
,8

80
  

30
,3

79
  

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$4

7,
95

7 
 

$3
8,

27
5 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

45
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 3

 - 
C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$7
66

,1
37

  
$7

95
,7

71
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
2,

15
1,

52
8 

 
2,

29
3,

95
4 

 
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(5

8,
40

8)
 

28
,6

62
  

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
38

,3
39

  
(2

4,
40

1)
 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(6
7,

59
6)

 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(3

46
,2

57
) 

(3
61

,6
57

) 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(1

,9
45

,7
25

) 
(1

,9
33

,5
38

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

51
8,

73
8 

 
(3

48
,3

52
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
31

,2
24

  
34

,2
89

  
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
12

,1
45

  
4,

56
2 

 
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

33
8,

97
0 

 
38

0,
01

6 
 

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(4

86
,5

51
) 

(2
32

,5
95

) 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(6

8,
74

4)
 

(9
4,

33
6)

 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$8

83
,8

00
  

$5
42

,3
75

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

46
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 4

 - 
C

C
C

FP
D

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$2
6,

00
7,

56
5 

 
 $

29
,0

61
,8

41
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
73

,0
36

,6
51

  
 8

3,
77

6,
23

4 
 

3.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(7
,4

39
,4

24
) 

 5
76

,5
84

  
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

1,
30

1,
47

5 
 

 (8
91

,1
22

) 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(2

,2
94

,6
35

) 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(1

1,
75

4,
16

9)
 

(1
3,

20
7,

88
1)

 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(6

6,
05

0,
34

9)
 

(7
0,

61
3,

66
7)

 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

17
,6

09
,2

73
  

(1
2,

72
1,

97
4)

 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

1,
05

9,
95

4 
 

1,
25

2,
26

6 
 

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

41
2,

27
4 

 
16

6,
59

7 
 

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
11

,5
06

,8
29

  
13

,8
78

,3
59

  
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(1
6,

51
6,

65
5)

 
(8

,4
94

,4
81

) 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
83

,5
20

  
(1

,4
26

,8
20

) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$2

6,
96

2,
30

9 
 

$2
1,

35
5,

93
6 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

47
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 5

 - 
C

C
C

SD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$1
4,

62
4,

46
3 

 
$1

6,
82

4,
51

5 
 

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
41

,0
69

,6
56

  
48

,4
99

,8
37

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(4

,2
96

,8
55

) 
 2

,7
60

,5
09

  
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

73
1,

84
0 

 
 (5

15
,8

90
) 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(1
,2

90
,3

09
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(6
,6

09
,5

54
) 

 (7
,6

46
,3

22
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(3
7,

14
1,

14
9)

 
 (4

0,
87

9,
74

8)
 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
9,

90
1,

97
1 

 
 (7

,3
65

,0
20

) 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

59
6,

02
9 

 
 7

24
,9

63
  

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

23
1,

82
8 

 
 9

6,
44

7 
 

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
6,

47
0,

47
0 

 
 8

,0
34

,4
76

  
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(9
,2

87
,5

74
) 

 (4
,9

17
,6

35
) 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(1
01

,2
58

) 
(2

,6
48

,3
65

) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$1

4,
89

9,
55

8 
 

 $
12

,9
67

,7
67

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

48
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 6

 - 
Fi

rs
t 5

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$4
66

,0
40

  
$3

39
,9

09
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
1,

30
8,

77
7 

 
 9

79
,8

50
  

3.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

10
7,

54
7 

 
 (4

,2
42

) 
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

23
,3

22
  

 (1
0,

42
3)

 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(4

1,
11

9)
 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(2
10

,6
28

) 
 (1

54
,4

80
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(1
,1

83
,5

86
) 

 (8
25

,9
00

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

31
5,

54
9 

 
 (1

48
,7

97
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
18

,9
94

  
 1

4,
64

7 
 

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

7,
38

8 
 

 1
,9

49
  

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
20

6,
19

6 
 

 1
62

,3
22

  
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(2
95

,9
69

) 
 (9

9,
35

2)
 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

13
8,

12
5 

 
15

1,
86

0 
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$8

60
,6

36
  

$4
07

,3
43

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

49
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 7

 - 
C

ou
nt

y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$1
57

,8
44

,9
99

  
$1

32
,7

79
,5

88
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
44

3,
27

3,
71

4 
 

38
2,

76
2,

20
3 

 
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
17

,2
17

,2
54

  
(6

,4
33

,5
19

) 
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

7,
89

8,
90

8 
 

 (4
,0

71
,4

15
) 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(1
3,

92
6,

58
7)

 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(7

1,
33

8,
34

7)
 

 (6
0,

34
5,

00
8)

 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(4

00
,8

72
,4

84
) 

 (3
22

,6
24

,2
27

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

10
6,

87
4,

12
0 

 
 (5

8,
12

4,
96

4)
 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
6,

43
3,

07
1 

 
 5

,7
21

,4
30

  
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
2,

50
2,

17
1 

 
 7

61
,1

59
  

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
69

,8
37

,1
94

  
 6

3,
40

8,
33

2 
 

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(1

00
,2

42
,8

09
) 

 (3
8,

81
0,

12
8)

 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
3,

19
1,

35
5 

 
11

,1
41

,8
07

  

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$2

28
,6

92
,5

59
  

 $
10

6,
16

5,
25

8 
 

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  
  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

50
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 8

 - 
C

C
C

ER
A 

(th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$1
,1

83
,0

76
  

 $
1,

13
0,

43
1 

 
2.

 
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

3,
32

2,
41

6 
 

 3
,2

58
,6

80
  

3.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

17
,1

63
  

 1
96

,3
25

  
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

59
,2

04
  

 (3
4,

66
2)

 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(1

04
,3

82
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(5
34

,6
94

) 
 (5

13
,7

53
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(3
,0

04
,6

11
) 

 (2
,7

46
,6

90
) 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
80

1,
04

1 
 

 (4
94

,8
52

) 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

48
,2

17
  

 4
8,

71
0 

 
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
18

,7
54

  
 6

,4
80

  
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

52
3,

44
2 

 
 5

39
,8

33
  

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(7

51
,3

38
) 

 (3
30

,4
14

) 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
18

8,
47

9 
 

(7
,6

13
) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$1

,7
66

,7
67

  
$1

,0
52

,4
75

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

51
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 9

 - 
EC

C
FP

D
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$2
,9

50
,6

54
  

 $
4,

31
1,

27
5 

 
2.

 
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

8,
28

6,
27

7 
 

 1
2,

42
8,

06
4 

 
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(1

,8
11

,0
53

) 
 3

48
,0

19
  

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
14

7,
65

7 
 

 (1
32

,1
97

) 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(2

60
,3

35
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(1
,3

33
,5

54
) 

 (1
,9

59
,3

67
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(7
,4

93
,6

55
) 

 (1
0,

47
5,

41
9)

 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

1,
99

7,
83

7 
 

 (1
,8

87
,2

83
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
12

0,
25

6 
 

 1
85

,7
72

  
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
46

,7
74

  
 2

4,
71

4 
 

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
1,

30
5,

49
2 

 
 2

,0
58

,8
31

  
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(1
,8

73
,8

75
) 

 (1
,2

60
,1

42
) 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(1
,7

54
,8

21
) 

(2
,3

32
,1

98
) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$3

27
,6

54
  

 $
1,

31
0,

06
9 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

52
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

0 
- H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$1
,7

46
,0

22
  

$1
,6

52
,6

57
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
4,

90
3,

32
8 

 
 4

,7
64

,0
94

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(8

5,
56

0)
 

 6
3,

69
1 

 
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

87
,3

75
  

 (5
0,

67
5)

 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(1

54
,0

51
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(7
89

,1
18

) 
 (7

51
,0

91
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(4
,4

34
,3

01
) 

 (4
,0

15
,5

80
) 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
1,

18
2,

20
1 

 
 (7

23
,4

59
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
71

,1
60

  
 7

1,
21

2 
 

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

27
,6

78
  

 9
,4

74
  

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
77

2,
51

3 
 

 7
89

,2
19

  
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(1
,1

08
,8

48
) 

(4
83

,0
55

) 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
64

,5
50

  
(2

,0
30

) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$2

,2
82

,9
49

  
$1

,3
24

,4
57

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

53
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

1 
- I

H
SS

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$2
11

,8
37

  
$2

09
,4

89
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
59

4,
90

3 
 

 6
03

,8
90

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(7

,1
96

) 
 1

6,
57

4 
 

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
10

,6
01

  
 (6

,4
24

) 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(1

8,
69

0)
 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(9
5,

74
1)

 
 (9

5,
20

7)
 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(5
37

,9
97

) 
 (5

09
,0

09
) 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
14

3,
43

2 
 

 (9
1,

70
5)

 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

8,
63

4 
 

 9
,0

27
  

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

3,
35

8 
 

 1
,2

01
  

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
93

,7
26

  
 1

00
,0

40
  

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(1

34
,5

32
) 

 (6
1,

23
1)

 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
39

,5
66

  
22

,0
19

  

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$3

11
,9

01
  

 $
19

8,
66

4 
 

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  
  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

54
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

2 
- L

AF
C

O
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$4
9,

19
4 

 
$4

7,
79

7 
 

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
13

8,
15

3 
 

 1
37

,7
84

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
2,

05
1 

 
 1

,6
98

  
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

2,
46

2 
 

 (1
,4

66
) 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(4
,3

40
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(2
2,

23
4)

 
 (2

1,
72

3)
 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(1
24

,9
38

) 
 (1

16
,1

36
) 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
33

,3
09

  
 (2

0,
92

3)
 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
2,

00
5 

 
 2

,0
60

  
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
78

0 
 

 2
74

  
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

21
,7

66
  

 2
2,

82
5 

 
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(3
1,

24
2)

 
 (1

3,
97

1)
 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(4
,7

42
) 

(5
,7

15
) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$6

2,
22

4 
 

 $
32

,5
04

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

55
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

3 
- M

O
FD

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$5
,5

66
,2

49
  

 $
6,

19
6,

15
9 

 
2.

 
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

15
,6

31
,6

14
  

 1
7,

86
1,

59
7 

 
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(1

,6
96

,3
80

) 
 6

79
,5

31
  

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
27

8,
54

7 
 

 (1
89

,9
93

) 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(4

91
,1

07
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(2
,5

15
,6

77
) 

 (2
,8

16
,0

00
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(1
4,

13
6,

37
6)

 
 (1

5,
05

5,
25

9)
 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
3,

76
8,

81
1 

 
 (2

,7
12

,4
01

) 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

22
6,

85
6 

 
 2

66
,9

91
  

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

88
,2

37
  

 3
5,

52
0 

 
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

2,
46

2,
74

0 
 

 2
,9

58
,9

50
  

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(3

,5
34

,9
65

) 
 (1

,8
11

,0
75

) 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(1

,1
99

,9
25

) 
(2

,1
35

,8
37

) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$4

,4
48

,6
24

  
 $

3,
27

8,
18

3 
 

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  
  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

56
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

4 
- R

od
eo

 S
D

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$3
0,

26
4 

 
$2

9,
52

4 
 

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
84

,9
93

  
 8

5,
10

6 
 

3.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

30
,3

23
  

 2
4,

16
6 

 
4.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

be
ne

fit
 c

ha
ng

es
 

0 
 

0 
5.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

1,
51

5 
 

 (9
05

) 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(2

,6
70

) 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(1

3,
67

8)
 

 (1
3,

41
8)

 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(7

6,
86

3)
 

 (7
1,

73
5)

 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

20
,4

92
  

 (1
2,

92
4)

 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

1,
23

3 
 

 1
,2

72
  

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

48
0 

 
 1

69
  

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
13

,3
90

  
 1

4,
09

9 
 

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(1

9,
22

0)
 

 (8
,6

29
) 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

93
,9

73
  

82
,6

43
  

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$1

64
,2

32
  

 $
12

9,
36

8 
 

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 
  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

57
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

5 
– 

R
H

FD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$1
,8

94
,8

84
  

$3
,0

83
,2

83
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
5,

32
1,

37
3 

 
 8

,8
88

,1
46

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
(1

,3
89

,0
22

) 
 5

20
,5

96
  

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
94

,8
24

  
 (9

4,
54

3)
 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(1
67

,1
85

) 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(8

56
,3

96
) 

 (1
,4

01
,2

75
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(4
,8

12
,3

59
) 

 (7
,4

91
,6

78
) 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
1,

28
2,

99
3 

 
 (1

,3
49

,7
24

) 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

77
,2

27
  

 1
32

,8
58

  
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
30

,0
38

  
 1

7,
67

5 
 

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
83

8,
37

5 
 

 1
,4

72
,4

09
  

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(1

,2
03

,3
86

) 
 (9

01
,2

13
) 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(5
14

,3
33

) 
(1

,2
39

,2
94

) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$5

97
,0

33
  

$1
,6

37
,2

40
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  
  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

58
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

6 
- S

R
VF

PD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$1
1,

25
2,

22
8 

 
$1

2,
42

2,
09

9 
 

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
31

,5
99

,4
65

  
 3

5,
80

9,
04

6 
 

3.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(1
,6

36
,2

27
) 

 1
,7

27
,1

87
  

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
56

3,
08

6 
 

 (3
80

,8
98

) 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(9

92
,7

79
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(5
,0

85
,4

66
) 

 (5
,6

45
,5

34
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(2
8,

57
6,

82
6)

 
 (3

0,
18

2,
88

0)
 

9.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
7,

61
8,

69
0 

 
 (5

,4
37

,8
40

) 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

45
8,

59
2 

 
 5

35
,2

64
  

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

17
8,

37
1 

 
 7

1,
21

0 
 

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
4,

97
8,

45
4 

 
 5

,9
32

,1
21

  
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(7
,1

45
,9

66
) 

 (3
,6

30
,8

54
) 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(6
90

,1
17

) 
(2

,7
40

,0
34

) 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$1

2,
52

1,
50

5 
 

 $
8,

47
8,

88
7 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

59
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

7 
- C

ou
rt

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$4
,4

34
,5

16
  

$3
,3

24
,0

21
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
12

,4
53

,3
81

  
9,

58
2,

11
9 

 
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
1,

01
6,

64
6 

 
(5

34
,0

92
) 

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
22

1,
91

3 
 

 (1
01

,9
24

) 
6.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts 
(3

91
,2

55
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(2
,0

04
,1

88
) 

 (1
,5

10
,6

85
) 

8.
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ea

rn
in

gs
 o

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

(1
1,

26
2,

15
6)

 
 (8

,0
76

,6
17

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

3,
00

2,
53

4 
 

 (1
,4

55
,1

08
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
18

0,
73

1 
 

 1
43

,2
31

  
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
70

,2
96

  
 1

9,
05

5 
 

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
1,

96
2,

01
4 

 
 1

,5
87

,3
72

  
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(2
,8

16
,2

33
) 

 (9
71

,5
78

) 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
47

7,
76

2 
 

1,
20

1,
01

0 
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$7

,3
45

,9
61

  
$3

,2
06

,8
04

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

   



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

60
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

8 
- D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$0
  

$0
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
93

8,
38

1 
 

 9
49

,2
72

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
0 

 
0 

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
(2

,6
52

) 
 6

6,
79

9 
 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

5,
04

6 
 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

0 
 

0 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(8

38
,7

62
) 

 (7
93

,5
81

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

22
1,

77
4 

 
 (1

44
,6

20
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
0 

 
0 

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

0 
 

0 
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

66
,7

99
  

0 
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(1
44

,6
20

) 
0 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

0 
 

0 
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$2

45
,9

66
  

 $
77

,8
70

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

61
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 1

9 
- D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$0
  

$0
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
18

9,
10

3 
 

 1
97

,6
88

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
0 

 
0 

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
20

,1
43

  
 3

2,
87

1 
 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(3
,7

90
) 

0 
7.

 
M

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

0 
 

0 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(1

24
,7

33
) 

 (1
29

,5
30

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

32
,5

54
  

 (2
3,

93
3)

 
10

. 
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

0 
 

0 
11

. 
O

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
0 

 
0 

12
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
32

,8
71

  
0 

13
. 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 o
f y

ea
r d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

s p
en

si
on

 e
xp

en
se

 
(2

3,
93

3)
 

0 
14

. 
N

et
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 d

ef
er

re
d 

am
ou

nt
s f

ro
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
0 

 
0 

 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$1

22
,2

15
  

 $
77

,0
96

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

62
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 8
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 2

0 
- P

itt
sb

ur
g 

(T
er

m
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 
 

 
1.

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

os
t 

$0
  

$0
  

2.
 

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
3,

23
2,

57
4 

 
 3

,2
53

,2
65

  
3.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

an
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
0 

 
0 

4.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
be

ne
fit

 c
ha

ng
es

 
0 

 
0 

5.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

sio
n 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 
83

,0
89

  
 3

4,
93

1 
 

6.
 

Ex
pe

ns
ed

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
-p

er
io

d 
ch

an
ge

s o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts 

(1
0,

95
9)

 
0 

7.
 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
0 

 
 (1

,1
14

) 
8.

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ea
rn

in
gs

 o
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
(2

,9
39

,1
32

) 
 (2

,7
86

,9
96

) 
9.

 
Ex

pe
ns

ed
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

-p
er

io
d 

di
ffe

re
nc

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

78
0,

14
7 

 
 (5

08
,1

72
) 

10
. 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
0 

 
0 

11
. 

O
th

er
 e

xp
en

se
s 

0 
 

0 
12

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

34
,9

31
  

0 
13

. 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
s p

en
si

on
 e

xp
en

se
 

(5
08

,1
72

) 
0 

14
. 

N
et

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 d
ef

er
re

d 
am

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

0 
 

0 
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

  
$6

72
,4

78
  

 $
(8

,0
86

) 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

63
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
: T

ot
al

 fo
r a

ll 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$9
2,

64
5,

19
3 

 
 $

47
,9

65
,2

40
  

2.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
8,

32
2,

63
1 

 
 2

4,
27

5,
04

1 
 

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

42
6,

56
7,

11
8 

 
0 

 
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

41
,6

44
,4

07
  

48
1,

87
3 

 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$5

69
,1

79
,3

49
  

 $
72

,7
22

,1
54

  
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$9
2,

64
5,

19
3 

 
 $

47
,9

65
,2

40
  

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
72

,2
13

,9
70

  
 9

,8
60

  
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 2

10
,2

46
,9

43
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
30

,8
04

,0
38

  
79

,3
61

,5
48

  
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$1
95

,6
63

,2
01

  
 $

33
7,

58
3,

59
1 

 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(4
4,

67
3,

28
1)

 
20

20
 

$1
28

,3
82

,8
77

  
 (1

9,
11

2,
48

8)
 

20
21

 
43

,7
10

,1
44

  
 (1

03
,7

85
,2

21
) 

20
22

 
50

,2
04

,9
18

  
 (9

7,
29

0,
44

7)
 

20
23

 
15

1,
21

8,
20

9 
 

 0
  

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

64
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
 –

 B
IM

ID
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$1
52

,2
45

  
 $

11
4,

21
6 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

2,
24

6 
 

 4
,7

48
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

11
4,

79
2 

 
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
11

,0
69

  
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$2
80

,3
52

  
 $

11
8,

96
4 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$2
,8

52
  

 $
8,

33
6 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

19
,5

16
  

 2
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 4
0,

59
2 

 
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

8,
32

8 
 

15
,5

22
  

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$3

0,
69

6 
 

 $
64

,4
52

  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

20
,0

98
  

20
20

 
$8

5,
96

1 
 

 2
7,

53
0 

 
20

21
 

62
,6

11
  

 1
0,

51
9 

 
20

22
 

48
,9

47
  

 (3
,6

35
) 

20
23

 
52

,1
37

  
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

65
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 2
 - 

U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$4
8,

04
2 

 
 $

46
,3

91
  

2.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
30

7 
 

 8
86

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
15

,6
85

  
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
1,

51
2 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$6
5,

54
6 

 
 $

47
,2

77
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$3

,5
49

  
 $

5,
81

0 
 

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
2,

66
7 

 
0 

 
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 7

,5
79

  
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

1,
13

8 
 

2,
89

8 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$7

,3
54

  
 $

16
,2

87
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

26
,2

68
  

20
20

 
$2

4,
49

9 
 

 1
0,

19
3 

 
20

21
 

11
,1

85
  

 (3
,0

84
) 

20
22

 
11

,8
85

  
 (2

,3
87

) 
20

23
 

10
,6

23
  

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

66
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 3
 - 

C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$9
4,

34
6 

 
 $

14
0,

60
0 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

27
,7

72
  

 9
1,

00
9 

 
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
1,

41
9,

44
9 

 
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
13

6,
87

1 
 

0 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$1

,6
78

,4
38

  
 $

23
1,

60
9 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$2
68

,3
15

  
 $

17
4,

79
7 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

24
1,

31
7 

 
 3

7 
 

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 7
78

,0
82

  
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

10
2,

98
1 

 
29

7,
53

2 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$6

12
,6

13
  

 $
1,

25
0,

44
8 

 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
$(

23
4,

19
5)

 
20

20
 

$3
50

,8
26

  
 (8

7,
76

7)
 

20
21

 
12

1,
88

2 
 

 (3
50

,9
98

) 
20

22
 

12
4,

34
7 

 
 (3

45
,8

79
) 

20
23

 
46

8,
77

0 
 

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

67
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 4
 - 

C
C

C
FP

D
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$2
,7

20
,9

14
  

 $
5,

66
9,

28
4 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

94
2,

75
1 

 
 3

,3
23

,6
84

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
48

,1
85

,1
81

  
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
4,

64
6,

26
7 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$5
6,

49
5,

11
3 

 
 $

8,
99

2,
96

8 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$2

8,
85

7,
56

0 
 

 $
5,

16
3,

66
8 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

8,
19

1,
84

6 
 

 1
,3

50
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 2
8,

41
5,

91
9 

 
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

3,
49

5,
84

0 
 

10
,8

66
,0

06
  

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$4

0,
54

5,
24

6 
 

 $
44

,4
46

,9
43

  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(5
,9

58
,8

20
) 

20
20

 
$7

,4
14

,2
56

  
 (2

,1
96

,9
15

) 
20

21
 

(2
,8

01
,6

21
) 

 (1
4,

39
3,

83
4)

 
20

22
 

(1
,4

65
,4

70
) 

 (1
2,

90
4,

40
6)

 
20

23
 

12
,8

02
,7

02
  

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

68
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 5
 - 

C
C

C
SD

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$7
,6

36
,7

77
  

 $
11

,0
45

,2
00

  
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

53
0,

12
4 

 
 1

,9
24

,1
51

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
27

,0
95

,2
84

  
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
2,

61
2,

66
9 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$3
7,

87
4,

85
4 

 
 $

12
,9

69
,3

51
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$1

7,
16

4,
80

6 
 

 $
5,

33
4,

71
3 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

4,
60

6,
40

4 
 

 7
82

  
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 1

6,
45

0,
57

8 
 

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
1,

96
5,

76
6 

 
6,

29
0,

56
1 

 
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$2
3,

73
6,

97
6 

 
 $

28
,0

76
,6

34
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(3
,5

99
,2

96
) 

20
20

 
$5

,1
24

,5
01

  
 (2

08
,6

82
) 

20
21

 
1,

40
3,

50
4 

 
 (5

,2
36

,1
62

) 
20

22
 

47
5,

43
9 

 
 (6

,0
63

,1
43

) 
20

23
 

7,
13

4,
43

4 
 

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

69
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 6
 - 

Fi
rs

t 5
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$4
95

,1
62

  
 $

25
3,

58
5 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

16
,8

94
  

 3
8,

87
4 

 
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
86

3,
45

2 
 

0 
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

83
,2

59
  

0 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$1

,4
58

,7
67

  
 $

29
2,

45
9 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$1
0,

94
5 

 
 $

15
,1

87
  

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
14

6,
79

3 
 

 1
6 

 
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 3

32
,3

54
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
62

,6
44

  
12

7,
08

9 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$2

20
,3

82
  

 $
47

4,
64

6 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

67
,4

54
  

20
20

 
$4

50
,2

92
  

 5
3,

03
2 

 
20

21
 

21
5,

24
1 

 
 (1

45
,3

69
) 

20
22

 
20

6,
14

3 
 

 (1
57

,3
04

) 
20

23
 

36
6,

70
9 

 
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

70
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 7
 - 

C
ou

nt
y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$6
7,

61
7,

52
2 

 
 $

15
,7

76
,8

02
  

2.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
5,

72
1,

74
0 

 
 1

5,
18

5,
46

2 
 

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

29
2,

44
5,

28
6 

 
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
28

,1
99

,1
03

  
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$3
93

,9
83

,6
51

  
 $

30
,9

62
,2

64
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$1

6,
59

8,
46

9 
 

 $
23

,0
31

,9
88

  
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

49
,7

17
,9

15
  

 6
,1

68
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 1
29

,8
28

,4
65

  
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

21
,2

16
,9

32
  

49
,6

45
,3

01
  

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$8

7,
53

3,
31

6 
 

 $
20

2,
51

1,
92

2 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(2
4,

41
5,

27
2)

 
20

20
 

$1
03

,7
22

,4
74

  
 (1

3,
16

3,
41

0)
 

20
21

 
41

,7
62

,4
11

  
 (6

9,
75

3,
16

4)
 

20
22

 
47

,7
13

,2
71

  
 (6

4,
21

7,
81

2)
 

20
23

 
11

3,
25

2,
17

9 
 

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

71
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 8
 - 

C
C

C
ER

A 
(th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$5
82

,9
02

  
 $

72
7,

93
4 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

42
,8

85
  

 1
29

,2
83

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
2,

19
1,

93
0 

 
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
21

1,
35

7 
 

0 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$3

,0
29

,0
74

  
 $

85
7,

21
7 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$9
,2

71
  

 $
27

,0
96

  
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

37
2,

64
5 

 
 5

3 
 

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 1
,1

05
,3

06
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
15

9,
02

5 
 

42
2,

66
0 

 
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$5
40

,9
41

  
 $

1,
55

5,
11

5 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
$(

46
,5

52
) 

20
20

 
$8

73
,8

06
  

 9
7,

77
8 

 
20

21
 

44
1,

68
6 

 
 (3

48
,0

34
) 

20
22

 
38

7,
57

1 
 

 (4
01

,0
90

) 
20

23
 

78
5,

07
0 

 
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

72
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 9
 - 

EC
C

FP
D

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$1
,0

84
,0

92
  

 $
1,

55
0,

71
4 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

10
6,

95
9 

 
 4

93
,0

63
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

5,
46

6,
78

6 
 

0 
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

52
7,

13
6 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$7
,1

84
,9

73
  

 $
2,

04
3,

77
7 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$7
,4

41
,7

10
  

 $
3,

19
7,

69
3 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

92
9,

39
5 

 
 2

00
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 4
,2

15
,4

54
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
39

6,
61

6 
 

1,
61

1,
95

4 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$8

,7
67

,7
21

  
 $

9,
02

5,
30

1 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(2
,6

51
,1

92
) 

20
20

 
$(

67
4,

69
7)

 
 (8

86
,8

20
) 

20
21

 
(8

39
,9

83
) 

 (1
,6

81
,4

03
) 

20
22

 
(9

69
,3

78
) 

 (1
,7

62
,1

09
) 

20
23

 
90

1,
31

0 
 

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

73
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
0 

- H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$2
04

,8
87

  
 $

29
4,

41
5 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

63
,2

92
  

 1
89

,0
08

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
3,

23
4,

92
0 

 
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
31

1,
92

8 
 

0 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$3

,8
15

,0
27

  
 $

48
3,

42
3 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$3
16

,1
82

  
 $

35
,7

13
  

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
54

9,
96

1 
 

 7
7 

 
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 1

,6
15

,9
25

  
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

23
4,

69
4 

 
61

7,
91

6 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$1

,1
00

,8
37

  
 $

2,
26

9,
63

1 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(2
79

,0
59

) 
20

20
 

$9
67

,2
29

  
 (6

5,
79

7)
 

20
21

 
32

1,
54

2 
 

 (7
25

,4
40

) 
20

22
 

32
9,

99
0 

 
 (7

15
,9

12
) 

20
23

 
1,

09
5,

42
9 

 
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

74
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
1 

- I
H

SS
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$8
1,

11
0 

 
 $

12
2,

13
2 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

7,
67

9 
 

 2
3,

95
8 

 
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
39

2,
48

1 
 

0 
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

37
,8

45
  

0 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$5

19
,1

15
  

 $
14

6,
09

0 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$2

5,
69

1 
 

 $
1,

45
6 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

66
,7

25
  

 1
0 

 
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 2

04
,8

32
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
28

,4
75

  
78

,3
26

  
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$1
20

,8
91

  
 $

28
4,

62
4 

 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(3
,9

89
) 

20
20

 
$1

51
,9

83
  

 2
2,

68
0 

 
20

21
 

63
,1

71
  

 (7
1,

40
7)

 
20

22
 

48
,3

52
  

 (8
5,

81
8)

 
20

23
 

13
4,

71
8 

 
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

75
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
2 

- L
AF

C
O

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$1
2,

31
8 

 
 $

8,
17

7 
 

2.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
1,

78
3 

 
 5

,4
66

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
91

,1
45

  
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
8,

78
9 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$1
14

,0
35

  
 $

13
,6

43
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$4

,1
21

  
 $

12
,0

43
  

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
15

,4
95

  
 2

  
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 4

6,
73

5 
 

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
6,

61
3 

 
17

,8
71

  
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$2
6,

22
9 

 
 $

76
,6

51
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(1
4,

68
0)

 
20

20
 

$2
7,

46
1 

 
 (6

,2
15

) 
20

21
 

13
,2

34
  

 (2
1,

32
7)

 
20

22
 

13
,7

06
  

 (2
0,

78
6)

 
20

23
 

33
,4

05
  

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

76
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
3 

- M
O

FD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$1
,7

53
,1

89
  

 $
2,

43
2,

72
0 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

20
1,

77
2 

 
 7

08
,6

30
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

10
,3

12
,7

97
  

0 
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

99
4,

41
4 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$1
3,

26
2,

17
2 

 
 $

3,
14

1,
35

0 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$8

,1
36

,0
89

  
 $

3,
95

9,
47

0 
 

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
1,

75
3,

25
4 

 
 2

88
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 6
,0

58
,4

45
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
74

8,
19

4 
 

2,
31

6,
69

8 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$1

0,
63

7,
53

7 
 

 $
12

,3
34

,9
01

  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(2
,4

88
,1

88
) 

20
20

 
$7

15
,3

62
  

 (1
,2

35
,4

18
) 

20
21

 
(6

76
,1

89
) 

 (3
,0

41
,4

75
) 

20
22

 
(9

5,
25

6)
 

 (2
,4

28
,4

70
) 

20
23

 
2,

68
0,

71
8 

 
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

77
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
4 

- R
od

eo
 S

D
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$1
99

,7
22

  
 $

19
0,

89
3 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

1,
09

7 
 

 3
,3

76
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

56
,0

73
  

0 
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

5,
40

7 
 

0 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$2

62
,2

99
  

 $
19

4,
26

9 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$8

,5
54

  
 $

14
,0

03
  

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
9,

53
3 

 
 1

  
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 2

8,
86

7 
 

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
4,

06
8 

 
11

,0
39

  
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$2
2,

15
5 

 
 $

53
,9

10
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
$8

7,
83

5 
 

20
20

 
$9

5,
04

7 
 

 4
5,

25
8 

 
20

21
 

57
,0

81
  

 6
,7

01
  

20
22

 
50

,9
01

  
 5

65
  

20
23

 
37

,1
15

  
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

78
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
5 

- R
H

FD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$1
,3

43
,1

37
  

 $
1,

86
3,

73
3 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

68
,6

88
  

 3
52

,6
23

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
3,

51
0,

72
1 

 
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
33

8,
52

2 
 

0 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$5

,2
61

,0
68

  
 $

2,
21

6,
35

6 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$5

,4
82

,4
78

  
 $

1,
55

8,
60

0 
 

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
59

6,
84

9 
 

 1
43

  
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 3

,0
14

,7
55

  
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

25
4,

70
3 

 
1,

15
2,

81
7 

 
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$6
,3

34
,0

30
  

 $
5,

72
6,

31
5 

 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(1
,1

55
,3

88
) 

20
20

 
$(

25
6,

39
6)

 
 (1

94
,1

66
) 

20
21

 
(5

90
,3

86
) 

 (1
,0

57
,7

92
) 

20
22

 
(6

76
,1

86
) 

 (1
,1

02
,6

13
) 

20
23

 
45

0,
00

6 
 

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

79
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
6 

- S
R

VF
PD

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$4
,4

56
,1

42
  

 $
6,

18
3,

32
9 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

40
7,

88
3 

 
 1

,4
20

,6
65

  
3.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 o
ve

r a
ct

ua
l e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
20

,8
47

,4
23

  
0 

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
2,

01
0,

21
8 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$2
7,

72
1,

66
6 

 
 $

7,
60

3,
99

4 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$6

,9
36

,6
43

  
 $

3,
51

2,
61

7 
 

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
3,

54
4,

22
0 

 
 5

77
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 1
2,

14
6,

01
0 

 
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

1,
51

2,
48

3 
 

4,
64

4,
53

1 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$1

1,
99

3,
34

6 
 

 $
20

,3
03

,7
35

  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(3
,2

72
,8

35
) 

20
20

 
$5

,3
21

,4
39

  
 (4

06
,0

50
) 

20
21

 
2,

16
0,

26
7 

 
 (4

,3
63

,8
62

) 
20

22
 

1,
80

5,
49

9 
 

 (4
,6

56
,9

94
) 

20
23

 
6,

44
1,

11
5 

 
0 

20
24

 
0 

 
0 

 
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

80
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
7 

- C
ou

rt
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$4
,1

62
,6

86
  

 $
1,

54
5,

11
5 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

16
0,

74
7 

 
 3

80
,1

55
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

8,
21

5,
99

1 
 

0 
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

79
2,

22
9 

 
0 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$1
3,

33
1,

65
3 

 
 $

1,
92

5,
27

0 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$1

,3
77

,9
58

  
 $

1,
91

2,
05

0 
 

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
1,

39
6,

78
1 

 
 1

54
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 3
,2

50
,1

43
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
59

6,
07

1 
 

1,
24

2,
82

7 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$3

,3
70

,8
10

  
 $

6,
40

5,
17

4 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(2
13

,3
46

) 
20

20
 

$3
,4

05
,6

06
  

 (3
75

,5
95

) 
20

21
 

1,
40

1,
28

0 
 

 (2
,0

66
,9

66
) 

20
22

 
1,

66
8,

46
2 

 
 (1

,8
23

,9
97

) 
20

23
 

3,
48

5,
49

5 
 

0 
20

24
 

0 
 

0 
 

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

81
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
8 

- D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$0
  

 $
0 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

18
,0

12
  

 0
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

45
3,

23
5 

 
 0

  
4.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

17
2,

34
3 

 
23

9,
14

2 
 

5.
 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$6
43

,5
90

  
 $

23
9,

14
2 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$0
  

 $
0 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

0 
 

 0
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 5
78

,4
81

  
9.

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
To

ta
l P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

9,
46

7 
 

0 
 

10
. 

To
ta

l D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$9

,4
67

  
 $

57
8,

48
1 

 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

(7
7,

82
1)

 
20

20
 

$1
46

,3
47

  
 (7

7,
82

1)
 

20
21

 
14

6,
34

7 
 

 (7
7,

82
1)

 
20

22
 

11
8,

29
2 

 
 (1

05
,8

76
) 

20
23

 
22

3,
13

7 
 

 0
  

20
24

 
0 

 
 0

  
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

82
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 1
9 

- D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$0
  

 $
0 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

0 
 

 0
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

58
,4

18
  

 0
  

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
15

6,
72

0 
 

11
7,

68
0 

 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$2

15
,1

38
  

 $
11

7,
68

0 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
6.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
's 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

) 
$0

  
 $

0 
 

7.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 o

r o
th

er
 in

pu
ts

 
13

,5
31

  
 0

  
8.

 
N

et
 e

xc
es

s o
f a

ct
ua

l o
ve

r p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 (i

f a
ny

) 
0 

 
 9

5,
73

2 
 

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
0 

 
0 

 
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$1
3,

53
1 

 
 $

95
,7

32
  

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
 $

8,
93

8 
 

20
20

 
$5

7,
84

5 
 

 8
,9

38
  

20
21

 
57

,8
45

  
 8

,9
38

  
20

22
 

44
,0

41
  

 (4
,8

66
) 

20
23

 
41

,8
76

  
 0

  
20

24
 

0 
 

 0
  

Th
er

ea
fte

r 
0 

 
0 

(1
) 

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

s 5
4 

an
d 

55
 o

f G
AS

 6
8.

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

83
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

: 2
0 

- P
itt

sb
ur

g 
(T

er
m

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

1.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$0
  

 $
0 

 
2.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

0 
 

 0
  

3.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 o

ve
r a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

1,
59

6,
06

9 
 

 0
  

4.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
38

6,
74

9 
 

12
5,

05
1 

 
5.

 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

 
$1

,9
82

,8
18

  
 $

12
5,

05
1 

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

 
 

6.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 a
nd

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

's 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
) 

$0
  

 $
0 

 
7.

 
C

ha
ng

es
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r o

th
er

 in
pu

ts
 

39
,1

23
  

 0
  

8.
 

N
et

 e
xc

es
s o

f a
ct

ua
l o

ve
r p

ro
je

ct
ed

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 (i
f a

ny
) 

0 
 

 2
,0

32
,6

89
  

9.
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
0 

 
0 

 
10

. 
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
 

$3
9,

12
3 

 
 $

2,
03

2,
68

9 
 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 J

un
e 

30
: 

 
20

19
 

N
/A

 
$(

47
3,

24
1)

 
20

20
 

$3
79

,0
36

  
 (4

73
,2

41
) 

20
21

 
37

9,
03

6 
 

 (4
73

,2
41

) 
20

22
 

36
4,

36
2 

 
 (4

87
,9

15
) 

20
23

 
82

1,
26

1 
 

 0
  

20
24

 
0 

 
 0

  
Th

er
ea

fte
r 

0 
 

0 
(1

) 
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
s 5

4 
an

d 
55

 o
f G

AS
 6

8.
 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

84
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 9
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

s 
of

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 

 Th
er

e 
ar

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

ea
ch

 e
m

pl
oy

er
’s

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
to

ta
l N

PL
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

d 
en

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8.
 T

he
 n

et
 e

ffe
ct

 o
f t

he
 c

ha
ng

e 
on

 th
e e

m
pl

oy
er

’s
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
N

PL
 a

nd
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
de

fe
rre

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

er
io

d 
(i.

e.
, 2

01
8)

 is
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
ve

r t
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 
of

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 se

rv
ic

e 
liv

es
 o

f a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s t
ha

t a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
w

ith
 p

en
sio

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
CC

CE
RA

 w
hi

ch
 is

 4
.5

7 
ye

ar
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8)

. T
hi

s i
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
33

a.
 o

f G
A

S 
68

. 
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, t
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
ve

r t
he

 sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

 T
hi

s d
iff

er
en

ce
 is

 ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 b

as
ed

 
on

 a
ct

ua
l e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 u

s b
y 

CC
CE

RA
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ac

tiv
e 

em
pl

oy
er

. 
 Th

e 
ne

t e
ffe

ct
s o

f t
he

 c
ha

ng
e 

on
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

N
PL

 a
nd

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

de
fe

rre
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f 
re

so
ur

ce
s a

nd
 d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 fo

r p
rio

r p
er

io
ds

 a
re

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to

 b
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 se

rv
ic

e 
liv

es
 

of
 al

l e
m

pl
oy

ee
s c

al
cu

la
te

d 
as

 o
f t

ho
se

 p
rio

r m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

es
. 

 Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 se

rv
ic

e 
liv

es
 o

f a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s i
s d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y:
 

• 
Ca

lc
ul

at
in

g 
ea

ch
 a

ct
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 se
rv

ic
e 

lif
e 

as
 th

e 
pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f $
1 

pe
r y

ea
r o

f f
ut

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

at
 

ze
ro

 p
er

ce
nt

 in
te

re
st.

 

• 
Se

tti
ng

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 se

rv
ic

e 
lif

e 
to

 z
er

o 
fo

r e
ac

h 
no

na
ct

iv
e 

or
 re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
r. 

• 
D

iv
id

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

 a
m

ou
nt

s b
y 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f a
ct

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

, n
on

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
rs

. 
  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

85
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 T

ot
al

 fo
r a

ll 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
$1

,4
71

,4
49

,2
51

 
$6

38
,6

35
,9

12
  

23
0.

41
%

 
81

.4
4%

 
20

15
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
1,

19
5,

70
1,

39
7 

 
67

1,
48

5,
79

8 
17

8.
07

%
 

85
.2

5%
 

20
16

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

1,
50

7,
12

7,
14

0 
 

70
9,

81
8,

85
8 

 
21

2.
33

%
 

82
.2

4%
 

20
17

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

1,
40

0,
45

4,
92

3 
 

75
5,

13
8,

88
2 

 
18

5.
46

%
 

84
.1

6%
 

20
18

 
10

0.
00

0%
 

81
1,

43
6,

61
1 

 
80

9,
96

0,
08

8 
 

10
0.

18
%

 
91

.1
8%

 
20

19
 

10
0.

00
0%

 
1,

42
8,

04
4,

14
4 

 
85

0,
92

9,
10

6 
 

16
7.

82
%

 
85

.0
9%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

86
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

 - 
B

IM
ID

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
01

0%
 

$1
41

,0
29

  
$9

8,
54

7 
14

3.
11

%
 

74
.4

0%
 

20
15

 
0.

01
0%

 
11

4,
60

0 
 

63
,7

62
  

17
9.

73
%

 
79

.5
7%

 
20

16
 

0.
00

7%
 

11
1,

81
8 

 
58

,3
47

  
19

1.
64

%
 

77
.8

4%
 

20
17

 
0.

01
0%

 
13

7,
08

4 
 

82
,1

74
  

16
6.

82
%

 
80

.3
2%

 
20

18
 

0.
01

9%
 

15
7,

44
3 

 
16

6,
43

0 
 

94
.6

0%
 

88
.4

9%
 

20
19

 
0.

02
7%

 
38

3,
11

8 
 

26
1,

68
9 

 
14

6.
40

%
 

82
.2

8%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

87
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 2

 - 
U

ni
on

 C
em

et
er

y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
00

6%
 

$8
1,

63
9 

$2
02

,3
42

 
40

.3
5%

 
94

.5
2%

 
20

15
 

0.
00

6%
 

66
,3

40
 

21
3,

71
6 

31
.0

4%
 

95
.8

3%
 

20
16

 
0.

01
0%

 
14

7,
77

4 
21

3,
33

6 
69

.2
7%

 
91

.4
3%

 
20

17
 

0.
00

5%
 

75
,8

00
 

22
6,

81
1 

33
.4

2%
 

95
.6

7%
 

20
18

 
0.

00
4%

 
29

,3
95

 
16

6,
89

0 
17

.6
1%

 
98

.0
0%

 
20

19
 

0.
00

4%
 

52
,3

48
 

19
2,

93
0 

27
.1

3%
 

96
.5

8%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

88
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 3

 - 
C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
42

7%
 

$6
,2

81
,9

02
 

$2
,7

87
,2

46
 

22
5.

38
%

 
74

.4
0%

 
20

15
 

0.
42

7%
 

5,
10

4,
68

1 
2,

84
0,

17
2 

17
9.

73
%

 
79

.5
7%

 
20

16
 

0.
37

6%
 

5,
66

5,
70

0 
2,

95
6,

36
5 

19
1.

64
%

 
77

.8
4%

 
20

17
 

0.
36

7%
 

5,
14

0,
41

8 
3,

08
1,

36
8 

16
6.

82
%

 
80

.3
2%

 
20

18
 

0.
37

2%
 

3,
01

7,
90

8 
3,

19
0,

16
9 

94
.6

0%
 

88
.4

9%
 

20
19

 
0.

33
2%

 
4,

73
7,

38
9 

3,
23

5,
87

6 
14

6.
40

%
 

82
.2

8%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

89
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 4

 - 
C

C
C

FP
D

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

9.
72

3%
 

$1
43

,0
74

,4
96

 
$3

0,
88

0,
66

7 
46

3.
31

%
 

83
.8

2%
 

20
15

 
9.

72
3%

 
11

6,
26

2,
50

4 
29

,5
82

,6
25

 
39

3.
01

%
 

86
.8

5%
 

20
16

 
11

.5
68

%
 

17
4,

34
0,

79
5 

32
,2

75
,3

97
 

54
0.

17
%

 
81

.5
4%

 
20

17
 

11
.9

34
%

 
16

7,
12

4,
04

8 
35

,0
11

,9
78

 
47

7.
33

%
 

82
.6

9%
 

20
18

 
13

.5
83

%
 

11
0,

21
5,

34
7 

36
,0

28
,7

72
 

30
5.

91
%

 
88

.8
8%

 
20

19
 

11
.2

61
%

 
16

0,
81

7,
31

7 
40

,2
72

,6
28

 
39

9.
32

%
 

83
.9

9%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

90
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 5

 - 
C

C
C

SD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

7.
48

8%
 

$1
10

,1
83

,8
30

 
$2

5,
79

1,
34

6 
42

7.
21

%
 

67
.2

2%
 

20
15

 
7.

48
8%

 
89

,5
35

,5
10

 
26

,9
06

,1
31

 
33

2.
77

%
 

73
.8

6%
 

20
16

 
6.

08
8%

 
91

,7
46

,8
88

 
29

,0
61

,7
43

 
31

5.
70

%
 

74
.1

4%
 

20
17

 
6.

27
3%

 
87

,8
47

,1
16

 
31

,5
84

,1
69

 
27

8.
14

%
 

76
.4

4%
 

20
18

 
7.

86
3%

 
63

,8
06

,0
00

 
33

,3
06

,9
38

 
19

1.
57

%
 

83
.5

8%
 

20
19

 
6.

33
2%

 
90

,4
30

,1
04

 
33

,7
93

,1
59

 
26

7.
60

%
 

77
.8

6%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

91
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 6

 - 
Fi

rs
t 5

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
14

1%
 

$2
,0

71
,3

32
 

$1
,6

31
,9

23
 

12
6.

93
%

 
86

.0
0%

 
20

15
 

0.
14

1%
 

1,
68

3,
16

7 
1,

73
5,

00
9 

97
.0

1%
 

88
.9

7%
 

20
16

 
0.

16
4%

 
2,

46
5,

34
1 

1,
96

2,
96

1 
12

5.
59

%
 

85
.4

8%
 

20
17

 
0.

17
3%

 
2,

42
3,

89
9 

2,
14

0,
38

0 
11

3.
25

%
 

86
.6

4%
 

20
18

 
0.

15
9%

 
1,

28
9,

08
3 

2,
40

5,
39

7 
53

.5
9%

 
93

.4
8%

 
20

19
 

0.
20

2%
 

2,
88

1,
75

9 
2,

52
5,

00
4 

11
4.

13
%

 
86

.1
9%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

92
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 7

 - 
C

ou
nt

y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

67
.5

21
%

 
$9

93
,5

38
,1

68
 

$5
13

,9
65

,6
13

 
19

3.
31

%
 

82
.5

7%
 

20
15

 
67

.5
21

%
 

80
7,

35
0,

28
8 

54
7,

66
9,

42
8 

14
7.

42
%

 
86

.2
1%

 
20

16
 

67
.9

51
%

 
1,

02
4,

10
4,

60
4 

57
8,

31
2,

67
9 

17
7.

08
%

 
83

.3
0%

 
20

17
 

67
.0

71
%

 
93

9,
30

5,
46

4 
61

3,
56

5,
06

8 
15

3.
09

%
 

85
.2

0%
 

20
18

 
62

.0
58

%
 

50
3,

55
8,

90
8 

66
1,

57
5,

19
6 

76
.1

2%
 

92
.4

0%
 

20
19

 
68

.3
47

%
 

97
6,

03
1,

74
7 

69
5,

80
1,

37
7 

14
0.

27
%

 
85

.9
4%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

93
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 8

 - 
C

C
C

ER
A 

(th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
49

0%
 

$7
,2

15
,9

26
 

$3
,2

80
,8

49
 

21
9.

94
%

 
74

.4
0%

 
20

15
 

0.
49

0%
 

5,
86

3,
67

0 
3,

26
2,

46
3 

17
9.

73
%

 
79

.5
7%

 
20

16
 

0.
47

4%
 

7,
13

8,
68

0 
3,

72
4,

96
7 

19
1.

64
%

 
77

.8
4%

 
20

17
 

0.
46

2%
 

6,
47

5,
71

3 
3,

88
1,

79
7 

16
6.

82
%

 
80

.3
2%

 
20

18
 

0.
52

8%
 

4,
28

7,
09

4 
4,

53
1,

80
0 

94
.6

0%
 

88
.4

9%
 

20
19

 
0.

51
2%

 
7,

31
5,

53
2 

4,
99

6,
87

8 
14

6.
40

%
 

82
.2

8%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

94
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 9

 - 
EC

C
FP

D
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

2.
03

3%
 

$2
9,

92
0,

97
6 

$3
,0

75
,2

80
 

97
2.

95
%

 
69

.4
3%

 
20

15
 

2.
03

3%
 

24
,3

13
,8

20
 

3,
03

3,
96

4 
80

1.
39

%
 

74
.6

5%
 

20
16

 
1.

52
6%

 
22

,9
92

,2
16

 
2,

57
8,

80
1 

89
1.

59
%

 
70

.8
9%

 
20

17
 

1.
66

8%
 

23
,3

62
,4

47
 

2,
98

1,
91

1 
78

3.
47

%
 

73
.3

0%
 

20
18

 
2.

01
5%

 
16

,3
50

,2
62

 
2,

93
2,

87
2 

55
7.

48
%

 
81

.0
0%

 
20

19
 

1.
27

8%
 

18
,2

45
,3

16
 

3,
14

2,
96

9 
58

0.
51

%
 

77
.8

0%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

95
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

0 
- H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
72

4%
 

$1
0,

64
8,

28
3 

$4
,6

77
,5

72
 

22
7.

65
%

 
80

.0
4%

 
20

15
 

0.
72

4%
 

8,
65

2,
80

7 
4,

69
1,

88
5 

18
4.

42
%

 
84

.0
6%

 
20

16
 

0.
71

6%
 

10
,7

88
,3

91
 

4,
84

1,
90

7 
22

2.
81

%
 

80
.8

3%
 

20
17

 
0.

72
6%

 
10

,1
62

,6
04

 
5,

21
5,

89
0 

19
4.

84
%

 
82

.7
3%

 
20

18
 

0.
77

2%
 

6,
26

7,
60

4 
5,

18
3,

76
2 

12
0.

91
%

 
89

.7
2%

 
20

19
 

0.
75

6%
 

10
,7

96
,4

97
 

5,
28

8,
21

1 
20

4.
16

%
 

83
.1

0%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

96
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

1 
- I

H
SS

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
08

7%
 

$1
,2

80
,3

62
 

$6
00

,3
71

 
21

3.
26

%
 

74
.4

0%
 

20
15

 
0.

08
7%

 
1,

04
0,

42
4 

57
8,

87
7 

17
9.

73
%

 
79

.5
7%

 
20

16
 

0.
08

6%
 

1,
29

2,
79

2 
67

4,
57

9 
19

1.
64

%
 

77
.8

4%
 

20
17

 
0.

09
2%

 
1,

29
4,

52
2 

77
5,

98
7 

16
6.

82
%

 
80

.3
2%

 
20

18
 

0.
09

8%
 

79
4,

47
3 

83
9,

82
1 

94
.6

0%
 

88
.4

9%
 

20
19

 
0.

09
2%

 
1,

30
9,

89
9 

89
4,

72
7 

14
6.

40
%

 
82

.2
8%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

97
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

2 
- L

AF
C

O
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
03

0%
 

$4
48

,6
84

 
$2

02
,8

80
 

22
1.

16
%

 
74

.4
0%

 
20

15
 

0.
03

0%
 

36
4,

60
1 

20
2,

85
9 

17
9.

73
%

 
79

.5
7%

 
20

16
 

0.
02

7%
 

40
0,

17
3 

20
8,

81
0 

19
1.

64
%

 
77

.8
4%

 
20

17
 

0.
02

6%
 

35
9,

32
9 

21
5,

39
6 

16
6.

82
%

 
80

.3
2%

 
20

18
 

0.
02

2%
 

18
1,

26
8 

22
1,

78
0 

81
.7

3%
 

90
.0

6%
 

20
19

 
0.

02
1%

 
30

4,
19

5 
22

8,
63

7 
13

3.
05

%
 

83
.9

0%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

98
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

3 
- M

O
FD

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

2.
39

3%
 

$3
5,

21
1,

42
7 

$7
,3

53
,1

74
 

47
8.

86
%

 
80

.0
6%

 
20

15
 

2.
39

3%
 

28
,6

12
,8

47
 

7,
35

0,
16

3 
38

9.
28

%
 

83
.7

9%
 

20
16

 
2.

60
8%

 
39

,2
99

,3
57

 
6,

85
8,

00
3 

57
3.

04
%

 
78

.7
7%

 
20

17
 

2.
32

6%
 

32
,5

69
,9

13
 

7,
34

7,
75

7 
44

3.
26

%
 

82
.4

1%
 

20
18

 
2.

89
6%

 
23

,4
98

,5
75

 
7,

96
0,

21
5 

29
5.

20
%

 
87

.8
5%

 
20

19
 

2.
41

0%
 

34
,4

18
,8

05
 

8,
13

9,
43

3 
42

2.
86

%
 

82
.4

7%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

99
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

4 
- R

od
eo

 S
D

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

0.
01

5%
 

$2
25

,1
42

 
$5

46
,3

54
 

41
.2

1%
 

94
.5

2%
 

20
15

 
0.

01
5%

 
18

2,
95

1 
58

9,
37

9 
31

.0
4%

 
95

.8
3%

 
20

16
 

0.
02

6%
 

39
3,

62
8 

56
8,

26
5 

69
.2

7%
 

91
.4

3%
 

20
17

 
0.

01
5%

 
20

3,
75

0 
60

9,
66

7 
33

.4
2%

 
95

.6
7%

 
20

18
 

0.
01

4%
 

11
1,

96
5 

63
5,

68
2 

17
.6

1%
 

98
.0

0%
 

20
19

 
0.

01
3%

 
18

7,
14

3 
68

9,
72

9 
27

.1
3%

 
96

.5
8%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
0 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

5 
- R

H
FD

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

1.
12

9%
 

$1
6,

61
2,

34
6 

$1
,7

66
,7

04
 

94
0.

30
%

 
59

.8
6%

 
20

15
 

1.
12

9%
 

13
,4

99
,2

12
 

2,
06

9,
51

0 
65

2.
29

%
 

65
.8

9%
 

20
16

 
1.

01
2%

 
15

,2
52

,1
52

 
2,

34
2,

84
4 

65
1.

01
%

 
63

.5
9%

 
20

17
 

1.
04

9%
 

14
,6

93
,1

06
 

2,
24

1,
78

6 
65

5.
42

%
 

66
.5

5%
 

20
18

 
1.

44
1%

 
11

,6
93

,1
74

 
2,

19
4,

60
5 

53
2.

81
%

 
74

.2
0%

 
20

19
 

0.
82

0%
 

11
,7

16
,9

80
 

2,
34

6,
25

6 
49

9.
39

%
 

74
.4

6%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
1 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

6 
- S

R
VF

PD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

5.
81

5%
 

$8
5,

56
1,

05
5 

$1
9,

05
3,

09
3 

44
9.

07
%

 
76

.9
4%

 
20

15
 

5.
81

5%
 

69
,5

27
,0

14
 

18
,6

14
,2

52
 

37
3.

51
%

 
81

.6
7%

 
20

16
 

5.
35

7%
 

80
,7

36
,0

03
 

19
,5

40
,5

57
 

41
3.

17
%

 
79

.7
0%

 
20

17
 

5.
17

6%
 

72
,4

91
,1

95
 

22
,1

13
,9

73
 

32
7.

81
%

 
82

.6
8%

 
20

18
 

5.
80

6%
 

47
,1

10
,0

96
 

23
,7

67
,9

50
 

19
8.

21
%

 
89

.4
1%

 
20

19
 

4.
87

2%
 

69
,5

77
,9

60
 

24
,4

77
,3

53
 

28
4.

25
%

 
84

.9
1%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
2 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

7 
- C

ou
rt

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

1.
96

8%
 

$2
8,

95
2,

65
4 

$2
2,

72
1,

95
3 

12
7.

42
%

 
84

.7
5%

 
20

15
 

1.
96

8%
 

23
,5

26
,9

61
 

22
,0

81
,6

05
 

10
6.

55
%

 
87

.8
9%

 
20

16
 

2.
00

7%
 

30
,2

50
,8

28
 

23
,6

39
,2

97
 

12
7.

97
%

 
85

.2
1%

 
20

17
 

1.
93

9%
 

27
,1

58
,8

29
 

24
,0

62
,7

71
 

11
2.

87
%

 
86

.6
8%

 
20

18
 

1.
55

4%
 

12
,6

06
,1

59
 

24
,8

51
,8

09
 

50
.7

3%
 

93
.8

3%
 

20
19

 
1.

92
0%

 
27

,4
20

,7
45

 
24

,6
42

,2
51

 
11

1.
28

%
 

86
.5

3%
 

(1
)  

C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 p

ay
ro

ll 
on

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

re
 b

as
ed

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
3 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

8 
- D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

15
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

16
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

17
 

0.
13

7%
 

$1
,9

18
,2

15
 

$0
 

N
/A

 
86

.0
9%

 
20

18
 

0.
17

7%
 

1,
43

5,
25

7 
0 

N
/A

 
89

.7
3%

 
20

19
 

0.
17

0%
 

2,
43

3,
19

6 
0 

N
/A

 
82

.3
8%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
4 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 1

9 
- D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

15
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

16
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

17
 

0.
05

9%
 

$8
23

,1
44

 
$0

 
N

/A
 

71
.4

2%
 

20
18

 
0.

10
2%

 
82

7,
52

0 
0 

N
/A

 
70

.6
0%

 
20

19
 

0.
07

2%
 

1,
03

4,
72

6 
0 

N
/A

 
61

.2
1%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
5 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
0 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f P

ro
po

rt
io

na
te

 S
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 2

0 
- P

itt
sb

ur
g 

(T
er

m
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
 

Pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 
sh

ar
e 

of
 N

et
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

L
ia

bi
lit

y 
C

ov
er

ed
  

pa
yr

ol
l(1

)  

Pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

N
et

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f i

ts
 c

ov
er

ed
 

pa
yr

ol
l 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 
Po

si
tio

n 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
20

14
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

15
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

16
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
20

17
 

0.
49

2%
 

$6
,8

88
,3

27
 

$0
 

N
/A

 
85

.7
5%

 
20

18
 

0.
51

7%
 

4,
19

9,
08

0 
0 

N
/A

 
91

.2
0%

 
20

19
 

0.
55

7%
 

7,
94

9,
36

8 
0 

N
/A

 
83

.2
5%

 
(1

)  
C

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 p
ay

ro
ll 

on
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 a
re

 b
as

ed
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
6 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

 
Sc

he
du

le
 o

f R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 T

ot
al

 fo
r a

ll 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$8
11

,4
36

,6
11

  
$1

,4
00

,4
54

,9
23

  
2.

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
30

3,
34

7,
05

1 
 

16
2,

33
3,

06
8 

 
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(3

25
,1

17
,1

03
) 

(3
14

,8
36

,5
61

) 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
59

3,
70

4,
30

4 
 

(3
97

,1
92

,8
42

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

0 
 

0 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

0 
 

0 
 

7.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
44

,6
73

,2
81

  
(3

9,
32

1,
97

7)
 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
0 

 
0 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$1

,4
28

,0
44

,1
44

  
$8

11
,4

36
,6

11
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
7 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
 - 

B
IM

ID
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
57

,4
43

  
$1

37
,0

84
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

13
0,

72
3 

 
60

,5
83

  
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(1

00
,1

93
) 

(6
3,

70
0)

 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
15

9,
35

7 
 

(7
7,

25
1)

 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

(1
9,

66
0)

 
16

,6
55

  
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
72

,2
43

  
94

,2
87

  
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

11
,9

35
  

(7
,6

91
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(2

8,
73

0)
 

 (2
,5

24
) 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$3
83

,1
18

  
$1

57
,4

43
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
8 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 2
 - 

U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$2
9,

39
5 

 
$7

5,
80

0 
 

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

47
,9

57
  

38
,2

75
  

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(5
2,

20
6)

 
(4

2,
42

2)
 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

21
,7

74
  

(1
4,

42
3)

 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

(1
14

) 
(3

,0
87

) 
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
31

,7
92

  
7,

06
6 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
63

0 
 

(1
,4

35
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(2

7,
88

0)
 

(3
0,

37
9)

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$5

2,
34

8 
 

$2
9,

39
5 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

10
9 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 3
 - 

C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$3
,0

17
,9

08
  

$5
,1

40
,4

18
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

88
3,

80
0 

 
54

2,
37

5 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(1
,2

48
,9

84
) 

(1
,2

42
,7

66
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
97

0,
50

4 
 

(1
,4

80
,7

63
) 

5.
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
10

6,
35

2 
 

9,
11

9 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(2
08

,5
16

) 
10

2,
61

0 
 

7.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
14

7,
58

1 
 

(1
47

,4
21

) 
8.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

68
,7

44
  

94
,3

36
  

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$4
,7

37
,3

89
  

$3
,0

17
,9

08
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
0 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 4
 - 

C
C

C
FP

D
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
10

,2
15

,3
47

  
$1

67
,1

24
,0

48
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

26
,9

62
,3

09
  

21
,3

55
,9

36
  

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(2
7,

76
4,

18
1)

 
(2

5,
16

9,
85

8)
 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

66
,8

91
,5

13
  

(5
4,

07
8,

11
2)

 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

6,
14

4,
76

5 
 

2,
87

6,
22

1 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(2
6,

55
8,

74
2)

 
2,

06
4,

17
0 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

5,
00

9,
82

6 
 

(5
,3

83
,8

78
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(8

3,
52

0)
 

1,
42

6,
82

0 
 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$1
60

,8
17

,3
17

  
$1

10
,2

15
,3

47
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
1 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 5
 - 

C
C

C
SD

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$6
3,

80
6,

00
0 

 
$8

7,
84

7,
11

6 
 

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

14
,8

99
,5

58
  

12
,9

67
,7

67
  

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(1
7,

52
0,

61
5)

 
(1

7,
88

0,
15

2)
 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

37
,6

14
,1

49
  

(3
1,

30
6,

96
5)

 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

4,
05

2,
42

4 
 

2,
76

4,
08

9 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(1
5,

33
9,

77
4)

 
9,

88
2,

62
1 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

2,
81

7,
10

4 
 

(3
,1

16
,8

41
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
10

1,
25

8 
 

2,
64

8,
36

5 
 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$9
0,

43
0,

10
4 

 
$6

3,
80

6,
00

0 
 

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
2 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 6
 - 

Fi
rs

t 5
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
,2

89
,0

83
  

$2
,4

23
,8

99
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

86
0,

63
6 

 
40

7,
34

3 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(6
88

,5
31

) 
(6

55
,3

73
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
19

8,
66

0 
 

(6
32

,5
00

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

(1
13

,6
81

) 
(2

4,
26

9)
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

38
3,

94
4 

 
(1

5,
18

7)
 

7.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
89

,7
73

  
(6

2,
97

0)
 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(1

38
,1

25
) 

(1
51

,8
60

) 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$2

,8
81

,7
59

  
$1

,2
89

,0
83

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
3 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 7
 - 

C
ou

nt
y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$5
03

,5
58

,9
08

  
$9

39
,3

05
,4

64
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

22
8,

69
2,

55
9 

 
10

6,
16

5,
25

8 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(2
34

,2
19

,7
10

) 
(2

27
,5

15
,9

99
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

40
5,

97
7,

67
0 

 
(2

47
,0

75
,5

23
) 

5.
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
(1

6,
65

7,
53

4)
 

(8
,5

48
,2

93
) 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

61
,4

65
,5

94
  

(2
3,

03
1,

98
8)

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

30
,4

05
,6

15
  

(2
4,

59
8,

20
4)

 
8.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(3
,1

91
,3

55
) 

(1
1,

14
1,

80
7)

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$9

76
,0

31
,7

47
  

$5
03

,5
58

,9
08

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
4 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 8
 - 

C
C

C
ER

A 
(th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$4
,2

87
,0

94
  

$6
,4

75
,7

13
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

1,
76

6,
76

7 
 

1,
05

2,
47

5 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(1
,9

24
,3

61
) 

(1
,7

53
,5

91
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

3,
04

2,
87

5 
 

(2
,1

03
,5

00
) 

5.
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
42

,4
68

  
11

4,
96

1 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

61
,2

72
  

70
2,

84
2 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

22
7,

89
6 

 
(2

09
,4

19
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(1

88
,4

79
) 

7,
61

3 
 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$7
,3

15
,5

32
  

$4
,2

87
,0

94
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
5 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 9
 - 

EC
C

FP
D

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
6,

35
0,

26
2 

 
$2

3,
36

2,
44

7 
 

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

32
7,

65
4 

 
1,

31
0,

06
9 

 
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(3

,8
31

,3
75

) 
(3

,6
82

,4
58

) 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
7,

58
9,

08
8 

 
(8

,0
22

,3
97

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
95

1,
94

3 
 

60
3,

18
6 

 
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(6

,4
65

,4
60

) 
1,

24
5,

90
6 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

56
8,

38
3 

 
(7

98
,6

89
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
1,

75
4,

82
1 

 
2,

33
2,

19
8 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$1

8,
24

5,
31

6 
 

$1
6,

35
0,

26
2 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
6 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
0 

- H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$6
,2

67
,6

04
  

$1
0,

16
2,

60
4 

 
2.

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
2,

28
2,

94
9 

 
1,

32
4,

45
7 

 
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(2

,2
54

,4
54

) 
(2

,1
50

,3
37

) 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
4,

49
0,

77
3 

 
(3

,0
75

,2
54

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

43
,2

87
  

82
,2

56
  

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(3
05

,4
47

) 
22

8,
01

2 
 

7.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
33

6,
33

5 
 

(3
06

,1
64

) 
8.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(6
4,

55
0)

 
2,

03
0 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$1

0,
79

6,
49

7 
 

$6
,2

67
,6

04
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
7 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
1 

- I
H

SS
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$7
94

,4
73

  
$1

,2
94

,5
22

  
2.

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
31

1,
90

1 
 

19
8,

66
4 

 
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(3

33
,2

34
) 

(3
17

,0
51

) 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
54

4,
84

9 
 

(3
89

,8
15

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

16
,3

61
  

9,
64

6 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(2
5,

69
1)

 
59

,3
35

  
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

40
,8

06
  

(3
8,

80
9)

 
8.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(3
9,

56
6)

 
(2

2,
01

9)
 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$1
,3

09
,8

99
  

$7
94

,4
73

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
8 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
2 

- L
AF

C
O

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
81

,2
68

  
$3

59
,3

29
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

62
,2

24
  

32
,5

04
  

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(9
0,

11
0)

 
(1

18
,8

72
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

12
6,

52
9 

 
(8

8,
94

1)
 

5.
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
2,

74
5 

 
(5

,6
94

) 
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
7,

32
1 

 
6,

08
1 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

9,
47

6 
 

(8
,8

54
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
4,

74
2 

 
5,

71
5 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$3

04
,1

95
  

$1
81

,2
68

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

11
9 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
3 

- M
O

FD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$2
3,

49
8,

57
5 

 
$3

2,
56

9,
91

3 
 

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

4,
44

8,
62

4 
 

3,
27

8,
18

3 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(5
,3

46
,5

81
) 

(5
,2

31
,5

51
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

14
,3

16
,4

06
  

(1
1,

52
9,

77
9)

 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
28

5,
70

6 
 

99
1,

12
7 

 
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(6

,0
56

,0
75

) 
2,

43
2,

72
0 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
07

2,
22

5 
 

(1
,1

47
,8

75
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
1,

19
9,

92
5 

 
2,

13
5,

83
7 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$3

4,
41

8,
80

5 
 

$2
3,

49
8,

57
5 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
0 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
4 

- R
od

eo
 S

D
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
11

,9
65

  
$2

03
,7

50
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

16
4,

23
2 

 
12

9,
36

8 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(1
88

,8
39

) 
(1

63
,3

45
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

77
,8

42
  

(5
4,

93
7)

 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
83

5 
 

(1
,2

71
) 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

10
8,

25
1 

 
86

,5
13

  
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

5,
83

0 
 

(5
,4

70
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(9

3,
97

3)
 

(8
2,

64
3)

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$1

87
,1

43
  

$1
11

,9
65

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
1 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
5 

- R
H

FD
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
1,

69
3,

17
4 

 
$1

4,
69

3,
10

6 
 

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

59
7,

03
3 

 
1,

63
7,

24
0 

 
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(3

,0
10

,2
25

) 
(2

,1
11

,7
07

) 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
4,

87
3,

64
5 

 
(5

,7
37

,3
57

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

1,
64

2,
81

6 
 

68
0,

06
1 

 
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(4

,9
58

,8
07

) 
1,

86
3,

73
3 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

36
5,

01
1 

 
(5

71
,1

96
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
51

4,
33

3 
 

1,
23

9,
29

4 
 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$1
1,

71
6,

98
0 

 
$1

1,
69

3,
17

4 
 

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
2 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
6 

- S
R

VF
PD

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$4
7,

11
0,

09
6 

 
$7

2,
49

1,
19

5 
 

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

12
,5

21
,5

05
  

8,
47

8,
88

7 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(1
8,

48
1,

70
2)

 
(1

8,
46

6,
15

2)
 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

28
,9

40
,7

58
  

(2
3,

11
4,

97
5)

 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

2,
47

1,
00

4 
 

1,
09

9,
04

5 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

(5
,8

41
,3

30
) 

6,
18

3,
32

9 
 

7.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
2,

16
7,

51
2 

 
(2

,3
01

,2
67

) 
8.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

69
0,

11
7 

 
2,

74
0,

03
4 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$6

9,
57

7,
96

0 
 

$4
7,

11
0,

09
6 

 
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
3 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
7 

- C
ou

rt
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
2,

60
6,

15
9 

 
$2

7,
15

8,
82

9 
 

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

7,
34

5,
96

1 
 

3,
20

6,
80

4 
 

3.
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

(1
)  

(6
,9

72
,1

22
) 

(7
,1

81
,5

47
) 

4.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

11
,4

05
,5

82
  

(6
,1

85
,3

21
) 

5.
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
(9

70
,7

17
) 

(6
63

,7
52

) 
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
3,

62
9,

42
5 

 
(1

,9
12

,0
50

) 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

85
4,

21
9 

 
(6

15
,7

94
) 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
(4

77
,7

62
) 

(1
,2

01
,0

10
) 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$2
7,

42
0,

74
5 

 
$1

2,
60

6,
15

9 
 

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

 

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
4 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
8 

- D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$1
,4

35
,2

57
  

$1
,9

18
,2

15
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

24
5,

96
6 

 
77

,8
70

  
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(2

21
,4

89
) 

(2
21

,4
89

) 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
89

5,
64

1 
 

(3
39

,3
39

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

0 
 

0 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

0 
 

0 
 

7.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
77

,8
21

  
0 

 
8.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

0 
 

0 
 

9.
 

En
di

ng
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$2
,4

33
,1

96
  

$1
,4

35
,2

57
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
5 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 1
9 

- D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$8
27

,5
20

  
$8

23
,1

44
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

12
2,

21
5 

 
77

,0
96

  
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(9

4,
66

8)
 

(9
4,

66
8)

 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
18

8,
59

7 
 

21
,9

48
  

5.
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
0 

 
0 

 
6.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
0 

 
0 

 
7.

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

(8
,9

38
) 

0 
 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
0 

 
0 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$1

,0
34

,7
26

  
$8

27
,5

20
  

(1
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 “
m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
” 

an
d 

ex
cl

ud
es

 “
em

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
”.

  
(2

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
6 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
1 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

of
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y:

 2
0 

- P
itt

sb
ur

g 
(T

er
m

) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
9 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
at

e 
fo

r 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 u
nd

er
 G

A
S 

68
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 2
01

8 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 
 

1.
 

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 N

et
 P

en
sio

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

$4
,1

99
,0

80
  

$6
,8

88
,3

27
  

2.
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

67
2,

47
8 

 
(8

,0
86

) 
3.

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(1

)  
(7

73
,5

23
) 

(7
73

,5
23

) 
4.

 
N

ew
 N

et
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
3,

37
8,

09
2 

 
(1

,9
07

,6
38

) 
5.

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
rio

r D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

s/
O

ut
flo

w
s 

0 
 

0 
 

6.
 

N
ew

 N
et

 D
ef

er
re

d 
Fl

ow
s D

ue
 to

 C
ha

ng
e 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

(2
)  

0 
 

0 
 

7.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s/

O
ut

flo
w

s 
47

3,
24

1 
 

0 
 

8.
 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 P

rio
r D

ef
er

re
d 

Fl
ow

s D
ue

 to
 C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
(2

)  
0 

 
0 

 
9.

 
En

di
ng

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
$7

,9
49

,3
68

  
$4

,1
99

,0
80

  
(1

)   
In

cl
ud

es
 “

m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

” 
an

d 
ex

cl
ud

es
 “

em
pl

oy
er

 su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

”.
  

(2
)   

In
cl

ud
es

 d
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
. 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
7 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
2 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
  

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 
G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
  

Ju
ne

 3
0 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ff
ec

ts
 

of
 D

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
E

xp
ec

te
d 

an
d 

A
ct

ua
l E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
on

 T
ot

al
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
an

d 
A

ct
ua

l 
E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
Pe

ri
od

 (Y
ea

rs
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 

20
18

 
20

19
 

20
20

 
20

21
 

20
22

 
20

23
 

20
15

 
$(

18
3,

60
4,

76
1)

(1
) 

4.
60

 
$(

39
,9

14
,0

78
) 

$(
23

,9
48

,4
49

) 
$0

  
$0

  
$0

  
$0

  

20
16

 
(6

2,
11

7,
93

5)
(1

)  
4.

52
 

(1
3,

74
2,

90
6)

 
(1

3,
74

2,
90

6)
 

(7
,1

46
,3

11
) 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

20
17

 
(1

9,
95

7,
98

2)
(1

)  
4.

57
 

(4
,3

67
,1

73
) 

(4
,3

67
,1

73
) 

(4
,3

67
,1

73
) 

(2
,4

89
,2

90
) 

0 
 

0 
 

20
18

 
(2

9,
19

2,
22

1)
 

4.
58

 
(6

,3
73

,8
48

) 
(6

,3
73

,8
48

) 
(6

,3
73

,8
48

) 
(6

,3
73

,8
48

) 
(3

,6
96

,8
29

) 
0 

 

20
19

 
52

,8
52

,8
41

  
 4

.5
7 

 
   

   
   

   
  N

/A
 

11
,5

65
,1

73
  

11
,5

65
,1

73
  

11
,5

65
,1

73
  

11
,5

65
,1

73
  

6,
59

2,
14

9 
 

N
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 (d
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 p
en

sio
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

$(
64

,3
98

,0
05

) 
$(

36
,8

67
,2

03
) 

$(
6,

32
2,

15
9)

 
$2

,7
02

,0
35

  
$7

,8
68

,3
44

  
$6

,5
92

,1
49

  
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 
G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
  

Ju
ne

 3
0 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

f A
ss

um
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
es

 

E
ff

ec
ts

 o
f 

A
ss

um
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
es

 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
Pe

ri
od

 (Y
ea

rs
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 

20
18

 
20

19
 

20
20

 
20

21
 

20
22

 
20

23
 

20
15

 
$(

75
,6

08
)(1

)  
4.

60
 

$(
16

,4
37

) 
$(

9,
86

0)
 

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

20
16

 
72

,1
86

,3
07

 (1
)  

4.
52

 
15

,9
70

,4
22

  
15

,9
70

,4
22

  
8,

30
4,

61
9 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 

20
19

 
(9

2,
41

8,
91

5)
 

4.
57

 
   

   
   

   
  N

/A
 

(2
0,

22
2,

95
7)

 
(2

0,
22

2,
95

7)
 

(2
0,

22
2,

95
7)

 
(2

0,
22

2,
95

7)
 

(1
1,

52
7,

08
7)

 

N
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 (d
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 p
en

sio
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

$1
5,

95
3,

98
5 

 
$(

4,
26

2,
39

5)
 

$(
11

,9
18

,3
38

) 
$(

20
,2

22
,9

57
) 

$(
20

,2
22

,9
57

) 
$(

11
,5

27
,0

87
) 

A
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 in
 E

xh
ib

it 
9,

 fo
r t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 se

rv
ic

e 
liv

es
 o

f a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s t
ha

t a
re

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
 p

en
sio

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
CC

CE
RA

 (a
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

in
ac

tiv
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s)
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

d 
en

di
ng

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8)
 is

 4
.5

7 
ye

ar
s. 

(1
)  

Th
e a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

am
ou

nt
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e J
un

e 3
0,

 2
01

8 
re

po
rti

ng
 d

at
e h

av
e b

ee
n 

om
itt

ed
 fr

om
 th

is 
ex

hi
bi

t. 
Th

os
e a

m
ou

nt
s c

an
 b

e f
ou

nd
 in

 p
rio

r y
ea

rs
’ G

AS
 6

8 
re

po
rts

. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
8 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
2 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Sc
he

du
le

 o
f R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 
G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
  

Ju
ne

 3
0 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
  

D
iff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
an

d 
A

ct
ua

l E
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Pl
an

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

an
d 

A
ct

ua
l 

E
ar

ni
ng

s 
R

ec
og

ni
tio

n 
Pe

ri
od

 (Y
ea

rs
) 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 

20
18

 
20

19
 

20
20

 
20

21
 

20
22

 
20

23
 

20
15

 
$(

13
,3

58
,4

54
)(1

) 
5.

00
 

$(
2,

67
1,

69
1)

 
$(

2,
67

1,
69

0)
 

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

$0
  

20
16

 
42

6,
96

1,
54

2 
(1

)  
5.

00
 

85
,3

92
,3

08
  

85
,3

92
,3

08
  

85
,3

92
,3

10
  

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

20
17

 
(6

,6
42

,3
38

)(1
)  

5.
00

 
(1

,3
28

,4
68

) 
(1

,3
28

,4
68

) 
(1

,3
28

,4
68

) 
(1

,3
28

,4
66

) 
0 

 
0 

 

20
18

 
(4

67
,9

68
,0

86
) 

5.
00

 
(9

3,
59

3,
61

7)
 

(9
3,

59
3,

61
7)

 
(9

3,
59

3,
61

7)
 

(9
3,

59
3,

61
7)

 
(9

3,
59

3,
61

8)
 

0 
 

20
19

 
78

0,
76

5,
74

3 
 

5.
00

 
   

   
   

   
  N

/A
 

15
6,

15
3,

14
9 

 
15

6,
15

3,
14

9 
 

15
6,

15
3,

14
9 

 
15

6,
15

3,
14

9 
 

15
6,

15
3,

14
7 

 

N
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 (d
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 p
en

sio
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

$(
12

,2
01

,4
68

) 
$1

43
,9

51
,6

82
  

$1
46

,6
23

,3
74

  
$6

1,
23

1,
06

6 
 

$6
2,

55
9,

53
1 

 
$1

56
,1

53
,1

47
  

Th
e 

di
ff

er
en

ce
s b

et
w

ee
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

 e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 fi
ve

-y
ea

r p
er

io
d 

pe
r 

Pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
33

b.
 o

f G
A

S 
68

. 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 
G

A
S 

68
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
  

Ju
ne

 3
0 

T
ot

al
 In

cr
ea

se
 (D

ec
re

as
e)

 in
 P

en
si

on
 E

xp
en

se
 

T
ot

al
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 

20
18

 
20

19
 

20
20

 
20

21
 

20
22

 
20

23
 

20
15

 
$(

19
7,

03
8,

82
3)

(1
) 

 
$(

42
,6

02
,2

06
) 

$(
26

,6
29

,9
99

) 
$0

  
$0

  
$0

  
$0

  

20
16

 
43

7,
02

9,
91

4 
(1

)  
 

87
,6

19
,8

24
  

87
,6

19
,8

24
  

86
,5

50
,6

18
  

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

20
17

 
(2

6,
60

0,
32

0)
(1

)  
 

(5
,6

95
,6

41
) 

(5
,6

95
,6

41
) 

(5
,6

95
,6

41
) 

(3
,8

17
,7

56
) 

0 
 

0 
 

20
18

 
(4

97
,1

60
,3

07
) 

 
(9

9,
96

7,
46

5)
 

(9
9,

96
7,

46
5)

 
(9

9,
96

7,
46

5)
 

(9
9,

96
7,

46
5)

 
(9

7,
29

0,
44

7)
 

0 
 

20
19

 
74

1,
19

9,
66

9 
 

 
   

   
   

   
  N

/A
 

14
7,

49
5,

36
5 

 
14

7,
49

5,
36

5 
 

14
7,

49
5,

36
5 

 
14

7,
49

5,
36

5 
 

15
1,

21
8,

20
9 

 

N
et

 in
cr

ea
se

 (d
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 p
en

sio
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

$(
60

,6
45

,4
88

) 
$1

02
,8

22
,0

84
  

$1
28

,3
82

,8
77

  
$4

3,
71

0,
14

4 
 

$5
0,

20
4,

91
8 

 
$1

51
,2

18
,2

09
  

(1
)  

Th
e a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

am
ou

nt
s p

rio
r t

o 
th

e J
un

e 3
0,

 2
01

8 
re

po
rti

ng
 d

at
e h

av
e b

ee
n 

om
itt

ed
 fr

om
 th

is 
ex

hi
bi

t. 
Th

os
e a

m
ou

nt
s c

an
 b

e f
ou

nd
 in

 p
rio

r y
ea

rs
’ G

AS
 6

8 
re

po
rts

. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

12
9 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
3 

 
Al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 C

ha
ng

es
 in

 T
ot

al
 N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
s s

ho
w

n 
in

 E
xh

ib
it 

12
, t

he
re

 a
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 e

ac
h 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 p

ro
po

rti
on

at
e 

sh
ar

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l N
PL

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

en
di

ng
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 T
he

 n
et

 e
ffe

ct
 o

f t
he

 c
ha

ng
e i

n 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
’s

 p
ro

po
rti

on
at

e 
sh

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

N
PL

 a
nd

 c
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

de
fe

rre
d 

ou
tfl

ow
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 d

ef
er

re
d 

in
flo

w
s o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
 is

 a
lso

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 o

ve
r t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

of
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 se
rv

ic
e 

liv
es

 o
f a

ll 
em

pl
oy

ee
s s

ho
w

n 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

. T
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
 sh

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

d 
en

di
ng

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
is 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 o

ve
r t

he
 sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d.
 T

he
se

 a
m

ou
nt

s a
re

 sh
ow

n 
on

 th
e f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
pa

ge
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

rre
sp

on
di

ng
 

am
ou

nt
s f

or
 p

rio
r m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

ds
 sh

ow
n 

on
 th

e 
pa

ge
s a

fte
r t

ha
t. 

W
hi

le
 th

es
e 

am
ou

nt
s a

re
 d

iff
er

en
t f

or
 e

ac
h 

em
pl

oy
er

, t
he

y 
su

m
 to

 z
er

o 
ov

er
 th

e 
en

tir
e 

CC
CE

RA
. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

13
0 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

an
d 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8 

 
T

ot
al

 C
ha

ng
e 

to
  

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

Pe
ri

od
  

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 
 

 
be

 R
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

20
19

 
20

20
 

20
21

 
20

22
 

20
23

 
T

he
re

af
te

r 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

$9
2,

47
9 

 
 4

.5
7 

 
$2

0,
23

6 
 

$2
0,

23
6 

 
$2

0,
23

6 
 

$2
0,

23
6 

 
$1

1,
53

5 
 

 $
0 

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

 4
0,

69
7 

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 8

,9
05

  
 8

,9
05

  
 8

,9
05

  
 8

,9
05

  
 5

,0
77

  
0 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

 (2
66

,9
24

) 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (5

8,
40

8)
 

 (5
8,

40
8)

 
 (5

8,
40

8)
 

 (5
8,

40
8)

 
 (3

3,
29

2)
 

0 
4 

- C
C

C
FP

D
 

 (3
3,

99
8,

16
6)

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (7

,4
39

,4
24

) 
 (7

,4
39

,4
24

) 
 (7

,4
39

,4
24

) 
 (7

,4
39

,4
24

) 
 (4

,2
40

,4
70

) 
0 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

 (1
9,

63
6,

62
9)

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (4

,2
96

,8
55

) 
 (4

,2
96

,8
55

) 
 (4

,2
96

,8
55

) 
 (4

,2
96

,8
55

) 
 (2

,4
49

,2
09

) 
0 

6 
- F

irs
t 5

 
 4

91
,4

91
  

 4
.5

7 
 

 1
07

,5
47

  
 1

07
,5

47
  

 1
07

,5
47

  
 1

07
,5

47
  

 6
1,

30
3 

 
0 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
 7

8,
68

2,
84

8 
 

 4
.5

7 
 

 1
7,

21
7,

25
4 

 
 1

7,
21

7,
25

4 
 

 1
7,

21
7,

25
4 

 
 1

7,
21

7,
25

4 
 

 9
,8

13
,8

32
  

0 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
 7

8,
43

5 
 

 4
.5

7 
 

 1
7,

16
3 

 
 1

7,
16

3 
 

 1
7,

16
3 

 
 1

7,
16

3 
 

 9
,7

83
  

0 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

 (8
,2

76
,5

13
) 

 4
.5

7 
 

 (1
,8

11
,0

53
) 

 (1
,8

11
,0

53
) 

 (1
,8

11
,0

53
) 

 (1
,8

11
,0

53
) 

 (1
,0

32
,3

01
) 

0 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 (3
91

,0
07

) 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (8

5,
56

0)
 

 (8
5,

56
0)

 
 (8

5,
56

0)
 

 (8
5,

56
0)

 
 (4

8,
76

7)
 

0 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

 (3
2,

88
7)

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (7

,1
96

) 
 (7

,1
96

) 
 (7

,1
96

) 
 (7

,1
96

) 
 (4

,1
03

) 
0 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

 9
,3

72
  

 4
.5

7 
 

 2
,0

51
  

 2
,0

51
  

 2
,0

51
  

 2
,0

51
  

 1
,1

68
  

0 
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

 (7
,7

52
,4

55
) 

 4
.5

7 
 

 (1
,6

96
,3

80
) 

 (1
,6

96
,3

80
) 

 (1
,6

96
,3

80
) 

 (1
,6

96
,3

80
) 

 (9
66

,9
35

) 
0 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

 1
38

,5
74

  
 4

.5
7 

 
 3

0,
32

3 
 

 3
0,

32
3 

 
 3

0,
32

3 
 

 3
0,

32
3 

 
 1

7,
28

2 
 

0 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
 (6

,3
47

,8
29

) 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (1

,3
89

,0
22

) 
 (1

,3
89

,0
22

) 
 (1

,3
89

,0
22

) 
 (1

,3
89

,0
22

) 
 (7

91
,7

41
) 

0 
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
 (7

,4
77

,5
57

) 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (1

,6
36

,2
27

) 
 (1

,6
36

,2
27

) 
 (1

,6
36

,2
27

) 
 (1

,6
36

,2
27

) 
 (9

32
,6

49
) 

0 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

 4
,6

46
,0

71
  

 4
.5

7 
 

 1
,0

16
,6

46
  

 1
,0

16
,6

46
  

 1
,0

16
,6

46
  

 1
,0

16
,6

46
  

 5
79

,4
87

  
0 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

 4
.5

7 
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

 0
  

0 
19

 - 
D

W
D

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
 4

.5
7 

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 0

  
0 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
 

 4
.5

7 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

 0
  

0 
 

To
ta

l f
or

 a
ll 

Em
pl

oy
er

s 
$0

 
 

$0
 

$0
 

$0
 

$0
 

 $
0 

 
$0

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

13
1 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

Th
e 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s f
or

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s: 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

an
d 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
7 

 
T

ot
al

 C
ha

ng
e 

to
  

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

Pe
ri

od
  

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 
 

 
be

 R
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

20
18

 
20

19
 

20
20

 
20

21
 

20
22

 
T

he
re

af
te

r 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

 $
12

0,
62

4 
 

 4
.5

8 
 $

26
,3

37
  

 $
26

,3
37

  
 $

26
,3

37
  

 $
26

,3
37

  
 $

15
,2

76
  

 $
0 

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

 9
,0

40
  

 4
.5

8 
 1

,9
74

  
 1

,9
74

  
 1

,9
74

  
 1

,9
74

  
 1

,1
44

  
0 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

 1
31

,2
72

  
 4

.5
8 

 2
8,

66
2 

 
 2

8,
66

2 
 

 2
8,

66
2 

 
 2

8,
66

2 
 

 1
6,

62
4 

 
0 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
 2

,6
40

,7
54

  
 4

.5
8 

 5
76

,5
84

  
 5

76
,5

84
  

 5
76

,5
84

  
 5

76
,5

84
  

 3
34

,4
18

  
0 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

 1
2,

64
3,

13
0 

 
 4

.5
8 

 2
,7

60
,5

09
  

 2
,7

60
,5

09
  

 2
,7

60
,5

09
  

 2
,7

60
,5

09
  

 1
,6

01
,0

94
  

0 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

 (1
9,

42
9)

 
 4

.5
8 

 (4
,2

42
) 

 (4
,2

42
) 

 (4
,2

42
) 

 (4
,2

42
) 

 (2
,4

61
) 

0 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

 (2
9,

46
5,

50
7)

 
 4

.5
8 

 (6
,4

33
,5

19
) 

 (6
,4

33
,5

19
) 

 (6
,4

33
,5

19
) 

 (6
,4

33
,5

19
) 

 (3
,7

31
,4

31
) 

0 
8 

- C
C

C
ER

A
 (t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

) 
 8

99
,1

67
  

 4
.5

8 
 1

96
,3

25
  

 1
96

,3
25

  
 1

96
,3

25
  

 1
96

,3
25

  
 1

13
,8

67
  

0 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

 1
,5

93
,9

25
  

 4
.5

8 
 3

48
,0

19
  

 3
48

,0
19

  
 3

48
,0

19
  

 3
48

,0
19

  
 2

01
,8

49
  

0 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 2
91

,7
03

  
 4

.5
8 

 6
3,

69
1 

 
 6

3,
69

1 
 

 6
3,

69
1 

 
 6

3,
69

1 
 

 3
6,

93
9 

 
0 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
 7

5,
90

9 
 

 4
.5

8 
 1

6,
57

4 
 

 1
6,

57
4 

 
 1

6,
57

4 
 

 1
6,

57
4 

 
 9

,6
13

  
0 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

 7
,7

79
  

 4
.5

8 
 1

,6
98

  
 1

,6
98

  
 1

,6
98

  
 1

,6
98

  
 9

87
  

0 
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

 3
,1

12
,2

51
  

 4
.5

8 
 6

79
,5

31
  

 6
79

,5
31

  
 6

79
,5

31
  

 6
79

,5
31

  
 3

94
,1

27
  

0 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
 1

10
,6

79
  

 4
.5

8 
 2

4,
16

6 
 

 2
4,

16
6 

 
 2

4,
16

6 
 

 2
4,

16
6 

 
 1

4,
01

5 
 

0 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
 2

,3
84

,3
29

  
 4

.5
8 

 5
20

,5
96

  
 5

20
,5

96
  

 5
20

,5
96

  
 5

20
,5

96
  

 3
01

,9
45

  
0 

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

 7
,9

10
,5

16
  

 4
.5

8 
 1

,7
27

,1
87

  
 1

,7
27

,1
87

  
 1

,7
27

,1
87

  
 1

,7
27

,1
87

  
 1

,0
01

,7
68

  
0 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
 (2

,4
46

,1
42

) 
 4

.5
8 

 (5
34

,0
92

) 
 (5

34
,0

92
) 

 (5
34

,0
92

) 
 (5

34
,0

92
) 

 (3
09

,7
74

) 
0 

18
 - 

D
D

SD
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

 4
.5

8 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 0

  
0 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

 4
.5

8 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 0

  
0 

20
 - 

Pi
tts

bu
rg

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
 

 4
.5

8 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
 0

  
0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 a

ll 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

$0
 

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
 $

0 
 

$0
 

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

13
2 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

Th
e 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s f
or

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s: 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

an
d 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
6 

 
T

ot
al

 C
ha

ng
e 

to
  

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

Pe
ri

od
  

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 
 

 
be

 R
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

20
17

 
20

18
 

20
19

 
20

20
 

20
21

 
T

he
re

af
te

r 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

 $
35

,0
83

  
 4

.5
7 

 
 $

7,
67

7 
 

 $
7,

67
7 

 
 $

7,
67

7 
 

 $
7,

67
7 

 
 $

4,
37

5 
 

 $
0 

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

 (1
0,

33
2)

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (2

,2
61

) 
 (2

,2
61

) 
 (2

,2
61

) 
 (2

,2
61

) 
 (1

,2
88

) 
0 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

 5
9,

37
4 

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 1

2,
99

2 
 

 1
2,

99
2 

 
 1

2,
99

2 
 

 1
2,

99
2 

 
 7

,4
06

  
0 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
 (6

,6
91

,4
60

) 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (1

,4
64

,2
14

) 
 (1

,4
64

,2
14

) 
 (1

,4
64

,2
14

) 
 (1

,4
64

,2
14

) 
 (8

34
,6

04
) 

0 
5 

- C
C

C
SD

 
 1

,4
98

,1
04

  
 4

.5
7 

 
 3

27
,8

13
  

 3
27

,8
13

  
 3

27
,8

13
  

 3
27

,8
13

  
 1

86
,8

52
  

0 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

 1
94

,0
82

  
 4

.5
7 

 
 4

2,
46

9 
 

 4
2,

46
9 

 
 4

2,
46

9 
 

 4
2,

46
9 

 
 2

4,
20

6 
 

0 
7 

- C
ou

nt
y 

 1
0,

14
1,

90
6 

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 2

,2
19

,2
35

  
 2

,2
19

,2
35

  
 2

,2
19

,2
35

  
 2

,2
19

,2
35

  
 1

,2
64

,9
66

  
0 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

 4
3,

98
8 

 
 4

.5
7 

 
 9

,6
25

  
 9

,6
25

  
 9

,6
25

  
 9

,6
25

  
 5

,4
88

  
0 

9 
- E

C
C

FP
D

 
 5

42
,0

14
  

 4
.5

7 
 

 1
18

,6
03

  
 1

18
,6

03
  

 1
18

,6
03

  
 1

18
,6

03
  

 6
7,

60
2 

 
0 

10
 - 

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
 1

18
,0

77
  

 4
.5

7 
 

 2
5,

83
7 

 
 2

5,
83

7 
 

 2
5,

83
7 

 
 2

5,
83

7 
 

 1
4,

72
9 

 
0 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
 1

11
,5

79
  

 4
.5

7 
 

 2
4,

41
6 

 
 2

4,
41

6 
 

 2
4,

41
6 

 
 2

4,
41

6 
 

 1
3,

91
5 

 
0 

12
 - 

LA
FC

O
 

 1
,7

84
  

 4
.5

7 
 

 3
90

  
 3

90
  

 3
90

  
 3

90
  

 2
24

  
0 

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
 (5

,6
69

,7
33

) 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (1

,2
40

,6
42

) 
 (1

,2
40

,6
42

) 
 (1

,2
40

,6
42

) 
 (1

,2
40

,6
42

) 
 (7

07
,1

65
) 

0 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
 (2

4,
90

1)
 

 4
.5

7 
 

 (5
,4

49
) 

 (5
,4

49
) 

 (5
,4

49
) 

 (5
,4

49
) 

 (3
,1

05
) 

0 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
 (6

30
,7

05
) 

 4
.5

7 
 

 (1
38

,0
10

) 
 (1

38
,0

10
) 

 (1
38

,0
10

) 
 (1

38
,0

10
) 

 (7
8,

66
5)

 
0 

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

 (3
91

,9
10

) 
 4

.5
7 

 
 (8

5,
75

7)
 

 (8
5,

75
7)

 
 (8

5,
75

7)
 

 (8
5,

75
7)

 
 (4

8,
88

2)
 

0 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

 6
73

,0
50

  
 4

.5
7 

 
 1

47
,2

76
  

 1
47

,2
76

  
 1

47
,2

76
  

 1
47

,2
76

  
 8

3,
94

6 
 

0 
18

 - 
D

D
SD

 (T
er

m
) 

0 
 4

.5
7 

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
 0

  
0 

19
 - 

D
W

D
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

 4
.5

7 
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

 0
  

0 
20

 - 
Pi

tts
bu

rg
 (T

er
m

) 
0 

 
 4

.5
7 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
 0

  
0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 a

ll 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

$0
 

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
 $

0 
 

$0
 

   



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

13
3 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

Th
e 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s f
or

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s: 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

an
d 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
5 

 
T

ot
al

 C
ha

ng
e 

to
  

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

Pe
ri

od
  

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 
 

 
be

 R
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

20
16

 
20

17
 

20
18

 
20

19
 

20
20

 
T

he
re

af
te

r 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

 $
(2

4,
78

8)
 

4.
52

 
 $

(5
,4

84
) 

 $
(5

,4
84

) 
 $

(5
,4

84
) 

 $
(5

,4
84

) 
 $

(2
,8

52
) 

 $
0 

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

 9
6,

98
6 

 
4.

52
 

 2
1,

45
7 

 
 2

1,
45

7 
 

 2
1,

45
7 

 
 2

1,
45

7 
 

 1
1,

15
8 

 
0 

3 
- C

C
 M

os
qu

ito
 

 (5
19

,7
91

) 
4.

52
 

 (1
14

,9
98

) 
 (1

14
,9

98
) 

 (1
14

,9
98

) 
 (1

14
,9

98
) 

 (5
9,

79
9)

 
0 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
 1

0,
72

0,
47

2 
 

4.
52

 
 2

,3
71

,7
86

  
 2

,3
71

,7
86

  
 2

,3
71

,7
86

  
 2

,3
71

,7
86

  
 1

,2
33

,3
28

  
0 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

 (1
5,

86
3,

75
6)

 
4.

52
 

 (3
,5

09
,6

81
) 

 (3
,5

09
,6

81
) 

 (3
,5

09
,6

81
) 

 (3
,5

09
,6

81
) 

 (1
,8

25
,0

32
) 

0 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

 3
87

,1
79

  
4.

52
 

 8
5,

65
9 

 
 8

5,
65

9 
 

 8
5,

65
9 

 
 8

5,
65

9 
 

 4
4,

54
3 

 
0 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
 2

3,
18

8,
64

7 
 

4.
52

 
 5

,1
30

,2
30

  
 5

,1
30

,2
30

  
 5

,1
30

,2
30

  
 5

,1
30

,2
30

  
 2

,6
67

,7
27

  
0 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

 (8
0,

57
1)

 
4.

52
 

 (1
7,

82
5)

 
 (1

7,
82

5)
 

 (1
7,

82
5)

 
 (1

7,
82

5)
 

 (9
,2

71
) 

0 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

 (8
,4

85
,8

58
) 

4.
52

 
 (1

,8
77

,4
02

) 
 (1

,8
77

,4
02

) 
 (1

,8
77

,4
02

) 
 (1

,8
77

,4
02

) 
 (9

76
,2

50
) 

0 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 (9
3,

30
7)

 
4.

52
 

 (2
0,

64
3)

 
 (2

0,
64

3)
 

 (2
0,

64
3)

 
 (2

0,
64

3)
 

 (1
0,

73
5)

 
0 

11
 - 

IH
SS

 
 1

46
  

4.
52

 
 3

2 
 

 3
2 

 
 3

2 
 

 3
2 

 
 1

8 
 

0 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
 (3

5,
80

9)
 

4.
52

 
 (7

,9
22

) 
 (7

,9
22

) 
 (7

,9
22

) 
 (7

,9
22

) 
 (4

,1
21

) 
0 

 
13

 - 
M

O
FD

 
 (1

,1
49

,1
67

) 
4.

52
 

 (2
54

,2
40

) 
 (2

54
,2

40
) 

 (2
54

,2
40

) 
 (2

54
,2

40
) 

 (1
32

,2
07

) 
0 

14
 - 

R
od

eo
 S

D
 

 2
53

,1
52

  
4.

52
 

 5
6,

00
7 

 
 5

6,
00

7 
 

 5
6,

00
7 

 
 5

6,
00

7 
 

 2
9,

12
4 

 
0 

15
 - 

R
H

FD
 

 (2
,6

68
,4

92
) 

4.
52

 
 (5

90
,3

74
) 

 (5
90

,3
74

) 
 (5

90
,3

74
) 

 (5
90

,3
74

) 
 (3

06
,9

96
) 

0 
 

16
 - 

SR
V

FP
D

 
 (8

,3
50

,4
66

) 
4.

52
 

 (1
,8

47
,4

48
) 

 (1
,8

47
,4

48
) 

 (1
,8

47
,4

48
) 

 (1
,8

47
,4

48
) 

 (9
60

,6
74

) 
0 

17
 - 

C
ou

rt 
 2

,6
25

,4
23

  
4.

52
 

 5
80

,8
46

  
 5

80
,8

46
  

 5
80

,8
46

  
 5

80
,8

46
  

 3
02

,0
39

  
0 

 
To

ta
l f

or
 a

ll 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

$0
 

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
$0

 
   



SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

: 
G

AS
 6

8 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 

13
4 

EX
H

IB
IT

 1
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 T

ot
al

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
 

Th
e 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
am

ou
nt

s f
or

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s: 

In
cr

ea
se

 (D
ec

re
as

e)
 in

 P
en

si
on

 E
xp

en
se

 A
ri

si
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
E

ff
ec

ts
 o

f t
he

 
C

ha
ng

e 
in

 P
ro

po
rt

io
n 

an
d 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
4 

 
T

ot
al

 C
ha

ng
e 

to
  

R
ec

og
ni

tio
n 

Pe
ri

od
  

R
ep

or
tin

g 
D

at
e 

fo
r 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 u

nd
er

 G
A

S 
68

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 J
un

e 
30

: 
 

 
be

 R
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

(Y
ea

rs
) 

20
15

 
20

16
 

20
17

 
20

18
 

20
19

 
T

he
re

af
te

r 
1 

- B
IM

ID
 

 $
1,

52
4 

4.
60

 
 $

33
1 

 $
33

1 
 $

33
1 

 $
33

1 
 $

20
0 

 $
0 

 
2 

- U
ni

on
 C

em
et

er
y 

 5
1,

44
2 

 
4.

60
 

 1
1,

18
3 

 
 1

1,
18

3 
 

 1
1,

18
3 

 
 1

1,
18

3 
 

 6
,7

10
  

0 
3 

- C
C

 M
os

qu
ito

 
 3

5,
28

0 
 

4.
60

 
 7

,6
70

  
 7

,6
70

  
 7

,6
70

  
 7

,6
70

  
 4

,6
00

  
0 

4 
- C

C
C

FP
D

 
 (1

0,
73

8,
20

4)
 

4.
60

 
 (2

,3
34

,3
92

) 
 (2

,3
34

,3
92

) 
 (2

,3
34

,3
92

) 
 (2

,3
34

,3
92

) 
 (1

,4
00

,6
36

) 
0 

5 
- C

C
C

SD
 

 2
,4

54
,1

13
  

4.
60

 
 5

33
,5

03
  

 5
33

,5
03

  
 5

33
,5

03
  

 5
33

,5
03

  
 3

20
,1

01
  

0 
6 

- F
irs

t 5
 

 1
09

,1
67

  
4.

60
 

 2
3,

73
2 

 
 2

3,
73

2 
 

 2
3,

73
2 

 
 2

3,
73

2 
 

 1
4,

23
9 

 
0 

7 
- C

ou
nt

y 
 1

7,
44

4,
77

7 
 

4.
60

 
 3

,7
92

,3
42

  
 3

,7
92

,3
42

  
 3

,7
92

,3
42

  
 3

,7
92

,3
42

  
 2

,2
75

,4
09

  
0 

8 
- C

C
C

ER
A

 (t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
) 

 2
,7

02
  

4.
60

 
 5

87
  

 5
87

  
 5

87
  

 5
87

  
 3

54
  

0 
9 

- E
C

C
FP

D
 

 (2
,6

37
,6

37
) 

4.
60

 
 (5

73
,3

99
) 

 (5
73

,3
99

) 
 (5

73
,3

99
) 

 (5
73

,3
99

) 
 (3

44
,0

41
) 

0 
10

 - 
H

ou
sin

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

 (3
3,

23
1)

 
4.

60
 

 (7
,2

24
) 

 (7
,2

24
) 

 (7
,2

24
) 

 (7
,2

24
) 

 (4
,3

35
) 

0 
11

 - 
IH

SS
 

 (1
1,

17
2)

 
4.

60
 

 (2
,4

29
) 

 (2
,4

29
) 

 (2
,4

29
) 

 (2
,4

29
) 

 (1
,4

56
) 

0 
12

 - 
LA

FC
O

 
 8

,3
60

  
4.

60
 

 1
,8

17
  

 1
,8

17
  

 1
,8

17
  

 1
,8

17
  

 1
,0

92
  

0 
 

13
 - 

M
O

FD
 

 (2
,9

48
,3

94
) 

4.
60

 
 (6

40
,9

55
) 

 (6
40

,9
55

) 
 (6

40
,9

55
) 

 (6
40

,9
55

) 
 (3

84
,5

74
) 

0 
14

 - 
R

od
eo

 S
D

 
 1

47
,5

89
  

4.
60

 
 3

2,
08

5 
 

 3
2,

08
5 

 
 3

2,
08

5 
 

 3
2,

08
5 

 
 1

9,
24

9 
 

0 
15

 - 
R

H
FD

 
 (2

,3
50

,1
85

) 
4.

60
 

 (5
10

,9
10

) 
 (5

10
,9

10
) 

 (5
10

,9
10

) 
 (5

10
,9

10
) 

 (3
06

,5
45

) 
0 

 
16

 - 
SR

V
FP

D
 

 (3
,7

11
,4

15
) 

4.
60

 
 (8

06
,8

29
) 

 (8
06

,8
29

) 
 (8

06
,8

29
) 

 (8
06

,8
29

) 
 (4

84
,0

99
) 

0 
17

 - 
C

ou
rt 

2,
17

5,
28

4 
 

4.
60

 
47

2,
88

8 
 

47
2,

88
8 

 
47

2,
88

8 
 

47
2,

88
8 

 
28

3,
73

2 
 

0 
 

To
ta

l f
or

 a
ll 

Em
pl

oy
er

s 
$0

 
 

$0
 

$0
 

$0
 

$0
 

$0
 

$0
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

13
5 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 M
et

ho
ds

 
Fo

r D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
M

ea
su

re
m

en
t D

at
e 

an
d 

Em
pl

oy
er

 R
ep

or
tin

g 
as

 o
f J

un
e 

30
, 2

01
9 

R
at

io
na

le
 fo

r 
A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
al

ys
is

 u
se

d 
in

 se
le

ct
in

g 
ea

ch
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
th

at
 h

as
 a

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
th

is
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 sh

ow
n 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

A
ct

ua
ria

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y 
da

te
d 

A
pr

il 
23

, 2
01

9.
 U

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

no
te

d,
 a

ll 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

et
ho

ds
 sh

ow
n 

be
lo

w
 a

pp
ly

 to
 a

ll 
tie

rs
. 

Th
es

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

.  
E

co
no

m
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n:
 

7.
00

%
, n

et
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t e

xp
en

se
s 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

s:
 

1.
10

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r b
as

ed
 o

n 
no

rm
al

 c
os

t 
(b

ef
or

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
) f

or
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r. 
Th

is
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r l
ea

di
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
C

re
di

tin
g 

R
at

e:
 

7.
00

%
, c

om
po

un
de

d 
se

m
i-a

nn
ua

lly
 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ri
ce

 In
de

x:
 

In
cr

ea
se

s o
f 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r. 
 

 
B

en
ef

its
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

 (n
on

-d
is

ab
ili

ty
), 

Ti
er

 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 (n
on

-d
is

ab
ili

ty
) 

an
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 T
ie

r D
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
3.

00
%

 m
ax

im
um

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 to

 
C

PI
 p

er
 y

ea
r (

va
lu

ed
 a

s a
 2

.7
5%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
 

 
B

en
ef

its
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 3

 (d
is

ab
ili

ty
) a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 (d
is

ab
ili

ty
) a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
4.

00
%

 m
ax

im
um

 c
ha

ng
e 

pe
r y

ea
r (

va
lu

ed
 a

s a
 2

.7
5%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
 

B
en

ef
its

 fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 m

em
be

rs
 c

ov
er

ed
 u

nd
er

 c
er

ta
in

 m
em

or
an

da
 o

f 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

an
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

ie
r C

 a
nd

 T
ie

r E
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
2.

00
%

 m
ax

im
um

 c
ha

ng
e 

pe
r y

ea
r (

va
lu

ed
 a

s a
 2

.0
0%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
 

Fo
r m

em
be

rs
 th

at
 h

av
e 

C
O

LA
 b

an
ks

, t
he

y 
ar

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 fu

tu
re

 C
O

LA
s. 

 
Th

e 
ac

tu
al

 C
O

LA
 g

ra
nt

ed
 b

y 
C

C
C

ER
A

 o
n 

A
pr

il 
1,

 2
01

8 
ha

s b
ee

n 
re

fle
ct

ed
 fo

r 
no

na
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

Pa
yr

ol
l G

ro
w

th
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

of
 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r p
lu

s “
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

bo
ar

d”
 re

al
 sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s o
f 0

.5
0%

 p
er

 
ye

ar
. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

13
6 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 In

te
rn

al
 R

ev
en

ue
  

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
40

1(
a)

(1
7)

 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

L
im

it:
 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
f 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
75

22
.1

0 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

L
im

it:
 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
f 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

al
ar

y 
In

cr
ea

se
s:

 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 ra
te

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
cl

ud
es

: i
nf

la
tio

n 
at

 2
.7

5%
, p

lu
s “

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

bo
ar

d”
 re

al
 sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s o
f 0

.5
0%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
pl

us
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s: M
er

it 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

s 

Y
ea

rs
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
R

at
e 

(%
) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 1

 
12

.0
0 

13
.0

0 
1 

– 
2 

7.
00

 
8.

00
 

2 
– 

3 
5.

25
 

5.
75

 
3 

– 
4 

3.
75

 
4.

75
 

4 
– 

5 
2.

75
 

2.
75

 
5 

– 
6 

2.
25

 
2.

00
 

6 
– 

7 
1.

75
 

1.
75

 
7 

– 
8 

1.
50

 
1.

50
 

8 
– 

9 
1.

40
 

1.
40

 
9 

– 
10

 
1.

30
 

1.
30

 
10

 –
 1

1 
1.

20
 

1.
25

 
11

 –
 1

2 
1.

10
 

1.
20

 
12

 –
 1

3 
1.

00
 

1.
15

 
13

 –
 1

4 
0.

90
 

1.
10

 
14

 –
 1

5 
0.

80
 

1.
05

 
15

 –
 1

6 
0.

75
 

1.
00

 
16

 –
 1

7 
0.

70
 

1.
00

 
17

 –
 1

8 
0.

65
 

1.
00

 
18

 –
 1

9 
0.

60
 

1.
00

 
19

 –
 2

0 
0.

55
 

1.
00

 
20

 &
 O

ve
r 

0.
50

 
1.

00
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

13
7 

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 

Po
st

 –
 R

et
ir

em
en

t M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

: 

H
ea

lth
y 

G
en

er
al

 M
em

be
rs

: P
ub

-2
01

0 
G

en
er

al
 H

ea
lth

y 
R

et
ire

e 
A

m
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

A
bo

ve
-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

), 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
. 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 M
em

be
rs

: P
ub

-2
01

0 
Sa

fe
ty

 H
ea

lth
y 

R
et

ire
e 

A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
A

bo
ve

-M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 

an
d 

10
0%

 fo
r f

em
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
 

A
ll 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
ri

es
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

C
on

tin
ge

nt
 S

ur
vi

vo
r A

m
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

A
bo

ve
-M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
) m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 1

05
%

 fo
r m

al
es

 
an

d 
fe

m
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

sc
al

e 
M

P-
20

18
. 

D
is

ab
le

d 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

N
on

-S
af

et
y 

D
is

ab
le

d 
Re

tir
ee

 A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
) m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 1

05
%

 fo
r m

al
es

 
an

d 
10

0%
 fo

r f
em

al
es

, p
ro

je
ct

ed
 g

en
er

at
io

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
. 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 M
em

be
rs

: P
ub

-2
01

0 
Sa

fe
ty

 D
is

ab
le

d 
Re

tir
ee

 A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
) m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 1

05
%

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 1
00

%
 

fo
r f

em
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

sc
al

e 
M

P-
20

18
. 

Th
e 

Pu
b-

20
10

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

 a
nd

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
s s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

as
 o

f t
he

 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e.

 T
he

se
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ta
bl

es
 w

er
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 to
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
to

 re
fle

ct
 fu

tu
re

 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

e 
an

d 
th

os
e 

ye
ar

s. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

13
8 

Pr
e 

– 
R

et
ir

em
en

t M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

: 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 A

m
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

A
bo

ve
-M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
), 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 

th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
. 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 M
em

be
rs

: P
ub

-2
01

0 
Sa

fe
ty

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 A

m
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

A
bo

ve
-M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
), 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 

th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
. 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

)(1
) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
M

al
e 

Fe
m

al
e 

M
al

e 
Fe

m
al

e 
20

 
0.

04
 

0.
01

 
0.

04
 

0.
02

 
25

 
0.

02
 

0.
01

 
0.

03
 

0.
02

 
30

 
0.

03
 

0.
01

 
0.

04
 

0.
02

 
35

 
0.

04
 

0.
02

 
0.

04
 

0.
03

 
40

 
0.

06
 

0.
03

 
0.

05
 

0.
04

 
45

 
0.

09
 

0.
05

 
0.

07
 

0.
06

 
50

 
0.

13
 

0.
08

 
0.

10
 

0.
08

 
55

 
0.

19
 

0.
11

 
0.

15
 

0.
11

 
60

 
0.

28
 

0.
17

 
0.

23
 

0.
14

 
65

 
0.

41
 

0.
27

 
0.

35
 

0.
20

 
70

 
0.

61
 

0.
44

 
0.

66
 

0.
39

 
(1

) 
G

en
er

at
io

na
l p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
ba

se
 y

ea
r (

20
10

) a
re

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
s. 

A
ll 

pr
e-

re
tir

em
en

t d
ea

th
s a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

13
9 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

 fo
r 

M
em

be
r 

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

: 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

G
en

er
al

 H
ea

lth
y 

R
et

ire
e 

A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
A

bo
ve

-
M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
), 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
30

 y
ea

rs
 

w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
, w

ei
gh

te
d 

30
%

 m
al

e 
an

d 
70

%
 fe

m
al

e.
 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 M
em

be
rs

: P
ub

-2
01

0 
Sa

fe
ty

 H
ea

lth
y 

R
et

ire
e 

A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
A

bo
ve

-M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 

an
d 

10
0%

 fo
r f

em
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 3
0 

ye
ar

s w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
, w

ei
gh

te
d 

85
%

 m
al

e 
an

d 
15

%
 fe

m
al

e.
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 In

ci
de

nc
e:

 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 4

 
G

en
er

al
  

Ti
er

 3
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
20

 
0.

01
 

0.
01

 
0.

02
 

25
 

0.
02

 
0.

02
 

0.
16

 
30

 
0.

04
 

0.
03

 
0.

32
 

35
 

0.
08

 
0.

05
 

0.
46

 
40

 
0.

22
 

0.
08

 
0.

56
 

45
 

0.
36

 
0.

11
 

0.
90

 
50

 
0.

52
 

0.
13

 
2.

54
 

55
 

0.
60

 
0.

16
 

3.
80

 
60

 
0.

60
 

0.
22

 
4.

30
 

65
 

0.
60

 
0.

25
 

4.
50

 
70

 
0.

60
 

0.
25

 
4.

50
 

60
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 4
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s. 

Th
e 

ot
he

r 4
0%

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 
to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s. 

30
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s. 

Th
e 

ot
he

r 7
0%

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 
to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s. 

10
0%

 o
f S

af
et

y 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
0 

T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
R

at
es

: 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 1

 
14

.0
0 

12
.5

0 
1 

– 
2 

9.
50

 
10

.0
0 

2 
– 

3 
9.

25
 

8.
25

 
3 

– 
4 

6.
50

 
5.

75
 

4 
– 

5 
5.

25
 

5.
00

 
5 

– 
6 

5.
00

 
4.

25
 

6 
– 

7 
4.

50
 

3.
50

 
7 

– 
8 

4.
25

 
3.

25
 

8 
– 

9 
3.

75
 

3.
00

 
9 

– 
10

 
3.

50
 

2.
50

 
10

 –
 1

1 
3.

25
 

2.
25

 
11

 –
 1

2 
3.

00
 

2.
10

 
12

 –
 1

3 
2.

75
 

2.
00

 
13

 –
 1

4 
2.

50
 

1.
90

 
14

 –
 1

5 
2.

50
 

1.
80

 
15

 –
 1

6 
2.

25
 

1.
70

 
16

 –
 1

7 
2.

25
 

1.
60

 
17

 –
 1

8 
2.

00
 

1.
50

 
18

 –
 1

9 
2.

00
 

1.
25

 
19

 –
 2

0 
1.

75
 

1.
00

 
20

 &
 O

ve
r 

1.
25

 
0.

75
 

Th
e 

m
em

be
r i

s a
ss

um
ed

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

r o
f t

he
 m

em
be

r’
s c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
or

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

re
tir

em
en

t b
en

ef
it.

  
N

o 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
fte

r a
 m

em
be

r i
s f

irs
t a

ss
um

ed
 to

 re
tir

e.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
1 

R
et

ir
em

en
t R

at
es

 (G
en

er
al

):
  

A
ge

 

R
at

es
 (%

) 

T
ie

r 
1 

E
nh

an
ce

d 
T

ie
r 

3 
E

nh
an

ce
d 

T
ie

r 
1 

 
N

on
-

E
nh

an
ce

d 

PE
PR

A
  

T
ie

r 
4 

an
d 

T
ie

r 
5 

L
es

s t
ha

n 
30

 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ve

r 
30

 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

L
es

s t
ha

n 
30

 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ve

r 
30

 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

50
 

5.
00

 
9.

00
 

4.
00

 
7.

20
 

3.
00

 
0.

00
 

51
 

4.
00

 
7.

20
 

3.
00

 
5.

40
 

3.
00

 
0.

00
 

52
 

4.
00

 
7.

20
 

3.
00

 
5.

40
 

3.
00

 
2.

00
 

53
 

4.
00

 
7.

20
 

4.
00

 
7.

20
 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

54
 

12
.0

0 
21

.6
0 

6.
00

 
10

.8
0 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

55
 

15
.0

0 
27

.0
0 

8.
00

 
14

.4
0 

10
.0

0 
5.

00
 

56
 

17
.0

0 
30

.6
0 

8.
00

 
9.

60
 

10
.0

0 
5.

00
 

57
 

17
.0

0 
30

.6
0 

9.
00

 
10

.8
0 

10
.0

0 
6.

00
 

58
 

17
.0

0 
30

.6
0 

10
.0

0 
12

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
6.

00
 

59
 

22
.0

0 
26

.4
0 

12
.0

0 
14

.4
0 

10
.0

0 
8.

00
 

60
 

25
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

13
.0

0 
15

.6
0 

25
.0

0 
8.

00
 

61
 

30
.0

0 
36

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
21

.6
0 

15
.0

0 
12

.0
0 

62
 

30
.0

0 
36

.0
0 

22
.0

0 
26

.4
0 

40
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

63
 

25
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

22
.0

0 
26

.4
0 

35
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

64
 

25
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

65
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

32
.0

0 
32

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

66
 

40
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

32
.0

0 
32

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

67
 

40
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

68
 

40
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

69
 

40
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

70
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

71
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

72
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

73
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

74
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

75
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
2 

R
et

ir
em

en
t R

at
es

 (S
af

et
y)

: A
ge

 

R
at

es
 (%

) 

T
ie

r 
A

 E
nh

an
ce

d 

T
ie

r 
C

 
E

nh
an

ce
d 

T
ie

r 
A

 N
on

-
E

nh
an

ce
d 

an
d 

PE
PR

A
 

T
ie

r 
D

 a
nd

 
T

ie
r 

E 

L
es

s t
ha

n 
30

 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

O
ve

r 
30

 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

45
 

7.
00

 
8.

75
 

2.
00

 
0.

00
 

46
 

3.
00

 
3.

75
 

1.
00

 
0.

00
 

47
 

10
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

4.
00

 
0.

00
 

48
 

10
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

4.
00

 
0.

00
 

49
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

12
.0

0 
0.

00
 

50
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

18
.0

0 
5.

00
 

51
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

18
.0

0 
4.

00
 

52
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
4.

00
 

53
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
5.

00
 

54
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
6.

00
 

55
 

20
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

56
 

20
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

57
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

58
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

59
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

60
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

61
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

62
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

30
.0

0 
45

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

40
.0

0 
60

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
3 

R
et

ir
em

en
t A

ge
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

it 
fo

r 
D

ef
er

re
d 

V
es

te
d 

M
em

be
rs

: 

G
en

er
al

: 
59

 

Sa
fe

ty
 w

ith
 R

ec
ip

ro
ci

ty
: 

53
 

Sa
fe

ty
 w

ith
ou

t R
ec

ip
ro

ci
ty

: 
50

 

 
40

%
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 7
0%

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
Sa

fe
ty

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

fo
r a

 re
ci

pr
oc

al
 e

m
pl

oy
er

. F
or

 re
ci

pr
oc

al
s, 

3.
75

%
 a

nd
 

4.
25

%
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y,

 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

Fu
tu

re
 B

en
ef

it 
A

cc
ru

al
s:

 
1.

0 
ye

ar
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
or

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s. 
C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
ar

tia
l 

se
rv

ic
e 

ac
cr

ua
l f

or
 p

ar
t-t

im
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s. 

U
nk

no
w

n 
D

at
a 

fo
r 

M
em

be
rs

: 
Sa

m
e 

as
 th

os
e 

ex
hi

bi
te

d 
by

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 si
m

ila
r k

no
w

n 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s. 

If 
no

t 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
, m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
al

e.
 

D
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f A
ct

iv
e 

M
em

be
rs

: 
A

ll 
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f C

C
CE

R
A

 a
s o

f t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
. 

Pe
rc

en
t M

ar
ri

ed
: 

Fo
r a

ll 
ac

tiv
e 

an
d 

in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, 6
5%

 o
f m

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 5
0%

 o
f f

em
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ar

rie
d 

at
 p

re
-re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

 o
r r

et
ire

m
en

t. 

A
ge

 a
nd

 G
en

de
r 

of
 S

po
us

e:
 

Fo
r a

ll 
ac

tiv
e 

an
d 

in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, m
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

fe
m

al
e 

sp
ou

se
 w

ho
 is

 3
 y

ea
rs

 y
ou

ng
er

 th
an

 th
e 

m
em

be
r a

nd
 fe

m
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 
ha

ve
 a

 m
al

e 
sp

ou
se

 w
ho

 is
 2

 y
ea

rs
 o

ld
er

 th
an

 th
e 

m
em

be
r. 

O
ff

se
ts

 b
y 

O
th

er
 P

la
ns

 o
f t

he
  

 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 fo
r 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 B

en
ef

its
: 

Th
e 

Pl
an

 re
qu

ire
s m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 re

tir
e 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 fr
om

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 a

nd
 

G
en

er
al

 P
EP

R
A

 T
ie

r 5
 to

 o
ff

se
t t

he
 P

la
n’

s d
is

ab
ili

ty
 b

en
ef

its
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 P
la

ns
 o

f t
he

 
em

pl
oy

er
. W

e 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 a

ss
um

ed
 a

ny
 o

ff
se

ts
 in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
4 

L
ea

ve
 C

as
ho

ut
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r l
ea

ve
 c

as
ho

ut
s a

s a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 fi
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 p
ay

 a
re

 
us

ed
: 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

rs
 1

, 2
 a

nd
 3

 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

rs
 A

 a
nd

 C
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

: 
1.

00
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 2
: 

0.
50

%
 fo

r T
ie

r 2
 

0.
75

%
 fo

r T
ie

r 3
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 3

: 
4.

75
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 4
: 

0.
50

%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 5

: 
1.

25
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 6
: 

0.
25

%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 7

: 
0.

75
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 8
: 

0.
50

%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 9

: 
0.

00
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 1
0:

 
0.

50
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 1
1:

 
2.

50
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 1
2:

 
2.

00
%

 
Te

rm
in

at
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

er
s 

0.
00

%
 

G
en

er
al

 P
EP

RA
 T

ie
rs

 4
 a

nd
 5

 
Sa

fe
ty

 P
EP

RA
 T

ie
rs

 D
 a

nd
 E

 
N

on
e 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
5 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Fr
om

 A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 
Si

ck
 L

ea
ve

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n:

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 f
or

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
ve

rte
d 

fr
om

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 s
ic

k 
le

av
e 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 se

rv
ic

e 
at

 re
tir

em
en

t a
re

 u
se

d:
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

et
ire

m
en

ts
: 

G
en

er
al

: 
1.

10
%

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

80
%

 

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
ts

: 

G
en

er
al

: 
0.

06
%

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

20
%

 

 
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 S
ec

tio
n 

31
64

1.
01

, t
he

 c
os

t o
f t

hi
s 

be
ne

fit
 fo

r t
he

 n
on

-P
EP

R
A

 ti
er

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
on

ly
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s a

nd
 w

ill
 n

ot
 a

ff
ec

t m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s. 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 M

et
ho

ds
 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 C

os
t M

et
ho

d:
 

En
try

 A
ge

 A
ct

ua
ria

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d.

 E
nt

ry
 A

ge
 is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

as
 a

ge
 o

n 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 m
in

us
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
. N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

ar
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 o

n 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

sts
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

as
 a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n.

 

E
xp

ec
te

d 
R

em
ai

ni
ng

  
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

iv
es

: 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 se
rv

ic
e 

liv
es

 o
f a

ll 
em

pl
oy

ee
s i

s d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
C

al
cu

la
tin

g 
ea

ch
 a

ct
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 se
rv

ic
e 

lif
e 

as
 th

e 
pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f $
1 

pe
r y

ea
r o

f f
ut

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

at
 z

er
o 

pe
rc

en
t i

nt
er

es
t. 

• 
Se

tti
ng

 th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 se

rv
ic

e 
lif

e 
to

 z
er

o 
fo

r e
ac

h 
no

na
ct

iv
e 

or
 re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
r. 

• 
D

iv
id

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

 a
m

ou
nt

s b
y 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f a
ct

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

, 
no

na
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

re
tir

ed
 m

em
be

rs
. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
6 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
ha

ng
ed

 si
nc

e 
th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

 R
at

io
na

le
 fo

r 
th

es
e 

ch
an

ge
s a

re
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

A
ct

ua
ria

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
  

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

s:
 

1.
13

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r b
as

ed
 o

n 
no

rm
al

 c
os

t 
(b

ef
or

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
) f

or
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r. 
Th

is
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r l
ea

di
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 

In
di

vi
du

al
 S

al
ar

y 
In

cr
ea

se
s:

 
 

A
nn

ua
l R

at
e 

of
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

 
In

fla
tio

n:
  2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
pl

us
 “

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
bo

ar
d”

 sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s o

f 
0.

50
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
pl

us
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l i
nc

re
as

es
: 

Y
ea

rs
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
G

en
er

al
 

Sa
fe

ty
 

Le
ss

 th
an

 1
 

10
.0

0%
 

10
.5

0%
 

1 
7.

25
 

7.
25

 
2 

5.
25

 
5.

75
 

3 
3.

75
 

4.
50

 
4 

2.
75

 
3.

00
 

5 
2.

25
 

1.
75

 
6 

1.
75

 
1.

25
 

7 
1.

50
 

1.
20

 
8 

1.
25

 
1.

15
 

9 
1.

20
 

1.
10

 
10

 
1.

15
 

1.
05

 
11

 
1.

10
 

1.
00

 
12

 
1.

00
 

0.
95

 
13

 
0.

90
 

0.
85

 
14

 
0.

80
 

0.
80

 
15

 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
16

 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
17

 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
18

 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
19

 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
20

 o
r m

or
e 

0.
75

 
0.

75
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
7 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

Po
st

 –
 R

et
ir

em
en

t M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

: 

H
ea

lth
y:

 
Fo

r G
en

er
al

 M
em

be
rs

: H
ea

dc
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

R
P-

20
14

 H
ea

lth
y 

A
nn

ui
ta

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 M

P-
20

15
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
sc

al
e.

 

 
Fo

r S
af

et
y 

M
em

be
rs

: H
ea

dc
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

R
P-

20
14

 H
ea

lth
y 

A
nn

ui
ta

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t b
ac

k 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s, 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 M
P-

20
15

 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

sc
al

e.
 

D
is

ab
le

d:
 

Fo
r G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
A

nn
ui

ta
nt

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

se
t f

or
w

ar
d 

ei
gh

t y
ea

rs
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 M

P-
20

15
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
sc

al
e.

 

 
Fo

r S
af

et
y 

M
em

be
rs

: H
ea

dc
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

R
P-

20
14

 H
ea

lth
y 

A
nn

ui
ta

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t f
or

w
ar

d 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s, 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 M
P-

20
15

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n 

sc
al

e.
 

Be
ne

fic
ia

ri
es

: 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
as

 a
 G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 

op
po

si
te

 se
x 

w
ho

 h
as

 ta
ke

n 
a 

se
rv

ic
e 

(n
on

-d
is

ab
ili

ty
) r

et
ire

m
en

t. 

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

Ra
te

s:
 

Fo
r G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
A

nn
ui

ta
nt

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e,

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 2
03

4 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 M

P-
20

15
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
sc

al
e,

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
30

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

70
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 

Fo
r S

af
et

y 
M

em
be

rs
:  

H
ea

dc
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

R
P-

20
14

 H
ea

lth
y 

A
nn

ui
ta

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t b
ac

k 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s, 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 2

03
4 

w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 M
P-

20
15

 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

sc
al

e,
 w

ei
gh

te
d 

85
%

 m
al

e 
an

d 
15

%
 fe

m
al

e.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
8 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

Pr
e 

– 
R

et
ir

em
en

t M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

: 
H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

tim
es

 7
5%

, p
ro

je
ct

ed
 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 M
P-

20
15

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n 

sc
al

e.
 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
M

or
ta

lit
y(1

) 

Ag
e 

 
M

al
e 

Fe
m

al
e 

25
 

 
0.

05
 

0.
02

 
30

 
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

35
 

 
0.

05
 

0.
03

 
40

 
 

0.
06

 
0.

04
 

45
 

 
0.

09
 

0.
06

 
50

 
 

0.
16

 
0.

10
 

55
 

 
0.

26
 

0.
16

 
60

 
 

0.
42

 
0.

23
 

65
 

 
0.

73
 

0.
33

 
(1

) 
A

ll 
pr

e-
re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
no

n-
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d.

 N
ot

e 
th

at
 g

en
er

at
io

na
l 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
 b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
ba

se
 y

ea
r (

20
14

) a
re

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
s.  



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

14
9 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 In

ci
de

nc
e:

 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 

Ag
e 

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 4

(1
)  

G
en

er
al

  
Ti

er
 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
(2

)  
Sa

fe
ty

(3
)  

20
 

 
0.

01
 

0.
01

 
0.

02
 

25
 

 
0.

02
 

0.
02

 
0.

22
 

30
 

 
0.

04
 

0.
03

 
0.

42
 

35
 

 
0.

08
 

0.
05

 
0.

56
 

40
 

 
0.

22
 

0.
08

 
0.

66
 

45
 

 
0.

36
 

0.
13

 
1.

00
 

50
 

 
0.

52
 

0.
16

 
2.

88
 

55
 

 
0.

60
 

0.
20

 
4.

60
 

60
 

 
0.

60
 

0.
28

 
5.

00
 

65
 

 
0.

60
 

0.
32

 
5.

00
 

70
 

 
0.

60
 

0.
32

 
5.

00
 

 (1
)  

65
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 4
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
du

ty
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s. 
Th

e 
ot

he
r 3

5%
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

or
di

na
ry

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s. 

(2
)  

30
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
du

ty
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s. 
Th

e 
ot

he
r 7

0%
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

or
di

na
ry

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s. 

(3
)  

10
0%

 o
f S

af
et

y 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
du

ty
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
0 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
R

at
es

: 
R

at
e 

(%
)(1

)  

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 1

 
 

13
.5

0 
13

.0
0 

1 
 

9.
25

 
8.

00
 

2 
 

9.
00

 
7.

00
 

3 
 

6.
00

 
5.

50
 

4 
 

4.
50

 
3.

75
 

5 
 

4.
25

 
3.

25
 

6 
 

3.
75

 
3.

00
 

7 
 

3.
50

 
2.

75
 

8 
 

3.
25

 
2.

50
 

9 
 

3.
00

 
2.

25
 

10
 

 
2.

75
 

2.
00

 
11

 
 

2.
50

 
1.

90
 

12
 

 
2.

40
 

1.
80

 
13

 
 

2.
30

 
1.

70
 

14
 

 
2.

20
 

1.
60

 
15

 
 

2.
10

 
1.

50
 

16
 

 
2.

00
 

1.
40

 
17

 
 

2.
00

 
1.

30
 

18
 

 
2.

00
 

1.
20

 
19

 
 

1.
75

 
1.

10
 

20
 o

r m
or

e 
 

1.
50

 
1.

00
 

(1
)  

Th
e 

m
em

be
r i

s a
ss

um
ed

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

r o
f t

he
 m

em
be

r’
s c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
or

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

re
tir

em
en

t b
en

ef
it.

 N
o 

w
ith

dr
aw

al
 is

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
fte

r a
 m

em
be

r i
s f

irs
t a

ss
um

ed
 to

 re
tir

e.
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
1 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

R
et

ir
em

en
t R

at
es

 (G
en

er
al

):
  

R
at

e 
(%

) 

A
ge

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 

1 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 

3 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 

1 
(N

on
-e

nh
an

ce
d)

  
PE

PR
A

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
rs

 4
 a

nd
 5

  
50

 
5.

00
 

4.
00

 
3.

00
 

0.
00

 
51

 
4.

00
 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

0.
00

 
52

 
5.

00
 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

2.
00

 
53

 
5.

00
 

5.
00

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
54

 
14

.0
0 

6.
00

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
55

 
20

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

5.
00

 
56

 
20

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

5.
00

 
57

 
20

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

6.
00

 
58

 
20

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

8.
00

 
59

 
25

.0
0 

13
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

9.
00

 
60

 
28

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
61

 
35

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

14
.0

0 
62

 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
63

 
30

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
64

 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
65

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
66

 
40

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
67

 
40

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
68

 
40

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
69

 
40

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
70

 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
71

 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
72

 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
73

 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
74

 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
75

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
2 

 C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

R
et

ir
em

en
t R

at
es

 (S
af

et
y)

: 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

A
ge

 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r 
A

 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

  
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r 
C

 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

  
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r 
A

  
(N

on
-e

nh
an

ce
d)

  

PE
PR

A
 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

ie
rs

  
D

 a
nd

 E
 

45
 

4.
00

 
2.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

46
 

3.
00

 
1.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

47
 

10
.0

0 
4.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

48
 

10
.0

0 
4.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

49
 

25
.0

0 
12

.0
0 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

50
 

30
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

51
 

30
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

4.
00

 
4.

00
 

52
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

4.
00

 
4.

00
 

53
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

54
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

8.
00

 
6.

00
 

55
 

28
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

56
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

57
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

58
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

59
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

60
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

61
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

62
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

10
0.

00
 

30
.0

0 
65

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
30

.0
0 

66
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
3 

 C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

R
et

ir
em

en
t A

ge
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

it 
fo

r 
D

ef
er

re
d 

V
es

te
d 

M
em

be
rs

: 
Fo

r d
ef

er
re

d 
ve

st
ed

 b
en

ef
its

, w
e 

m
ak

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
tir

em
en

t a
ss

um
pt

io
n:

 

G
en

er
al

: 
A

ge
 5

9 

Sa
fe

ty
: 

A
ge

 5
4 

 
W

e 
as

su
m

e 
th

at
 4

0%
 a

nd
 6

5%
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

de
fe

rr
ed

 v
es

te
d 

m
em

be
rs

, 
re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y,
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
w

or
k 

fo
r 

a 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. 

Fo
r 

re
ci

pr
oc

al
s, 

w
e 

as
su

m
e 

4.
75

%
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s p
er

 a
nn

um
. 

Pe
rc

en
t M

ar
ri

ed
: 

75
%

 o
f m

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 5
0%

 o
f f

em
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ar

rie
d 

at
 p

re
-

re
tir

em
en

t d
ea

th
 o

r r
et

ire
m

en
t. 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ex
pl

ic
it 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n’

s b
en

ef
its

. 

L
ea

ve
 C

as
ho

ut
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r l
ea

ve
 c

as
ho

ut
s a

s a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 fi
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 p
ay

 a
re

 
us

ed
: 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

rs
 1

, 2
 a

nd
 3

 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

rs
 A

 a
nd

 C
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

: 
1.

25
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 2
: 

0.
50

%
 fo

r T
ie

r 2
 

1.
00

%
 fo

r T
ie

r 3
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 3

: 
5.

50
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 4
: 

0.
50

%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 5

: 
1.

00
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 6
: 

0.
75

%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 7

: 
1.

00
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 8
: 

0.
75

%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 9

: 
0.

00
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 1
0:

 
1.

00
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 1
1:

 
2.

50
%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 1
2:

 
2.

50
%

 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
4 

 C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (c

on
tin

ue
d)

:  

Se
rv

ic
e 

Fr
om

 A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 
Si

ck
 L

ea
ve

 C
on

ve
rs

io
n:

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
on

ve
rte

d 
fr

om
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 s

ic
k 

le
av

e 
as

 a
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
t r

et
ire

m
en

t a
re

 u
se

d:
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
R

et
ire

m
en

ts
: 

G
en

er
al

: 
1.

20
%

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

90
%

 

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
ts

: 

G
en

er
al

: 
0.

08
%

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

30
%

 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
5 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 A

 
Pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

of
 P

la
n’

s 
Fi

du
ci

ar
y 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 fo
r U

se
 in

 C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 D

is
co

un
t R

at
e 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
($

 in
 m

ill
io

ns
) 

 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
B

eg
in

ni
ng

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
En

di
ng

Ye
ar

Pl
an

's
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

To
ta

l 
B

en
ef

it 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
In

ve
st

m
en

t
Pl

an
's

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
B

eg
in

ni
ng

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
Pa

ym
en

ts
Ex

pe
ns

es
Ea

rn
in

gs
N

et
 P

os
iti

on
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1

(a
)

(b
)

(c
)

(d
)

(e
)

(f)
 =

 (a
) +

 (b
) -

 (c
) -

 (d
) +

 (e
)

20
18

$8
,3

91
$4

29
$4

65
$9

-$
19

5
$8

,1
50

20
19

8,
15

0
37

9
49

6
8

56
6

8,
59

1
20

20
8,

59
1

38
8

52
3

8
59

6
9,

04
5

20
21

9,
04

5
39

3
54

9
8

62
8

9,
50

9
20

22
9,

50
9

39
7

57
7

7
65

9
9,

98
2

20
23

9,
98

2
32

4
60

5
7

68
9

10
,3

82
20

24
10

,3
82

31
9

63
3

7
71

6
10

,7
76

20
25

10
,7

76
31

4
66

1
6

74
2

11
,1

65
20

26
11

,1
65

31
1

68
9

6
76

8
11

,5
49

20
27

11
,5

49
28

9
71

6
6

79
4

11
,9

10

20
58

9,
62

1
2

98
5

0
*

64
0

9,
27

8
20

59
9,

27
8

1
96

4
0

*
61

6
8,

93
1

20
60

8,
93

1
1

94
2

0
*

59
3

8,
58

3
20

61
8,

58
3

1
91

8
0

*
56

9
8,

23
5

20
62

8,
23

5
0

*
89

2
0

*
54

6
7,

88
9

20
93

4,
87

9
0

43
0

34
0

5,
17

5
20

94
5,

17
5

0
34

0
36

1
5,

50
2

20
95

5,
50

2
0

27
0

38
4

5,
85

9
20

96
5,

85
9

0
21

0
40

9
6,

24
8

20
97

6,
24

8
0

16
0

43
7

6,
66

9

21
27

47
,1

78
0

0
*

0
3,

30
2

50
,4

81
21

28
50

,4
81

21
28

D
is

co
un

te
d 

Va
lu

e:
   

  3
2

**

* **
Le

ss
 th

an
 $

1 
m

illi
on

, w
he

n 
ro

un
de

d.
$5

0,
48

1 
m

illi
on

 w
he

n 
di

sc
ou

nt
ed

 w
ith

 in
te

re
st

 a
t t

he
 ra

te
 o

f 7
.0

0%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 h
as

 a
 v

al
ue

 o
f $

32
 m

illi
on

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
6 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 A

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
of

 P
la

n’
s 

Fi
du

ci
ar

y 
N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 fo

r U
se

 in
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n 
of

 D
is

co
un

t R
at

e 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

($
 in

 m
ill

io
ns

) 

 

N
ot

es
:

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

Am
ou

nt
s 

sh
ow

n 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

8 
ro

w
 a

re
 a

ct
ua

l a
m

ou
nt

s,
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

un
au

di
te

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 C

C
C

ER
A.

Am
ou

nt
s 

m
ay

 n
ot

 to
ta

l e
xa

ct
ly

 d
ue

 to
 ro

un
di

ng
.

As
 il

lu
st

ra
te

d 
in

 th
is

 A
pp

en
di

x,
 th

e 
Pl

an
's

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 w

as
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

ak
e 

al
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 fu
tu

re
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r c
ur

re
nt

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
. I

n 
ot

he
r w

or
ds

, t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
'c

ro
ss

-o
ve

r d
at

e'
 w

he
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
be

ne
fit

s 
ar

e 
no

t c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
as

se
ts

. T
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 P
la

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 o

f 7
.0

0%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 w
w

as
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 a
ll 

pe
rio

ds
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

To
ta

l P
en

si
on

 
Li

ab
ilit

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

sh
ow

n 
ea

rli
er

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt,

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

pa
ra

gr
ap

h 
44

 o
f G

AS
B 

St
at

em
en

t N
o.

 6
7.

Ye
ar

s 
20

28
-2

05
7,

 2
06

3-
20

92
, a

nd
 2

09
8-

21
26

 h
av

e 
be

en
 o

m
itt

ed
 fr

om
 th

is
 ta

bl
e.

C
ol

um
n 

(a
): 

Ex
ce

pt
 fo

r t
he

 'd
is

co
un

te
d 

va
lu

e'
 s

ho
w

n 
fo

r 2
12

8,
 n

on
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
Pl

an
's

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

sh
ow

n 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ad
ju

st
ed

 fo
r t

he
 ti

m
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 m
on

ey
.

C
ol

um
n 

(b
): 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

ta
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
m

em
be

r a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 n

or
m

al
 c

os
t r

at
es

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 c

lo
se

d 
gr

ou
p 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
pa

yr
ol

l (
ba

se
d 

on
 c

ov
er

ed
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7)
; p

lu
s 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 to
 th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y;
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 o
cc

ur
 h

al
fw

ay
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ye
ar

, o
n 

av
er

ag
e.

C
ol

um
n 

(c
): 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
be

ne
fit

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 p

ar
ag

ra
ph

 3
9 

of
 G

AS
B 

St
at

em
en

t N
o.

 6
7,

 a
nd

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
cl

os
ed

 
gr

ou
p 

of
 a

ct
iv

e,
 in

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

, r
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

, a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7.

 T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f l

iv
in

g 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

do
pt

ed
 fo

r u
se

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n 
re

po
rt 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
be

ne
fit

s 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

Po
st

 R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 
Be

ne
fit

 R
es

er
ve

.
C

ol
um

n 
(d

): 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

1.
10

%
 o

f c
lo

se
d 

gr
ou

p 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

pa
yr

ol
l a

nd
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 o
cc

ur
 h

al
fw

ay
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ye

ar
, o

n 
av

er
ag

e.

C
ol

um
n 

(e
): 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 o

f 7
.0

0%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

.



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
7 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

 
G

lo
ss

ar
y 

of
 T

er
m

s 
 D

ef
in

iti
on

s o
f c

er
ta

in
 te

rm
s a

s t
he

y 
ar

e 
us

ed
 in

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 6

8;
 th

e 
te

rm
s m

ay
 h

av
e 

di
ff

er
en

t m
ea

ni
ng

s i
n 

ot
he

r c
on

te
xt

s. 
 A

ct
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

In
di

vi
du

al
s e

m
pl

oy
ed

 a
t t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 re
po

rti
ng

 o
r m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

d,
 a

s a
pp

lic
ab

le
. 

 A
ct

ua
l c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 
C

as
h 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 a

s a
dd

iti
on

s t
o 

a 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
. 

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 d
is

co
un

te
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 e
ff

ec
ts

 o
f t

he
 ti

m
e 

va
lu

e 
(p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

) o
f m

on
ey

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ob

ab
ili

tie
s o

f p
ay

m
en

t. 
 A

ct
ua

ri
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
Th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 a
s o

f a
 p

oi
nt

 in
 ti

m
e 

(th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
), 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
co

st
, T

ot
al

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y,
 a

nd
 

re
la

te
d 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r p
en

si
on

s p
er

fo
rm

ed
 in

 c
on

fo
rm

ity
 w

ith
 A

ct
ua

ria
l 

St
an

da
rd

s o
f P

ra
ct

ic
e 

un
le

ss
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
G

A
SB

. 
 A

ct
ua

ri
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
 

Th
e 

da
te

 a
s o

f w
hi

ch
 a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

. 
 A

ct
ua

ri
al

ly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

A
 ta

rg
et

 o
r r

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 fo
r t

he
 re

po
rti

ng
 p

er
io

d,
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 c
on

fo
rm

ity
 

w
ith

 A
ct

ua
ria

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f P
ra

ct
ic

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
m

os
t r

ec
en

t m
ea

su
re

m
en

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 

re
po

rti
ng

 p
er

io
d 

w
as

 a
do

pt
ed

. 
 A

d 
ho

c 
co

st
-o

f-
liv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 (a
d 

ho
c 

C
O

L
A

s)
 

C
os

t-o
f-

liv
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 th

at
 re

qu
ire

 a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 g

ra
nt

 b
y 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r m

ak
in

g 
su

ch
 d

ec
is

io
ns

. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
8 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 T
er

m
s 

 A
ut

om
at

ic
 c

os
t-

of
-li

vi
ng

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 (a
ut

om
at

ic
 C

O
L

A
s)

 
C

os
t-o

f-
liv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 th
at

 o
cc

ur
 w

ith
ou

t a
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
or

 a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 g

ra
nt

 b
y 

a 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
au

th
or

ity
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
th

os
e 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
s a

re
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

to
 a

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

fa
ct

or
 (s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
ea

rn
in

gs
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

) o
r t

o 
an

ot
he

r v
ar

ia
bl

e 
(s

uc
h 

as
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

co
ns

um
er

 p
ric

e 
in

de
x)

. 
 C

lo
se

d 
pe

ri
od

 
A

 sp
ec

ifi
c 

nu
m

be
r o

f y
ea

rs
 th

at
 is

 c
ou

nt
ed

 fr
om

 o
ne

 d
at

e 
an

d 
de

cl
in

es
 to

 z
er

o 
w

ith
 th

e 
pa

ss
ag

e 
of

 ti
m

e.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 if
 th

e 
re

co
gn

iti
on

 p
er

io
d 

in
iti

al
ly

 is
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 o
n 

a 
cl

os
ed

 b
as

is
, f

ou
r y

ea
rs

 re
m

ai
n 

af
te

r t
he

 fi
rs

t y
ea

r, 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s a
fte

r t
he

 se
co

nd
 

ye
ar

, a
nd

 so
 fo

rth
. 

 C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

de
fe

rr
ed

 o
ut

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 r
el

at
ed

 to
 p

en
si

on
s 

D
ef

er
re

d 
ou

tfl
ow

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
in

flo
w

s o
f r

es
ou

rc
es

 re
la

te
d 

to
 p

en
si

on
s a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 c

er
ta

in
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y.

 
 C

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
N

et
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

Th
e 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r b
en

ef
its

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
(1

) a
 c

os
t-s

ha
rin

g 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 o

r (
2)

 a
 si

ng
le

-e
m

pl
oy

er
 o

r a
ge

nt
 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s i

n 
w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is

 a
 sp

ec
ia

l f
un

di
ng

 si
tu

at
io

n.
 

 C
ol

le
ct

iv
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

Pe
ns

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
e 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 c
er

ta
in

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
co

lle
ct

iv
e 

N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

A
dd

iti
on

s t
o 

a 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Pl

an
’s

 F
id

uc
ia

ry
 N

et
 P

os
iti

on
 fo

r a
m

ou
nt

s f
ro

m
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s, 
no

ne
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tin

g 
en

tit
ie

s (
fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e,
 st

at
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 to

 a
 lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t p
en

si
on

 p
la

n)
, o

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s. 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 c
an

 re
su

lt 
fr

om
 

ca
sh

 re
ce

ip
ts

 b
y 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 o
r f

ro
m

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 b

y 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 o

f a
 re

ce
iv

ab
le

 fr
om

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
se

 so
ur

ce
s. 

 C
os

t-
of

-li
vi

ng
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 

Po
st

em
pl

oy
m

en
t b

en
ef

it 
ch

an
ge

s i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 a
dj

us
t b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 e
ff

ec
ts

 o
f i

nf
la

tio
n.

 
 C

os
t-

sh
ar

in
g 

em
pl

oy
er

 
A

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 w

ho
se

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

 p
en

si
on

s t
hr

ou
gh

 a
 c

os
t-s

ha
rin

g 
m

ul
tip

le
-e

m
pl

oy
er

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

15
9 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 T
er

m
s 

 C
os

t-
sh

ar
in

g 
m

ul
tip

le
-e

m
pl

oy
er

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 (c
os

t-
sh

ar
in

g 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
) 

A
 m

ul
tip

le
-e

m
pl

oy
er

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
 to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 
em

pl
oy

er
 a

re
 p

oo
le

d 
an

d 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 a

ss
et

s c
an

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 p

ay
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s o
f t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s o
f a

ny
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 th
at

 
pr

ov
id

es
 p

en
si

on
s t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
. 

 C
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

Th
e 

pa
yr

ol
l o

n 
w

hi
ch

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 to
 a

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
ar

e 
ba

se
d.

 
 D

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
s 

Pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

s t
ha

t a
re

 u
se

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pe
ns

io
ns

. 
 D

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pe

ns
io

ns
 

Pe
ns

io
ns

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

in
co

m
e 

or
 o

th
er

 b
en

ef
its

 th
at

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 w
ill

 re
ce

iv
e 

at
 o

r a
fte

r s
ep

ar
at

io
n 

fr
om

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
re

 
de

fin
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 te

rm
s. 

Th
e 

pe
ns

io
ns

 m
ay

 b
e 

st
at

ed
 a

s a
 sp

ec
ifi

ed
 d

ol
la

r a
m

ou
nt

 o
r a

s a
n 

am
ou

nt
 th

at
 is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 o
ne

 o
r m

or
e 

fa
ct

or
s s

uc
h 

as
 a

ge
, y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
, a

nd
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n.

 (A
 p

en
si

on
 th

at
 d

oe
s n

ot
 m

ee
t t

he
 c

rit
er

ia
 o

f 
a 

de
fin

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
pe

ns
io

n 
is

 c
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s a
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pe

ns
io

n 
fo

r p
ur

po
se

s o
f S

ta
te

m
en

t 6
8.

) 
 D

ef
in

ed
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

s 
Pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
s t

ha
t a

re
 u

se
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 d

ef
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
pe

ns
io

ns
. 

 D
ef

in
ed

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
pe

ns
io

ns
 

Pe
ns

io
ns

 h
av

in
g 

te
rm

s t
ha

t (
1)

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r e
ac

h 
em

pl
oy

ee
; (

2)
 d

ef
in

e 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 th

at
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ak
e 

(o
r t

he
 c

re
di

ts
 th

at
 it

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

) t
o 

an
 a

ct
iv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r p

er
io

ds
 in

 
w

hi
ch

 th
at

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 re

nd
er

s s
er

vi
ce

; a
nd

 (3
) p

ro
vi

de
 th

at
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

ns
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 w

ill
 re

ce
iv

e 
w

ill
 d

ep
en

d 
on

ly
 o

n 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 (o

r c
re

di
ts

) t
o 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

’s
 a

cc
ou

nt
, a

ct
ua

l e
ar

ni
ng

s o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 o
f t

ho
se

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 (o
r c

re
di

ts
), 

an
d 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
s o

f f
or

fe
itu

re
s o

f c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 (o
r c

re
di

ts
) m

ad
e 

fo
r o

th
er

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s, 

as
 w

el
l a

s p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

co
st

s, 
th

at
 a

re
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

16
0 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 T
er

m
s 

 D
is

co
un

t r
at

e 
Th

e 
si

ng
le

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
th

at
, w

he
n 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 a

ll 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
m

en
ts

, r
es

ul
ts

 in
 a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 o
f 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
be

ne
fit

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
to

ta
l o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

1.
 

Th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 fu
tu

re
 p

er
io

ds
 in

 w
hi

ch
 (a

) t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 

Pe
ns

io
n 

Pl
an

’s
 F

id
uc

ia
ry

 N
et

 P
os

iti
on

 is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 (u
nd

er
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f S
ta

te
m

en
t 6

8)
 to

 b
e 

gr
ea

te
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 th
at

 p
er

io
d 

an
d 

(b
) p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

as
se

ts
 u

p 
to

 th
at

 p
oi

nt
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
in

ve
st

ed
 u

si
ng

 a
 st

ra
te

gy
 to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 th
e 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n,

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
. 

2.
 

Th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 (1
), 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

m
un

ic
ip

al
 b

on
d 

ra
te

. 
 E

nt
ry

 a
ge

 a
ct

ua
ri

al
 c

os
t m

et
ho

d 
A

 m
et

ho
d 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f e

ac
h 

in
di

vi
du

al
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 a
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
va

lu
at

io
n 

is
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

on
 a

 le
ve

l b
as

is
 o

ve
r t

he
 e

ar
ni

ng
s o

r s
er

vi
ce

 o
f t

he
 in

di
vi

du
al

 b
et

w
ee

n 
en

try
 a

ge
 a

nd
 a

ss
um

ed
 e

xi
t 

ag
e(

s)
. T

he
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
is

 a
ct

ua
ria

l p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 a

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
ye

ar
 is

 c
al

le
d 

th
e 

no
rm

al
 c

os
t. 

Th
e 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
hi

s 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
fo

r a
t a

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
 b

y 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
no

rm
al

 c
os

ts
 is

 c
al

le
d 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
cc

ru
ed

 li
ab

ili
ty

.  
 In

ac
tiv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 b

en
ef

its
 b

ut
 a

re
 n

ot
 y

et
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

th
em

, a
nd

 re
tir

ee
s o

r t
he

ir 
be

ne
fic

ia
rie

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s. 

 M
ea

su
re

m
en

t p
er

io
d 

Th
e 

pe
rio

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
pr

io
r a

nd
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t m
ea

su
re

m
en

t d
at

es
. 

 M
ul

tip
le

-e
m

pl
oy

er
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 

A
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
 th

at
 is

 u
se

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
en

si
on

s t
o 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s o
f m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

16
1 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 T
er

m
s 

 N
et

 P
en

si
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
Th

e 
lia

bi
lit

y 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s a

nd
 n

on
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tin

g 
en

tit
ie

s t
o 

em
pl

oy
ee

s f
or

 b
en

ef
its

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

de
fin

ed
 

be
ne

fit
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n.

 
 Pe

ns
io

n 
pl

an
s 

A
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 p
en

si
on

s a
re

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

, a
ss

et
s d

ed
ic

at
ed

 fo
r p

en
si

on
s a

re
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

ed
, a

nd
 

be
ne

fit
s a

re
 p

ai
d 

as
 th

ey
 c

om
e 

du
e.

 
 Pe

ns
io

ns
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t i

nc
om

e 
an

d,
 if

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

, p
os

te
m

pl
oy

m
en

t b
en

ef
its

 o
th

er
 th

an
 re

tir
em

en
t i

nc
om

e 
(s

uc
h 

as
 d

ea
th

 b
en

ef
its

, l
ife

 in
su

ra
nc

e,
 a

nd
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 b
en

ef
its

). 
Pe

ns
io

ns
 d

o 
no

t i
nc

lu
de

 p
os

te
m

pl
oy

m
en

t h
ea

lth
ca

re
 b

en
ef

its
 a

nd
 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

be
ne

fit
s. 

 Pl
an

 m
em

be
rs

 
In

di
vi

du
al

s t
ha

t a
re

 c
ov

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
te

rm
s o

f a
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n.

 P
la

n 
m

em
be

rs
 g

en
er

al
ly

 in
cl

ud
e 

(1
) e

m
pl

oy
ee

s i
n 

ac
tiv

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
(a

ct
iv

e 
pl

an
 m

em
be

rs
) a

nd
 (2

) t
er

m
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s w

ho
 h

av
e 

ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 b
en

ef
its

 b
ut

 a
re

 n
ot

 y
et

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
th

em
 

an
d 

re
tir

ee
s o

r t
he

ir 
be

ne
fic

ia
rie

s c
ur

re
nt

ly
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

be
ne

fit
s (

in
ac

tiv
e 

pl
an

 m
em

be
rs

). 
 Po

st
em

pl
oy

m
en

t 
Th

e 
pe

rio
d 

af
te

r e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
 Po

st
em

pl
oy

m
en

t b
en

ef
it 

ch
an

ge
s 

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
of

 a
n 

in
ac

tiv
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

. 
 Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 
A

ll 
be

ne
fit

s e
st

im
at

ed
 to

 b
e 

pa
ya

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

 to
 c

ur
re

nt
 a

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
in

ac
tiv

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

ei
r 

pa
st

 se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

th
ei

r e
xp

ec
te

d 
fu

tu
re

 se
rv

ic
e.

 
 Pu

bl
ic

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 r

et
ir

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 
A

 sp
ec

ia
l-p

ur
po

se
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t t
ha

t a
dm

in
is

te
rs

 o
ne

 o
r m

or
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

pl
an

s;
 a

ls
o 

m
ay

 a
dm

in
is

te
r o

th
er

 ty
pe

s o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
be

ne
fit

 p
la

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
os

te
m

pl
oy

m
en

t h
ea

lth
ca

re
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

pl
an

s. 
 



SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

: 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 A

pp
en

di
ce

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 

16
2 

AP
PE

N
D

IX
 B

 (c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

G
lo

ss
ar

y 
of

 T
er

m
s 

 R
ea

l r
at

e 
of

 r
et

ur
n 

Th
e 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

fte
r a

dj
us

tm
en

t t
o 

el
im

in
at

e 
in

fla
tio

n.
 

 Se
rv

ic
e 

co
st

s 
Th

e 
po

rti
on

s o
f t

he
 a

ct
ua

ria
l p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
ye

ar
s. 

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
be

ne
fit

s 
In

du
ce

m
en

ts
 o

ff
er

ed
 b

y 
em

pl
oy

er
s t

o 
ac

tiv
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s t
o 

ha
st

en
 th

e 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 se
rv

ic
es

, o
r p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
in

 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

ea
rly

 te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 se

rv
ic

es
. T

er
m

in
at

io
n 

be
ne

fit
s i

nc
lu

de
 e

ar
ly

-re
tir

em
en

t i
nc

en
tiv

es
, s

ev
er

an
ce

 
be

ne
fit

s, 
an

d 
ot

he
r t

er
m

in
at

io
n-

re
la

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s. 

 T
ot

al
 P

en
si

on
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

Th
e 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 th

at
 is

 a
ttr

ib
ut

ed
 to

 p
as

t p
er

io
ds

 o
f e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

ity
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f S
ta

te
m

en
t 6

8.
 

    55
97

04
3v

3/
05

33
7.

01
5  

 



Th
is

 re
po

rt 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

at
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

t t
o 

as
si

st
 in

 a
dm

in
is

te
rin

g 
th

e 
Fu

nd
. T

hi
s 

va
lu

at
io

n 
re

po
rt 

m
ay

 n
ot

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

be
 c

op
ie

d 
or

 
re

pr
od

uc
ed

 in
 a

ny
 fo

rm
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f R

et
ire

m
en

t a
nd

 m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 o
th

er
 p

ar
tie

s 
in

 it
s 

en
tir

et
y,

 u
nl

es
s 

ex
pr

es
sl

y 
au

th
or

iz
ed

 b
y 

Se
ga

l. 
Th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

is
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 fo

r o
th

er
 p

ur
po

se
s.

 

C
op

yr
ig

ht
 ©

 2
01

9 
by

 T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

s 
of

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#7



  55
87

00
4v

3/
05

33
7.

00
2 

18
0 

H
ow

ar
d 

St
re

et
  S

ui
te

 1
10

0 
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

, C
A 

94
10

5-
61

47
 

T 
41

5.
26

3.
82

00
   

w
w

w
.s

eg
al

co
.c

om
 

 Se
pt

em
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

9 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

13
35

 W
ill

ow
 W

ay
, S

ui
te

 2
21

 
C

on
co

rd
, C

A
 9

45
20

 

D
ea

r B
oa

rd
 M

em
be

rs
: 

W
e 

ar
e 

pl
ea

se
d 

to
 su

bm
it 

th
is

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 It
 su

m
m

ar
iz

es
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l d

at
a 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 a
na

ly
ze

s t
he

 p
re

ce
di

ng
 y

ea
r's

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e,

 a
nd

 e
st

ab
lis

he
s t

he
 fu

nd
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r f
is

ca
l y

ea
r 2

02
0-

20
21

. 

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 g

en
er

al
ly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

t t
he

 re
qu

es
t o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
 to

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
ad

m
in

is
te

rin
g 

th
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 T

he
 c

en
su

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 w
hi

ch
 o

ur
 c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 w

er
e 

ba
se

d 
w

as
 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

st
af

f o
f t

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 T

ha
t a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
is

 g
ra

te
fu

lly
 a

ck
no

w
le

dg
ed

. 

Th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
di

re
ct

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 Jo

hn
 M

on
ro

e,
 A

SA
, M

A
A

A
 a

nd
 E

nr
ol

le
d 

A
ct

ua
ry

. W
e 

ar
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 

A
m

er
ic

an
 A

ca
de

m
y 

of
 A

ct
ua

rie
s a

nd
 w

e 
m

ee
t t

he
 Q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

St
an

da
rd

s o
f t

he
 A

m
er

ic
an

 A
ca

de
m

y 
of

 A
ct

ua
rie

s t
o 

re
nd

er
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

op
in

io
n 

he
re

in
. T

o 
th

e 
be

st
 o

f o
ur

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

in
 th

is
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

. F
ur

th
er

, i
n 

ou
r 

op
in

io
n,

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
s a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

ar
e 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 a
nd

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 

W
e 

lo
ok

 fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
is

 re
po

rt 
at

 y
ou

r n
ex

t m
ee

tin
g 

an
d 

to
 a

ns
w

er
in

g 
an

y 
qu

es
tio

ns
. 

Si
nc

er
el

y,
 

Se
ga

l C
on

su
lti

ng
, a

 M
em

be
r o

f T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. 

 B
y:

  
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

 
Pa

ul
 A

ng
el

o,
 F

SA
, M

A
A

A
, F

C
A

, E
A

 
Jo

hn
 M

on
ro

e,
 A

SA
, M

A
A

A
, E

A
 

Se
ni

or
 V

ic
e 

Pr
es

id
en

t a
nd

 A
ct

ua
ry

 
V

ic
e 

Pr
es

id
en

t a
nd

 A
ct

ua
ry

 



  Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
A

ct
ua

ri
al

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 2

01
8

 Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
Pu

rp
os

e 
an

d 
Ba

si
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 Is

su
es

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

6 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 K

ey
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 9
 

Im
po

rta
nt

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Ab
ou

t A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

ns
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 1

3 
Se

ct
io

n 
2:

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
R

es
ul

ts
 

A.
 

M
em

be
r D

at
a .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
5 

B.
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

19
 

C
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
22

 
D

. 
O

th
er

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2
7 

E.
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
28

 
F.

 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
29

 
G

. 
Fu

nd
ed

 S
ta

tu
s 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4
2 

H
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
4 

I. 
Vo

la
til

ity
 R

at
io

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 4
5 

J.
 

R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

t .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 4

7 

 
Se

ct
io

n 
3:

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
Ex

hi
bi

t A
 –

 T
ab

le
 o

f P
la

n 
C

ov
er

ag
e .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 5
0 

Ex
hi

bi
t B

 –
 M

em
be

rs
 in

 A
ct

iv
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
...

 6
2 

Ex
hi

bi
t C

 –
 R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

as
 o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
75

 
Ex

hi
bi

t D
 –

 R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n 
of

 M
em

be
r D

at
a 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
82

 
Ex

hi
bi

t E
 –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
St

at
em

en
t o

f I
nc

om
e 

an
d 

Ex
pe

ns
es

 o
n 

a 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 B

as
is

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 8

3 
Ex

hi
bi

t F
 –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
St

at
em

en
t o

f P
la

n 
As

se
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 8
4 

Ex
hi

bi
t G

 –
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 T

ot
al

 A
llo

ca
te

d 
R

es
er

ve
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
85

 
Ex

hi
bi

t H
 –

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 F

un
d 

Th
ro

ug
h 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
86

 
Ex

hi
bi

t I
 –

 T
ab

le
 o

f A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Ba

se
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 8
7 

Ex
hi

bi
t J

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
of

 U
AA

L 
Ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 ...
...

...
...

...
. 1

00
 

Ex
hi

bi
t K

 –
 D

ef
in

iti
on

 o
f P

en
si

on
 T

er
m

s 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
10

2 
Se

ct
io

n 
4:

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
B

as
is

 
Ex

hi
bi

t I
 –

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 M
et

ho
ds

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 1
06

 
Ex

hi
bi

t I
I –

 S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 P
la

n 
Pr

ov
is

io
ns

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

12
8 

Ex
hi

bi
t I

II 
– 

M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
R

at
es

 ...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

13
6 

Ex
hi

bi
t I

V 
– 

R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

s .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

16
2 

Ex
hi

bi
t V

 –
 S

um
m

ar
y 

of
 C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
an

d 
Em

pl
oy

er
s .

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
63

 
Ex

hi
bi

t V
I –

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
as

 o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 1

65
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
4  

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 

P
ur

po
se

 a
nd

 B
as

is
 

Th
is

 re
po

rt 
w

as
 p

re
pa

re
d 

by
 S

eg
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 (“

Se
ga

l”
) t

o 
pr

es
en

t a
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(“
th

e 
Pl

an
”)

 a
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8.
 T

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

w
as

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

en
ef

its
. T

he
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 sh
ow

n 
in

 th
is

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fo
r o

th
er

 p
ur

po
se

s. 
In

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r, 

th
e 

m
ea

su
re

s h
er

ei
n 

ar
e 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 P
la

n 
as

se
ts

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t 
of

 se
ttl

in
g 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 a

cc
ru

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

.  

Fu
tu

re
 a

ct
ua

ria
l m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 fr

om
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

du
e 

to
 su

ch
 fa

ct
or

s a
s t

he
 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 p

la
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
di

ff
er

in
g 

fro
m

 th
at

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 o
r d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
; c

ha
ng

es
 in

 e
co

no
m

ic
 o

r 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
; i

nc
re

as
es

 o
r d

ec
re

as
es

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 n

at
ur

al
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 u

se
d 

fo
r t

he
se

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
; 

an
d 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
pl

an
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
r a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

. 

Th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 th
is

 re
po

rt 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
: 


 

Th
e 

be
ne

fit
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f t

he
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n,

 a
s a

dm
in

is
te

re
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d;

 


 

Th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s o
f c

ov
er

ed
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, i

na
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, a

nd
 re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s a
s o

f 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n;
 


 

Th
e 

as
se

ts
 o

f t
he

 P
la

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8,

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n;
 


 

Ec
on

om
ic

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
fu

tu
re

 sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s a
do

pt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 fo

r t
he

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
va

lu
at

io
n;

 


 

O
th

er
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

 te
rm

in
at

io
ns

, r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

de
at

h,
 e

tc
. a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 


 

Th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

po
lic

y 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d.
 

O
ne

 o
f t

he
 g

en
er

al
 g

oa
ls

 o
f a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 fu
lly

 fu
nd

 th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s, 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
, a

s a
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
m

ai
n 

as
 le

ve
l a

s p
os

si
bl

e 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
. A

nn
ua

l a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

ns
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
pr

og
re

ss
 

to
w

ar
d 

th
is

 g
oa

l, 
as

 w
el

l a
s t

es
t t

he
 a

de
qu

ac
y 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
5  

In
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 e

m
pl

oy
ed

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l m
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. O

ur
 c

al
cu

la
tio

ns
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
m

em
be

r d
at

a 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 u
s b

y 
th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s s

ta
ff.

 T
hi

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ha

s n
ot

 b
ee

n 
au

di
te

d 
by

 u
s, 

bu
t i

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 fo

un
d 

to
 b

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

, b
ot

h 
in

te
rn

al
ly

 a
nd

 w
ith

 
pr

io
r y

ea
r’

s i
nf

or
m

at
io

n.
 

Th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
re

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 T

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s e

m
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

s p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r b

ot
h 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 
a 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
 a

m
or

tiz
e 

an
y 

un
fu

nd
ed

 o
r o

ve
rfu

nd
ed

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
cc

ru
ed

 li
ab

ili
tie

s. 
In

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 a

pp
lie

d 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

on
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

26
, 2

01
4,

 a
nd

 m
os

t r
ec

en
tly

 a
m

en
de

d 
on

 M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9.
 D

et
ai

ls
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

in
g 

po
lic

y 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I o
n 

pa
ge

 1
16

. 

A
 sc

he
du

le
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

fo
un

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

3,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I o

n 
pa

ge
 8

7.
 A

 g
ra

ph
ic

al
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(U
A

A
L)

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

3,
 E

xh
ib

it 
J 

on
 p

ag
e 

10
0.

  

Th
e 

ra
te

s c
al

cu
la

te
d 

in
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

r t
ha

t e
xt

en
ds

 fr
om

 Ju
ly

 1
, 2

02
0 

th
ro

ug
h 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

1.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
6  

S
ig

ni
fi

ca
nt

 I
ss

ue
s 

1.
 

Th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
hi

s v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

fle
ct

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

s r
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
by

 S
eg

al
 a

nd
 a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r t

he
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 T

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 w
er

e 
do

cu
m

en
te

d 
in

 o
ur

 A
ct

ua
ria

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y 
an

d 
ar

e 
al

so
 o

ut
lin

ed
 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I o
f t

hi
s r

ep
or

t. 
Th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

 o
f 1

.2
6%

 o
f 

pa
yr

ol
l a

nd
 a

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
m

em
be

r r
at

e 
of

 0
.0

3%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 O
f t

he
 1

.2
6%

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

, 0
.4

6%
 is

 
du

e 
to

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 th

e 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 0

.8
0%

 is
 d

ue
 to

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 th

e 
U

A
A

L 
ra

te
. 

2.
 

Th
e 

ra
tio

 o
f t

he
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s t

o 
th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 8

8.
5%

 to
 8

9.
3%

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s t

o 
th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 9

0.
8%

 to
 8

4.
2%

. T
he

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s U
A

A
L 

(w
hi

ch
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s)

 h
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 fr

om
 $

1.
1 

bi
lli

on
 to

 $
1.

0 
bi

lli
on

. T
hi

s d
ec

re
as

e 
is

 m
ai

nl
y 

du
e 

to
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 p

ay
in

g 
do

w
n 

a 
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 U

A
A

L 
an

d 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, o
ffs

et
 to

 so
m

e 
de

gr
ee

 b
y 

an
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
on

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ue
 (i

.e
. a

fte
r s

m
oo

th
in

g)
 le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
7.

00
%

 a
ss

um
ed

 ra
te

, a
nd

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
O

LA
 

in
cr

ea
se

s f
or

 re
tir

ee
s a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s. 

A
 re

co
nc

ili
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s U

A
A

L 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 E

xh
ib

it 
E.

 
3.

 
Th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 ra

te
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 a
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 su

bv
en

tio
n 

of
 m

em
be

r r
at

es
 o

r m
em

be
r 

su
bv

en
tio

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 ra

te
s)

 h
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 fr

om
 3

6.
07

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

to
 3

5.
72

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 T
hi

s d
ec

re
as

e 
is

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 m

em
be

r d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s o
n 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t, 
pa

rti
al

ly
 o

ffs
et

 b
y 

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
re

tu
rn

 o
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ue
 (i

.e
. a

fte
r s

m
oo

th
in

g)
 le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
7.

00
%

 a
ss

um
ed

 ra
te

 a
nd

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
s f

or
 

re
tir

ee
s a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s. 

A
 c

om
pl

et
e 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s a
gg

re
ga

te
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

F.
 

Se
pa

ra
te

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s a

re
 sh

ow
n 

fo
r m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(n

on
-P

EP
R

A
 

m
em

be
rs

) a
nd

 o
n 

or
 a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3 
(P

EP
R

A
 m

em
be

rs
). 

H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s s

ho
w

n 
in

 
Se

ct
io

n 
1 

ar
e 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f t
he

ir 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
. A

 d
et

ai
le

d 
sc

he
du

le
 o

f t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

F.
  

4.
 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

m
em

be
r r

at
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
ha

s d
ec

re
as

ed
 fr

om
 1

2.
03

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

to
 1

1.
98

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 A
 c

om
pl

et
e 

re
co

nc
ili

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n’

s a
gg

re
ga

te
 m

em
be

r r
at

e 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
F.

 
Th

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
m

em
be

r r
at

es
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

III
 o

f t
hi

s r
ep

or
t. 

Th
ey

 a
re

 sh
ow

n 
by

 c
os

t g
ro

up
. 

5.
 

Th
e 

to
ta

l u
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
ne

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t l

os
s a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 a

bo
ut

 $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
as

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 a
n 

un
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 n
et

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t g
ai

n 
of

 $
19

5 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 T

hi
s d

ef
er

re
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t l

os
s o

f $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 in
 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s f

or
 fu

nd
in

g 
pu

rp
os

es
 in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 fe
w

 y
ea

rs
 a

s s
ho

w
n 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 
Su

bs
ec

tio
n 

B.
 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 1

06
 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 4

3 
Re

f: 
Pg

. 2
8 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 3

0 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 3

2 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 3

1 

Re
f: 

Pg
. 2

0 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
7  

Th
e 

ne
t d

ef
er

re
d 

lo
ss

es
 o

f $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
re

pr
es

en
t a

bo
ut

 6
.3

%
 o

f t
he

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s. 
U

nl
es

s o
ffs

et
 b

y 
fu

tu
re

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ga
in

s o
r o

th
er

 fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e,

 th
e 

re
co

gn
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 $
51

7 
m

ill
io

n 
m

ar
ke

t l
os

se
s i

s e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s f

ut
ur

e 
fu

nd
ed

 ra
tio

 a
nd

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. T
hi

s p
ot

en
tia

l i
m

pa
ct

 m
ay

 b
e 

ill
us

tra
te

d 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

 
a.

 
If 

th
e 

ne
t d

ef
er

re
d 

lo
ss

es
 w

er
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s, 
th

e 
fu

nd
ed

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

w
ou

ld
 

de
cr

ea
se

 fr
om

 8
9.

3%
%

 to
 8

4.
0%

. 
Fo

r c
om

pa
ris

on
 p

ur
po

se
s, 

if 
al

l t
he

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ga

in
s i

n 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ha

d 
be

en
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 8
8.

5%
 to

 9
0.

6%
. 

b.
 

If 
th

e 
ne

t d
ef

er
re

d 
lo

ss
es

 w
er

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
ss

et
s, 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 w
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 fr

om
 3

5.
72

%
 to

 a
bo

ut
 4

0.
14

%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll.

 
Fo

r c
om

pa
ris

on
 p

ur
po

se
s, 

if 
al

l t
he

 d
ef

er
re

d 
ga

in
s i

n 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ha

d 
be

en
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 
in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 3

6.
1%

 to
 3

4.
3%

 
of

 p
ay

ro
ll.

 
6.

 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
po

rt 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 o

f t
ha

t d
at

e.
 C

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

as
se

ts
 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 to

 th
at

 d
at

e,
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 th

ey
 e

xi
st

, a
re

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

. D
ec

lin
es

 in
 a

ss
et

 v
al

ue
s w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l c

os
t o

f 
th

e 
pl

an
, w

hi
le

 in
cr

ea
se

s w
ill

 d
ec

re
as

e 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l c

os
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n.
 

7.
 

Th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

fle
ct

s t
he

 $
25

4,
00

0 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 S

an
 R

am
on

 V
al

le
y 

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t t

ow
ar

ds
 th

ei
r 

U
A

A
L.

 B
as

ed
 o

n 
C

C
C

ER
A

’s
 fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y,

 th
is

 a
m

ou
nt

 w
ill

 b
e 

am
or

tiz
ed

 a
s a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

 o
f p

ay
 (c

re
di

t) 
ov

er
 a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 

ei
gh

te
en

 y
ea

rs
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
va

lu
at

io
n 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 U
A

A
L 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 
8.

 
Th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 B
oa

rd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

a 
ne

w
 A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

N
o.

 5
1 

(A
SO

P 
51

) r
eg

ar
di

ng
 ri

sk
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t. 
A

SO
P 

51
 is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 C

C
C

ER
A

’s
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n.
 A

SO
P 

51
 re

qu
ire

s a
ct

ua
rie

s t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

as
se

ss
 ri

sk
s t

ha
t “

m
ay

 re
as

on
ab

ly
 b

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 to
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

pl
an

’s
 fu

tu
re

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

di
tio

n”
. E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f k

ey
 

ris
ks

 li
st

ed
 th

at
 a

re
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 re

le
va

nt
 to

 C
C

C
ER

A
 a

re
 a

ss
et

/li
ab

ili
ty

 m
is

m
at

ch
 ri

sk
, i

nv
es

tm
en

t r
is

k,
 a

nd
 lo

ng
ev

ity
 ri

sk
. T

he
 

st
an

da
rd

 a
ls

o 
re

qu
ire

s a
n 

ac
tu

ar
y 

to
 c

on
si

de
r i

f t
he

re
 is

 a
ny

 o
ng

oi
ng

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ris
k 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
, h

ow
ev

er
 it

 d
oe

s n
ot

 re
qu

ire
 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

pa
rti

cu
la

r a
bi

lit
y 

or
 w

ill
in

gn
es

s o
f c

on
tri

bu
tin

g 
en

tit
ie

s t
o 

m
ak

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

he
n 

du
e,

 n
or

 d
oe

s i
t 

re
qu

ire
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
to

 a
ss

es
s t

he
 li

ke
lih

oo
d 

or
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s o

f f
ut

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s i

n 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 la
w

.  
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y’
s i

ni
tia

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t c

an
 b

e 
st

ric
tly

 a
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
di

sc
us

si
on

 a
bo

ut
 p

ot
en

tia
l a

dv
er

se
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

le
 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
fu

tu
re

 re
su

lts
, b

ut
 it

 m
ay

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
nu

m
er

ic
al

 d
em

on
st

ra
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 in
fo

rm
at

iv
e.

 T
he

 a
ct

ua
ry

 is
 a

ls
o 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 c
on

si
de

r a
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 
as

 to
 w

he
th

er
 a

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
r r

is
k 

re
po

rt 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 
be

ne
fic

ia
l f

or
 th

e 
in

te
nd

ed
 u

se
r i

n 
or

de
r t

o 
ex

am
in

e 
pa

rti
cu

la
r f

in
an

ci
al

 ri
sk

s. 
W

he
n 

m
ak

in
g 

th
at

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n,

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

w
ill

 ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 su
ch

 fa
ct

or
s a

s t
he

 p
la

n’
s d

es
ig

n,
 ri

sk
 p

ro
fil

e,
 m

at
ur

ity
, s

iz
e,

 fu
nd

ed
 st

at
us

, a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n,

 c
as

h 
flo

w
, 

po
ss

ib
le

 in
so

lv
en

cy
 a

nd
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

ar
ke

t c
on

di
tio

ns
.  

Re
f: 

Pg
. 4

7 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
8  

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

a 
fix

ed
 se

t o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 d

at
a 

as
 o

f a
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
da

te
, t

he
re

 is
 ri

sk
 th

at
 

em
er

gi
ng

 re
su

lts
 m

ay
 d

iff
er

, p
er

ha
ps

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

, a
s a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 fl

ui
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 n
ot

 e
xa

ct
ly

 tr
ac

k 
cu

rre
nt

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. 
Th

is
 p

ot
en

tia
l d

iv
er

ge
nc

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
en

ga
ge

d 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

an
ge

 o
f t

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
f r

is
k 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n’
s f

ut
ur

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

co
nd

iti
on

, b
ut

 h
av

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 b
rie

f d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 k

ey
 ri

sk
s t

ha
t m

ay
 a

ff
ec

t t
he

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

J.
 A

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 ri

sk
s t

ai
lo

re
d 

to
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
in

te
re

st
s o

r c
on

ce
rn

s o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

w
ith

 a
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
in

he
re

nt
 ri

sk
s a

nd
 is

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d.
 T

hi
s a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ou

ld
 fu

rth
er

 d
is

cu
ss

 a
nd

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
ris

ks
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 to
 C

C
C

ER
A

 su
ch

 a
s d

et
ai

le
d 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
ke

y 
ev

en
ts

, g
ro

w
in

g 
pl

an
 m

at
ur

ity
, h

ei
gh

te
ne

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 to
 a

ss
et

 a
nd

 li
ab

ili
ty

 c
ha

ng
es

, a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 to
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

ut
ur

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

se
le

ct
ed

 sc
en

ar
io

 o
r s

tre
ss

 te
st

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
9  

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

  
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

Av
er

ag
e 

Em
pl

oy
er

  
G

en
er

al
 

 
 

 
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

:(1
) 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 4
) 

31
.1

1%
 

$7
,7

30
  

31
.1

0%
 

$7
,6

06
  

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 5
) 

26
.4

2%
 

 1
72

,3
33

  
26

.3
6%

 
16

5,
29

1 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
C

en
tra

l C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
49

.8
6%

 
 1

7,
67

2 
 

49
.5

7%
 

17
,0

28
 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
42

.2
2%

 
 2

,4
20

  
41

.9
1%

 
2,

34
0 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
32

.8
0%

 
 1

,8
85

  
31

.8
2%

 
1,

63
7 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
– 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 1
 a

nd
 4

) 
15

.6
0%

 
 1

47
  

16
.5

9%
 

14
1 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 D
) 

70
.3

2%
 

$4
1,

86
0 

 
71

.9
4%

 
$4

3,
93

2 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

– 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 a

nd
 E

as
t F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
s 

69
.1

4%
 

 2
7,

81
4 

 
75

.5
9%

 
26

,9
87

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r C

 a
nd

 E
) 

61
.1

0%
 

 2
4,

60
7 

 
62

.5
6%

 
22

,1
16

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 
70

.8
1%

 
 5

,2
51

  
69

.7
4%

 
5,

12
8 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 –

 S
an

 R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 

75
.7

9%
 

 1
6,

38
0 

 
75

.2
5%

 
16

,2
11

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

82
.9

5%
 

 2
,0

17
  

92
.2

8%
 

2,
02

3 
 

Al
l E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

35
.7

2%
 

$3
20

,1
16

  
36

.0
7%

 
$3

10
,4

39
  

N
ot

e:
 P

ag
es

 1
63

 a
nd

 1
64

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

th
at

 s
ho

w
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
ar

e 
in

 e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

.  
(1

)  
Ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n.

 T
he

se
 ra

te
s 

do
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

r a
ny

 m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

 
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 (

co
nt

in
ue

d)
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

To
ta

l R
at

e 

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

  
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

(1
)  

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

Av
er

ag
e 

M
em

be
r  

G
en

er
al

 
 

 
 

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
:(1

) 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 4
) 

10
.8

2%
 

$2
,6

88
  

10
.8

9%
 

$2
,6

64
  

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
– 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 5
) 

10
.7

0%
 

 6
9,

78
5 

 
10

.7
6%

 
67

,4
69

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
C

en
tra

l C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 
11

.2
9%

 
 4

,0
01

  
11

.4
5%

 
3,

93
3 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
11

.5
4%

 
 6

61
  

11
.7

0%
 

65
3 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
– 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
11

.3
2%

 
 6

51
  

11
.0

8%
 

57
0 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
– 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 1
 a

nd
 4

) 
13

.2
2%

 
 1

24
  

13
.3

1%
 

11
3 

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 D
) 

17
.9

9%
 

$1
0,

70
9 

 
17

.9
2%

 
$1

0,
94

4 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

– 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 a

nd
 E

as
t F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
s 

17
.2

5%
 

 6
,9

40
  

17
.5

4%
 

6,
26

1 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r C

 a
nd

 E
) 

16
.0

2%
 

 6
,4

52
  

16
.2

0%
 

5,
72

7 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 
17

.3
0%

 
 1

,2
83

  
17

.2
6%

 
1,

26
9 

 
• 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 –

 S
an

 R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 

16
.9

9%
 

 3
,6

72
  

16
.7

5%
 

3,
60

8 
 

• 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

15
.6

5%
 

 3
80

  
15

.5
2%

 
34

0 
 

Al
l C

at
eg

or
ie

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

11
.9

8%
 

$1
07

,3
46

  
12

.0
3%

 
$1

03
,5

51
  

N
ot

e:
 P

ag
es

 1
63

 a
nd

 1
64

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 s

um
m

ar
y 

th
at

 s
ho

w
s 

w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
ar

e 
in

 e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

.  
(1

)  
Ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n.

 T
he

se
 ra

te
s 

do
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

y 
em

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

r a
ny

 m
em

be
r s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

 
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 (

co
nt

in
ue

d)
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
  • 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 
$6

,1
86

,5
18

,5
15

  
$5

,8
73

,0
17

,5
31

  
Li

ab
ili

ty
 a

s 
of

  
• 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
(1

)  
29

9,
87

7,
08

0 
 

29
5,

69
1,

33
7 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1:
 

• 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 
3,

19
5,

74
8,

15
5 

 
3,

07
0,

53
8,

05
2 

 
 

• 
To

ta
l A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

$9
,6

82
,1

43
,7

50
  

$9
,2

39
,2

46
,9

20
  

 
• 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 fo
r p

la
n 

ye
ar

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1 
$2

48
,9

40
,9

68
  

$2
46

,0
99

,3
86

  

As
se

ts
 a

s 
of

  
• 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
(M

VA
) 

$8
,1

49
,9

85
,7

93
  

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1:

 
• 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

(A
VA

) 
8,

66
6,

77
8,

05
6 

 
8,

19
5,

51
6,

54
1 

 
 

• 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
10

6.
3%

 
97

.7
%

 
 

• 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

(V
VA

) 
$8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  
$8

,1
79

,8
91

,1
91

  

Fu
nd

ed
 s

ta
tu

s 
 

• 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
on

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
ba

si
s 

$1
,5

32
,1

57
,9

57
  

$8
48

,6
65

,8
71

  
as

 o
f  

• 
Fu

nd
ed

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

on
 M

VA
 b

as
is

 
84

.2
%

 
90

.8
%

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1:
 

• 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
on

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
ba

si
s 

$1
,0

31
,9

65
,5

24
  

$1
,0

59
,3

55
,7

29
  

 
• 

Fu
nd

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
on

 V
VA

 b
as

is
 

89
.3

%
 

88
.5

%
 

K
ey

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

: •
 N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n 

7.
00

%
 

7.
00

%
 

 
• 

Pr
ic

e 
In

fla
tio

n 
2.

75
%

 
2.

75
%

 
 

• 
Pa

yr
ol

l g
ro

w
th

 in
cr

ea
se

 
3.

25
%

 
3.

25
%

 
(1

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 o
n 

de
po

si
t. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

 
 

S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 K
ey

 V
al

ua
ti

on
 R

es
ul

ts
 (

co
nt

in
ue

d)
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
  

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 d

at
a 

 
Ac

tiv
e 

M
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1:

 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f m
em

be
rs

 
10

,0
21

 
10

,0
38

 
-0

.2
%

 
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
46

.2
 

46
.0

 
0.

2 
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
9.

9 
9.

8 
0.

1 
 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$8

96
,3

90
,7

68
  

$8
60

,6
24

,6
12

  
4.

2%
 

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$8
9,

45
1 

 
$8

5,
73

7 
 

4.
3%

 

 
R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

 
– 

Se
rv

ic
e 

re
tir

ed
 

7,
21

4 
6,

97
3 

3.
5%

 
 

– 
D

is
ab

ilit
y 

re
tir

ed
 

90
8 

89
6 

1.
3%

 
 

– 
Be

ne
fic

ia
rie

s 
1,

42
5 

1,
39

8 
1.

9%
 

 
– 

To
ta

l 
9,

54
7 

9,
26

7 
3.

0%
 

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

70
.4

 
70

.3
 

0.
1 

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$3
,9

86
 

$3
,8

92
  

2.
4%

 

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
Ve

st
ed

 M
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r o

f m
em

be
rs

(1
)  

3,
47

7 
3,

32
7 

4.
5%

 
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
Ag

e 
46

.5
 

46
.5

 
0.

0 

 
To

ta
l M

em
be

rs
: 

23
,0

45
 

22
,6

32
 

1.
8%

 
(1

)  
In

cl
ud

es
 1

,8
47

 in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

n 
de

po
si

t a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

1,
69

6 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

 
 

Im
po

rt
an

t 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
A

bo
ut

 A
ct

ua
ri

al
 V

al
ua

ti
on

s 

A
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
 b

ud
ge

tin
g 

to
ol

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

ng
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 o
f a

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n.
 It

 is
 a

n 
es

tim
at

ed
 

fo
re

ca
st

 –
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 c
os

t o
f t

he
 p

la
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 b
en

ef
its

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s p
ai

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 p

re
pa

re
 a

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 S

eg
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 (“

Se
ga

l”
) r

el
ie

s o
n 

a 
nu

m
be

r o
f i

np
ut

 it
em

s. 
Th

es
e 

in
cl

ud
e:

 

Pl
an

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 

Pl
an

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

de
fin

e 
th

e 
ru

le
s 

th
at

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
be

ne
fit

 p
ay

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 th

os
e 

ru
le

s,
 o

r t
he

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
em

, m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 E

ve
n 

w
he

re
 th

ey
 a

pp
ea

r p
re

ci
se

, o
ut

si
de

 fa
ct

or
s 

m
ay

 c
ha

ng
e 

ho
w

 th
ey

 o
pe

ra
te

. I
t i

s 
im

po
rta

nt
 to

 k
ee

p 
Se

ga
l i

nf
or

m
ed

 w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
pl

an
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, a

nd
 to

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
pl

an
 s

um
m

ar
y 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 o

ur
 re

po
rt 

to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

at
 S

eg
al

 h
as

 c
or

re
ct

ly
 in

te
rp

re
te

d 
th

e 
pl

an
 o

f b
en

ef
its

. 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
t d

at
a 

An
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

fo
r a

 p
la

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
da

ta
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
by

 th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n.

 S
eg

al
 d

oe
s 

no
t a

ud
it 

su
ch

 d
at

a 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

en
es

s 
or

 a
cc

ur
ac

y,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
it 

fo
r o

bv
io

us
 in

co
ns

is
te

nc
ie

s 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 p

rio
r d

at
a 

an
d 

ot
he

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
th

at
 a

pp
ea

rs
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e.

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 fo
r S

eg
al

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
be

st
 p

os
si

bl
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 to
 b

e 
in

fo
rm

ed
 a

bo
ut

 a
ny

 k
no

w
n 

in
co

m
pl

et
e 

or
 in

ac
cu

ra
te

 d
at

a.
 

As
se

ts
 

Th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

as
 o

f t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
, a

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
As

so
ci

at
io

n.
 T

he
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

us
es

 a
 “V

al
ua

tio
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s”

 th
at

 d
iff

er
s 

fro
m

 m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 to
 g

ra
du

al
ly

 re
fle

ct
 s

ix
-m

on
th

 c
ha

ng
es

 
in

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
In

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
an

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n,
 S

eg
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pl
an

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 fo
r t

he
 re

st
 o

f 
th

ei
r l

iv
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

liv
es

 o
f t

he
ir 

be
ne

fic
ia

rie
s.

 T
hi

s 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
s 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

ob
ab

ilit
y 

of
 

de
at

h,
 d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 re
tir

em
en

t o
f e

ac
h 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
 fo

r e
ac

h 
ye

ar
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

s 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 fo

r e
ac

h 
of

 th
os

e 
ev

en
ts

 in
 e

ac
h 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
r r

ef
le

ct
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

s 
to

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
an

d 
co

st
-o

f-
liv

in
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

. T
he

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

en
ef

its
 a

re
 th

en
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
to

 a
 p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 ra

te
 o

f 
re

tu
rn

 th
at

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
s.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 re

as
on

ab
le

 ra
ng

e 
fo

r e
ac

h 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
us

ed
 in

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 m

ay
 v

ar
y 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 s

el
ec

te
d.

 It
 is

 im
po

rta
nt

 fo
r a

ny
 

us
er

 o
f a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
. A

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 p

er
io

di
ca

lly
 re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 fu
tu

re
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

 re
fle

ct
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 p
la

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e.

 W
hi

le
 fu

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
re

po
rte

d 
re

su
lts

, t
ha

t d
oe

s 
no

t m
ea

n 
th

at
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

1:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

 
 

Th
e 

us
er

 o
f S

eg
al

’s
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

(o
r o

th
er

 a
ct

ua
ria

l c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

) s
ho

ul
d 

ke
ep

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

 m
in

d:
 

• 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 p

re
pa

re
d 

at
 th

e 
re

qu
es

t o
f t

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.
 S

eg
al

 is
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 u
se

 o
r m

is
us

e 
of

 it
s 

re
po

rt,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 b

y 
an

y 
ot

he
r p

ar
ty

. 

• 
An

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 a
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n’
s 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

at
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 d
at

e.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
no

te
d,

 S
eg

al
 d

id
 

no
t p

er
fo

rm
 a

n 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l r
an

ge
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 T

he
 a

ct
ua

l l
on

g-
te

rm
 c

os
t o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
w

ill 
be

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 p
ai

d 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. F
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

os
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 in

 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

be
ca

us
e 

of
:  

– 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e;
  

– 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r m

et
ho

ds
; 

– 
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s;
 a

nd
 

– 
D

iff
er

en
ce

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
os

e 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d.
  

• 
If 

th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

is
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 e
ve

nt
 o

r t
re

nd
 th

at
 w

as
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
th

at
 m

ay
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 

Se
ga

l s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

dv
is

ed
, s

o 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
ev

al
ua

te
 it

. 

• 
Se

ga
l d

oe
s 

no
t p

ro
vi

de
 in

ve
st

m
en

t, 
le

ga
l, 

ac
co

un
tin

g,
 o

r t
ax

 a
dv

ic
e.

 S
eg

al
’s

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ou

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f a
pp

lic
ab

le
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

in
 th

es
e 

ar
ea

s 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

’s
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s,
 b

ut
 th

ey
 m

ay
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

ns
. T

he
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 lo
ok

 to
 th

ei
r o

th
er

 a
dv

is
or

s 
fo

r 
ex

pe
rti

se
 in

 th
es

e 
ar

ea
s.

 

A
s S

eg
al

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 h

as
 n

o 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 a

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
r a

ss
et

s o
f t

he
 P

la
n,

 it
 is

 n
ot

 a
 fi

du
ci

ar
y 

in
 it

s c
ap

ac
ity

 a
s 

ac
tu

ar
ie

s a
nd

 c
on

su
lta

nt
s w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

Pl
an

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 
A

. M
em

be
r 

D
at

a 

Th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

on
si

de
rs

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r a

nd
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

is
tic

s o
f c

ov
er

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, 
in

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

, r
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s. 

Th
is

 se
ct

io
n 

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 st
at

is
tic

al
 d

at
a 

on
 th

es
e 

m
em

be
r g

ro
up

s. 
 

M
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r t
hi

s v
al

ua
tio

n 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 th

e 
pr

ec
ed

in
g 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 fo
un

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

3,
 E

xh
ib

its
 A

, B
, a

nd
 C

. 

M
EM

B
ER

 P
O

PU
LA

TI
O

N
: 2

00
9 

– 
20

18
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

Ac
tiv

e 
M

em
be

rs
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

Ve
st

ed
 

M
em

be
rs

(1
) 

R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 
an

d 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

To
ta

l  
N

on
-A

ct
iv

es
 

R
at

io
 o

f  
N

on
-A

ct
iv

es
 

to
 A

ct
iv

es
 

R
at

io
 o

f  
R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 
 

to
 A

ct
iv

es
 

20
09

 
8,

93
8 

2,
20

9 
7,

29
2 

9,
50

1 
1.

06
 

0.
82

 

20
10

 
8,

81
1 

2,
23

1 
7,

55
9 

9,
79

0 
1.

11
 

0.
86

 

20
11

 
8,

62
9 

2,
21

4 
8,

08
5 

10
,2

99
 

1.
19

 
0.

94
 

20
12

 
8,

64
0 

2,
28

8 
8,

51
7 

10
,8

05
 

1.
25

 
0.

99
 

20
13

 
9,

12
4 

2,
34

5 
8,

62
5 

10
,9

70
 

1.
20

 
0.

95
 

20
14

 
9,

15
9 

2,
64

7 
8,

87
1 

11
,5

18
 

1.
26

 
0.

97
 

20
15

 
9,

64
2 

2,
79

0 
9,

06
8 

11
,8

58
 

1.
23

 
0.

94
 

20
16

 
9,

84
8 

3,
08

9 
9,

10
0 

12
,1

89
 

1.
24

 
0.

92
 

20
17

 
10

,0
38

 
3,

32
7 

9,
26

7 
12

,5
94

 
1.

25
 

0.
92

 

20
18

 
10

,0
21

 
3,

47
7 

9,
54

7 
13

,0
24

 
1.

30
 

0.
95

 
(1

)  
In

cl
ud

es
 in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 o
n 

de
po

si
t. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

 
 

A
ct

iv
e 

M
em

be
rs

 

Pl
an

 c
os

ts
 a

re
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ag

e,
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
. I

n 
th

is
 y

ea
r’

s v
al

ua
tio

n,
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
10

,0
21

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

of
 4

6.
2,

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 o
f 9

.9
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
of

 $
89

,4
51

. T
he

 1
0,

03
8 

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
ha

d 
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 o
f 4

6.
0,

 a
ve

ra
ge

 se
rv

ic
e 

of
 9

.8
 y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
of

 $
85

,7
37

. 

A
m

on
g 

th
e 

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, t

he
re

 w
er

e 
no

ne
 w

ith
 u

nk
no

w
n 

ag
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 A
ct

iv
e 

Pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

AC
TI

VE
S 

B
Y 

AG
E 

AC
TI

VE
S 

B
Y 

YE
AR

S 
O

F 
SE

R
VI

C
E 

 
In

ac
ti

ve
 M

em
be

rs
 

In
 th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 v
al

ua
tio

n,
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
3,

47
7 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 a
 v

es
te

d 
rig

ht
 to

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

or
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 v
es

te
d 

be
ne

fit
 o

r e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 a

 re
tu

rn
 o

f t
he

ir 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 v
er

su
s 3

,3
27

 in
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

  

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

1,
00

0

1,
20

0

1,
40

0

G
en

er
al

S
af

et
y

0

50
0

1,
00

0

1,
50

0

2,
00

0

2,
50

0

3,
00

0

3,
50

0

4,
00

0

G
en

er
al

S
af

et
y



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
17

 
 

R
et

ir
ed

 M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
ic

ia
ri

es
 

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8,
 8

,1
22

 re
tir

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 1

,4
25

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

to
ta

l m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f $

38
,0

57
,2

50
. F

or
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
, i

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 v

al
ua

tio
n,

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

7,
86

9 
re

tir
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 1
,3

98
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f $

36
,0

67
,6

26
.  

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8,
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
fo

r r
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

 is
 $

3,
98

6,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 $

3,
89

2 
in

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 T

he
 

av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

fo
r r

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
 is

 7
0.

4 
in

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t v

al
ua

tio
n,

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 7

0.
3 

in
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

  

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
B

Y 
TY

PE
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
TH

LY
 A

M
O

U
N

T 
R

ET
IR

ED
 M

EM
B

ER
S 

AN
D

 B
EN

EF
IC

IA
R

IE
S 

B
Y 

TY
PE

 A
N

D
 A

G
E 

 
 

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

1,
00

0

1,
20

0

1,
40

0

1,
60

0

1,
80

0

2,
00

0

S
er

vi
ce

D
is

ab
ili

ty
B

en
ef

ic
ia

ry

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

1,
00

0

1,
20

0

1,
40

0

1,
60

0

1,
80

0

2,
00

0

S
er

vi
ce

D
is

ab
ili

ty
B

en
ef

ic
ia

ry



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
18

 
 

H
is

to
ri

ca
l P

la
n 

P
op

ul
at

io
n 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
s t

he
 p

ro
gr

es
si

on
 o

f t
he

 a
ct

iv
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
la

st
 te

n 
ye

ar
s. 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t a
ls

o 
sh

ow
s t

he
 g

ro
w

th
 a

m
on

g 
th

e 
re

tir
ed

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

ov
er

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
tim

e 
pe

rio
d.

 

M
EM

B
ER

 S
TA

TI
ST

IC
S:

 2
00

9 
– 

20
18

 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

Ac
tiv

e 
Pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts
 

R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s 

C
ou

nt
 

Av
er

ag
e 

Ag
e 

Av
er

ag
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
ou

nt
 

Av
er

ag
e 

Ag
e 

Av
er

ag
e 

 
M

on
th

ly
 

Am
ou

nt
 

20
09

 
8,

93
8 

46
.4

 
11

.0
 

7,
29

2 
69

.2
 

$3
,1

11
 

20
10

 
8,

81
1 

46
.6

 
11

.1
 

7,
55

9 
69

.3
 

3,
24

8 

20
11

 
8,

62
9 

46
.2

 
10

.7
 

8,
08

5 
69

.1
 

3,
38

1 

20
12

 
8,

64
0 

45
.9

 
10

.2
 

8,
51

7 
69

.0
 

3,
51

8 

20
13

 
9,

12
4 

45
.8

 
10

.1
 

8,
62

5 
69

.3
 

3,
57

9 

20
14

 
9,

15
9 

45
.8

 
9.

9 
8,

87
1 

69
.4

 
3,

66
9 

20
15

 
9,

64
2 

45
.9

 
9.

9 
9,

06
8 

69
.9

 
3,

70
6 

20
16

 
9,

84
8 

45
.9

 
9.

9 
9,

10
0 

70
.0

 
3,

79
9 

20
17

 
10

,0
38

 
46

.0
 

9.
8 

9,
26

7 
70

.3
 

3,
89

2 

20
18

 
10

,0
21

 
46

.2
 

9.
9 

9,
54

7 
70

.4
 

3,
98

6 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
19

 
 

B
. F

in
an

ci
al

 I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 

R
et

ire
m

en
t p

la
n 

fu
nd

in
g 

an
tic

ip
at

es
 th

at
, o

ve
r t

he
 lo

ng
 te

rm
, b

ot
h 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 (l
es

s a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
) a

nd
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s (
le

ss
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ee
s)

 w
ill

 b
e 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 c
ov

er
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
. R

et
ire

m
en

t p
la

n 
as

se
ts

 c
ha

ng
e 

as
 a

 re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

ne
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

se
 in

co
m

e 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ye
ar

, i
s p

re
se

nt
ed

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
3,

 E
xh

ib
its

 E
, F

, G
 

an
d 

H
. 

It 
is

 d
es

ira
bl

e 
to

 h
av

e 
le

ve
l a

nd
 p

re
di

ct
ab

le
 p

la
n 

co
st

s f
ro

m
 o

ne
 y

ea
r t

o 
th

e 
ne

xt
. F

or
 th

is
 re

as
on

, t
he

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
 a

ss
et

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
m

et
ho

d 
th

at
 g

ra
du

al
ly

 a
dj

us
ts

 to
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
. U

nd
er

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
fu

ll 
va

lu
e 

of
 m

ar
ke

t f
lu

ct
ua

tio
ns

 is
 n

ot
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 in
 a

 si
ng

le
 

ye
ar

 a
nd

, a
s a

 re
su

lt,
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

as
se

t v
al

ue
 a

nd
 th

e 
pl

an
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 m
or

e 
st

ab
le

. T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t t
o 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 is

 
tre

at
ed

 a
s i

nc
om

e,
 w

hi
ch

 m
ay

 b
e 

po
si

tiv
e 

or
 n

eg
at

iv
e.

 R
ea

liz
ed

 a
nd

 u
nr

ea
liz

ed
 g

ai
ns

 a
nd

 lo
ss

es
 a

re
 tr

ea
te

d 
eq

ua
lly

 a
nd

, t
he

re
fo

re
, t

he
 sa

le
 o

f 
as

se
ts

 h
as

 n
o 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ue
. 

C
O

M
PA

R
IS

O
N

 O
F 

C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
S 

W
IT

H
 B

EN
EF

IT
S 

FO
R

 Y
EA

R
S 

EN
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

9 
– 

20
18

 

 

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0

45
0

50
0

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

$ Millions      

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
Be

ne
fit

s 
Pa

id



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
20

 
 

D
ET

ER
M

IN
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

AC
TU

AR
IA

L 
VA

LU
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
 

1 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

$8
,1

49
,9

85
,7

93
 

 
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

  
R

et
ur

n 
Ac

tu
al

  
R

et
ur

n 
O

rig
in

al
  

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t  

D
ef

er
re

d 
U

nr
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

 
Am

ou
nt

 
2 

C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

of
 u

nr
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

re
tu

rn
 

a)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
$2

27
,9

09
,7

02
 

$5
88

,7
58

,9
58

 
$3

60
,8

49
,2

56
 

0%
 

$0
 

b)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

4 
24

9,
63

6,
41

0 
34

7,
25

7,
10

6 
97

,6
20

,6
96

 
0%

 
0 

c)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
24

1,
36

1,
74

3 
 

12
5,

72
7,

58
5 

 
(1

15
,6

34
,1

58
) 

10
%

 
(1

1,
56

3,
41

6)
 

d)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

5 
24

6,
28

3,
58

5 
 

20
7,

43
9,

92
0 

 
(3

8,
84

3,
66

5)
 

20
%

 
(7

,7
68

,7
33

) 
e)

 
Pe

rio
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

25
3,

67
2,

47
1 

 
(1

42
,6

12
,6

00
) 

(3
96

,2
85

,0
71

) 
30

%
 

(1
18

,8
85

,5
21

) 
f) 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

6 
23

9,
90

7,
82

2 
 

29
7,

61
5,

32
4 

 
57

,7
07

,5
02

  
40

%
 

23
,0

83
,0

01
  

g)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
24

9,
58

4,
56

7 
 

19
6,

25
8,

91
9 

 
(5

3,
32

5,
64

8)
 

50
%

 
(2

6,
66

2,
82

4)
 

h)
 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

7 
25

5,
72

8,
81

9 
 

48
8,

76
4,

24
5 

 
23

3,
03

5,
42

6 
 

60
%

 
13

9,
82

1,
25

5 
 

i) 
Pe

rio
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

27
1,

87
3,

06
6 

 
49

8,
65

1,
73

6 
 

22
6,

77
8,

67
0 

 
70

%
 

15
8,

74
5,

06
9 

 
j) 

Pe
rio

d 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
01

8 
28

8,
46

0,
47

5 
 

63
,6

45
,3

90
  

(2
24

,8
15

,0
85

) 
80

%
 

(1
79

,8
52

,0
68

) 
k)

 
Pe

rio
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

28
9,

88
9,

30
6 

 
(2

58
,6

76
,2

79
) 

(5
48

,5
65

,5
85

) 
90

%
 

(4
93

,7
09

,0
26

) 
l) 

To
ta

l u
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
re

tu
rn

(2
) 

 
 

 
 

$(
51

6,
79

2,
26

3)
 

3 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
1 

– 
2l

 
$8

,6
66

,7
78

,0
56

 
4 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

10
6.

3%
 

5 
N

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

: 
 

a)
 

Po
st

 R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 B
en

ef
it 

$1
5,

75
7,

91
0 

 
b)

 
St

at
ut

or
y 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

0 
 

c)
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l O
ne

 P
er

ce
nt

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

0 
 

d)
 

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

0 
 

e)
 

To
ta

l 
$1

5,
75

7,
91

0 
 

6 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

3 
– 

5e
 

$8
,6

51
,0

20
,1

46
 

7 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(2

) 
84

1,
92

0 
8 

Fi
na

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
6 

– 
7 

$8
,6

50
,1

78
,2

26
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

)  
D

ef
er

re
d 

re
tu

rn
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 in
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
ne

xt
 fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

: 
 

(a
) 

Am
ou

nt
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

9 
$(

16
0,

42
6,

10
7)

 
 

(b
) 

Am
ou

nt
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

0 
(1

01
,4

65
,4

51
) 

 
(c

) 
Am

ou
nt

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
1 

(6
8,

04
5,

88
0)

 
 

(d
) 

Am
ou

nt
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

2 
(1

31
,9

98
,2

67
) 

 
(e

) 
Am

ou
nt

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
3 

(5
4,

85
6,

55
8)

 
 

(f)
 T

ot
al

 u
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
re

tu
rn

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

$(
51

6,
79

2,
26

3)
 

(2
)  

Th
is

 a
dj

us
tm

en
t i

s 
to

 e
xc

lu
de

 6
 m

on
th

s 
of

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

20
18

 c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r t
ha

t w
er

e 
pr

e-
pa

id
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

9 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r. 

Th
es

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 w

ill 
be

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 v

al
ua

tio
n.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
21

 
 

Th
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

, A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 a

nd
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s a

re
 re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n’

s f
in

an
ci

al
 st

at
us

. A
s i

nv
es

tm
en

t g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 

lo
ss

es
 a

re
 g

ra
du

al
ly

 ta
ke

n 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s t
ra

ck
s t

he
 M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s. 

Th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s i
s 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ue
, e

xc
lu

di
ng

 a
ny

 n
on

-v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

se
rv

es
. T

he
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s i

s s
ig

ni
fic

an
t b

ec
au

se
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

es
e 

as
se

ts
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

w
ha

t p
or

tio
n,

 if
 a

ny
, r

em
ai

ns
 u

nf
un

de
d.

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

is
 a

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 e

le
m

en
t i

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 

M
AR

K
ET

 V
AL

U
E,

 A
C

TU
AR

IA
L 

VA
LU

E,
 A

N
D

 V
AL

U
AT

IO
N

 V
AL

U
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
  

AS
 O

F 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

7 
– 

20
18

 

 

0.
0

1.
0

2.
0

3.
0

4.
0

5.
0

6.
0

7.
0

8.
0

9.
0

10
.0

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

$ Billions       

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
22

 
 

C
. A

ct
ua

ri
al

 E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

To
 c

al
cu

la
te

 a
ny

 a
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n,
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

ab
ou

t f
ut

ur
e 

ev
en

ts
 th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 b
en

ef
its

 
to

 b
e 

pa
id

 a
nd

 a
ss

et
s t

o 
be

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

. E
ac

h 
ye

ar
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 m

ea
su

re
d 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. I

f o
ve

ra
ll 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
is

 m
or

e 
fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 (a
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l g
ai

n)
, t

he
 a

ct
ua

ria
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

w
ill

 d
ec

re
as

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r. 

O
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r h
an

d,
 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 if

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 le

ss
 fa

vo
ra

bl
e 

th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
(a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l l

os
s)

. 

Ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ga
in

s o
r l

os
se

s i
n 

on
e 

ye
ar

 w
ith

ou
t m

ak
in

g 
a 

ch
an

ge
 in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 re
fle

ct
s t

he
 b

el
ie

f t
ha

t t
he

 si
ng

le
 y

ea
r’s

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

w
as

 a
 sh

or
t-t

er
m

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 th
at

, o
ve

r t
he

 lo
ng

 te
rm

, e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

w
ill

 re
tu

rn
 to

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. F
or

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 to
 re

m
ai

n 
st

ab
le

, a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 sh
ou

ld
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e.
  

If 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 c

ha
ng

ed
, t

he
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t i
s a

dj
us

te
d 

to
 ta

ke
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 fo
r a

ll 
fu

tu
re

 
ye

ar
s. 

Th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
re

fle
ct

s c
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d.

 

Th
e 

to
ta

l l
os

s i
s $

16
1.

2 
m

ill
io

n,
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 $
55

.3
 m

ill
io

n 
fro

m
 in

ve
stm

en
t l

os
se

s, 
a 

ga
in

 o
f $

13
.2

 m
ill

io
n 

fro
m

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
an

d 
$1

19
.1

 in
 lo

ss
es

 fr
om

 a
ll 

ot
he

r s
ou

rc
es

. T
he

 n
et

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

va
ria

tio
n 

fr
om

 in
di

vi
du

al
 so

ur
ce

s o
th

er
 th

an
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

w
as

 1
.2

%
 o

f t
he

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 A

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s o

f t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

is
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

s. 

AC
TU

AR
IA

L 
EX

PE
R

IE
N

C
E 

FO
R

 Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 

1 
N

et
 lo

ss
 fr

om
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
(1

) 
$(

55
,2

52
,6

87
) 

2 
N

et
 g

ai
n 

fro
m

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
13

,1
73

,3
04

 

3 
N

et
 lo

ss
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e(2

) 
(1

19
,1

41
,1

11
) 

4 
N

et
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
lo

ss
:  

1 
+ 

2 
+ 

3 
$(

16
1,

22
0,

49
4)

 
(1

)  
D

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
ne

xt
 p

ag
e.

 
(2

)  
Se

e 
S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
E

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 d

et
ai

ls
. D

oe
s 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f p

la
n 

or
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s,
 if

 a
ny

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
23

 
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

A
 m

aj
or

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 a

ss
et

 g
ro

w
th

 is
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n.

 T
he

 a
ss

um
ed

 re
tu

rn
 sh

ou
ld

 re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
lo

ng
-te

rm
 ra

te
 

of
 re

tu
rn

, b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ol
ic

y.
 T

he
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

on
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s w

as
 -2

.3
3%

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8.

 

Fo
r v

al
ua

tio
n 

pu
rp

os
es

, t
he

 a
ss

um
ed

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
on

 th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s i
s 7

.0
0%

. T
he

 a
ct

ua
l r

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

 o
n 

a 
va

lu
at

io
n 

ba
si

s 
fo

r t
he

 2
01

8 
pl

an
 y

ea
r w

as
 6

.3
2%

. S
in

ce
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 re
tu

rn
 fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r w
as

 le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 re
tu

rn
, t

he
 P

la
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l l

os
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 it

s i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

. 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T 

EX
PE

R
IE

N
CE

 F
O

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

1 
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e 

$(
19

5,
03

0,
88

8)
 

$5
16

,8
25

,8
83

  
$5

15
,7

66
,3

23
  

2 
Av

er
ag

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s 
8,

36
7,

64
0,

78
7 

8,
17

2,
57

6,
27

9 
8,

15
7,

41
4,

42
9 

3 
R

at
e 

of
 re

tu
rn

: 1
 ÷

 2
 

-2
.3

3%
 

6.
32

%
 

6.
32

%
 

4 
As

su
m

ed
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

7.
00

%
 

7.
00

%
 

7.
00

%
 

5 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e:

 2
 x

 4
 

$5
85

,7
34

,8
55

 
$5

72
,0

80
,3

39
 

$5
71

,0
19

,0
10

 

6 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l g

ai
n/

(lo
ss

): 
1 

– 
5 

$(
78

0,
76

5,
74

3)
 

$(
55

,2
54

,4
56

) 
$(

55
,2

52
,6

87
) 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
24

 
 

Be
ca

us
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l p
la

nn
in

g 
is

 lo
ng

 te
rm

, i
t i

s u
se

fu
l t

o 
se

e 
ho

w
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 h

as
 fo

llo
w

ed
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ov
er

 
tim

e.
 T

he
 c

ha
rt 

be
lo

w
 sh

ow
s t

he
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

on
 a

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

nd
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ba
si

s c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n 

fo
r 

th
e 

la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

av
er

ag
es

 o
ve

r s
el

ec
t t

im
e 

pe
rio

ds
. 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T 

R
ET

U
R

N
 –

 M
AR

K
ET

 V
AL

U
E,

 A
C

TU
AR

IA
L 

VA
LU

E 
AN

D
 V

AL
U

AT
IO

N
 V

AL
U

E:
 2

00
9 

– 
20

18
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t 

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t 

Am
ou

nt
 

Pe
rc

en
t 

20
09

 
$7

36
,9

56
,8

91
 

19
.6

8%
 

$1
8,

22
6,

93
3 

0.
34

%
 

$1
7,

02
1,

11
6 

0.
32

%
 

20
10

 
59

4,
63

7,
09

0 
13

.3
5%

 
95

,9
18

,9
13

 
1.

82
%

 
94

,8
35

,0
30

 
1.

80
%

 

20
11

 
88

,0
42

,2
68

 
1.

76
%

 
14

8,
05

8,
54

8 
2.

78
%

 
14

6,
98

8,
61

4 
2.

77
%

 

20
12

 
66

8,
13

8,
99

7 
13

.3
1%

 
12

1,
92

1,
30

2 
2.

25
%

 
12

0,
82

6,
17

7 
2.

24
%

 

20
13

 
87

0,
98

4,
74

4 
15

.5
0%

 
49

2,
50

3,
80

2 
9.

01
%

 
49

1,
32

4,
30

8 
9.

02
%

 

20
14

 
47

3,
52

2,
26

1 
7.

35
%

 
67

3,
04

0,
86

7 
11

.3
9%

 
67

1,
95

7,
21

2 
11

.4
0%

 

20
15

 
65

,4
95

,6
57

 
0.

95
%

 
57

7,
19

9,
12

3 
8.

78
%

 
57

6,
15

1,
24

5 
8.

79
%

 

20
16

 
49

3,
87

4,
24

2 
7.

10
%

 
50

2,
35

2,
17

3 
7.

04
%

 
50

1,
32

8,
14

9 
7.

04
%

 

20
17

 
98

7,
41

5,
98

1 
13

.3
1%

 
60

8,
51

9,
87

4 
8.

00
%

 
60

7,
47

7,
59

7 
8.

00
%

 

20
18

 
 (1

95
,0

30
,8

88
) 

-2
.3

3%
 

 5
16

,8
25

,8
83

  
6.

32
%

 
 5

15
,7

66
,3

23
  

6.
32

%
 

M
os

t r
ec

en
t f

iv
e-

ye
ar

 g
eo

m
et

ric
 a

ve
ra

ge
 re

tu
rn

 
5.

06
%

 
 

8.
13

%
 

 
8.

13
%

 

M
os

t r
ec

en
t t

en
-y

ea
r g

eo
m

et
ric

 a
ve

ra
ge

 re
tu

rn
 

7.
98

%
 

 
6.

03
%

 
 

6.
03

%
 

N
ot

e:
 E

ac
h 

ye
ar

’s
 y

ie
ld

 is
 w

ei
gh

te
d 

by
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
as

se
t v

al
ue

 in
 th

at
 y

ea
r. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
25

 
 

Su
bs

ec
tio

n 
B 

de
sc

rib
ed

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

et
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d 

th
at

 g
ra

du
al

ly
 re

co
gn

iz
es

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n.

 T
he

 g
oa

l 
of

 th
is

 is
 to

 st
ab

ili
ze

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l r
at

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
 a

nd
 to

 p
ro

du
ce

 m
or

e 
le

ve
l p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

co
st

s. 

M
AR

K
ET

, A
C

TU
AR

IA
L 

AN
D

 V
AL

U
A

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 O
F 

R
ET

U
R

N
  

FO
R

 Y
EA

R
S 

EN
D

ED
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

7 
– 

20
18

 

 

-4
0%

-3
0%

-2
0%

-1
0%0%10

%

20
%

30
%

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
26

 
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
to

ta
le

d 
$4

27
.8

 m
ill

io
n 

(a
fte

r e
xc

lu
di

ng
 th

e 
pr

e-
pa

id
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 b

y 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 fo

r t
he

 2
01

9 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r)

, c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

41
5.

1 
m

ill
io

n.
 T

hi
s r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 a

 g
ai

n 
of

 $
13

.2
 

m
ill

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 y

ea
r, 

w
he

n 
ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r t
im

in
g.

 

O
th

er
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
ot

he
r d

iff
er

en
ce

s b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

th
at

 a
pp

ea
r w

he
n 

th
e 

ne
w

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
is

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 T

he
se

 in
cl

ud
e:

 


 

th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f t
ur

no
ve

r a
m

on
g 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s, 


 

re
tir

em
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

(e
ar

lie
r o

r l
at

er
 th

an
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

), 


 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
(m

or
e 

or
 fe

w
er

 d
ea

th
s t

ha
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d)
,  


 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f d
is

ab
ili

ty
 re

tir
em

en
ts

 (m
or

e 
or

 fe
w

er
 th

an
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

), 
 


 

sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s (

gr
ea

te
r o

r s
m

al
le

r t
ha

n 
pr

oj
ec

te
d)

,  


 

co
st

-o
f-l

iv
in

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 (C

O
LA

s)
 h

ig
he

r o
r l

ow
er

 th
an

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

, a
nd

  


 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 d

iff
er

en
t t

ha
n 

as
su

m
ed

. 

Th
e 

ne
t l

os
s f

ro
m

 th
is

 o
th

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

am
ou

nt
ed

 to
 $

11
9.

1 
m

ill
io

n,
 w

hi
ch

 is
 1

.2
%

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l 

A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 T

hi
s l

os
s w

as
 m

ai
nl

y 
du

e 
to

 h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
s a

nd
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 in

di
vi

du
al

 sa
la

ry
 in

cr
ea

se
s f

or
 

ac
tiv

es
. S

ee
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
E 

fo
r a

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
27

 
 

D
. O

th
er

 C
ha

ng
es

 in
 t

he
 A

ct
ua

ri
al

 A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 

Th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 $

9.
7 

bi
lli

on
, a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f $
0.

4 
bi

lli
on

, o
r 4

.8
%

, f
ro

m
 th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 a
s o

f t
he

 p
rio

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
. T

he
 li

ab
ili

ty
 is

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 g
ro

w
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 w
ith

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 in
te

re
st

, a
nd

 to
 d

ec
lin

e 
du

e 
to

 b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

 m
ad

e.
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 fl
uc

tu
at

io
ns

 c
an

 o
cc

ur
 d

ue
 to

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
th

at
 d

iff
er

s f
ro

m
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

(a
s d

is
cu

ss
ed

 in
 th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 

su
bs

ec
tio

n)
. 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 


 

Th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s r

ef
le

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt 

w
er

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

A
ct

ua
ria

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y 
re

po
rt 

da
te

d 
A

pr
il 

23
, 2

01
9.

 

• 
Th

es
e 

ch
an

ge
s d

ec
re

as
ed

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
by

 a
bo

ut
 $

90
 m

ill
io

n 
(o

r a
 0

.9
%

 d
ec

re
as

e)
 a

nd
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 th
e 

to
ta

l 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t b

y 
0.

49
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
(a

 d
ec

re
as

e 
of

 a
bo

ut
 1

.8
%

). 
Th

e 
to

ta
l (

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r)

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 d
ec

re
as

e 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s w

as
 1

.2
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll.
 

• 
Th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s i
nc

lu
de

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
 m

er
it 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s, 
re

tir
em

en
t f

ro
m

 a
ct

iv
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

m
or

ta
lit

y,
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
in

ci
de

nc
e,

 te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 re
tir

em
en

t a
ge

 fo
r d

ef
er

re
d 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, p

er
ce

nt
 o

f m
em

be
rs

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 g

o 
on

 to
 w

or
k 

fo
r a

 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 sy
st

em
, r

ec
ip

ro
ca

l s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s, 
pe

rc
en

t m
ar

rie
d,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

ts
 a

nd
 si

ck
 le

av
e 

co
nv

er
si

on
s. 

 


 

D
et

ai
ls

 o
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 m
et

ho
ds

 a
re

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I. 

P
la

n 
P

ro
vi

si
on

s 


 
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 p

la
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 si

nc
e 

th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 


 

A
 su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 p

la
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 is

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

II.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
28

 
 

E
.  

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ri
al

 A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
FO

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

1 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
at

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f y
ea

r 
 

$1
,0

59
,3

55
,7

29
 

2 
To

ta
l N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

t m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r(1

)  
 

23
8,

00
9,

50
8 

3 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
 

9,
72

5,
06

5 
 

4 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

 
(4

15
,0

80
,4

01
) 

5 
In

te
re

st
 

 
68

,6
07

,5
65

  

6 
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
at

 e
nd

 o
f y

ea
r 

 
$9

60
,6

17
,4

66
 

7 
C

ha
ng

es
 d

ue
 to

: 
 

 

 
a)

 In
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
le

ss
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

$5
5,

25
2,

68
7 

 
 

 
b)

 A
ct

ua
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

(1
2,

91
1,

80
3)

 
 

 
c)

 G
ai

n 
fro

m
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

(2
61

,5
01

) 
 

 
d)

 In
di

vi
du

al
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

20
,9

84
,3

10
  

 

 
e)

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
s 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

67
,0

57
,5

26
  

 

 
f) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
lo

ss
 o

n 
ac

tiv
es

 (e
ar

lie
r r

et
ire

m
en

ts
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d)

 
17

,4
09

,5
57

  
 

 
g)

 O
th

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
lo

ss
(2

)  
13

,6
89

,7
18

  
 

 
h)

 A
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

(8
9,

87
2,

43
6)

 
 

 
To

ta
l c

ha
ng

es
 

 
$7

1,
34

8,
05

8 
 

8 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
at

 e
nd

 o
f y

ea
r 

 
$1

,0
31

,9
65

,5
24

 

N
ot

e:
 T

he
 s

um
 o

f i
te

m
s 

7d
 th

ro
ug

h 
7g

 e
qu

al
s 

th
e 

“N
et

 lo
ss

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e”
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

C
.  

(1
)  

Ex
cl

ud
es

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
. 

(2
) 

O
th

er
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
in

 a
ct

ua
l v

er
su

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

(b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
) d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 te
rm

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
29

 
 

F.
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 

Th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
is

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t p
ay

m
en

t a
nd

 a
 p

ay
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 

A
s o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8,
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

is
 3

5.
72

%
 o

f c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

Th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
se

ts
 th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y 

us
ed

 to
 c

al
cu

la
te

 th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 la

ye
re

d 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
ds

. S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 

Ex
hi

bi
t I

 fo
r f

ur
th

er
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y.

 

Th
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t a

s o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

da
ta

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

de
sc

rib
ed

, t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 P
la

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
l c

ha
ng

es
 a

ff
ec

tin
g 

fu
tu

re
 c

os
ts

 a
do

pt
ed

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n,

 a
ct

ua
ria

l g
ai

ns
 

an
d 

lo
ss

es
, a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. 

AV
ER

AG
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 F

O
R

 Y
EA

R
 E

N
D

IN
G

 D
EC

EM
BE

R
 3

1 

Al
l T

ie
rs

 C
om

bi
ne

d 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Am

ou
nt

 
($

 in
 ‘0

00
s)

 
%

 o
f P

ro
je

ct
ed

 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Am
ou

nt
 

($
 in

 ‘0
00

s)
 

%
 o

f P
ro

je
ct

ed
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
1 

To
ta

l N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
$2

48
,9

41
 

27
.7

8%
 

$2
46

,0
99

 
28

.5
9%

 
2 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

10
7,

34
6 

11
.9

8%
 

10
3,

55
1 

12
.0

3%
 

3 
Em

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t: 

 1
 –

 2
 

$1
41

,5
95

  
15

.8
0%

 
$1

42
,5

48
  

16
.5

6%
 

4 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

9,
68

2,
14

4 
 

9,
23

9,
24

7 
 

5 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

8,
65

0,
17

8 
 

8,
17

9,
89

1 
 

6 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y:
 4

 –
 5

 
$1

,0
31

,9
66

  
 

1,
05

9,
35

6 
 

7 
Pa

ym
en

t o
n 

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

17
8,

52
1 

19
.9

2%
 

16
7,

89
1 

19
.5

1%
 

8 
To

ta
l a

ve
ra

ge
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n:

 3
 +

 7
 

$3
20

,1
16

  
35

.7
2%

 
$3

10
,4

39
  

36
.0

7%
 

9 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$8

96
,3

91
  

 
$8

60
,6

25
  

 
N

ot
e:

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
pa

id
 a

t t
he

 m
id

dl
e 

of
 th

e 
ye

ar
.  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
30

 
 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
ti

on
 o

f 
A

ve
ra

ge
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

E
m

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

e 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

et
ai

ls
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fro

m
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t y
ea

r’s
 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

AV
ER

AG
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
E 

FR
O

M
 D

EC
EM

BE
R

 3
1,

 2
01

7 
TO

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

e(1
) 

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

D
ol

la
r A

m
ou

nt
(2

)  
Av

er
ag

e 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

36
.0

7%
 

$3
10

,4
39

,4
14

 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t r
et

ur
n 

le
ss

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
0.

47
%

 
$4

,2
13

,0
37

  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
(0

.1
1%

) 
 (9

86
,0

30
) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

0.
00

%
 

 (2
0,

06
2)

 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
 

0.
18

%
 

 1
,6

13
,5

03
  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

m
or

tiz
in

g 
pr

io
r y

ea
r’s

 U
AA

L 
ov

er
 a

 la
rg

er
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

ta
l p

ay
ro

ll 
(0

.1
4%

) 
 5

,4
03

,8
62

(3
) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f C

O
LA

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
hi

gh
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
0.

57
%

 
 5

,1
09

,4
27

  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

lo
ss

 o
n 

ac
tiv

es
 (e

ar
lie

r r
et

ire
m

en
ts

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d)
 

0.
15

%
 

 1
,3

44
,5

86
  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 m
em

be
r d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
s 

on
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

(0
.3

0%
) 

 (2
,6

89
,1

72
) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 

(0
.0

3%
) 

 (2
68

,9
17

) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f o

th
er

 lo
ss

es
(4

)  
0.

12
%

 
 (3

,7
75

,0
97

) 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(1

.2
6%

) 
 (2

68
,9

17
) 

To
ta

l c
ha

ng
e 

(0
.3

5%
) 

$9
,6

76
,2

20
  

Av
er

ag
e 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
Em

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
35

.7
2%

 
 $

32
0,

11
5,

63
4 

 
(1

)  
Th

es
e 

ra
te

s 
do

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
y 

em
pl

oy
er

 s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, o
r m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

. 
(2

) 
Ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n.

 
(3

) 
R

ep
re

se
nt

s 
th

e 
do

lla
r i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 U

AA
L 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

ba
se

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

(4
) 

O
th

er
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
in

 a
ct

ua
l v

er
su

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

(b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
) d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 m
or

ta
lit

y,
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 E

st
im

at
ed

 a
nn

ua
l d

ol
la

r c
os

t a
ls

o 
re

fle
ct

s 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 p
ay

ro
ll 

fro
m

 p
rio

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
31

 
 

R
ec

on
ci

lia
ti

on
 o

f 
A

ve
ra

ge
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

M
em

be
r 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

et
ai

ls
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s i
n 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

fro
m

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r’s

 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 

R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

AV
ER

AG
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
  

FR
O

M
 D

EC
EM

BE
R

 3
1,

 2
01

7 
TO

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

e(1
) 

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

D
ol

la
r A

m
ou

nt
(2

)  
Av

er
ag

e 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
12

.0
3%

 
$1

03
,5

51
,3

07
 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 

0.
00

%
 

$0
  

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

es
 in

 m
em

be
r d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
s(3

)  
(0

.0
2%

) 
4,

06
3,

98
7 

 

• 
Ef

fe
ct

 o
f c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(0

.0
3%

) 
(2

68
,9

17
) 

To
ta

l c
ha

ng
e 

(0
.0

5%
) 

$3
,7

95
,0

70
  

Av
er

ag
e 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
M

em
be

r C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

11
.9

8%
 

$1
07

,3
46

,3
77

 
(1

)  
Th

es
e 

ra
te

s 
do

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
y 

em
pl

oy
er

 s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, o
r m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

. 
(2

) 
Ba

se
d 

on
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
ho

w
n.

 
(3

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 p
ro

fil
e 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p.
 E

st
im

at
ed

 a
nn

ua
l d

ol
la

r c
os

t a
ls

o 
re

fle
ct

s 
ch

an
ge

 in
 p

ay
ro

ll 
fro

m
 p

rio
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
32

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$1
,6

76
,6

98
 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$1
,8

74
,6

29
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
1,

46
1,

36
3 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

1,
45

7,
25

9 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

22
.6

3%
 

5.
35

%
 

27
.9

8%
 

$3
,1

38
,0

61
 

23
.0

6%
 

5.
20

%
 

28
.2

6%
 

$3
,3

31
,8

88
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$1
,0

48
,1

46
 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$1
,0

82
,6

21
 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
1,

55
1,

53
7 

15
.7

9%
 

5.
72

%
 

21
.5

1%
 

1,
46

4,
60

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

27
.6

8%
 

9.
40

%
 

37
.0

8%
 

$2
,5

99
,6

83
 

28
.1

4%
 

9.
27

%
 

37
.4

1%
 

$2
,5

47
,2

23
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ P
O

B
 (M

or
ag

a)
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.5
5%

 
3.

40
%

 
14

.9
5%

 
$1

04
,4

39
 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$8
9,

20
6 

U
AA

L 
9.

07
%

 
1.

91
%

 
10

.9
8%

 
76

,7
05

 
8.

47
%

 
1.

48
%

 
9.

95
%

 
55

,8
24

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

20
.6

2%
 

5.
31

%
 

25
.9

3%
 

$1
81

,1
44

 
20

.8
2%

 
5.

03
%

 
25

.8
5%

 
$1

45
,0

30
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ U
A

AL
 P

re
pa

ym
en

t (
Fi

rs
t F

iv
e)

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$2
23

,3
66

 
12

.3
5%

 
3.

55
%

 
15

.9
0%

 
$2

38
,7

33
 

U
AA

L 
11

.3
1%

 
2.

35
%

 
13

.6
6%

 
20

4,
09

3 
10

.5
6%

 
1.

76
%

 
12

.3
2%

 
18

4,
98

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

22
.8

6%
 

5.
75

%
 

28
.6

1%
 

$4
27

,4
59

 
22

.9
1%

 
5.

31
%

 
28

.2
2%

 
$4

23
,7

13
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ U
A

AL
 P

re
pa

ym
en

t (
LA

FC
O

) 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.5

5%
 

3.
40

%
 

14
.9

5%
 

$3
5,

49
5 

12
.3

5%
 

3.
55

%
 

15
.9

0%
 

$3
6,

57
0 

U
AA

L 
15

.3
8%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.1
0%

 
50

,0
96

 
15

.0
4%

 
5.

44
%

 
20

.4
8%

 
47

,1
04

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

26
.9

3%
 

9.
12

%
 

36
.0

5%
 

$8
5,

59
1 

27
.3

9%
 

8.
99

%
 

36
.3

8%
 

$8
3,

67
4 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$0
 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$0
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
0 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

19
.8

8%
 

4.
91

%
 

24
.7

9%
 

$0
 

19
.6

6%
 

4.
66

%
 

24
.3

2%
 

$0
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
33

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
D

is
tr

ic
t G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$3
28

,7
49

 
8.

95
%

 
3.

01
%

 
11

.9
6%

 
$2

77
,2

55
 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
61

8,
64

1 
15

.7
9%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.5
1%

 
49

8,
64

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.9

3%
 

8.
96

%
 

33
.8

9%
 

$9
47

,3
90

 
24

.7
4%

 
8.

73
%

 
33

.4
7%

 
$7

75
,8

97
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ P

O
B

 (M
or

ag
a)

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$1
5,

56
9 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$2
5,

74
4 

U
AA

L 
9.

07
%

 
1.

91
%

 
10

.9
8%

 
14

,5
37

 
8.

47
%

 
1.

48
%

 
9.

95
%

 
21

,4
17

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

17
.8

7%
 

4.
87

%
 

22
.7

4%
 

$3
0,

10
6 

17
.4

2%
 

4.
49

%
 

21
.9

1%
 

$4
7,

16
1 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e)
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
8.

80
%

 
2.

96
%

 
11

.7
6%

 
$1

48
,2

54
 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$1
23

,8
47

 
U

AA
L 

11
.3

1%
 

2.
35

%
 

13
.6

6%
 

17
2,

20
6 

10
.5

6%
 

1.
76

%
 

12
.3

2%
 

12
7,

57
5 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
20

.1
1%

 
5.

31
%

 
25

.4
2%

 
$3

20
,4

60
 

19
.5

1%
 

4.
77

%
 

24
.2

8%
 

$2
51

,4
22

 
D

is
tr

ic
t G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/ U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t (
LA

FC
O

) 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

$0
 

8.
95

%
 

3.
01

%
 

11
.9

6%
 

$0
 

U
AA

L 
15

.3
8%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.1
0%

 
0 

15
.0

4%
 

5.
44

%
 

20
.4

8%
 

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.1

8%
 

8.
68

%
 

32
.8

6%
 

$0
 

23
.9

9%
 

8.
45

%
 

32
.4

4%
 

$0
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
68

%
 

1.
99

%
 

10
.6

7%
 

$0
 

8.
80

%
 

2.
02

%
 

10
.8

2%
 

$0
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
0 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

19
.7

6%
 

3.
94

%
 

23
.7

0%
 

$0
 

19
.5

1%
 

3.
67

%
 

23
.1

8%
 

$0
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
34

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.8

4%
 

3.
34

%
 

15
.1

8%
 

$6
1,

28
0,

87
8 

12
.3

1%
 

3.
43

%
 

15
.7

4%
 

$6
5,

05
0,

70
5 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
52

,6
01

,4
39

 
10

.7
1%

 
1.

65
%

 
12

.3
6%

 
51

,0
81

,7
48

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

22
.9

2%
 

5.
29

%
 

28
.2

1%
 

$1
13

,8
82

,3
17

 
23

.0
2%

 
5.

08
%

 
28

.1
0%

 
$1

16
,1

32
,4

53
 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.8

4%
 

3.
34

%
 

15
.1

8%
 

$4
68

,7
89

 
12

.3
1%

 
3.

43
%

 
15

.7
4%

 
$5

08
,1

94
 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
68

3,
41

8 
15

.7
9%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.5
1%

 
69

4,
48

9 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

27
.9

7%
 

9.
34

%
 

37
.3

1%
 

$1
,1

52
,2

07
 

28
.1

0%
 

9.
15

%
 

37
.2

5%
 

$1
,2

02
,6

83
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rt

s 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
39

%
 

2.
76

%
 

11
.1

5%
 

$6
,4

56
,4

52
 

8.
42

%
 

2.
79

%
 

11
.2

1%
 

$6
,4

76
,3

14
 

U
AA

L 
11

.0
8%

 
1.

95
%

 
13

.0
3%

 
7,

54
5,

07
3 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

7,
14

0,
70

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

19
.4

7%
 

4.
71

%
 

24
.1

8%
 

$1
4,

00
1,

52
5 

19
.1

3%
 

4.
44

%
 

23
.5

7%
 

$1
3,

61
7,

01
4 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/o

 P
O

B
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
8.

39
%

 
2.

76
%

 
11

.1
5%

 
$9

1,
19

7 
8.

42
%

 
2.

79
%

 
11

.2
1%

 
$5

8,
35

9 
U

AA
L 

16
.1

3%
 

6.
00

%
 

22
.1

3%
 

18
1,

00
3 

15
.7

9%
 

5.
72

%
 

21
.5

1%
 

11
1,

98
0 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
24

.5
2%

 
8.

76
%

 
33

.2
8%

 
$2

72
,2

00
 

24
.2

1%
 

8.
51

%
 

32
.7

2%
 

$1
70

,3
39

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/ C
ou

rt
s 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
8.

16
%

 
1.

84
%

 
10

.0
0%

 
$1

8,
63

5,
93

8 
8.

20
%

 
1.

87
%

 
10

.0
7%

 
$1

5,
30

2,
81

3 
U

AA
L 

11
.0

8%
 

1.
95

%
 

13
.0

3%
 

24
,2

82
,6

27
 

10
.7

1%
 

1.
65

%
 

12
.3

6%
 

18
,7

82
,7

97
 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
19

.2
4%

 
3.

79
%

 
23

.0
3%

 
$4

2,
91

8,
56

5 
18

.9
1%

 
3.

52
%

 
22

.4
3%

 
$3

4,
08

5,
61

0 
D

is
tr

ic
t G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
16

%
 

1.
84

%
 

10
.0

0%
 

$3
3,

18
9 

8.
20

%
 

1.
87

%
 

10
.0

7%
 

$2
6,

38
0 

U
AA

L 
16

.1
3%

 
6.

00
%

 
22

.1
3%

 
73

,4
48

 
15

.7
9%

 
5.

72
%

 
21

.5
1%

 
56

,3
50

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.2

9%
 

7.
84

%
 

32
.1

3%
 

$1
06

,6
37

 
23

.9
9%

 
7.

59
%

 
31

.5
8%

 
$8

2,
73

0 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
35

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

C
C

SD
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

12
.3

6%
 

3.
67

%
 

16
.0

3%
 

$4
,5

62
,0

37
 

13
.3

0%
 

3.
88

%
 

17
.1

8%
 

$4
,9

47
,2

50
 

U
AA

L 
23

.2
3%

 
11

.5
8%

 
34

.8
1%

 
9,

90
6,

70
7 

22
.9

9%
 

10
.4

3%
 

33
.4

2%
 

9,
62

3,
81

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

35
.5

9%
 

15
.2

5%
 

50
.8

4%
 

$1
4,

46
8,

74
4 

36
.2

9%
 

14
.3

1%
 

50
.6

0%
 

$1
4,

57
1,

06
2 

C
C

C
SD

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
23

%
 

2.
83

%
 

11
.0

6%
 

$7
72

,3
46

 
8.

03
%

 
2.

80
%

 
10

.8
3%

 
$6

01
,3

34
 

U
AA

L 
23

.2
3%

 
11

.5
8%

 
34

.8
1%

 
2,

43
0,

86
3 

22
.9

9%
 

10
.4

3%
 

33
.4

2%
 

1,
85

5,
64

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

31
.4

6%
 

14
.4

1%
 

45
.8

7%
 

$3
,2

03
,2

09
 

31
.0

2%
 

13
.2

3%
 

44
.2

5%
 

$2
,4

56
,9

74
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

12
.7

7%
 

3.
65

%
 

16
.4

2%
 

$6
85

,0
17

 
13

.2
4%

 
3.

74
%

 
16

.9
8%

 
$6

94
,6

27
 

U
AA

L 
16

.4
4%

 
10

.5
7%

 
27

.0
1%

 
1,

12
6,

81
5 

16
.3

6%
 

9.
71

%
 

26
.0

7%
 

1,
06

6,
48

6 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

29
.2

1%
 

14
.2

2%
 

43
.4

3%
 

$1
,8

11
,8

32
 

29
.6

0%
 

13
.4

5%
 

43
.0

5%
 

$1
,7

61
,1

13
 

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

8.
96

%
 

3.
02

%
 

11
.9

8%
 

$1
86

,7
34

 
9.

49
%

 
3.

24
%

 
12

.7
3%

 
$1

89
,9

28
 

U
AA

L 
16

.4
4%

 
10

.5
7%

 
27

.0
1%

 
42

1,
01

0 
16

.3
6%

 
9.

71
%

 
26

.0
7%

 
38

8,
95

7 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

25
.4

0%
 

13
.5

9%
 

38
.9

9%
 

$6
07

,7
44

 
25

.8
5%

 
12

.9
5%

 
38

.8
0%

 
$5

78
,8

85
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
36

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.7
5%

 
3.

45
%

 
15

.2
0%

 
$5

84
,4

64
 

12
.2

7%
 

3.
52

%
 

15
.7

9%
 

$6
06

,9
75

 
U

AA
L 

10
.5

3%
 

7.
93

%
 

18
.4

6%
 

70
9,

81
7 

10
.1

2%
 

6.
84

%
 

16
.9

6%
 

65
1,

95
1 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
22

.2
8%

 
11

.3
8%

 
33

.6
6%

 
$1

,2
94

,2
81

 
22

.3
9%

 
10

.3
6%

 
32

.7
5%

 
$1

,2
58

,9
26

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

11
.3

8%
 

3.
79

%
 

15
.1

7%
 

$2
7,

02
4 

11
.4

4%
 

3.
90

%
 

15
.3

4%
 

$2
5,

75
3 

U
AA

L 
10

.5
3%

 
7.

93
%

 
18

.4
6%

 
32

,8
85

 
10

.1
2%

 
6.

84
%

 
16

.9
6%

 
28

,4
73

 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

21
.9

1%
 

11
.7

2%
 

33
.6

3%
 

$5
9,

90
9 

21
.5

6%
 

10
.7

4%
 

32
.3

0%
 

$5
4,

22
6 

C
C

C
FP

D
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
)  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
10

.0
7%

 
2.

27
%

 
12

.3
4%

 
$2

12
,7

17
 

9.
46

%
 

2.
19

%
 

11
.6

5%
 

$1
31

,9
56

 
U

AA
L 

10
.5

3%
 

7.
93

%
 

18
.4

6%
 

31
8,

21
3 

10
.1

2%
 

6.
84

%
 

16
.9

6%
 

19
2,

10
1 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
20

.6
0%

 
10

.2
0%

 
30

.8
0%

 
$5

30
,9

30
 

19
.5

8%
 

9.
03

%
 

28
.6

1%
 

$3
24

,0
57

 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
37

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
12

.5
8%

 
3.

84
%

 
16

.4
2%

 
$1

14
,8

39
 

13
.2

7%
 

3.
95

%
 

17
.2

2%
 

$1
14

,2
14

 
U

AA
L 

0.
16

%
 

0.
00

%
 

0.
16

%
 

1,
11

9 
0.

19
%

 
0.

00
%

 
0.

19
%

 
1,

26
0 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
12

.7
4%

 
3.

84
%

 
16

.5
8%

 
$1

15
,9

58
 

13
.4

6%
 

3.
95

%
 

17
.4

1%
 

$1
15

,4
74

 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tr
ic

t G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

9.
39

%
 

3.
21

%
 

12
.6

0%
 

$3
0,

35
5 

10
.0

1%
 

3.
47

%
 

13
.4

8%
 

$2
5,

26
6 

U
AA

L 
0.

16
%

 
0.

00
%

 
0.

16
%

 
38

5 
0.

19
%

 
0.

00
%

 
0.

19
%

 
35

6 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

9.
55

%
 

3.
21

%
 

12
.7

6%
 

$3
0,

74
0 

10
.2

0%
 

3.
47

%
 

13
.6

7%
 

$2
5,

62
2 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
22

.3
6%

 
7.

06
%

 
29

.4
2%

 
$1

6,
43

8,
11

8 
23

.0
0%

 
7.

35
%

 
30

.3
5%

 
$1

7,
46

3,
31

5 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

23
,1

76
,5

17
 

22
.5

9%
 

19
.5

4%
 

42
.1

3%
 

24
,2

41
,4

98
 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
44

.3
7%

 
26

.5
3%

 
70

.9
0%

 
$3

9,
61

4,
63

5 
45

.5
9%

 
26

.8
9%

 
72

.4
8%

 
$4

1,
70

4,
81

3 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
14

.3
1%

 
5.

73
%

 
20

.0
4%

 
$7

31
,5

00
 

14
.8

6%
 

6.
13

%
 

20
.9

9%
 

$7
40

,7
93

 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

1,
51

4,
10

4 
22

.5
9%

 
19

.5
4%

 
42

.1
3%

 
1,

48
6,

87
9 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
36

.3
2%

 
25

.2
0%

 
61

.5
2%

 
$2

,2
45

,6
04

 
37

.4
5%

 
25

.6
7%

 
63

.1
2%

 
$2

,2
27

,6
72

 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
38

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
21

.9
4%

 
7.

00
%

 
28

.9
4%

 
$8

,8
90

,9
08

 
22

.6
0%

 
7.

30
%

 
29

.9
0%

 
$8

,6
34

,7
67

 
U

AA
L 

11
.9

1%
 

26
.5

3%
 

38
.4

4%
 

11
,8

09
,4

85
 

14
.6

3%
 

28
.3

6%
 

42
.9

9%
 

12
,4

15
,0

04
 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
33

.8
5%

 
33

.5
3%

 
67

.3
8%

 
$2

0,
70

0,
39

3 
37

.2
3%

 
35

.6
6%

 
72

.8
9%

 
$2

1,
04

9,
77

1 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
21

.9
4%

 
7.

00
%

 
28

.9
4%

 
$8

54
,8

68
 

22
.6

0%
 

7.
30

%
 

29
.9

0%
 

$7
67

,3
50

 
U

AA
L 

37
.8

2%
 

46
.3

0%
 

84
.1

2%
 

2,
48

4,
84

9 
42

.8
4%

 
49

.8
7%

 
92

.7
1%

 
2,

37
9,

29
7 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
59

.7
6%

 
53

.3
0%

 
11

3.
06

%
 

$3
,3

39
,7

17
 

65
.4

4%
 

57
.1

7%
 

12
2.

61
%

 
$3

,1
46

,6
47

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
13

.0
5%

 
5.

35
%

 
18

.4
0%

 
$3

30
,8

75
 

14
.2

8%
 

6.
00

%
 

20
.2

8%
 

$3
59

,8
01

 
U

AA
L 

11
.9

1%
 

26
.5

3%
 

38
.4

4%
 

69
1,

24
2 

14
.6

3%
 

28
.3

6%
 

42
.9

9%
 

76
2,

71
5 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
24

.9
6%

 
31

.8
8%

 
56

.8
4%

 
$1

,0
22

,1
17

 
28

.9
1%

 
34

.3
6%

 
63

.2
7%

 
$1

,1
22

,5
16

 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
13

.0
5%

 
5.

35
%

 
18

.4
0%

 
$7

1,
74

8 
14

.2
8%

 
6.

00
%

 
20

.2
8%

 
$6

2,
49

1 
U

AA
L 

37
.8

2%
 

46
.3

0%
 

84
.1

2%
 

32
8,

01
2 

42
.8

4%
 

49
.8

7%
 

92
.7

1%
 

28
5,

67
6 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
50

.8
7%

 
51

.6
5%

 
10

2.
52

%
 

$3
99

,7
60

 
57

.1
2%

 
55

.8
7%

 
11

2.
99

%
 

$3
48

,1
67

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
12

.0
9%

 
3.

32
%

 
15

.4
1%

 
$6

73
,2

06
 

13
.9

0%
 

3.
90

%
 

17
.8

0%
 

$3
86

,3
48

 
U

AA
L 

11
.9

1%
 

26
.5

3%
 

38
.4

4%
 

1,
67

9,
30

2 
14

.6
3%

 
28

.3
6%

 
42

.9
9%

 
93

3,
09

5 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

24
.0

0%
 

29
.8

5%
 

53
.8

5%
 

$2
,3

52
,5

08
 

28
.5

3%
 

32
.2

6%
 

60
.7

9%
 

$1
,3

19
,4

43
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
39

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r C
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
20

.4
8%

 
4.

38
%

 
24

.8
6%

 
$3

,5
51

,7
98

 
21

.0
6%

 
4.

51
%

 
25

.5
7%

 
$3

,4
45

,9
78

 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

5,
92

6,
33

0 
22

.5
9%

 
19

.5
4%

 
42

.1
3%

 
5,

67
7,

71
0 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
42

.4
9%

 
23

.8
5%

 
66

.3
4%

 
$9

,4
78

,1
28

 
43

.6
5%

 
24

.0
5%

 
67

.7
0%

 
$9

,1
23

,6
88

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r E
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
13

.1
7%

 
3.

57
%

 
16

.7
4%

 
$4

,3
50

,0
68

 
13

.5
0%

 
3.

76
%

 
17

.2
6%

 
$3

,7
75

,7
86

 
U

AA
L 

22
.0

1%
 

19
.4

7%
 

41
.4

8%
 

10
,7

79
,0

22
 

22
.5

9%
 

19
.5

4%
 

42
.1

3%
 

9,
21

6,
33

0 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

35
.1

8%
 

23
.0

4%
 

58
.2

2%
 

$1
5,

12
9,

09
0 

36
.0

9%
 

23
.3

0%
 

59
.3

9%
 

$1
2,

99
2,

11
6 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

20
.3

6%
 

6.
75

%
 

27
.1

1%
 

$1
,6

24
,5

80
 

21
.3

8%
 

7.
06

%
 

28
.4

4%
 

$1
,8

25
,6

42
 

U
AA

L 
14

.0
5%

 
31

.4
1%

 
45

.4
6%

 
2,

72
4,

21
3 

13
.8

3%
 

28
.6

7%
 

42
.5

0%
 

2,
72

8,
19

2 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

34
.4

1%
 

38
.1

6%
 

72
.5

7%
 

$4
,3

48
,7

93
 

35
.2

1%
 

35
.7

3%
 

70
.9

4%
 

$4
,5

53
,8

34
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

12
.7

0%
 

5.
23

%
 

17
.9

3%
 

$2
55

,1
38

 
13

.3
3%

 
5.

65
%

 
18

.9
8%

 
$1

77
,1

56
 

U
AA

L 
14

.0
5%

 
31

.4
1%

 
45

.4
6%

 
64

6,
88

1 
13

.8
3%

 
28

.6
7%

 
42

.5
0%

 
39

6,
68

7 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

26
.7

5%
 

36
.6

4%
 

63
.3

9%
 

$9
02

,0
19

 
27

.1
6%

 
34

.3
2%

 
61

.4
8%

 
$5

73
,8

43
 

(1
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
6%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

(2
) 

Th
e 

Ba
si

c 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

e 
an

 e
xp

lic
it 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e 
lo

ad
 o

f 0
.4

7%
 a

nd
 0

.1
9%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 re

sp
ec

tiv
el

y.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
40

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n(1

) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n(2
) 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
R

at
es

 fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l  

Es
tim

at
ed

 
An

nu
al

 
D

ol
la

r 
Am

ou
nt

 
Sa

n 
R

am
on

 F
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
21

.6
4%

 
6.

92
%

 
28

.5
6%

 
$4

,9
60

,1
73

 
22

.2
2%

 
7.

08
%

 
29

.3
0%

 
$5

,4
21

,0
31

 
U

AA
L 

29
.7

5%
 

19
.9

2%
 

49
.6

7%
 

8,
62

6,
46

4 
28

.8
3%

 
18

.7
1%

 
47

.5
4%

 
8,

79
5,

76
1 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
51

.3
9%

 
26

.8
4%

 
78

.2
3%

 
$1

3,
58

6,
63

7 
51

.0
5%

 
25

.7
9%

 
76

.8
4%

 
$1

4,
21

6,
79

2 
Sa

n 
R

am
on

 F
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.4
4%

 
4.

71
%

 
16

.1
5%

 
$6

85
,3

15
 

12
.6

6%
 

5.
40

%
 

18
.0

6%
 

$5
49

,0
52

 
U

AA
L 

29
.7

5%
 

19
.9

2%
 

49
.6

7%
 

2,
10

7,
71

4 
28

.8
3%

 
18

.7
1%

 
47

.5
4%

 
1,

44
5,

28
9 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
41

.1
9%

 
24

.6
3%

 
65

.8
2%

 
$2

,7
93

,0
29

 
41

.4
9%

 
24

.1
1%

 
65

.6
0%

 
$1

,9
94

,3
41

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
 

 
 

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

14
.3

0%
 

4.
99

%
 

19
.2

9%
 

$3
64

,0
06

 
14

.8
9%

 
5.

21
%

 
20

.1
0%

 
$3

71
,8

01
 

U
AA

L(3
), 

(4
) 

37
.3

1%
 

26
.9

8%
 

64
.2

9%
 

1,
21

3,
16

5 
42

.6
3%

 
30

.0
4%

 
72

.6
7%

 
1,

34
4,

21
6 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
51

.6
1%

 
31

.9
7%

 
83

.5
8%

 
$1

,5
77

,1
71

 
57

.5
2%

 
35

.2
5%

 
92

.7
7%

 
$1

,7
16

,0
17

 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
11

.6
5%

 
4.

82
%

 
16

.4
7%

 
$8

9,
59

8 
11

.9
2%

 
5.

07
%

 
16

.9
9%

 
$5

8,
09

5 
U

AA
L(3

), 
(4

)  
37

.3
1%

 
26

.9
8%

 
64

.2
9%

 
34

9,
74

3 
42

.6
3%

 
30

.0
4%

 
72

.6
7%

 
24

8,
48

3 
To

ta
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

48
.9

6%
 

31
.8

0%
 

80
.7

6%
 

$4
39

,3
41

 
54

.5
5%

 
35

.1
1%

 
89

.6
6%

 
$3

06
,5

78
 

To
ta

l A
ll 

Em
pl

oy
er

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

(A
gg

re
ga

te
) 

 
 

 
 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
12

.2
9%

 
3.

51
%

 
15

.8
0%

 
$1

41
,5

94
,5

91
 

12
.8

7%
 

3.
69

%
 

16
.5

6%
 

$1
42

,5
48

,0
79

 
U

AA
L 

13
.5

6%
 

6.
36

%
 

19
.9

2%
 

17
8,

52
1,

04
3 

13
.4

5%
 

6.
06

%
 

19
.5

1%
 

16
7,

89
1,

33
5 

To
ta

l C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
25

.8
5%

 
9.

87
%

 
35

.7
2%

 
$3

20
,1

15
,6

34
 

26
.3

2%
 

9.
75

%
 

36
.0

7%
 

$3
10

,4
39

,4
14

 
(1

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

6%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
Ba

si
c 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 U
AA

L 
ra

te
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 e

xp
lic

it 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 a
nd

 0
.1

9%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 
(3

)  
Th

e 
to

ta
l U

AA
L 

do
lla

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

fo
r R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
FP

D
 is

 $
1,

63
9,

71
6 

fo
r F

Y 
20

20
-2

1.
 It

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

U
AA

L 
ra

te
 s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 e
st

im
at

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
fo

r F
Y 

20
20

-2
1.

 T
he

 
es

tim
at

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll 
fo

r F
Y 

20
20

-2
1 

w
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 p

ay
ro

ll 
am

ou
nt

s 
sh

ow
n 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

 fo
r 2

01
9 

by
 1

8-
m

on
th

s 
of

 a
ss

um
ed

 w
ag

e 
in

fla
tio

n.
 

(4
) 

Th
e 

to
ta

l U
AA

L 
do

lla
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fo

r R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

FP
D

 is
 $

1,
67

0,
97

1 
fo

r F
Y 

20
19

-2
0.

 It
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
U

AA
L 

ra
te

 s
ho

w
n 

ab
ov

e 
m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 e

st
im

at
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0.
 T

he
 

es
tim

at
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

fo
r F

Y 
20

19
-2

0 
w

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 p
ay

ro
ll 

am
ou

nt
s 

fo
r 2

01
8 

by
 1

8-
m

on
th

s 
of

 a
ss

um
ed

 w
ag

e 
in

fla
tio

n.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
41

 
 

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (
co

nt
in

ue
d)

 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r t
ha

t i
s u

se
d 

to
 e

st
im

at
e 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 d

ol
la

r a
m

ou
nt

 sh
ow

n 
on

 th
e 

pr
io

r p
ag

es
 a

s o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
ar

e 
as

 fo
llo

w
s:

  

 

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

6 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

$6
99

,3
86

  
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
24

0,
91

1 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r A
  

$5
5,

87
3,

95
5 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r D
  

3,
65

0,
20

2 
 

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

8 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

$3
0,

72
1,

86
6 

 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

2,
95

3,
93

3 
 

C
C

C
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
1,

79
8,

23
6 

 
Ea

st
 C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

38
9,

93
4 

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 E
 

4,
36

8,
63

2 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r C
  

$1
4,

28
7,

19
9 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 T
ie

r E
  

25
,9

86
,0

71
  

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
$5

,9
92

,5
50

  
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
  

1,
42

2,
96

7 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

  
$1

7,
36

7,
55

3 
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 F

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
4,

24
3,

43
4 

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

FP
D

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
  

$1
,8

87
,0

19
  

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

  
54

4,
00

9 
 

To
ta

l A
ll 

Em
pl

oy
er

s 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

(A
gg

re
ga

te
) 

$8
96

,3
90

,7
67

  

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 w
/ C

ou
rts

 
$1

1,
21

5,
37

1 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/o
 P

O
B 

7,
01

1,
01

2 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ P
O

B 
(M

or
ag

a)
 

69
8,

58
5 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e)
 

1,
49

4,
09

0 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 w

/ U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t (
LA

FC
O

) 
23

7,
42

3 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rts

 
0 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B 

2,
79

5,
48

4 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ P

O
B 

(M
or

ag
a)

 
13

2,
39

2 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e)
 

1,
26

0,
66

0 
 

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t (

LA
FC

O
) 

0 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rts

 
0 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 w
/ C

ou
rts

 
$4

03
,6

94
,8

51
  

D
is

tri
ct

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 w

/o
 P

O
B 

3,
08

8,
19

8 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) w
/ C

ou
rts

 
57

,9
05

,3
95

  
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (3
%

/4
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B 

81
7,

90
9 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/ C
ou

rts
 

18
6,

35
9,

37
6 

 
D

is
tri

ct
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) w

/o
 P

O
B 

33
1,

89
4 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

C
C

SD
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

  
$2

8,
45

9,
37

0 
 

C
C

C
SD

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

)  
6,

98
3,

23
3 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

$4
,1

71
,8

44
  

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
)  

1,
55

8,
71

8 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
Pr

oj
ec

te
d 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
  

$3
,8

45
,1

61
  

C
C

C
FP

D
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
)  

17
8,

14
4 

 
C

C
C

FP
D

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

)  
1,

72
3,

80
0 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
42

 
 

G
. F

un
de

d 
S

ta
tu

s 

A
 c

om
m

on
ly

 re
po

rte
d 

pi
ec

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

tu
s i

s t
he

 fu
nd

ed
 ra

tio
. T

he
se

 ra
tio

s c
om

pa
re

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t, 

A
ct

ua
ria

l a
nd

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s t
o 

th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

Pl
an

. H
ig

h 
ra

tio
s i

nd
ic

at
e 

a 
w

el
l-f

un
de

d 
pl

an
 w

ith
 a

ss
et

s 
su

ffi
ci

en
t t

o 
co

ve
r t

he
 P

la
n’

s A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 L

ow
er

 ra
tio

s m
ay

 in
di

ca
te

 re
ce

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 b
en

ef
it 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
, f

un
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 p
la

n 
be

lo
w

 a
ct

ua
ria

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
, p

oo
r a

ss
et

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, o
r a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f o

th
er

 c
ha

ng
es

.  

Th
e 

ch
ar

t b
el

ow
 d

ep
ic

ts
 a

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f t

he
 fu

nd
ed

 ra
tio

 fo
r t

he
 P

la
n.

 T
he

 c
ha

rt 
on

 th
e 

ne
xt

 p
ag

e 
sh

ow
s t

he
 P

la
n’

s s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 fu
nd

in
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 
fo

r t
he

 la
st

 te
n 

ye
ar

s. 
 

Th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 st

at
us

 m
ea

su
re

s s
ho

w
n 

in
 th

is
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ar
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fo

r a
ss

es
si

ng
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r o
r a

m
ou

nt
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 fo
r a

ss
es

si
ng

 th
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

cy
 o

f P
la

n 
as

se
ts

 to
 c

ov
er

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t o
f s

et
tli

ng
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 b
en

ef
it 

ob
lig

at
io

ns
. A

s t
he

 c
ha

rt 
be

lo
w

 sh
ow

s, 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
s a

re
 d

iff
er

en
t d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l, 
V

al
ua

tio
n 

or
 M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s i

s 
us

ed
. 

FU
N

D
ED

 R
AT

IO
  

FO
R

 P
LA

N
 Y

EA
R

S 
EN

D
IN

G
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

7 
– 

20
18

 

 

50
%

55
%

60
%

65
%

70
%

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
Ba

si
s

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

Ba
si

s
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

Ba
sis



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
43

 
 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 O

F 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 P
R

O
G

R
ES

S 
 

FO
R

 P
LA

N
 Y

EA
R

S 
EN

D
IN

G
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
00

9 
– 

20
18

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

D
at

e 
as

 o
f 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s(1
)  

(a
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l  
Ac

cr
ue

d 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 

(A
AL

)(2
)  

(b
) 

U
nf

un
de

d/
 

(O
ve

rf
un

de
d)

 
A

AL
 

(U
AA

L)
 

 (b
) -

 (a
) 

Fu
nd

ed
 

R
at

io
 (%

)  
(a

) /
 (b

) 

C
ov

er
ed

 
Pa

yr
ol

l 
(c

) 

U
A

AL
 a

s 
a 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
C

ov
er

ed
 

Pa
yr

ol
l (

%
) 

[(b
) -

 (a
)] 

/ (
c)

 
20

09
 

$5
,2

90
,1

14
,1

02
 

$6
,3

14
,7

87
,1

87
 

$1
,0

24
,6

73
,0

85
 

83
.8

%
 

$6
94

,4
43

,9
99

 
14

7.
6%

 

20
10

 
5,

34
1,

82
1,

71
1 

6,
65

4,
03

6,
80

1 
1,

31
2,

21
5,

09
0 

80
.3

 
68

7,
44

3,
20

6 
19

0.
9 

20
11

 
5,

42
6,

71
9,

06
6 

6,
91

5,
31

1,
64

9 
1,

48
8,

59
2,

58
3 

78
.5

 
66

6,
39

4,
14

6 
22

3.
4 

20
12

 
5,

48
2,

25
7,

06
2 

7,
76

1,
31

5,
53

5 
2,

27
9,

05
8,

47
3 

70
.6

 
65

2,
31

2,
18

0 
34

9.
4 

20
13

 
5,

90
7,

41
6,

43
2 

7,
73

1,
09

7,
40

7 
1,

82
3,

68
0,

97
5 

76
.4

 
67

9,
42

8,
91

1 
26

8.
4 

20
14

 
6,

55
7,

49
6,

10
1 

8,
02

7,
43

8,
21

3 
1,

46
9,

94
2,

11
2 

81
.7

 
69

7,
83

1,
83

7 
21

0.
6 

20
15

 
7,

13
6,

80
1,

38
0 

8,
44

8,
62

4,
09

6 
1,

31
1,

82
2,

71
6 

84
.5

 
74

6,
35

2,
66

3 
17

5.
8 

20
16

 
7,

60
6,

99
7,

53
0 

8,
79

4,
43

4,
13

9 
1,

18
7,

43
6,

60
9 

86
.5

 
78

4,
41

2,
26

0 
15

1.
4 

20
17

 
8,

17
9,

89
1,

19
1 

9,
23

9,
24

6,
92

0 
1,

05
9,

35
5,

72
9 

88
.5

 
86

0,
62

4,
61

3 
12

3.
1 

20
18

 
 8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  
 9

,6
82

,1
43

,7
50

  
 1

,0
31

,9
65

,5
24

  
89

.3
 

 8
96

,3
90

,7
68

  
11

5.
1 

(1
)  

Ex
cl

ud
es

 a
ss

et
s 

fo
r n

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

. 
(2

) 
Ex

cl
ud

es
 li

ab
ilit

ie
s 

fo
r n

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
44

 
 

H
. A

ct
ua

ri
al

 B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
 

A
n 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n’

s f
un

di
ng

 is
 g

iv
en

 b
y 

an
 A

ct
ua

ria
l B

al
an

ce
 S

he
et

. I
n 

th
is

 a
pp

ro
ac

h,
 fi

rs
t t

he
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

nd
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 p

ay
m

en
ts

 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Pl

an
 fo

r c
ur

re
nt

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

 is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
. T

he
n 

th
es

e 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

re
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
at

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 to

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 v

al
ua

tio
n,

 th
er

eb
y 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

th
e 

pr
es

en
t v

al
ue

, r
ef

er
re

d 
to

 a
s t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Be

ne
fit

s o
f t

he
 P

la
n.

 

Se
co

nd
, t

hi
s A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
B

en
ef

its
 is

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

as
se

ts
. T

he
 “

as
se

ts
” 

fo
r t

hi
s p

ur
po

se
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
ne

t a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

as
se

ts
 a

lre
ad

y 
ac

cu
m

ul
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Pl

an
, t

he
 p

re
se

nt
 v

al
ue

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, t
he

 p
re

se
nt

 v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
, a

nd
 th

e 
pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pa

ym
en

ts
 fo

r t
he

 U
nf

un
de

d 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y.

 

AC
TU

AR
IA

L 
B

AL
AN

C
E 

SH
EE

T 
FO

R
 Y

EA
R

 E
N

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

Be
ne

fit
s(1

) 
 

 
 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f b
en

ef
its

 fo
r r

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

$3
,4

96
,9

42
,3

67
 

$2
,6

89
,5

76
,1

48
 

$6
,1

86
,5

18
,5

15
 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f b
en

ef
its

 fo
r i

na
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
(2

)  
22

1,
61

7,
07

9 
78

,2
60

,0
01

 
29

9,
87

7,
08

0 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f b
en

ef
its

 fo
r a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 

3,
63

5,
33

0,
71

7 
1,

30
6,

93
3,

03
2 

4,
94

2,
26

3,
74

9 

To
ta

l A
ct

ua
ria

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

B
en

ef
its

 
$7

,3
53

,8
90

,1
63

 
$4

,0
74

,7
69

,1
81

 
$1

1,
42

8,
65

9,
34

4 

C
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 a

ss
et

s(1
)  

 
 

 

• 
To

ta
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

$5
,3

28
,2

83
,1

67
 

$3
,3

21
,8

95
,0

59
 

$8
,6

50
,1

78
,2

26
 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 b
y 

m
em

be
rs

 
56

0,
20

3,
62

7 
23

0,
94

2,
05

3 
79

1,
14

5,
68

0 

• 
Pr

es
en

t v
al

ue
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 fo
r: 

 
 

 

» 
En

try
 a

ge
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

73
7,

33
9,

15
8 

21
8,

03
0,

75
6 

95
5,

36
9,

91
4 

» 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
72

8,
06

4,
21

1 
30

3,
90

1,
31

3 
1,

03
1,

96
5,

52
4 

To
ta

l o
f c

ur
re

nt
 a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 a
ss

et
s 

$7
,3

53
,8

90
,1

63
 

$4
,0

74
,7

69
,1

81
 

$1
1,

42
8,

65
9,

34
4 

(1
) 

Ex
cl

ud
es

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

(2
) 

In
cl

ud
es

 in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

n 
de

po
si

t. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
45

 
 

I.
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

 R
at

io
s 

R
et

ire
m

en
t p

la
ns

 a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
vo

la
til

ity
 in

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f r

eq
ui

re
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. T
hi

s v
ol

at
ili

ty
 te

nd
s t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 a

s r
et

ire
m

en
t p

la
ns

 b
ec

om
e 

m
or

e 
m

at
ur

e.
 

Th
e 

A
ss

et
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

 R
at

io
 (A

V
R

), 
w

hi
ch

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
M

ar
ke

t V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s d

iv
id

ed
 b

y 
to

ta
l p

ay
ro

ll,
 p

ro
vi

de
s a

n 
in

di
ca

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
vo

la
til

ity
 fo

r a
ny

 g
iv

en
 le

ve
l o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t v

ol
at

ili
ty

. A
 h

ig
he

r A
V

R
 in

di
ca

te
s t

ha
t t

he
 p

la
n 

is
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
gr

ea
te

r l
ev

el
 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
vo

la
til

ity
. T

hi
s i

s a
 c

ur
re

nt
 m

ea
su

re
m

en
t s

in
ce

 it
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t l
ev

el
 o

f a
ss

et
s. 

 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t A

V
R

 is
 a

bo
ut

 9
.0

. T
hi

s m
ea

ns
 th

at
 a

 1
%

 a
ss

et
 g

ai
n 

or
 lo

ss
 (r

el
at

iv
e 

to
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n)

 tr
an

sl
at

es
 to

 a
bo

ut
 9

.0
%

 o
f 

on
e-

ye
ar

’s
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 S

in
ce

 a
ct

ua
ria

l g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

 a
re

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r 1

8 
ye

ar
s, 

th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
0.

7%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

de
cr

ea
se

/(i
nc

re
as

e)
 in

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

1%
 a

ss
et

 g
ai

n/
(lo

ss
). 

 

Th
e 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 V
ol

at
ili

ty
 R

at
io

 (L
V

R
), 

w
hi

ch
 is

 e
qu

al
 to

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
di

vi
de

d 
by

 p
ay

ro
ll,

 p
ro

vi
de

s a
n 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
-te

rm
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
vo

la
til

ity
 fo

r a
ny

 g
iv

en
 le

ve
l o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t v

ol
at

ili
ty

. T
hi

s i
s b

ec
au

se
, o

ve
r a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 p

er
io

d 
of

 ti
m

e,
 

th
e 

pl
an

’s
 a

ss
et

s s
ho

ul
d 

tra
ck

 th
e 

pl
an

’s
 li

ab
ili

tie
s. 

 

Th
e 

LV
R

 a
ls

o 
in

di
ca

te
s h

ow
 v

ol
at

ile
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
du

e 
to

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
or

 to
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 L
V

R
 is

 a
bo

ut
 1

0.
7,

 b
ut

 is
 8

.1
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 2
1.

8 
fo

r S
af

et
y.

 T
hi

s m
ea

ns
 th

at
 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
gr

ea
te

r i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s f
or

 S
af

et
y 

th
an

 fo
r G

en
er

al
. 

Th
e 

ch
ar

t o
n 

th
e 

ne
xt

 p
ag

e 
sh

ow
s h

ow
 th

e 
as

se
t a

nd
 li

ab
ili

ty
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 ra
tio

s h
av

e 
va

rie
d 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
46

 
 

VO
LA

TI
LI

TY
 R

AT
IO

S 
FO

R
 Y

EA
R

S 
EN

D
ED

 D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

00
9 

– 
20

18
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

As
se

t V
ol

at
ili

ty
 R

at
io

 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 V

ol
at

ili
ty

 R
at

io
 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
To

ta
l 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
To

ta
l 

20
09

 
5.

0 
11

.4
 

6.
4 

7.
0 

16
.0

 
9.

1 

20
10

 
5.

6 
13

.1
 

7.
3 

7.
5 

17
.2

 
9.

7 

20
11

 
5.

9 
13

.6
 

7.
6 

8.
0 

18
.6

 
10

.4
 

20
12

 
6.

7 
16

.2
 

8.
7 

9.
0 

22
.5

 
11

.9
 

20
13

 
7.

3 
18

.2
 

9.
5 

8.
6 

22
.3

 
11

.4
 

20
14

 
7.

5 
19

.7
 

9.
9 

8.
6 

23
.5

 
11

.5
 

20
15

 
7.

1 
18

.7
 

9.
3 

8.
4 

23
.3

 
11

.3
 

20
16

 
7.

2 
19

.0
 

9.
5 

8.
3 

23
.1

 
11

.1
 

20
17

 
7.

4 
19

.6
 

9.
7 

8.
0 

22
.2

 
10

.7
 

20
18

 
6.

9 
18

.0
 

9.
0 

8.
1 

21
.8

 
10

.7
 

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
47

 
 

J.
 R

is
k 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

a 
fix

ed
 se

t o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 d

at
a 

as
 o

f a
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
da

te
, t

he
re

 is
 ri

sk
 th

at
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 
re

su
lts

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
, p

er
ha

ps
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
, a

s a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
is

 fl
ui

d 
an

d 
w

ill
 n

ot
 e

xa
ct

ly
 tr

ac
k 

cu
rr

en
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. T

hi
s p

ot
en

tia
l d

iv
er

ge
nc

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

di
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

. 

Th
is

 se
ct

io
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 d

et
ai

le
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l r

an
ge

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

, b
ut

 d
oe

s i
nc

lu
de

 a
 c

on
ci

se
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
of

 so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

ris
ks

 th
at

 m
ay

 a
ff

ec
t t

he
 P

la
n’

s f
ut

ur
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

di
tio

n.
 W

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d 
a 

m
or

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 ri

sk
s t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

w
ith

 a
 b

et
te

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 ri
sk

s i
nh

er
en

t i
n 

th
e 

Pl
an

 th
at

 c
an

 in
fo

rm
 b

ot
h 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

fu
tu

re
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g.

 
Th

is
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t w
ou

ld
 e

na
bl

e 
us

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
to

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

nd
 il

lu
st

ra
te

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 ri

sk
s o

r p
ot

en
tia

l f
ut

ur
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 it
 m

ay
 b

e 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 d

is
cu

ss
in

g 
an

d 
co

ul
d 

in
cl

ud
e 

ta
ilo

re
d 

sc
en

ar
io

 te
st

in
g,

 se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 te

st
in

g,
 st

re
ss

 te
st

in
g 

an
d 

st
oc

ha
st

ic
 m

od
el

in
g.

  

Th
is

 se
ct

io
n 

pr
ov

id
es

 d
es

cr
ip

tio
ns

 a
nd

 b
as

ic
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

ris
ks

 th
at

 a
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 h
av

e 
an

 o
ng

oi
ng

 in
flu

en
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 

fin
an

ci
al

 h
ea

lth
, a

s w
el

l a
s a

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 h

is
to

ric
al

 tr
en

ds
 a

nd
 m

at
ur

ity
 m

ea
su

re
s. 

R
is

k 
As

se
ss

m
en

ts
 


 

A
ss

et
/L

ia
bi

lit
y 

M
is

m
at

ch
 R

is
k 

(th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
ha

t f
ut

ur
e 

pl
an

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 a
ffe

ct
 a

ss
et

 a
nd

 li
ab

ili
ty

 v
al

ue
s i

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

w
ay

, 
ca

us
in

g 
th

em
 to

 d
iv

er
ge

)  
Th

e 
m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t a
ss

et
/li

ab
ili

ty
 m

is
m

at
ch

 ri
sk

 to
 th

e 
Pl

an
 is

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

is
k,

 a
s d

is
cu

ss
ed

 b
el

ow
. I

n 
fa

ct
, i

nv
es

tm
en

t r
is

k 
ha

s t
he

 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
im

pa
ct

 a
ss

et
/li

ab
ili

ty
 m

is
m

at
ch

 in
 tw

o 
w

ay
s. 

Th
e 

fir
st

 m
is

m
at

ch
 is

 e
vi

de
nt

 in
 a

nn
ua

l v
al

ua
tio

ns
: w

he
n 

as
se

t v
al

ue
s d

ev
ia

te
 

fro
m

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, t
he

y 
ar

e 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t f
ro

m
 li

ab
ili

ty
 c

ha
ng

es
. T

he
 se

co
nd

 m
is

m
at

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
ca

us
ed

 w
he

n 
sy

st
em

ic
 a

ss
et

 
de

vi
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 m
ay

 si
gn

al
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
, w

hi
ch

 c
au

se
s l

ia
bi

lit
y 

va
lu

es
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s t

o 
m

ov
e 

in
 th

e 
op

po
si

te
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

fro
m

 a
ny

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
of

 a
ss

et
 g

ro
w

th
 ra

te
s. 

A
ss

et
/li

ab
ili

ty
 m

is
m

at
ch

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
au

se
d 

by
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ris

k 
su

ch
 a

s l
on

ge
vi

ty
, w

hi
ch

 a
ff

ec
ts

 li
ab

ili
tie

s b
ut

 h
av

e 
no

 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

as
se

t l
ev

el
s. 

Th
is

 ri
sk

 is
 a

ls
o 

di
sc

us
se

d 
be

lo
w

. 


 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

is
k 

(th
e 

ris
k 

th
at

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d)

 
Th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

is
 a

 lo
ng

-te
rm

, s
ta

tic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
fo

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
pu

rp
os

es
 e

ve
n 

th
ou

gh
 in

 re
al

ity
 m

ar
ke

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ca
n 

be
 q

ui
te

 v
ol

at
ile

 in
 a

ny
 g

iv
en

 y
ea

r. 
Th

at
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

 c
an

 c
au

se
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 h

ea
lth

 o
f t

he
 sy

st
em

, a
ff

ec
tin

g 
bo

th
 fu

nd
ed

 st
at

us
 a

nd
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s. 

Th
e 

in
he

re
nt

 y
ea

r-t
o-

ye
ar

 v
ol

at
ili

ty
 is

 re
du

ce
d 

by
 sm

oo
th

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ue
 o

f 
A

ss
et

s, 
ho

w
ev

er
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ca
n 

st
ill

 h
av

e 
a 

si
za

bl
e 

im
pa

ct
. A

s d
is

cu
ss

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
I, 

Vo
la

til
ity

 R
at

io
s, 

on
 

pa
ge

 4
5,

 a
 1

%
 a

ss
et

 g
ai

n 
or

 lo
ss

 (r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n)
 tr

an
sl

at
es

 to
 a

bo
ut

 9
.0

%
 o

f o
ne

-y
ea

r’s
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 S

in
ce

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
48

 
 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

 a
re

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r 1

8 
ye

ar
s, 

th
er

e 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

a 
0.

7%
 o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

de
cr

ea
se

/(i
nc

re
as

e)
 in

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

1%
 a

ss
et

 g
ai

n/
(lo

ss
). 

Th
e 

m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
ov

er
 th

e 
la

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s h

as
 ra

ng
ed

 fr
om

 a
 lo

w
 o

f -
2.

33
%

 to
 a

 h
ig

h 
of

 1
9.

68
%

. 


 

Lo
ng

ev
ity

 R
is

k 
(th

e 
ris

k 
th

at
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
di

ffe
re

nt
 th

an
 e

xp
ec

te
d)

 
Th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 c
ur

re
nt

 li
fe

 e
xp

ec
ta

nc
y 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n 

of
 fu

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
lif

e 
ex

pe
ct

an
cy

, 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 g

iv
en

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

ng
 d

ur
at

io
n 

of
 li

ab
ili

tie
s f

or
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
ns

. E
m

er
gi

ng
 p

la
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
th

at
 

do
es

 n
ot

 m
at

ch
 th

es
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 w
ill

 re
su

lt 
in

 in
cr

ea
se

s o
r d

ec
re

as
es

 in
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 T

hi
s r

is
k 

ca
n 

be
 re

du
ce

d 
by

 u
si

ng
 ta

bl
es

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
r t

he
 P

la
n 

(p
ub

lic
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
ta

bl
es

) t
ha

t a
re

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
by

 b
en

ef
it 

le
ve

ls
, a

nd
 b

y 
us

in
g 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l m

or
ta

lit
y 

pr
oj

ec
tio

ns
. 


 

O
th

er
 R

is
ks

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 lo
ng

ev
ity

, t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f o

th
er

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 u
nl

ik
el

y 
to

 m
at

ch
 fu

tu
re

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ex
ac

tly
. O

ne
 

ex
am

pl
e 

is
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 sa
la

ry
 sc

al
es

 o
ve

r t
im

e.
 A

s s
al

ar
y 

is
 c

en
tra

l t
o 

th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 b
en

ef
its

 p
ai

d 
in

 re
tir

em
en

t, 
de

vi
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

sa
la

ry
 sc

al
es

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
m

at
er

ia
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
be

ne
fit

s a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 

m
em

be
r. 

Ex
am

pl
es

 o
f d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
tir

em
en

t, 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
an

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

, a
nd

 w
ill

 li
ke

ly
 v

ar
y 

in
 si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
fo

r d
iff

er
en

t c
os

t g
ro

up
s 

(fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 d
is

ab
ili

ty
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 m

or
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fo

r s
af

et
y 

gr
ou

ps
). 

So
m

e 
pl

an
s a

ls
o 

ca
rr

y 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ris
k,

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 a

ct
ua

l f
ut

ur
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 d
ev

ia
tin

g 
fro

m
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

fu
tu

re
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s h

av
e 

a 
pr

ov
en

 tr
ac

k-
re

co
rd

 o
f m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
A

ct
ua

ria
lly

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d’

s 
A

ct
ua

ria
l F

un
di

ng
 P

ol
ic

y,
 so

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ris
k 

is
 m

in
im

al
.  

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 H
is

to
ric

al
 T

re
nd

s 

Pa
st

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ca
n 

he
lp

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
e 

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 o

f k
ey

 re
su

lts
 to

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 a

ct
ua

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e.

 O
ve

r t
he

 p
as

t t
en

 y
ea

rs
: 


 

Th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
on

 th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s b
as

is
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 8
3.

8%
 to

 8
9.

3%
. T

hi
s i

s p
rim

ar
ily

 d
ue

 to
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 a
m

or
tiz

e 
th

e 
U

A
A

L 
(i.

e.
, a

m
or

tiz
in

g 
ea

ch
 la

ye
r o

f U
A

A
L 

ov
er

 1
8 

ye
ar

s a
s a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
) a

nd
 

av
er

ag
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
ov

er
 re

ce
nt

 y
ea

rs
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
on

 a
 sm

oo
th

ed
 b

as
is

. F
or

 a
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

hi
st

or
y 

se
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

2,
 

Su
bs

ec
tio

n 
G

, F
un

de
d 

St
at

us
 st

ar
tin

g 
on

 p
ag

e 
42

.  


 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

ge
om

et
ric

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
on

 th
e 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s o
ve

r t
he

 la
st

 1
0 

ye
ar

s w
as

 6
.0

3%
. T

hi
s i

nc
lu

de
s a

 h
ig

h 
of

 a
 

11
.4

0%
 re

tu
rn

 a
nd

 a
 lo

w
 o

f 0
.3

2%
. T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

ve
r t

he
 la

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
 8

.1
3%

. F
or

 m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

 se
e 

th
e 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
ta

bl
e 

in
 

Se
ct

io
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
B 

on
 p

ag
e 

24
. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

2:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

R
es

ul
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

fo
r t

he
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s'
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
49

 
 


 

Th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

so
ur

ce
 o

f n
ew

 U
A

A
L 

w
as

 th
e 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
of

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
ul

tip
le

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s. 

Fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
 in

 2
01

2 
ch

an
ge

d 
th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 fr

om
 7

.7
5%

 to
 7

.2
5%

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

, a
dd

in
g 

$5
67

 m
ill

io
n 

in
 

un
fu

nd
ed

 li
ab

ili
ty

. T
he

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
 in

 2
01

5 
ch

an
ge

d 
th

e 
di

sc
ou

nt
 ra

te
 fr

om
 7

.2
5%

 to
 7

.0
0%

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

, 
ad

di
ng

 $
11

4 
m

ill
io

n 
in

 u
nf

un
de

d 
lia

bi
lit

y.
 F

or
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

n 
th

e 
un

fu
nd

ed
 li

ab
ili

ty
 c

ha
ng

es
 se

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
3,

 E
xh

ib
it 

I, 
Ta

bl
e 

of
 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Ba
se

s s
ta

rti
ng

 o
n 

pa
ge

 8
7.

 


 

Th
e 

pl
an

’s
 fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

de
al

s w
ith

 th
es

e 
un

fu
nd

ed
 li

ab
ili

tie
s o

ve
r t

im
e.

 T
hi

s c
an

 b
e 

se
en

 m
os

t c
le

ar
ly

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
3,

 
Ex

hi
bi

t J
, P

ro
je

ct
io

n 
of

 U
AA

L 
Ba

la
nc

es
 a

nd
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

 p
ag

es
 1

00
 a

nd
 1

01
. 

M
at

ur
ity

 M
ea

su
re

s 

In
 th

e 
la

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s t

he
 ra

tio
 o

f m
em

be
rs

 in
 p

ay
 st

at
us

 to
 a

ct
iv

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
nt

s h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 0

.8
2 

to
 0

.9
5.

 T
hi

s r
at

io
 h

as
 fl

uc
tu

at
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
0.

82
 a

nd
 0

.9
9 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
la

st
 1

0 
ye

ar
s. 

A
n 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ra

tio
 in

di
ca

te
s t

ha
t t

he
 p

la
n 

ha
s g

ro
w

n 
in

 m
at

ur
ity

 o
ve

r t
im

e.
 T

hi
s i

s t
o 

be
 e

xp
ec

te
d,

 b
ut

 is
 

al
so

 in
fo

rm
at

iv
e 

fo
r u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 p
la

n 
se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 to
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 ri
sk

s. 
Fo

r m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

 se
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
A,

 M
em

be
r D

at
a 

on
 p

ag
e 

15
. 

A
s p

en
si

on
 p

la
ns

 m
at

ur
e,

 th
e 

ca
sh

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 fu

lfi
ll 

be
ne

fit
 o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 w

ill
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

ve
r t

im
e.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, c

as
h 

flo
w

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 to
 a

ss
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

is
 a

lig
ne

d 
to

 m
ee

t e
m

er
gi

ng
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

tie
s. 

Fo
r t

he
 p

rio
r y

ea
r b

en
ef

its
 p

ai
d 

w
er

e 
$3

6 
m

ill
io

n 
m

or
e 

th
an

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 re
ce

iv
ed

. P
la

ns
 w

ith
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

ls
 o

f n
eg

at
iv

e 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
s h

av
e 

a 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
 la

rg
er

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 in
co

m
e 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
as

se
ts

, w
hi

ch
 c

an
 c

re
at

e 
a 

dr
ag

 o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

hi
s p

la
n 

cu
rre

nt
ly

 h
as

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
lo

w
 le

ve
ls

 o
f n

eg
at

iv
e 

ca
sh

 fl
ow

s. 
Fo

r m
or

e 
de

ta
ils

 o
n 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 c

as
h 

flo
w

s s
ee

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ris

on
 o

f C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 B
en

ef
its

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

B,
 F

in
an

ci
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 p

ag
e 

19
. 

A
 fu

rth
er

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n 

of
 p

la
n 

m
at

ur
ity

 m
ea

su
re

s a
nd

 h
ow

 th
ey

 re
la

te
 to

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 a

ss
et

s a
nd

 li
ab

ili
tie

s i
s i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
2,

 S
ub

se
ct

io
n 

I, 
Vo

la
til

ity
 R

at
io

s s
ta

rti
ng

 o
n 

pa
ge

 4
5.

 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
50

 
 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
TO

TA
L 

PL
AN

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
10

,0
21

 
10

,0
38

 
-0

.2
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

46
.2

 
46

.0
 

0.
2 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

9.
9 

9.
8 

0.
1 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$8
96

,3
90

,7
68

  
$8

60
,6

24
,6

12
  

4.
2%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$8
9,

45
1 

 
$8

5,
73

7 
 

4.
3%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$1
,1

04
,6

21
,1

26
  

$1
,0

35
,0

22
,1

13
  

6.
7%

 
• 

To
ta

l a
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

6,
22

5 
6,

08
9 

2.
2%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 3
,4

77
  

 3
,3

27
  

4.
5%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

46
.5

 
46

.5
 

0.
0 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
7,

21
4 

6,
97

3 
3.

5%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
70

.5
 

70
.4

 
0.

1 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$4
,1

47
  

$4
,0

67
  

2.
0%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(3
)  

90
8 

89
6 

1.
3%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

66
.3

 
66

.2
 

0.
1 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$4

,8
18

  
$4

,6
27

  
4.

1%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

1,
42

5 
 1

,3
98

  
1.

9%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
72

.6
 

72
.3

 
0.

3 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,6

45
  

$2
,5

51
  

3.
7%

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

(2
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 

(3
)  

Fo
r 2

01
8,

 in
cl

ud
es

 7
42

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

16
6 

m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
51

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 1
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
50

4 
52

9 
-4

.7
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

50
.8

 
50

.5
 

0.
3 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

17
.5

 
16

.5
 

1.
0 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$5
7,

83
2,

24
2 

 
$5

8,
28

6,
29

3 
 

-0
.8

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$1

14
,7

47
  

$1
10

,1
82

  
4.

1%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$7

1,
81

9,
99

4 
 

$6
6,

82
3,

08
1 

 
7.

5%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
49

7 
51

2 
-2

.9
%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 2
29

  
 2

33
  

-1
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
52

.5
 

52
.2

 
0.

3 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

2,
36

3 
2,

43
7 

-3
.0

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
75

.2
 

74
.9

 
0.

3 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$4
,4

02
  

$4
,2

47
  

3.
6%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(3
)  

24
7 

25
5 

-3
.1

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
72

.5
 

71
.7

 
0.

8 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,9

61
  

$2
,8

90
  

2.
5%

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
68

3 
 6

86
  

-0
.4

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
78

.2
 

78
.0

 
0.

2 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,4

13
  

$2
,3

36
  

3.
3%

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

(2
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 

(3
)  

Fo
r 2

01
8,

 in
cl

ud
es

 1
80

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

67
 m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
no

n-
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
52

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 2
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r(1
)  

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 1

72
  

 2
01

  
-1

4.
4%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

58
.5

 
57

.6
 

0.
9 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
42

5 
42

0 
1.

2%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
75

.3
 

75
.2

 
0.

1 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$8
67

  
$8

57
  

1.
2%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(3
)  

40
 

42
 

-4
.8

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
72

.2
 

71
.6

 
0.

6 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,3

19
  

$2
,3

23
  

-0
.2

%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

10
1 

 1
02

  
-1

.0
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

69
.6

 
68

.7
 

0.
9 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$9

33
  

$8
91

  
4.

7%
 

(1
)  

As
 o

f t
he

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

5 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 lo
ng

er
 a

ny
 T

ie
r 2

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
s 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
al

l t
ra

ns
fe

rre
d 

to
 T

ie
r 3

.  
(2

)  
In

cl
ud

es
 m

em
be

rs
 fr

om
 te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 
(3

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 2

1 
m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
se

rv
ic

e-
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
19

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
53

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 3
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
4,

43
6 

4,
73

8 
-6

.4
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

51
.2

 
50

.7
 

0.
5 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

14
.6

 
13

.9
 

0.
7 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$4
06

,7
83

,0
49

  
$4

16
,5

11
,4

31
  

-2
.3

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$9

1,
70

0 
 

$8
7,

90
9 

 
4.

3%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$5

53
,0

49
,5

09
  

$5
23

,5
94

,1
20

  
5.

6%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
4,

30
4 

4,
50

7 
-4

.5
%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 1

,7
45

  
 1

,7
43

  
0.

1%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
48

.7
 

48
.2

 
0.

5 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
3,

12
4 

2,
87

8 
8.

5%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
68

.1
 

67
.8

 
0.

3 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,8

54
  

$2
,7

78
  

2.
7%

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
(2

)  
84

 
83

 
1.

2%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
62

.5
 

62
.6

 
-0

.1
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$2

,4
89

  
$2

,3
90

  
4.

1%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
21

8 
 2

04
  

6.
9%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

62
.1

 
61

.0
 

1.
1 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$1

,5
93

  
$1

,5
56

  
2.

4%
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
(2

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 2

6 
m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
se

rv
ic

e-
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
58

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
54

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
25

 
18

 
38

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

45
.5

 
43

.1
 

2.
4 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

1.
9 

1.
5 

0.
4 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
,7

23
,8

00
  

$1
,1

32
,6

69
  

52
.2

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$6

8,
95

2 
 

$6
2,

92
6 

 
9.

6%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$3

02
,2

80
  

$1
47

,9
03

  
10

4.
4%

 
• 

To
ta

l a
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

1 
0 

N
/A

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 4

  
 4

  
0.

0%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
44

.8
 

48
.3

 
-3

.5
 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
55

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
14

8 
12

9 
14

.7
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

40
.9

 
41

.1
 

-0
.2

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
2.

6 
2.

2 
0.

4 
• 

To
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

ed
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n(1

)  
$1

3,
14

9,
54

3 
 

$1
0,

96
8,

71
6 

 
19

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$8
8,

84
8 

 
$8

5,
02

9 
 

4.
5%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$3
,3

08
,5

30
  

$1
,9

94
,0

64
  

65
.9

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
15

 
2 

65
0.

0%
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 1
9 

 
 1

4 
 

35
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
39

.2
 

37
.0

 
2.

2 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
56

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
2,

67
9 

2,
35

0 
14

.0
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

40
.7

 
39

.9
 

0.
8 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

2.
0 

1.
5 

0.
5 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
86

,6
91

,2
70

  
$1

52
,2

26
,3

51
  

22
.6

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$6

9,
68

7 
 

$6
4,

77
7 

 
7.

6%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$3

4,
57

2,
42

9 
 

$2
0,

01
5,

21
3 

 
72

.7
%

 
• 

To
ta

l a
ct

iv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

30
 

12
 

15
0.

0%
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 5
91

  
 4

17
  

41
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
39

.6
 

39
.6

 
0.

0 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
3 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
67

.9
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$2

79
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
57

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
77

0 
80

1 
-3

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

44
.0

 
43

.1
 

0.
9 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

4.
5 

3.
6 

0.
9 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$5
8,

72
3,

30
4 

 
$5

8,
29

3,
24

9 
 

0.
7%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$7
6,

26
4 

 
$7

2,
77

6 
 

4.
8%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$2
6,

32
7,

95
4 

 
$2

0,
23

7,
02

4 
 

30
.1

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
33

4 
3 

11
03

3.
3%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 2

86
  

 2
74

  
4.

4%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
42

.4
 

41
.5

 
0.

9 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
8 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
62

.8
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$4

22
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
58

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 A

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
87

4 
94

5 
-7

.5
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

45
.6

 
45

.2
 

0.
4 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

16
.2

 
15

.8
 

0.
4 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
14

,7
96

,8
76

  
$1

15
,7

55
,7

98
  

-0
.8

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$1

31
,3

47
  

$1
22

,4
93

  
7.

2%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$3

80
,6

80
,9

46
  

$3
77

,6
72

,1
09

  
0.

8%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
86

5 
93

5 
-7

.5
%

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

:(2
)  

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 2
97

  
 3

14
  

-5
.4

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
45

.9
 

45
.2

 
0.

7 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

1,
28

9 
1,

23
8 

4.
1%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

66
.4

 
66

.2
 

0.
2 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$7

,9
29

  
$7

,7
96

  
1.

7%
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
:(2

)  
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
(3

)  
52

8 
50

9 
3.

7%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
64

.0
 

63
.9

 
0.

1 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$6
,2

68
  

$6
,0

63
  

3.
4%

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

(2
)  

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
42

3 
40

6 
4.

2%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
69

.7
 

69
.2

 
0.

5 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$3
,9

69
  

$3
,8

33
  

3.
5%

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

(2
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 

(3
)  

Fo
r 2

01
8,

 in
cl

ud
es

 5
07

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

21
 m

em
be

rs
 re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
no

n-
se

rv
ic

e 
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
59

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 C

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
12

7 
12

8 
-0

.8
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

38
.2

 
37

.4
 

0.
8 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

8.
7 

7.
6 

1.
1 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$1
4,

28
7,

19
9 

 
$1

3,
47

6,
64

3 
 

6.
0%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

$1
12

,4
98

  
$1

05
,2

86
  

6.
8%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$1
5,

28
9,

27
7 

 
$1

2,
54

8,
37

7 
 

21
.8

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
12

4 
11

8 
5.

1%
 

In
ac

tiv
e 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r 

 7
2 

 
 7

4 
 

-2
.7

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
35

.2
 

34
.5

 
0.

7 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
2 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
63

.1
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
$1

,9
02

  
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
(2

)  
8 

7 
14

.3
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

42
.9

 
43

.1
 

-0
.2

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$3
,6

65
  

$3
,7

58
  

-2
.5

%
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
(2

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 7

 m
em

be
rs

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

se
rv

ic
e-

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

1 
m

em
be

r r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 a

 n
on

-s
er

vi
ce

 c
on

ne
ct

ed
 d

is
ab

ilit
y.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
60

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 D

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
12

2 
11

5 
6.

1%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
34

.2
 

33
.6

 
0.

6 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
3.

6 
2.

8 
0.

8 
• 

To
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

ed
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n(1

)  
$1

2,
04

8,
78

3 
 

$9
,9

27
,0

39
  

21
.4

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$9

8,
76

1 
 

$8
6,

32
2 

 
14

.4
%

 
• 

Ac
co

un
t b

al
an

ce
s 

$7
,0

62
,6

83
  

$4
,7

01
,8

83
  

50
.2

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
26

 
0 

N
/A

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 2

2 
 

 2
1 

 
4.

8%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
35

.3
 

33
.4

 
1.

9 
R

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

D
is

ab
le

d 
m

em
be

rs
: 

 
 

  
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

(2
)  

1 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

56
.2

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

$2
,1

60
  

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

 
 

 
• 

N
um

be
r i

n 
pa

y 
st

at
us

 
0 

0 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ag

e 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
m

on
th

ly
 b

en
ef

it 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

(1
)  

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 a
ct

ua
l c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r s

al
ar

ie
s 

by
 th

e 
as

su
m

ed
 s

al
ar

y 
sc

al
e.

 
(2

)  
Fo

r 2
01

8,
 in

cl
ud

es
 1

 m
em

be
r r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
 s

er
vi

ce
-c

on
ne

ct
ed

 d
is

ab
ilit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
61

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 A
 –

 T
AB

LE
 O

F 
PL

AN
 C

O
VE

R
AG

E 
(C

O
N

TI
N

U
ED

) 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 E

 

C
at

eg
or

y 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1 

 
C

ha
ng

e 
Fr

om
 

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r 
20

18
 

20
17

 
Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r 
33

6 
28

5 
17

.9
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

32
.6

 
31

.9
 

0.
7 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

2.
7 

2.
2 

0.
5 

• 
To

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n(1
)  

$3
0,

35
4,

70
3 

 
$2

4,
04

6,
42

4 
 

26
.2

%
 

• 
Av

er
ag

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
$9

0,
34

1 
 

$8
4,

37
3 

 
7.

1%
 

• 
Ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

s 
$1

2,
20

7,
52

5 
 

$7
,2

88
,3

39
  

67
.5

%
 

• 
To

ta
l a

ct
iv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

 
29

 
0 

N
/A

 
In

ac
tiv

e 
ve

st
ed

 m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r 
 4

0 
 

 3
2 

 
25

.0
%

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

31
.5

 
31

.3
 

0.
2 

R
et

ire
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

m
em

be
rs

: 
 

 
  

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 
 

 
 

• 
N

um
be

r i
n 

pa
y 

st
at

us
 

0 
0 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

ag
e 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
• 

Av
er

ag
e 

m
on

th
ly

 b
en

ef
it 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A

 
(1

)  
C

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

ct
ua

l c
al

en
da

r y
ea

r s
al

ar
ie

s 
by

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

sc
al

e.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
62

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
TO

TA
L 

PL
AN

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

93
 

93
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$6

1,
31

7 
 

$6
1,

31
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
66

1 
61

9 
41

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

0,
82

0 
 

$6
9,

78
6 

 
$8

6,
76

3 
 

$5
7,

23
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
1,

20
5 

84
9 

30
3 

53
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

0,
95

5 
 

$7
6,

04
6 

 
$9

0,
90

1 
 

$1
02

,7
37

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
1,

35
1 

64
9 

34
0 

30
6 

56
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

9,
56

1 
 

$7
9,

10
5 

 
$9

6,
43

5 
 

$1
02

,5
69

  
$9

7,
92

1 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

1,
33

6 
47

3 
26

7 
29

8 
25

6 
42

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
4,

06
3 

 
$7

9,
01

0 
 

$9
4,

67
7 

 
$1

07
,3

84
  

$1
05

,7
49

  
$9

3,
95

0 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

1,
47

9 
42

8 
23

4 
29

7 
32

5 
15

4 
39

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

6,
41

5 
 

$7
4,

95
5 

 
$9

1,
81

2 
 

$1
01

,8
87

  
$1

10
,2

15
  

$1
17

,9
53

  
$1

18
,8

16
  

$7
7,

16
3 

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
1,

44
3 

33
2 

21
7 

24
3 

30
4 

18
7 

11
3 

41
 

5 
1 

 
$9

5,
13

9 
 

$7
6,

86
3 

 
$8

9,
06

4 
 

$9
3,

68
8 

 
$1

03
,8

72
  

$1
07

,4
94

  
$1

08
,7

86
  

$1
19

,7
13

  
$1

40
,3

78
  

$9
3,

16
4 

 
55

 - 
59

 
1,

21
6 

27
1 

19
1 

17
7 

22
2 

15
3 

10
5 

61
 

30
 

6 
 

$9
1,

82
6 

 
$7

6,
75

1 
 

$8
3,

68
5 

 
$9

0,
61

9 
 

$9
4,

96
4 

 
$1

00
,5

47
  

$1
10

,6
30

  
$1

18
,7

26
  

$8
2,

47
8 

 
$1

73
,0

69
  

60
 - 

64
 

85
7 

17
3 

14
7 

16
1 

14
4 

94
 

69
 

32
 

25
 

12
 

 
$8

8,
04

6 
 

$7
4,

25
4 

 
$8

5,
77

6 
 

$8
8,

63
4 

 
$8

6,
94

5 
 

$9
5,

53
7 

 
$9

8,
53

2 
 

$1
12

,1
50

  
$9

1,
97

5 
 

$1
28

,5
65

  
65

 - 
69

 
30

0 
42

 
84

 
61

 
41

 
36

 
21

 
8 

4 
3 

 
$8

8,
02

7 
 

$7
7,

00
5 

 
$8

0,
83

7 
 

$8
9,

58
6 

 
$9

6,
32

2 
 

$9
9,

05
8 

 
$8

8,
68

7 
 

$9
7,

66
4 

 
$9

9,
77

4 
 

$1
20

,2
35

  
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

80
 

14
 

16
 

22
 

18
 

4 
3 

2 
1 

- -
 

 
$7

8,
16

3 
 

$5
9,

61
2 

 
$8

6,
21

6 
 

$8
4,

23
2 

 
$7

7,
78

9 
 

$8
9,

79
8 

 
$6

7,
67

7 
 

$8
9,

38
5 

 
$4

4,
69

8 
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
10

,0
21

 
3,

94
3 

1,
84

0 
1,

61
9 

1,
36

6 
67

0 
35

0 
14

6 
65

 
22

 
 

$8
9,

45
1 

 
$7

5,
44

7 
 

$9
0,

62
0 

 
$9

8,
54

4 
 

$1
01

,6
87

  
$1

05
,2

26
  

$1
06

,8
77

  
$1

15
,4

36
  

$9
1,

06
8 

 
$1

37
,9

57
  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
63

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 1
 N

O
N

-E
N

H
AN

C
ED

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

46
,0

70
  

- -
 

- -
 

$8
5,

23
9 

 
$2

06
,9

01
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

0,
19

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$8
0,

19
8 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
4 

- -
 

3 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

1,
76

2 
 

- -
 

$7
5,

67
8 

 
$1

00
,0

14
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
7 

- -
 

3 
2 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

9,
91

2 
 

- -
 

$7
5,

67
8 

 
$9

2,
62

7 
 

$2
06

,9
01

  
$8

0,
19

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
64

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 1
 E

N
H

AN
C

ED
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
3 

- -
 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
34

,1
82

  
- -

 
$1

34
,1

82
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

23
 

2 
17

 
4 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

15
,9

28
  

$1
04

,6
63

  
$1

16
,5

52
  

$1
18

,9
09

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
51

 
8 

17
 

20
 

6 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
15

,7
89

  
$1

11
,8

13
  

$1
12

,1
04

  
$1

24
,5

70
  

$1
02

,2
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
63

 
9 

15
 

18
 

19
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
15

,7
09

  
$1

33
,1

24
  

$1
07

,5
14

  
$1

21
,3

74
  

$1
10

,9
68

  
$9

2,
85

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

74
 

3 
13

 
15

 
28

 
13

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

19
,8

93
  

$1
32

,2
92

  
$1

22
,9

72
  

$1
18

,5
91

  
$1

21
,0

03
  

$1
12

,5
70

  
$1

23
,1

03
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

10
6 

4 
9 

20
 

40
 

16
 

13
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
18

,3
46

  
$1

15
,4

80
  

$1
55

,0
07

  
$1

08
,3

50
  

$1
22

,0
63

  
$1

04
,8

74
  

$1
08

,4
01

  
$1

37
,7

52
  

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

91
 

5 
9 

17
 

26
 

10
 

13
 

8 
3 

- -
 

 
$1

12
,4

82
  

$1
09

,1
23

  
$1

28
,8

15
  

$1
03

,5
86

  
$1

12
,5

11
  

$1
03

,4
94

  
$1

26
,1

00
  

$1
21

,0
74

  
$6

7,
27

9 
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

60
 

2 
12

 
10

 
10

 
11

 
8 

4 
1 

2 
 

$1
06

,2
28

  
$1

16
,9

21
  

$1
18

,7
78

  
$1

11
,2

61
  

$1
11

,8
30

  
$9

1,
02

3 
 

$1
06

,3
85

  
$1

05
,4

81
  

$6
0,

25
1 

 
$7

4,
53

6 
 

65
 - 

69
 

23
 

1 
4 

3 
8 

1 
2 

- -
 

1 
3 

 
$1

12
,1

06
  

$1
04

,4
58

  
$1

09
,5

79
  

$1
30

,4
15

  
$1

07
,9

81
  

$6
2,

35
0 

 
$9

8,
10

1 
 

- -
 

$1
61

,3
09

  
$1

20
,2

35
  

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

2 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

8,
09

9 
 

- -
 

- -
 

$6
7,

88
6 

 
$1

28
,5

24
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
49

7 
34

 
99

 
10

9 
13

8 
53

 
38

 
16

 
5 

5 
 

$1
14

,9
55

  
$1

18
,9

61
  

$1
20

,3
95

  
$1

14
,6

63
  

$1
16

,1
49

  
$1

02
,3

71
  

$1
14

,2
63

  
$1

21
,3

45
  

$8
4,

68
0 

 
$1

01
,9

55
  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
65

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 3
 E

N
H

AN
C

ED
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
11

 
- -

 
11

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
3,

79
7 

 
- -

 
$6

3,
79

7 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

18
0 

28
 

12
4 

28
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

9,
64

7 
 

$7
9,

95
1 

 
$7

8,
64

8 
 

$8
3,

76
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
45

3 
37

 
18

5 
19

6 
35

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
1,

82
7 

 
$9

1,
24

1 
 

$9
5,

73
8 

 
$9

0,
10

8 
 

$8
1,

39
5 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
59

2 
38

 
18

3 
20

6 
13

3 
32

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
3,

83
3 

 
$9

1,
29

4 
 

$9
4,

55
6 

 
$9

9,
10

7 
 

$8
7,

84
8 

 
$8

3,
63

2 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

69
4 

27
 

15
8 

22
0 

17
4 

92
 

21
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
3,

22
7 

 
$9

0,
77

0 
 

$9
0,

10
6 

 
$9

3,
42

9 
 

$9
1,

45
6 

 
$1

04
,0

21
  

$8
6,

65
1 

 
$7

7,
16

3 
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

86
0 

33
 

16
2 

20
3 

21
1 

13
4 

79
 

32
 

5 
1 

 
$9

2,
98

1 
 

$9
2,

07
9 

 
$8

6,
07

5 
 

$8
9,

15
0 

 
$9

2,
24

1 
 

$1
00

,6
37

  
$9

6,
79

2 
 

$1
09

,1
61

  
$1

40
,3

78
  

$9
3,

16
4 

 
55

 - 
59

 
78

8 
22

 
13

6 
15

4 
17

1 
13

6 
87

 
49

 
27

 
6 

 
$9

3,
68

2 
 

$1
06

,7
05

  
$8

3,
45

0 
 

$8
8,

26
0 

 
$8

7,
98

6 
 

$9
8,

25
5 

 
$1

05
,0

77
  

$1
15

,7
49

  
$8

4,
16

7 
 

$1
73

,0
69

  
60

 - 
64

 
57

5 
13

 
93

 
14

2 
13

0 
78

 
59

 
27

 
23

 
10

 
 

$9
0,

08
5 

 
$9

2,
58

5 
 

$8
6,

90
7 

 
$8

5,
40

3 
 

$8
4,

29
4 

 
$9

4,
33

9 
 

$9
3,

72
9 

 
$1

11
,3

23
  

$9
3,

01
5 

 
$1

39
,3

70
  

65
 - 

69
 

22
0 

5 
65

 
55

 
31

 
34

 
19

 
8 

3 
- -

 
 

$8
7,

71
8 

 
$7

2,
84

8 
 

$8
1,

90
0 

 
$8

6,
30

7 
 

$9
0,

38
7 

 
$9

9,
29

1 
 

$8
7,

69
6 

 
$9

7,
66

4 
 

$7
9,

26
2 

 
- -

 
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

63
 

2 
14

 
20

 
17

 
4 

3 
2 

1 
- -

 
 

$7
9,

64
9 

 
$3

6,
04

3 
 

$8
3,

65
3 

 
$8

5,
86

6 
 

$7
4,

80
4 

 
$8

9,
79

8 
 

$6
7,

67
7 

 
$8

9,
38

5 
 

$4
4,

69
8 

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

4,
43

6 
20

5 
1,

13
1 

1,
22

4 
90

2 
51

0 
26

8 
12

0 
59

 
17

 
 

$9
1,

70
0 

 
$9

0,
53

9 
 

$8
8,

04
3 

 
$9

0,
89

7 
 

$8
8,

67
7 

 
$9

8,
40

7 
 

$9
7,

04
2 

 
$1

10
,7

08
  

$9
1,

46
1 

 
$1

48
,5

46
  

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
66

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
5,

29
9 

 
$6

5,
29

9 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

0,
03

7 
 

$7
0,

03
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$5
3,

08
4 

 
$5

3,
08

4 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$4

4,
44

5 
 

$4
4,

44
5 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
06

,9
10

  
$1

06
,9

10
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

7 
6 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
4,

46
0 

 
$6

4,
83

0 
 

$6
2,

24
3 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
4 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
2,

60
8 

 
$6

2,
60

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

1,
71

2 
 

$9
1,

71
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
25

 
24

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$6

8,
95

2 
 

$6
9,

23
2 

 
$6

2,
24

3 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
67

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 4
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

5,
74

3 
 

$8
5,

74
3 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
24

 
24

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
5,

26
8 

 
$7

5,
26

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

25
 

23
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
2,

62
3 

 
$9

4,
03

0 
 

$7
6,

44
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
24

 
23

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

5,
83

9 
 

$9
7,

43
9 

 
$5

9,
02

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

25
 

25
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

7,
26

6 
 

$8
7,

26
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
16

 
15

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

1,
39

5 
 

$8
9,

24
8 

 
$1

23
,5

92
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

15
 

11
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
2,

48
5 

 
$8

9,
09

3 
 

$1
01

,8
15

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
12

 
10

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
46

8 
 

$9
0,

47
7 

 
$9

0,
42

4 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

5 
4 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
8,

42
2 

 
$8

4,
79

3 
 

$1
02

,9
39

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
2,

71
0 

 
$8

2,
71

0 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
14

8 
13

7 
11

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
8,

84
8 

 
$8

8,
48

9 
 

$9
3,

32
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
68

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 2
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

59
 

59
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$5

1,
27

7 
 

$5
1,

27
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
39

6 
39

6 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
2,

06
2 

 
$6

2,
06

2 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

60
0 

59
2 

8 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
1,

51
2 

 
$7

0,
91

7 
 

$1
15

,5
10

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
41

6 
41

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

3,
48

8 
 

$7
3,

11
9 

 
$1

24
,1

80
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

31
1 

31
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

2,
61

6 
 

$7
2,

61
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
31

8 
31

5 
2 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
0,

18
2 

 
$6

9,
90

3 
 

$9
3,

03
3 

 
$1

12
,4

46
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

22
1 

22
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

0,
66

5 
 

$7
0,

66
5 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
18

4 
18

0 
3 

- -
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
1,

20
2 

 
$7

1,
18

0 
 

$5
4,

86
3 

 
- -

 
$1

24
,1

80
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

13
3 

12
7 

6 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
8,

96
0 

 
$6

8,
97

2 
 

$6
8,

70
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
31

 
28

 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

1,
37

9 
 

$7
2,

73
3 

 
$5

8,
73

9 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
10

 
10

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
0,

75
8 

 
$6

0,
75

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
2,

67
9 

2,
65

2 
25

 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$6
9,

68
7 

 
$6

9,
46

4 
 

$8
9,

43
0 

 
$1

12
,4

46
  

$1
24

,1
80

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
69

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
R

 5
 –

 3
%

 C
O

LA
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$4

7,
40

2 
 

$4
7,

40
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
42

 
29

 
12

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$6

2,
21

6 
 

$5
7,

98
8 

 
$7

2,
84

6 
 

$5
7,

23
7 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
13

2 
77

 
55

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
5,

18
0 

 
$7

7,
40

6 
 

$7
2,

06
4 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
16

4 
92

 
71

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

9,
01

8 
 

$8
1,

37
2 

 
$7

6,
22

5 
 

$6
0,

69
0 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
11

2 
65

 
47

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
3,

15
2 

 
$8

5,
22

7 
 

$8
0,

28
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
95

 
54

 
41

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
6,

84
8 

 
$8

1,
75

8 
 

$7
0,

38
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
74

 
41

 
33

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
7,

03
9 

 
$7

9,
95

9 
 

$7
3,

41
0 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
72

 
43

 
29

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$7
1,

51
4 

 
$7

4,
44

0 
 

$6
7,

17
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
54

 
22

 
31

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

1,
66

9 
 

$7
8,

67
6 

 
$6

7,
33

8 
 

$5
1,

77
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
18

 
7 

11
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

7,
13

9 
 

$9
2,

32
4 

 
$6

7,
47

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
4 

2 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
80

7 
 

$7
7,

45
2 

 
$1

04
,1

63
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
77

0 
43

5 
33

2 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

6,
26

4 
 

$7
8,

70
4 

 
$7

3,
24

5 
 

$5
6,

56
6 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
70

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 A

 N
O

N
-E

N
H

AN
C

ED
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
2 

- -
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
32

,5
59

  
- -

 
$1

32
,5

59
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

38
,4

40
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$1
38

,4
40

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
44

,8
86

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

44
,8

86
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

5 
- -

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

3 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

42
,9

38
  

- -
 

$1
30

,8
85

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

43
,6

18
  

$1
52

,9
49

  
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

70
,2

81
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$2
03

,0
23

  
$1

37
,5

39
  

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
13

 
- -

 
3 

- -
 

4 
- -

 
4 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
45

,1
55

  
- -

 
$1

32
,0

01
  

- -
 

$1
41

,6
63

  
- -

 
$1

58
,4

69
  

$1
45

,2
44

  
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
71

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 A

 E
N

H
AN

C
ED

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
2 

1 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

12
,0

15
  

$1
13

,3
20

  
$1

10
,7

09
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

67
 

17
 

34
 

16
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

18
,7

69
  

$1
07

,7
08

  
$1

19
,8

21
  

$1
28

,2
85

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
13

9 
16

 
31

 
77

 
15

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
24

,9
30

  
$1

10
,8

76
  

$1
21

,6
55

  
$1

27
,2

55
  

$1
34

,7
48

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
19

0 
5 

12
 

64
 

10
1 

8 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
28

,6
16

  
$1

52
,2

93
  

$1
21

,2
10

  
$1

28
,9

28
  

$1
27

,5
80

  
$1

35
,4

96
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

25
2 

3 
9 

55
 

12
0 

49
 

16
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

37
,1

52
  

$1
36

,4
48

  
$1

44
,1

43
  

$1
29

,7
16

  
$1

33
,5

15
  

$1
45

,5
40

  
$1

60
,4

96
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

13
3 

1 
4 

17
 

53
 

36
 

18
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
38

,0
41

  
$1

30
,6

53
  

$1
17

,3
03

  
$1

26
,6

30
  

$1
36

,4
48

  
$1

34
,9

42
  

$1
55

,8
94

  
$1

77
,7

80
  

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

48
 

1 
4 

5 
24

 
7 

4 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

28
,9

56
  

$9
1,

13
3 

 
$1

10
,6

31
  

$1
17

,3
16

  
$1

24
,4

59
  

$1
40

,8
65

  
$1

58
,0

39
  

$1
54

,8
12

  
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
23

 
- -

 
2 

8 
4 

5 
2 

1 
1 

- -
 

 
$1

28
,9

85
  

- -
 

$1
22

,6
81

  
$1

22
,3

12
  

$1
10

,8
99

  
$1

24
,1

45
  

$2
08

,7
87

  
$1

61
,1

37
  

$9
9,

77
4 

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
7 

- -
 

1 
3 

2 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

21
,1

25
  

- -
 

$1
10

,0
80

  
$1

08
,8

77
  

$1
41

,6
63

  
$1

27
,8

37
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
86

1 
44

 
98

 
24

5 
31

9 
10

6 
40

 
8 

1 
- -

 
 

$1
31

,1
38

  
$1

16
,1

59
  

$1
22

,1
93

  
$1

27
,6

79
  

$1
31

,2
67

  
$1

39
,6

98
  

$1
60

,5
94

  
$1

67
,0

87
  

$9
9,

77
4 

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
72

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 C

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
7 

- -
 

7 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
11

,2
94

  
- -

 
$1

11
,2

94
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

44
 

2 
37

 
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

10
,7

82
  

$9
8,

21
6 

 
$1

10
,9

90
  

$1
14

,2
71

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
35

 
2 

21
 

12
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

10
,7

75
  

$1
02

,0
52

  
$1

09
,4

64
  

$1
14

,5
23

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
19

 
1 

7 
10

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

09
,2

88
  

$2
0,

05
6 

 
$1

13
,0

22
  

$1
14

,8
13

  
$1

17
,1

31
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

12
 

- -
 

7 
5 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$1

16
,2

91
  

- -
 

$1
14

,3
45

  
$1

19
,0

16
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

6 
- -

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
40

,7
40

  
- -

 
$1

65
,1

34
  

$1
16

,3
47

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
2 

- -
 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
10

,8
35

  
- -

 
$1

10
,8

35
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

2 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
09

,2
71

  
$1

07
,6

07
  

$1
10

,9
35

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 &

 o
ve

r 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
12

7 
6 

85
 

35
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
12

,4
98

  
$8

8,
03

3 
 

$1
12

,9
88

  
$1

15
,3

68
  

$1
17

,1
31

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
73

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 D

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

3 
3 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$7

1,
03

2 
 

$7
1,

03
2 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
33

 
32

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

5,
85

9 
 

$9
6,

33
0 

 
$8

0,
77

5 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

46
 

33
 

13
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

9,
84

6 
 

$1
00

,6
92

  
$9

7,
69

8 
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

35
 - 

39
 

22
 

18
 

4 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
00

,9
90

  
$9

6,
56

0 
 

$1
20

,9
25

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
9 

7 
2 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

2,
11

8 
 

$8
3,

79
9 

 
$1

21
,2

31
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

3 
1 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
13

,4
46

  
$8

5,
59

4 
 

$1
27

,3
73

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
2 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
16

,4
45

  
$1

16
,4

46
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

3 
2 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
04

,3
12

  
$1

14
,8

72
  

$8
3,

19
4 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
1 

- -
 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
42

,4
42

  
- -

 
$1

42
,4

42
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

65
 - 

69
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

12
2 

98
 

24
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

8,
76

1 
 

$9
6,

85
1 

 
$1

06
,5

58
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
74

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 B
 –

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
IN

 A
C

TI
VE

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

SE
RV

IC
E,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

 C
O

M
PE

NS
AT

IO
N

 
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R
 E

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 
To

ta
l 

0 
- 4

 
5 

- 9
 

10
 - 

14
 

15
 - 

19
 

20
 - 

24
 

25
 - 

29
 

30
 - 

34
 

35
 - 

39
 

40
 &

 o
ve

r 
U

nd
er

 2
5 

27
 

27
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

2,
82

1 
 

$8
2,

82
1 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
25

 - 
29

 
14

0 
13

4 
6 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$8

8,
20

9 
 

$8
7,

62
0 

 
$1

01
,3

82
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

85
 

72
 

13
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

1,
37

3 
 

$8
9,

56
3 

 
$1

01
,3

96
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

35
 - 

39
 

42
 

37
 

5 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$8
9,

89
6 

 
$8

8,
31

3 
 

$1
01

,6
04

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
12

 
11

 
1 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
65

6 
 

$8
9,

73
9 

 
$1

00
,7

41
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

8 
7 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$9
3,

10
7 

 
$9

2,
01

6 
 

$1
00

,7
41

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
13

 
13

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
06

,9
21

  
$1

06
,9

21
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

6 
4 

2 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
04

,0
80

  
$1

04
,2

74
  

$1
03

,6
91

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
3 

3 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$1
26

,5
78

  
$1

26
,5

78
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

65
 - 

69
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
70

 &
 o

ve
r 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

33
6 

30
8 

28
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

 
$9

0,
34

1 
 

$8
9,

32
3 

 
$1

01
,5

47
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
75

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

TO
TA

L 
PL

AN
 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 1

7 
 

 6
  

 3
  

 3
  

 1
  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 
$9

63
  

$1
65

  
$1

,2
53

  
$1

,4
68

  
$7

19
  

$3
68

  
$1

,5
11

  
- -

 
$4

,2
45

  
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
 1

5 
 

 7
  

 3
  

 1
  

 2
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,2
58

  
$1

,3
66

  
$1

,0
58

  
$9

18
  

$1
,9

81
  

$6
24

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 1

8 
 

 4
  

 4
  

 3
  

 2
  

 3
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,9
48

  
$2

,5
77

  
$3

,7
52

  
$6

49
  

$1
,4

25
  

$8
05

  
$1

,2
70

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
 4

7 
 

 1
5 

 
 1

1 
 

 1
0 

 
 1

  
 5

  
 4

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,9

05
  

$3
,7

55
  

$3
,0

92
  

$3
,5

23
  

$1
,7

06
  

$6
82

  
$1

,1
99

  
- -

 
$1

,0
50

  
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 9

7 
 

 3
7 

 
 1

6 
 

 1
7 

 
 1

4 
 

 8
  

 5
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$3

,4
59

  
$4

,5
00

  
$3

,0
57

  
$4

,2
13

  
$2

,4
53

  
$1

,1
23

  
$1

,0
38

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
 4

02
  

 2
93

  
 5

7 
 

 2
2 

 
 1

6 
 

 8
  

 6
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

,5
70

  
$4

,5
85

  
$5

,7
01

  
$3

,9
00

  
$3

,4
40

  
$2

,4
36

  
$1

,3
64

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 8

48
  

 3
78

  
 3

68
  

 3
7 

 
 3

2 
 

 2
1 

 
 7

  
 5

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
,1

86
  

$3
,1

92
  

$5
,4

60
  

$3
,4

11
  

$3
,3

91
  

$3
,3

03
  

$2
,9

09
  

$1
,9

37
  

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 1
,3

58
  

 4
41

  
 5

62
  

 2
42

  
 5

6 
 

 2
6 

 
 1

9 
 

 7
  

 4
  

 1
  

 
$4

,1
94

  
$3

,0
13

  
$4

,8
19

  
$5

,3
38

  
$3

,7
61

  
$2

,6
95

  
$2

,7
23

  
$3

,6
22

  
$2

,2
55

  
$4

12
  

65
 - 

69
 

 1
,8

64
  

 3
97

  
 6

65
  

 4
86

  
 2

06
  

 5
0 

 
 3

2 
 

 1
7 

 
 6

  
 5

  
 

$4
,1

16
  

$2
,8

02
  

$4
,4

69
  

$4
,9

90
  

$4
,0

55
  

$3
,0

17
  

$3
,1

88
  

$3
,0

01
  

$2
,5

71
  

$1
,4

95
  

70
 - 

74
 

 1
,9

27
  

 1
50

  
 4

90
  

 5
41

  
 4

51
  

 1
69

  
 5

3 
 

 3
6 

 
 2

1 
 

 1
6 

 
 

$4
,2

58
  

$2
,2

25
  

$3
,9

19
  

$5
,0

04
  

$5
,3

01
  

$2
,7

32
  

$3
,4

24
  

$2
,9

50
  

$2
,8

56
  

$2
,7

27
  

75
 - 

79
 

 1
,2

58
  

 2
2 

 
 1

39
  

 3
20

  
 3

64
  

 2
17

  
 1

20
  

 4
2 

 
 2

3 
 

 1
1 

 
 

$3
,8

57
  

$1
,8

18
  

$2
,9

86
  

$3
,4

52
  

$4
,5

93
  

$4
,5

73
  

$3
,3

04
  

$3
,0

12
  

$2
,9

77
  

$3
,3

76
  

80
  -

 8
4 

 8
20

  
 4

  
 2

2 
 

 7
2 

 
 1

93
  

 2
15

  
 1

63
  

 1
06

  
 3

0 
 

 1
5 

 
 

$3
,6

09
  

$1
,9

66
  

$2
,4

74
  

$2
,6

30
  

$3
,5

17
  

$4
,1

22
  

$4
,4

15
  

$2
,5

26
  

$3
,5

60
  

$3
,2

25
  

85
 - 

89
 

 4
97

  
 - 

-  
 2

  
 9

  
 2

7 
 

 1
11

  
 1

27
  

 1
12

  
 7

2 
 

 3
7 

 
 

$3
,1

84
  

- -
 

$2
,0

20
  

$3
,0

70
  

$2
,0

19
  

$3
,6

92
  

$3
,6

69
  

$2
,9

68
  

$2
,4

77
  

$2
,9

73
  

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 3

79
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 2
  

 3
  

 2
1 

 
 8

2 
 

 9
8 

 
 1

00
  

 7
2 

 
 

$3
,0

66
  

- -
 

$9
69

  
$4

,8
19

  
$1

,9
02

  
$2

,3
28

  
$3

,2
58

  
$3

,2
77

  
$2

,8
50

  
$3

,1
02

  
To

ta
l 

 9
,5

47
  

 1
,7

54
  

 2
,3

43
  

 1
,7

65
  

 1
,3

68
  

 8
58

  
 6

21
  

 4
23

  
 2

58
  

 1
57

  
 

$3
,9

86
  

$3
,2

02
  

$4
,4

87
  

$4
,5

79
  

$4
,4

26
  

$3
,6

43
  

$3
,5

86
  

$2
,9

32
  

$2
,8

23
  

$2
,9

96
  

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$3

8,
05

7,
25

0,
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 7

0.
4,

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t 1

4.
1.

 In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
76

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 1

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
48

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$4

48
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 5
  

 1
  

 3
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$8

89
  

$8
24

  
$1

,0
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
$4

48
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

35
 - 

39
 

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

27
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$9
27

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
 7

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 3

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$8
81

  
$1

,0
76

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$6

38
  

$1
,0

53
  

- -
 

$1
,0

50
  

- -
 

45
 - 

49
 

 5
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,5
54

  
- -

 
$2

,0
14

  
$2

,5
19

  
- -

 
$1

,0
88

  
$1

,0
60

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
50

 - 
54

 
 2

8 
 

 1
8 

 
 3

  
 1

  
 3

  
 2

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,9

72
  

$2
,0

82
  

$2
,2

17
  

$2
,2

50
  

$1
,5

31
  

$1
,0

27
  

$2
,1

83
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

 1
04

  
 4

5 
 

 3
7 

 
 6

  
 4

  
 6

  
 2

  
 4

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,5

38
  

$3
,4

17
  

$2
,0

12
  

$1
,5

62
  

$1
,7

39
  

$1
,8

17
  

$1
,5

40
  

$1
,3

47
  

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 3
13

  
 8

1 
 

 1
55

  
 4

2 
 

 1
2 

 
 9

  
 7

  
 3

  
 3

  
 1

  
 

$3
,8

21
  

$3
,3

28
  

$4
,7

85
  

$2
,4

21
  

$2
,9

56
  

$2
,4

93
  

$1
,8

88
  

$1
,7

50
  

$2
,0

19
  

$4
12

  
65

 - 
69

 
 5

47
  

 5
1 

 
 2

10
  

 1
62

  
 7

5 
 

 1
6 

 
 1

9 
 

 6
  

 4
  

 4
  

 
$4

,3
14

  
$3

,4
35

  
$5

,5
17

  
$4

,3
77

  
$2

,5
68

  
$2

,9
42

  
$2

,8
15

  
$2

,1
03

  
$1

,9
34

  
$8

36
  

70
 - 

74
 

 6
61

  
 1

9 
 

 8
6 

 
 2

30
  

 1
93

  
 8

1 
 

 2
2 

 
 1

2 
 

 9
  

 9
  

 
$4

,5
38

  
$2

,5
02

  
$5

,7
53

  
$5

,8
45

  
$4

,2
20

  
$2

,1
56

  
$2

,4
22

  
$3

,0
43

  
$1

,9
50

  
$1

,8
51

  
75

 - 
79

 
 5

17
  

 1
  

 1
5 

 
 8

6 
 

 1
90

  
 1

13
  

 7
0 

 
 2

2 
 

 1
6 

 
 4

  
 

$4
,1

59
  

$3
,3

28
  

$6
,2

81
  

$5
,3

30
  

$5
,1

72
  

$3
,2

04
  

$2
,1

51
  

$2
,1

70
  

$2
,7

16
  

$1
,9

37
  

80
  -

 8
4 

 4
53

  
 1

  
 1

  
 1

4 
 

 8
7 

 
 1

48
  

 9
7 

 
 8

0 
 

 1
5 

 
 1

0 
 

 
$3

,8
68

  
$3

51
  

$2
64

  
$5

,3
31

  
$5

,5
67

  
$4

,5
23

  
$3

,1
10

  
$1

,9
08

  
$2

,6
83

  
$2

,8
43

  
85

 - 
89

 
 3

41
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 9
  

 7
3 

 
 9

9 
 

 8
8 

 
 5

1 
 

 1
9 

 
 

$3
,1

98
  

- -
 

- -
 

$8
,6

07
  

$3
,4

99
  

$4
,5

75
  

$3
,7

70
  

$2
,3

91
  

$1
,6

37
  

$2
,1

40
  

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 3

09
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 3
  

 1
0 

 
 6

9 
 

 8
9 

 
 8

5 
 

 5
3 

 
 

$2
,8

94
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,9

02
  

$4
,2

40
  

$3
,6

18
  

$3
,0

20
  

$2
,2

88
  

$2
,5

16
  

To
ta

l 
 3

,2
93

  
 2

19
  

 5
11

  
 5

44
  

 5
76

  
 4

67
  

 3
88

  
 3

04
  

 1
84

  
 1

00
  

 
$3

,8
81

  
$3

,1
51

  
$5

,0
41

  
$4

,9
99

  
$4

,4
41

  
$3

,5
80

  
$3

,0
99

  
$2

,4
32

  
$2

,1
42

  
$2

,3
06

  
N

ot
e:

 T
ot

al
 re

tir
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

$1
2,

78
1,

93
9,

 a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 7
5.

6,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 1
9.

4.
 In

cl
ud

es
 m

em
be

rs
 fr

om
 te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
77

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 2

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$8
52

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,1
45

  
$5

60
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

64
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$7
49

  
$1

,1
79

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 1

2 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 6
  

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,0
44

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$7

98
  

$1
,1

35
  

$1
,0

32
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 7
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

06
  

$2
69

  
- -

 
$6

63
  

- -
 

$1
,3

03
  

$1
,2

66
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

 2
8 

 
 1

6 
 

 1
0 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
76

  
$3

56
  

$2
44

  
- -

 
- -

 
$2

,5
96

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
 5

4 
 

 1
7 

 
 1

0 
 

 1
3 

 
 6

  
 6

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$8
00

  
$3

83
  

$4
69

  
$7

62
  

$1
,6

22
  

$1
,5

54
  

$1
,5

12
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

65
 - 

69
 

 6
8 

 
 9

  
 1

1 
 

 1
9 

 
 2

1 
 

 7
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$9

03
  

$7
82

  
$5

13
  

$8
37

  
$9

29
  

$1
,5

52
  

$2
,4

18
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 - 

74
 

 1
09

  
 3

  
 1

2 
 

 2
5 

 
 2

9 
 

 3
2 

 
 6

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$9
60

  
$1

,0
17

  
$6

91
  

$7
07

  
$9

74
  

$1
,0

32
  

$1
,8

12
  

$1
,7

49
  

- -
 

- -
 

75
 - 

79
 

 1
01

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 1

5 
 

 3
9 

 
 3

8 
 

 7
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,0
98

  
- -

 
$8

7 
 

$6
73

  
$1

,4
29

  
$1

,0
00

  
$9

25
  

$4
97

  
- -

 
- -

 
80

  -
 8

4 
 9

4 
 

 - 
-  

 1
  

 3
  

 3
9 

 
 3

7 
 

 1
1 

 
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,0

94
  

- -
 

$9
64

  
$1

,2
14

  
$1

,1
36

  
$1

,0
78

  
$1

,0
27

  
$9

07
  

- -
 

- -
 

85
 - 

89
 

 6
2 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

3 
 

 3
0 

 
 1

6 
 

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,1
34

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,1
58

  
$1

,2
00

  
$1

,1
25

  
$4

25
  

$4
18

  
- -

 
90

 &
 O

ve
r 

 2
5 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 1

1 
 

 1
2 

 
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$9
75

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$5

90
  

$1
,3

65
  

$9
12

  
$5

94
  

- -
 

To
ta

l 
 5

66
  

 4
7 

 
 4

5 
 

 7
6 

 
 1

50
  

 1
74

  
 6

3 
 

 9
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 
$9

81
  

$4
86

  
$4

92
  

$7
62

  
$1

,1
69

  
$1

,0
93

  
$1

,2
30

  
$9

42
  

$5
06

  
- -

 
N

ot
e:

 T
ot

al
 re

tir
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

$5
55

,3
82

, a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 7
4.

1,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 1
7.

7.
 In

cl
ud

es
 m

em
be

rs
 fr

om
 te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
78

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 3

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 1

0 
 

 6
  

 3
  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$5

47
  

$1
65

  
$1

,2
53

  
- -

 
$7

19
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 7
  

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,0
37

  
$6

25
  

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,9

81
  

$8
00

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 5

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 3

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$8
32

  
$5

09
  

- -
 

$6
49

  
$1

,7
06

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
40

 - 
44

 
 1

0 
 

 2
  

 4
  

 3
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,9
41

  
$3

,4
03

  
$1

,9
00

  
$1

,0
99

  
$1

,7
06

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 1

4 
 

 5
  

 3
  

 2
  

 4
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,5
13

  
$1

,9
76

  
$1

,7
41

  
$9

52
  

$1
,0

45
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 1
09

  
 9

4 
 

 6
  

 7
  

 2
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$1

,7
51

  
$1

,6
81

  
$2

,6
25

  
$2

,1
07

  
$1

,1
79

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 3

67
  

 2
51

  
 1

05
  

 6
  

 5
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,2
75

  
$2

,5
49

  
$1

,6
63

  
$2

,3
61

  
$1

,2
40

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
 6

58
  

 3
19

  
 2

61
  

 6
7 

 
 1

1 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,9
42

  
$2

,9
48

  
$3

,2
05

  
$1

,9
55

  
$2

,5
55

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 9

12
  

 3
22

  
 3

90
  

 1
65

  
 3

5 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,9
58

  
$2

,7
08

  
$3

,5
05

  
$2

,4
81

  
$1

,4
17

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
70

 - 
74

 
 7

74
  

 1
22

  
 3

76
  

 2
12

  
 6

3 
 

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$3

,1
30

  
$2

,2
60

  
$3

,5
06

  
$3

,3
66

  
$1

,7
93

  
$2

,1
81

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
75

 - 
79

 
 4

11
  

 2
0 

 
 1

17
  

 2
02

  
 7

1 
 

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,5
44

  
$1

,7
62

  
$2

,5
81

  
$2

,8
43

  
$1

,8
67

  
- -

 
$1

,5
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
80

  -
 8

4 
 1

32
  

 2
  

 1
7 

 
 5

5 
 

 5
8 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,9

26
  

$2
,1

22
  

$2
,3

57
  

$2
,0

20
  

$1
,7

03
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

85
 - 

89
 

 1
4 

 
 - 

-  
 2

  
 7

  
 5

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,6

02
  

- -
 

$2
,0

20
  

$1
,4

89
  

$1
,5

93
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 3

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$3
,5

36
  

- -
 

$9
69

  
$4

,8
19

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
To

ta
l 

 3
,4

26
  

 1
,1

48
  

 1
,2

85
  

 7
31

  
 2

59
  

 2
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$2

,7
65

  
$2

,5
66

  
$3

,1
72

  
$2

,7
30

  
$1

,7
40

  
$1

,4
91

  
$1

,5
58

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
N

ot
e:

 T
ot

al
 re

tir
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

$9
,4

72
,2

74
, a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 6

7.
6,

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t 7

.6
.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
79

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R
 5

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 1
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

70
  

$4
70

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 3

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
07

  
$2

07
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 1
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

09
  

$4
09

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 3

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$5
30

  
$5

30
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 - 

74
 

 3
  

 3
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$3

72
  

$3
72

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
75

 - 
79

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

80
  -

 8
4 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
85

 - 
89

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
 1

1 
 

 1
1 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$3
83

  
$3

83
  

- -
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$4

,2
08

, a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 6
4.

2,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 0
.5

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
80

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

SA
FE

TY
 T

IE
R

 A
 A

N
D

 T
IE

R
 C

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 6

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 

$1
,7

41
  

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,4

68
  

- -
 

$2
88

  
$1

,5
11

  
- -

 
$4

,2
45

  
- -

 
30

 - 
34

 
 3

  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,3

86
  

$3
,1

20
  

- -
 

$9
18

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 9

  
 3

  
 4

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 2

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$3
,0

38
  

$3
,2

66
  

$3
,7

52
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$1
,2

70
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 2
6 

 
 1

1 
 

 7
  

 7
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$4

,1
19

  
$4

,3
06

  
$3

,7
73

  
$4

,5
62

  
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,3
82

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 6

6 
 

 3
2 

 
 1

2 
 

 1
4 

 
 8

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$4
,4

55
  

$4
,8

94
  

$3
,4

73
  

$4
,8

00
  

$3
,5

71
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 2
57

  
 1

78
  

 4
8 

 
 1

3 
 

 1
1 

 
 4

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$6
,1

63
  

$6
,4

43
  

$6
,3

03
  

$5
,2

42
  

$4
,3

71
  

$3
,7

06
  

$1
,1

56
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

55
 - 

59
 

 3
45

  
 6

2 
 

 2
16

  
 2

5 
 

 2
3 

 
 1

3 
 

 5
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
$7

,0
57

  
$6

,5
18

  
$8

,1
38

  
$4

,1
07

  
$4

,1
46

  
$4

,0
98

  
$3

,4
57

  
$4

,2
97

  
- -

 
- -

 
60

 - 
64

 
 3

32
  

 2
3 

 
 1

36
  

 1
20

  
 2

7 
 

 1
1 

 
 1

0 
 

 4
  

 1
  

 - 
-  

 
$7

,5
93

  
$4

,8
74

  
$8

,2
75

  
$8

,7
43

  
$5

,0
86

  
$3

,4
83

  
$3

,5
49

  
$5

,0
26

  
$2

,9
64

  
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 3

34
  

 1
2 

 
 5

4 
 

 1
40

  
 7

5 
 

 2
7 

 
 1

2 
 

 1
1 

 
 2

  
 1

  
 

$7
,6

38
  

$4
,7

40
  

$8
,1

61
  

$9
,2

18
  

$7
,6

48
  

$3
,4

41
  

$3
,8

43
  

$3
,4

91
  

$3
,8

45
  

$4
,1

32
  

70
 - 

74
 

 3
80

  
 3

  
 1

6 
 

 7
4 

 
 1

66
  

 5
5 

 
 2

5 
 

 2
2 

 
 1

2 
 

 7
  

 
$7

,0
44

  
$2

,1
38

  
$6

,1
93

  
$8

,5
34

  
$8

,6
44

  
$4

,5
80

  
$4

,6
92

  
$3

,0
08

  
$3

,5
36

  
$3

,8
53

  
75

 - 
79

 
 2

29
  

 1
  

 6
  

 1
7 

 
 6

4 
 

 6
6 

 
 4

2 
 

 1
9 

 
 7

  
 7

  
 

$6
,7

50
  

$1
,4

17
  

$3
,1

26
  

$3
,6

39
  

$7
,8

26
  

$8
,9

74
  

$5
,6

64
  

$4
,1

19
  

$3
,5

74
  

$4
,1

99
  

80
  -

 8
4 

 1
41

  
 1

  
 3

  
 - 

-  
 9

  
 3

0 
 

 5
5 

 
 2

3 
 

 1
5 

 
 5

  
 

$6
,0

29
  

$3
,2

68
  

$4
,3

74
  

- -
 

$5
,7

02
  

$5
,8

97
  

$7
,3

92
  

$4
,8

88
  

$4
,4

37
  

$3
,9

89
  

85
 - 

89
 

 8
0 

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 8

  
 1

2 
 

 2
2 

 
 2

0 
 

 1
8 

 
 

$4
,9

93
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

$4
,9

76
  

$6
,2

23
  

$5
,5

08
  

$4
,7

22
  

$3
,8

52
  

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 4

2 
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 1
  

 8
  

 1
4 

 
 1

9 
 

 
$5

,5
38

  
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
$1

,1
15

  
$6

,4
37

  
$6

,4
26

  
$4

,7
37

  
To

ta
l 

 2
,2

50
  

 3
28

  
 5

02
  

 4
14

  
 3

83
  

 2
15

  
 1

69
  

 1
10

  
 7

2 
 

 5
7 

 
 

$6
,7

74
  

$5
,9

49
  

$7
,6

51
  

$7
,9

91
  

$7
,4

93
  

$5
,8

63
  

$5
,5

94
  

$4
,4

76
  

$4
,6

29
  

$4
,2

06
  

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$1

5,
24

1,
28

8,
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 6

6.
3,

 a
nd

 a
ve

ra
ge

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
et

ire
m

en
t 1

5.
4.

 In
cl

ud
es

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 te
rm

in
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
81

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 –

 R
ET

IR
ED

 M
EM

B
ER

S 
AN

D
 B

EN
EF

IC
IA

R
IE

S 
AS

 O
F 

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

B
Y 

AG
E,

 Y
EA

R
S 

O
F 

R
ET

IR
EM

EN
T,

 A
N

D
 A

VE
R

AG
E 

M
O

N
TH

LY
 B

EN
EF

IT
 

SA
FE

TY
 T

IE
R

 D
 A

N
D

 T
IE

R
 E

 

Ag
e 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

To
ta

l 
0 

- 4
 

5 
- 9

 
10

 - 
14

 
15

 - 
19

 
20

 - 
24

 
25

 - 
29

 
30

 - 
34

 
35

 - 
39

 
40

 &
 o

ve
r 

U
nd

er
 3

0 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

30
 - 

34
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
35

 - 
39

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

40
 - 

44
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
45

 - 
49

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

50
 - 

54
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
55

 - 
59

 
 1

  
 1

  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

$2
,1

60
 

$2
,1

60
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

60
 - 

64
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
65

 - 
69

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

70
 - 

74
 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
75

 - 
79

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

80
  -

 8
4 

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 - 
-  

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
85

 - 
89

 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

90
 &

 O
ve

r 
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 - 

-  
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

To
ta

l 
1 

1 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
- -

 
 

$2
,1

60
  

$2
,1

60
  

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

- -
 

N
ot

e:
 T

ot
al

 re
tir

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
$2

,1
60

, a
ve

ra
ge

 a
ge

 5
6.

2,
 a

nd
 a

ve
ra

ge
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

et
ire

m
en

t 1
.6

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
82

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 D
 –

 R
EC

O
N

C
IL

IA
TI

O
N

 O
F 

M
EM

B
ER

 D
AT

A 

 
Ac

tiv
e 

M
em

be
rs

 

In
ac

tiv
e 

Ve
st

ed
 

M
em

be
rs

(1
)  

R
et

ire
d 

M
em

be
rs

 
D

is
ab

le
d 

M
em

be
rs

 
B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s 

To
ta

l 
N

um
be

r a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

10
,0

38
 

3,
32

7 
6,

97
3 

89
6 

1,
39

8 
22

,6
32

 

• 
N

ew
 m

em
be

rs
 

79
9 

10
0 

0 
0 

10
4 

1,
00

3 

• 
Te

rm
in

at
io

ns
 –

 w
ith

 v
es

te
d 

rig
ht

s 
(3

10
) 

31
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

• 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
re

fu
nd

s 
(1

75
) 

(1
33

) 
0 

0 
0 

(3
08

) 

• 
R

et
ire

m
en

ts
 

(3
19

) 
(9

2)
 

41
1 

0 
0 

0 

• 
N

ew
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
(3

3)
 

(2
) 

(5
) 

40
 

0 
0 

• 
R

et
ur

n 
to

 w
or

k 
27

 
(2

7)
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

• 
D

ie
d 

w
ith

 o
r w

ith
ou

t b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

 
(7

) 
(6

) 
(1

64
) 

(2
7)

 
(7

1)
 

(2
75

) 

• 
D

at
a 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 
1 

0 
(1

) 
(1

) 
(6

) 
(7

) 

N
um

be
r a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
10

,0
21

 
3,

47
7 

7,
21

4 
90

8 
1,

42
5 

23
,0

45
 

(1
)  

In
cl

ud
es

 in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 o

n 
de

po
si

t. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
83

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 E
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

IN
C

O
M

E 
AN

D
 E

XP
EN

SE
S 

O
N

 A
 M

AR
K

ET
 V

AL
U

E 
B

AS
IS

 
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
 

Ye
ar

 E
nd

ed
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 a

t t
he

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 y
ea

r 
 

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

 
$7

,4
38

,5
19

,5
04

  
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

in
co

m
e:

 
 

 
 

 
• 

Em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
$3

25
,1

17
,1

03
  

 
$3

14
,8

36
,5

61
  

 
• 

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

10
3,

54
1,

52
9 

 
 

96
,4

66
,9

06
  

 
• 

Le
ss

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

(9
,3

37
,0

53
) 

 
(9

,1
46

,1
15

) 
 

N
et

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

in
co

m
e 

 
$4

19
,3

21
,5

79
  

 
$4

02
,1

57
,3

52
  

In
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e:
 

 
 

 
 

• 
In

te
re

st
, d

iv
id

en
ds

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

co
m

e 
$1

22
,0

28
,7

12
  

 
$2

16
,7

36
,1

17
  

 
• 

As
se

t a
pp

re
ci

at
io

n 
(2

71
,9

10
,9

65
) 

 
81

3,
54

4,
84

7 
 

 
• 

Le
ss

 in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ee
s 

(4
5,

14
8,

63
5)

 
 

(4
2,

86
4,

98
3)

 
 

N
et

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e 
 

$(
19

5,
03

0,
88

8)
 

 
$9

87
,4

15
,9

81
  

To
ta

l i
nc

om
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r b
en

ef
its

 
 

$2
24

,2
90

,6
91

  
 

$1
,3

89
,5

73
,3

33
  

Le
ss

 b
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

Be
ne

fit
s 

pa
id

 
$(

45
1,

37
1,

64
5)

 
 

$(
42

9,
57

4,
19

5)
 

 
• 

R
ef

un
ds

 o
f c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

(9
,2

32
,8

94
) 

 
(5

,9
80

,4
05

) 
 

• 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
, t

ra
ns

fe
rs

 o
r o

th
er

 e
xp

en
se

s 
(4

,2
81

,4
07

) 
 

(1
,9

57
,1

88
) 

 
N

et
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
 

 
$(

46
4,

88
5,

94
7)

 
 

$(
43

7,
51

1,
78

8)
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s 
at

 m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 
 

$(
24

0,
59

5,
25

6)
 

 
$9

52
,0

61
,5

45
  

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 y

ea
r 

 
$8

,1
49

,9
85

,7
93

  
 

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
84

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 F
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T 

O
F 

PL
AN

 A
SS

ET
S 

 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
Ye

ar
 E

nd
ed

  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

 
C

as
h 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
s 

 
$6

53
,2

79
,9

87
  

 
$6

90
,7

93
,8

03
  

Ac
co

un
ts

 re
ce

iv
ab

le
: 

 
 

 
 

• 
In

ve
st

m
en

t t
ra

de
s 

$1
6,

98
3,

47
2 

 
 

$2
2,

46
2,

32
2 

 
 

• 
In

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e 

20
,2

29
,6

23
  

 
20

,2
93

,6
45

  
 

• 
Em

pl
oy

er
 a

nd
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
9,

98
2,

07
7 

 
 

9,
80

5,
48

6 
 

 
• 

Ad
di

tio
na

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
12

,3
17

,6
64

  
 

14
,3

67
,3

97
  

 
To

ta
l a

cc
ou

nt
s 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
 

 
$5

9,
51

2,
83

6 
 

 
$6

6,
92

8,
85

0 
 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

St
oc

ks
 

$3
,2

02
,5

23
,4

90
  

 
$3

,8
99

,0
74

,0
60

  
 

• 
Bo

nd
s 

2,
61

1,
97

9,
91

5 
 

 
2,

38
5,

46
0,

86
6 

 
 

• 
R

ea
l e

st
at

e 
64

4,
58

7,
62

6 
 

 
65

2,
38

5,
61

7 
 

 
• 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 re
al

 a
ss

et
s 

1,
44

0,
99

3,
83

3 
 

 
1,

21
6,

66
6,

28
5 

 
 

To
ta

l i
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 a
t m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 

 
$7

,9
00

,0
84

,8
64

  
 

$8
,1

53
,5

86
,8

28
  

O
th

er
 a

ss
et

s 
 

50
0,

28
4 

 
 

51
6,

75
4 

 
To

ta
l a

ss
et

s 
 

 
$8

,6
13

,3
77

,9
71

  
 

$8
,9

11
,8

26
,2

35
  

Ac
co

un
ts

 p
ay

ab
le

: 
 

 
 

 
• 

In
ve

st
m

en
t t

ra
de

s 
$(

20
,5

76
,9

22
) 

 
$(

25
,3

52
,5

46
) 

 
• 

Se
cu

rit
y 

le
nd

in
g 

(2
43

,3
58

,0
31

) 
 

(2
94

,0
05

,4
15

) 
 

• 
Em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 u

ne
ar

ne
d 

(1
51

,7
48

,1
13

) 
 

(1
55

,4
92

,3
20

) 
 

• 
O

th
er

 
(4

7,
70

9,
11

2)
 

 
(4

6,
39

4,
90

5)
 

 
To

ta
l a

cc
ou

nt
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

 
$(

46
3,

39
2,

17
8)

 
 

$(
52

1,
24

5,
18

6)
 

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 

 
$8

,1
49

,9
85

,7
93

  
 

$8
,3

90
,5

81
,0

49
  

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

at
 a

ct
ua

ria
l v

al
ue

 
 

$8
,6

66
,7

78
,0

56
  

 
$8

,1
95

,5
16

,5
41

  
N

et
 a

ss
et

s 
at

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
va

lu
e 

 
$8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  
 

$8
,1

79
,8

91
,1

91
  

N
ot

e:
 

R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
85

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 G
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
TO

TA
L 

AL
LO

C
AT

ED
 R

ES
ER

VE
S 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

 
M

em
be

r D
ep

os
its

 (1
)  

$8
52

,4
64

,7
38

 
$7

95
,7

27
,4

98
  

M
em

be
r C

os
t o

f L
iv

in
g 

(1
)  

44
9,

16
1,

64
5 

42
0,

38
8,

70
7 

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 A

dv
an

ce
 (1

) (
2)

 
2,

29
5,

15
2,

78
6 

2,
06

3,
00

2,
25

9 
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
os

t o
f L

iv
in

g 
(1

) (
2)

 
1,

03
2,

58
7,

04
5 

92
8,

96
4,

62
8 

 
R

et
ire

d 
M

em
be

rs
 (1

) (
2)

 
3,

46
8,

06
7,

21
1 

3,
36

3,
34

3,
72

2 
 

R
et

ire
d 

C
os

t o
f L

iv
in

g 
(1

) (
2)

 
2,

56
5,

74
2,

21
5 

2,
44

4,
58

2,
49

5 
 

D
ol

la
r P

ow
er

 C
os

t o
f L

iv
in

g 
Su

pp
le

m
en

t P
re

-F
un

di
ng

 (1
)  

2,
64

9,
18

1 
3,

94
6,

60
3 

 
Po

st
 R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 B

en
ef

it 
(3

)  
15

,7
57

,9
10

 
15

,6
25

,3
50

  
St

at
ut

or
y 

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

(o
ne

 p
er

ce
nt

) (3
)  

0 
 

0 
 

Ad
di

tio
na

l O
ne

 P
er

ce
nt

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

D
es

ig
na

tio
n 

(3
)  

0 
 

0 
 

C
on

tra
 T

ra
ck

in
g 

Ac
co

un
t (1

)  
(2

,0
14

,8
04

,6
75

) 
(1

,8
40

,0
64

,7
21

) 
To

ta
l A

llo
ca

te
d 

R
es

er
ve

s 
$8

,6
66

,7
78

,0
56

 
$8

,1
95

,5
16

,5
41

  
To

ta
l D

ef
er

re
d 

R
et

ur
n 

(5
16

,7
92

,2
63

) 
19

5,
06

4,
50

8 
 

N
et

 M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 
$8

,1
49

,9
85

,7
93

 
$8

,3
90

,5
81

,0
49

  
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
)  

In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
ss

et
s.

 
(2

)  
Bo

th
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

an
d 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

fle
ct

 a
 “t

ru
e-

up
” o

f r
et

ire
d 

re
se

rv
es

. 
(3

)  
N

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
86

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 H
 –

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
FU

N
D

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 

Ye
ar

 
En

de
d 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

31
 

Em
pl

oy
er

 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

(1
) 

M
em

be
r 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
(1

) 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es
(2

) 

N
et

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
R

et
ur

n(3
)  

B
en

ef
it 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

at
 

Ye
ar

-E
nd

 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
  

As
se

ts
 a

t  
Ye

ar
-E

nd
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

as
 a

 
Pe

rc
en

t o
f 

M
ar

ke
t 

Va
lu

e 
20

09
 

$1
95

,6
13

,6
73

  
$6

6,
53

6,
16

1 
 

N
/A

 
$7

36
,9

56
,8

91
  

$2
72

,0
76

,0
07

  
$4

,4
76

,7
29

,5
30

  
$5

,2
90

,1
14

,1
02

  
11

8.
2%

 

20
10

 
18

3,
95

0,
93

0 
 

64
,3

30
,4

84
  

N
/A

 
59

4,
63

7,
09

0 
29

2,
49

0,
83

5 
 

5,
02

7,
15

7,
19

9 
 

5,
34

1,
82

1,
71

1 
 

10
6.

3%
 

20
11

 
20

0,
38

8,
99

4 
 

61
,5

75
,3

76
  

N
/A

 
88

,0
42

,2
68

 
32

4,
87

4,
37

9 
 

5,
05

2,
28

9,
45

8 
 

5,
42

6,
71

9,
06

6 
 

10
7.

4%
 

20
12

 
21

2,
32

1,
32

5 
 

73
,3

61
,7

12
  

N
/A

 
66

8,
13

8,
99

7 
35

1,
53

0,
36

8 
 

5,
65

4,
58

1,
12

4 
 

5,
48

2,
25

7,
06

2 
 

97
.0

%
 

20
13

 
23

5,
01

7,
45

2 
 

72
,3

73
,2

54
  

N
/A

 
87

0,
98

4,
74

4 
37

4,
63

8,
97

8 
 

6,
45

8,
31

7,
59

6 
 

5,
90

7,
41

6,
43

2 
 

91
.5

%
 

20
14

 
29

3,
76

0,
41

3 
 

78
,2

57
,6

65
  

N
/A

 
47

3,
52

2,
26

1 
39

4,
94

7,
70

5 
 

6,
90

8,
91

0,
23

0 
 

6,
55

7,
49

6,
10

1 
 

94
.9

%
 

20
15

 
32

3,
72

0,
27

0 
 

85
,3

60
,6

37
  

N
/A

 
65

,4
95

,6
57

 
40

6,
90

4,
36

6 
 

6,
97

6,
58

2,
42

8 
 

7,
13

6,
80

1,
38

0 
 

10
2.

3%
 

20
16

 
30

7,
45

7,
14

3 
 

89
,2

40
,1

72
  

$8
,4

86
,4

63
  

49
3,

87
4,

24
2 

42
0,

14
8,

01
8 

 
7,

43
8,

51
9,

50
4 

 
7,

60
6,

99
7,

53
0 

 
10

2.
3%

 

20
17

 
31

4,
83

6,
56

1 
 

96
,4

66
,9

06
  

9,
14

6,
11

5 
 

98
7,

41
5,

98
1 

43
7,

51
1,

78
8 

 
8,

39
0,

58
1,

04
9 

 
8,

17
9,

89
1,

19
1 

 
97

.5
%

 

20
18

 
32

5,
11

7,
10

3 
 

10
3,

54
1,

52
9 

 
9,

33
7,

05
3 

 
(1

95
,0

30
,8

88
) 

46
4,

88
5,

94
7 

 
8,

14
9,

98
5,

79
3 

 
8,

65
0,

17
8,

22
6 

 
10

6.
1%

 
(1

) 
Pr

io
r t

o 
20

17
, e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
e 

“e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
” a

nd
 e

xc
lu

de
 “m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

”. 
(2

) 
Pr

io
r to

 2
01

6,
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 w
er

e 
sh

ow
n 

as
 a

n 
of

fs
et

 to
 th

e 
ne

t i
nv

es
tm

en
t r

et
ur

n.
 

(3
) 

O
n 

a 
m

ar
ke

t b
as

is
, n

et
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t f

ee
s 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6.
 P

rio
r t

o 
20

16
, s

ho
w

n 
ne

t o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t f
ee

s 
an

d 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
87

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

) 

C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

#1
 a

nd
 #

2 
– 

G
en

er
al

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

es
ta

rt 
of

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

$7
85

,0
69

,1
53

  
15

 
$3

79
,5

29
,4

98
  

4 
$1

03
,7

46
,6

44
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

80
,0

33
,1

99
  

18
 

60
,6

88
,5

14
  

8 
8,

88
5,

62
3 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
16

5,
04

1,
32

3 
 

18
 

13
2,

91
8,

13
0 

 
9 

17
,5

94
,1

80
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
39

,5
63

,8
26

  
18

 
31

,8
63

,2
31

  
9 

4,
21

7,
69

0 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(7

4,
70

1,
91

3)
 

18
 

(6
0,

16
2,

13
6)

 
9 

(7
,9

63
,5

75
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

15
3,

07
0,

54
3 

 
18

 
12

9,
34

9,
28

5 
 

10
 

15
,6

71
,1

71
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

94
,7

50
,0

78
  

18
 

83
,1

77
,7

79
  

11
 

9,
31

5,
71

9 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

11
7,

02
9,

11
6 

 
18

 
10

5,
85

5,
17

5 
 

12
 

11
,0

49
,7

19
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
28

8,
80

2,
88

2 
 

18
 

26
1,

22
7,

98
0 

 
12

 
27

,2
68

,3
48

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(1

34
,8

10
,1

12
) 

18
 

(1
25

,1
93

,0
21

) 
13

 
(1

2,
26

3,
94

3)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
07

,5
53

,2
89

) 
18

 
(9

9,
88

0,
64

7)
 

13
 

(9
,7

84
,3

36
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(1
71

,8
98

,8
12

) 
18

 
(1

62
,9

39
,6

17
) 

14
 

(1
5,

06
6,

74
5)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(1

05
,0

03
,5

33
) 

18
 

(1
01

,0
80

,2
96

) 
15

 
(8

,8
67

,0
25

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

39
,8

14
,8

84
  

18
 

38
,3

27
,2

84
  

15
 

3,
36

2,
16

9 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(2
8,

57
9,

02
6)

 
18

 
(2

7,
96

4,
82

9)
 

16
 

(2
,3

37
,3

91
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(1
7,

93
7,

63
8)

 
18

 
(1

7,
77

3,
69

4)
 

17
 

(1
,4

20
,8

86
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

75
,2

64
,0

47
  

18
 

75
,2

64
,0

47
  

18
 

5,
77

4,
19

5 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(6

,0
21

,6
83

) 
18

 
(6

,0
21

,6
83

) 
18

 
(4

61
,9

78
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
#1

 a
nd

 #
2 

 
 

 
$6

97
,1

84
,9

98
  

 
$1

48
,7

19
,5

79
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
88

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
C

en
tr

al
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$3

6,
18

5,
00

0 
 

15
 

$1
7,

49
3,

07
7 

 
4 

$4
,7

81
,8

36
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

3,
70

9,
83

5 
 

18
 

2,
81

3,
13

7 
 

8 
41

1,
88

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

10
,1

18
,2

61
  

18
 

8,
14

8,
87

0 
 

9 
1,

07
8,

65
4 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

2,
00

3,
00

0 
 

18
 

1,
61

3,
14

2 
 

9 
21

3,
52

9 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
20

,0
37

,2
35

  
18

 
16

,1
37

,2
42

  
9 

2,
13

6,
06

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

18
,1

78
,4

89
  

18
 

15
,3

61
,3

79
  

10
 

1,
86

1,
09

1 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

11
,4

79
,6

48
  

18
 

9,
70

0,
65

3 
 

10
 

1,
17

5,
27

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

10
,5

14
,5

35
  

18
 

9,
23

0,
34

3 
 

11
 

1,
03

3,
77

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

12
,5

64
,2

41
  

18
 

11
,3

64
,6

07
  

12
 

1,
18

6,
29

7 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
22

,4
55

,3
42

  
18

 
20

,3
11

,3
06

  
12

 
2,

12
0,

20
1 

 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
(4

,6
66

,4
77

) 
18

 
(4

,2
20

,9
22

) 
12

 
(4

40
,6

02
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

58
2,

96
2 

 
18

 
54

1,
37

5 
 

13
 

53
,0

33
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
4,

95
0,

86
6)

 
18

 
(1

3,
88

4,
30

0)
 

13
 

(1
,3

60
,1

10
) 

U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(4
,6

62
,8

99
) 

18
 

(4
,3

30
,2

57
) 

13
 

(4
24

,1
93

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(1

1,
84

8,
82

3)
 

18
 

(1
1,

23
1,

27
5)

 
14

 
(1

,0
38

,5
37

) 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(2

,3
31

,8
96

) 
18

 
(2

,2
10

,3
60

) 
14

 
(2

04
,3

88
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(6
,5

04
,5

10
) 

18
 

(6
,2

61
,4

83
) 

15
 

(5
49

,2
73

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

44
,2

20
  

18
 

42
,5

68
  

15
 

3,
73

4 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(1
,5

22
,9

32
) 

18
 

(1
,4

90
,2

03
) 

16
 

(1
24

,5
56

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(1

,6
21

,9
26

) 
18

 
(1

,6
07

,1
03

) 
17

 
(1

28
,4

77
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

5,
33

1,
33

6 
 

18
 

5,
33

1,
33

6 
 

18
 

40
9,

01
6 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

1,
12

9,
70

9 
 

18
 

1,
12

9,
70

9 
 

18
 

86
,6

70
  

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

 
 

 
$7

3,
98

2,
84

2 
 

 
$1

2,
28

0,
91

9 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
89

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

– 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$7

,7
70

,0
00

  
15

 
$3

,7
56

,2
86

  
4 

$1
,0

26
,8

03
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

1,
57

3,
51

3 
 

18
 

1,
19

3,
18

2 
 

8 
17

4,
69

8 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

1,
27

7,
07

9 
 

18
 

1,
02

8,
51

2 
 

9 
13

6,
14

3 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
42

5,
00

0 
 

18
 

34
2,

27
9 

 
9 

45
,3

07
  

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(1

89
,2

75
) 

18
 

(1
52

,4
35

) 
9 

(2
0,

17
8)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
61

9,
69

7 
 

18
 

52
3,

66
3 

 
10

 
63

,4
44

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
(9

20
,6

56
) 

18
 

(7
77

,9
82

) 
10

 
(9

4,
25

6)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

1,
05

9,
32

8 
 

18
 

92
9,

94
7 

 
11

 
10

4,
15

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

1,
91

2,
99

9 
 

18
 

1,
73

0,
34

6 
 

12
 

18
0,

62
3 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

3,
72

2,
86

2 
 

18
 

3,
36

7,
40

3 
 

12
 

35
1,

50
7 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(2

,2
20

,7
04

) 
18

 
(2

,0
62

,2
83

) 
13

 
(2

02
,0

22
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
,0

77
,2

89
) 

18
 

(1
,0

00
,4

37
) 

13
 

(9
8,

00
3)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(1

,3
60

,0
21

) 
18

 
(1

,2
89

,1
38

) 
14

 
(1

19
,2

04
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(8
75

,2
94

) 
18

 
(8

42
,5

91
) 

15
 

(7
3,

91
4)

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

43
2,

80
1 

 
18

 
41

6,
63

0 
 

15
 

36
,5

48
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(2
97

,0
92

) 
18

 
(2

90
,7

07
) 

16
 

(2
4,

29
8)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
53

,8
95

  
18

 
53

,4
03

  
17

 
4,

26
9 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
52

7,
74

1 
 

18
 

52
7,

74
1 

 
18

 
40

,4
88

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

86
,5

77
  

18
 

86
,5

77
  

18
 

6,
64

2 
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
4 

 
 

 
$7

,5
40

,3
95

  
 

$1
,5

38
,7

49
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
90

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
5 

– 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$(

1,
01

1,
00

0)
 

15
 

$(
48

8,
75

2)
 

4 
$(

13
3,

60
3)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

8 
45

,9
63

  
18

 
34

,8
53

  
8 

5,
10

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

1,
61

4,
18

0 
 

18
 

1,
30

0,
00

0 
 

9 
17

2,
07

9 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
33

6,
00

0 
 

18
 

27
0,

60
2 

 
9 

35
,8

19
  

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
2,

14
2,

53
8 

 
18

 
1,

72
5,

52
0 

 
9 

22
8,

40
5 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
2,

72
2,

30
6 

 
18

 
2,

30
0,

43
2 

 
10

 
27

8,
70

6 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

1,
35

0,
62

0 
 

18
 

1,
18

5,
66

2 
 

11
 

13
2,

79
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
1,

78
7,

42
6 

 
18

 
1,

61
6,

76
2 

 
12

 
16

8,
76

6 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
3,

18
4,

17
2 

 
18

 
2,

88
0,

14
7 

 
12

 
30

0,
64

5 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(2
,5

00
,6

65
) 

18
 

(2
,3

22
,2

73
) 

13
 

(2
27

,4
90

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(9

85
,6

53
) 

18
 

(9
15

,3
38

) 
13

 
(8

9,
66

7)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(2
,2

15
,7

58
) 

18
 

(2
,1

00
,2

75
) 

14
 

(1
94

,2
09

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(7

56
,5

51
) 

18
 

(7
28

,2
84

) 
15

 
(6

3,
88

7)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
35

5,
94

6 
 

18
 

34
2,

64
7 

 
15

 
30

,0
58

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
1,

59
1,

37
5 

 
18

 
1,

55
7,

17
4 

 
16

 
13

0,
15

4 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

1,
47

6,
31

3 
 

18
 

1,
46

2,
82

0 
 

17
 

11
6,

94
3 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
1,

49
5,

43
0 

 
18

 
1,

49
5,

43
0 

 
18

 
11

4,
72

8 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
60

6,
92

0 
 

18
 

60
6,

92
0 

 
18

 
46

,5
62

  
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
 

 
 

$1
0,

22
4,

04
9 

 
 

$1
,0

51
,9

03
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

.  

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

 
(2

) 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 n

ow
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
st

 g
ro

up
s.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 A

B 
19

7.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
91

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

– 
Sm

al
l D

is
tr

ic
ts

 (G
en

er
al

 N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d)
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l S

ur
pl

us
(2

) 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

$(
49

8,
37

4)
 

 
$(

49
8,

37
4)

 
N

/A
 

$0
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
6 

 
 

 
$(

49
8,

37
4)

 
 

$0
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

C
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 C

C
C

ER
A’

s 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 P

ol
ic

y,
 a

ll 
pr

io
r U

AA
L 

la
ye

rs
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fu

lly
 a

m
or

tiz
ed

 d
ue

 to
 s

ur
pl

us
. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
92

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
#7

 a
nd

 #
9 

– 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$1

27
,6

62
,4

39
  

15
 

$6
1,

71
6,

42
5 

 
4 

$1
6,

87
0,

55
2 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

8 
25

,6
19

,2
65

  
18

 
19

,4
26

,8
77

  
8 

2,
84

4,
35

9 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

55
,1

34
,9

40
  

18
 

44
,4

03
,6

26
  

9 
5,

87
7,

64
4 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

11
,0

76
,6

65
  

18
 

8,
92

0,
73

3 
 

9 
1,

18
0,

82
5 

 
D

ep
oo

lin
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

23
,8

52
,0

78
  

18
 

19
,2

09
,5

74
  

9 
2,

54
2,

74
3 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
57

,2
87

,9
75

  
18

 
48

,4
10

,0
89

  
10

 
5,

86
5,

07
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

1 
45

,2
09

,3
50

  
18

 
39

,6
87

,7
07

  
11

 
4,

44
4,

93
2 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
53

,2
58

,5
03

  
18

 
48

,1
73

,3
81

  
12

 
5,

02
8,

59
0 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

13
8,

35
3,

56
2 

 
18

 
12

5,
14

3,
56

2 
 

12
 

13
,0

63
,1

42
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(3
5,

02
4,

91
2)

 
18

 
(3

2,
52

6,
30

4)
 

13
 

(3
,1

86
,2

86
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(4
3,

77
1,

70
6)

 
18

 
(4

0,
64

9,
11

8)
 

13
 

(3
,9

81
,9

99
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(6
1,

81
5,

39
3)

 
18

 
(5

8,
59

3,
63

6)
 

14
 

(5
,4

18
,0

52
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(3

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(5
1,

70
1)

 
18

 
(4

9,
00

6)
 

14
 

(4
,5

31
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(5
8,

48
9,

96
6)

 
18

 
(5

6,
30

4,
61

1)
 

15
 

(4
,9

39
,1

86
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
39

,2
91

,4
09

  
18

 
37

,8
23

,3
68

  
15

 
3,

31
7,

96
4 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
(1

3,
55

7,
81

1)
 

18
 

(1
3,

26
6,

43
8)

 
16

 
(1

,1
08

,8
52

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(8

,1
78

,2
40

) 
18

 
(8

,1
03

,4
94

) 
17

 
(6

47
,8

19
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

41
,0

37
,4

06
  

18
 

41
,0

37
,4

06
  

18
 

3,
14

8,
35

5 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(4

7,
71

3,
59

9)
 

18
 

(4
7,

71
3,

59
9)

 
18

 
(3

,6
60

,5
47

) 
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

#7
 a

nd
 #

9 
 

  
 

$2
36

,7
46

,5
43

  
 

$4
1,

23
6,

90
5 

 
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

 
(2

) 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 n

ow
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
st

 g
ro

up
s.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 A

B 
19

7.
 

(3
)  

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
el

im
in

at
ed

 fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
93

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

– 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 a
nd

 E
as

t F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
R

es
ta

rt 
of

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

$1
24

,1
38

,7
10

  
15

 
$6

0,
01

2,
93

3 
 

4 
$1

6,
40

4,
89

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

6,
78

0,
43

6 
 

18
 

5,
14

1,
54

9 
 

8 
75

2,
79

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

27
,0

18
,7

06
  

18
 

21
,7

59
,8

59
  

9 
2,

88
0,

32
1 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

4,
94

5,
00

0 
 

18
 

3,
98

2,
51

9 
 

9 
52

7,
16

0 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
47

,8
18

,6
66

  
18

 
38

,5
11

,3
71

  
9 

5,
09

7,
69

4 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

38
,1

65
,4

45
  

18
 

32
,2

50
,9

67
  

10
 

3,
90

7,
33

1 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

(1
,5

99
,0

51
) 

18
 

(1
,3

51
,2

47
) 

10
 

(1
63

,7
09

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

1 
26

,5
33

,1
66

  
18

 
23

,2
92

,5
39

  
11

 
2,

60
8,

71
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
31

,5
01

,4
40

  
18

 
28

,4
93

,6
82

  
12

 
2,

97
4,

32
0 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

68
,1

93
,3

56
  

18
 

61
,6

82
,2

54
  

12
 

6,
43

8,
71

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(2
2,

66
1,

64
0)

 
18

 
(2

1,
04

5,
00

3)
 

13
 

(2
,0

61
,5

74
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
7,

91
0,

67
6)

 
18

 
(1

6,
63

2,
96

3)
 

13
 

(1
,6

29
,3

70
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(2
9,

21
7,

96
2)

 
18

 
(2

7,
69

5,
15

1)
 

14
 

(2
,5

60
,9

23
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

(1
9,

00
5,

51
0)

 
18

 
(1

8,
29

5,
40

9)
 

15
 

(1
,6

04
,9

21
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
24

,2
96

,8
46

  
18

 
23

,3
89

,0
45

  
15

 
2,

05
1,

74
8 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
(8

,2
97

,6
85

) 
18

 
(8

,1
19

,3
58

) 
16

 
(6

78
,6

42
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(1
0,

65
8,

50
2)

 
18

 
(1

0,
56

1,
08

7)
 

17
 

(8
44

,2
87

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
19

,3
01

,2
43

  
18

 
19

,3
01

,2
43

  
18

 
1,

48
0,

77
5 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(2
3,

50
3,

82
0)

 
18

 
(2

3,
50

3,
82

0)
 

18
 

(1
,8

03
,1

93
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

 
  

 
$1

90
,6

13
,9

21
  

 
$3

3,
77

7,
84

3 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
94

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$(

2,
59

1,
00

0)
 

15
 

$(
1,

25
2,

57
9)

 
4 

$(
34

2,
40

0)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

2,
00

2,
15

0 
 

18
 

1,
51

8,
21

4 
 

8 
22

2,
28

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

5,
67

1,
68

4 
 

18
 

4,
56

7,
76

3 
 

9 
60

4,
62

8 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
1,

01
2,

00
0 

 
18

 
81

5,
02

7 
 

9 
10

7,
88

4 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
4,

87
3,

63
1 

 
18

 
3,

92
5,

04
1 

 
9 

51
9,

55
2 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
5,

33
4,

96
4 

 
18

 
4,

50
8,

20
8 

 
10

 
54

6,
18

7 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

80
6,

01
8 

 
18

 
68

1,
11

0 
 

10
 

82
,5

19
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

6,
79

1,
00

5 
 

18
 

5,
96

1,
58

6 
 

11
 

66
7,

68
4 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
8,

92
4,

59
8 

 
18

 
8,

07
2,

47
8 

 
12

 
84

2,
64

8 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
12

,1
49

,8
92

  
18

 
10

,9
89

,8
20

  
12

 
1,

14
7,

17
5 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(1

,0
27

,4
40

) 
18

 
(9

54
,1

44
) 

13
 

(9
3,

46
8)

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(3

,6
13

,9
81

) 
18

 
(3

,3
56

,1
67

) 
13

 
(3

28
,7

71
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(4
,8

13
,0

45
) 

18
 

(4
,5

62
,1

93
) 

14
 

(4
21

,8
58

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(8

,4
90

,8
06

) 
18

 
(8

,1
73

,5
65

) 
15

 
(7

17
,0

06
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
3,

84
4,

34
7 

 
18

 
3,

70
0,

71
1 

 
15

 
32

4,
63

6 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

1,
02

8,
69

0 
 

18
 

1,
00

6,
58

2 
 

16
 

84
,1

33
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(4
22

,9
95

) 
18

 
(4

19
,1

29
) 

17
 

(3
3,

50
6)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
6,

02
9,

05
5 

 
18

 
6,

02
9,

05
5 

 
18

 
46

2,
54

4 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(4

,1
16

,5
42

) 
18

 
(4

,1
16

,5
42

) 
18

 
(3

15
,8

18
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 
 

  
 

$2
8,

94
1,

27
5 

 
 

$3
,3

59
,0

50
  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
95

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 –
 S

an
 R

am
on

 V
al

le
y 

Fi
re

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$5

8,
76

6,
00

0 
 

15
 

$2
8,

40
9,

51
1 

 
4 

$7
,7

65
,9

09
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

10
,2

16
,6

94
  

18
 

7,
74

7,
23

5 
 

8 
1,

13
4,

30
1 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
9,

26
2,

10
5 

 
18

 
7,

45
9,

35
4 

 
9 

98
7,

38
4 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

2,
45

3,
00

0 
 

18
 

1,
97

5,
55

5 
 

9 
26

1,
50

1 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(2

0,
17

4,
50

0)
 

18
 

(1
6,

24
7,

79
0)

 
9 

(2
,1

50
,6

96
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

6,
58

5,
81

2 
 

18
 

5,
56

5,
21

2 
 

10
 

67
4,

24
7 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
5,

09
3,

42
0 

 
18

 
4,

30
4,

09
5 

 
10

 
52

1,
45

8 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

5,
51

3,
07

1 
 

18
 

4,
83

9,
73

2 
 

11
 

54
2,

03
9 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
14

,6
00

,7
41

  
18

 
13

,2
06

,6
62

  
12

 
1,

37
8,

58
1 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

26
,6

72
,1

43
  

18
 

24
,1

25
,4

86
  

12
 

2,
51

8,
34

5 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(4
,4

92
,9

00
) 

18
 

(4
,1

72
,3

85
) 

13
 

(4
08

,7
28

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(2
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(1

2,
98

4,
00

2)
 

18
 

(1
2,

05
7,

74
9)

 
13

 
(1

,1
81

,1
80

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(1

3,
85

0,
85

2)
 

18
 

(1
3,

12
8,

96
0)

 
14

 
(1

,2
14

,0
12

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(9

,0
08

,5
82

) 
18

 
(8

,6
71

,9
95

) 
15

 
(7

60
,7

30
) 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
5,

53
3,

14
4 

 
18

 
5,

32
6,

41
0 

 
15

 
46

7,
24

6 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

2,
02

0,
04

2 
 

18
 

1,
97

6,
62

9 
 

16
 

16
5,

21
3 

 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(3

03
,8

06
) 

18
 

(3
01

,0
29

) 
17

 
(2

4,
06

5)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(1
,8

37
,3

78
) 

18
 

(1
,8

20
,5

85
) 

17
 

(1
45

,5
43

) 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(2

61
,5

01
) 

18
 

(2
61

,5
01

) 
18

 
(2

0,
06

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

11
,6

81
,7

29
  

18
 

11
,6

81
,7

29
  

18
 

89
6,

21
2 

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(9
,2

40
,1

63
) 

18
 

(9
,2

40
,1

63
) 

18
 

(7
08

,8
98

) 
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

 
  

 
$5

0,
71

5,
45

4 
 

 
$1

0,
69

8,
52

2 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
 

(2
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
96

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

 
 

 
 

 
R

es
ta

rt 
of

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

$3
,9

60
,0

00
  

15
 

$1
,9

14
,4

01
  

4 
$5

23
,3

13
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

95
7,

15
0 

 
18

 
72

5,
79

9 
 

8 
10

6,
26

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

2,
87

2,
36

0 
 

18
 

2,
31

3,
29

2 
 

9 
30

6,
20

7 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
1,

15
4,

00
0 

 
18

 
92

9,
38

9 
 

9 
12

3,
02

2 
 

D
ep

oo
lin

g 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9 
(1

,8
09

,3
74

) 
18

 
(1

,4
57

,2
02

) 
9 

(1
92

,8
88

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
1,

50
2,

50
3 

 
18

 
1,

26
9,

66
1 

 
10

 
15

3,
82

4 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

66
2,

08
5 

 
18

 
55

9,
48

2 
 

10
 

67
,7

83
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

2,
06

7,
21

7 
 

18
 

1,
81

4,
73

8 
 

11
 

20
3,

24
6 

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
2,

24
6,

13
1 

 
18

 
2,

03
1,

67
0 

 
12

 
21

2,
07

6 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
3,

01
8,

79
6 

 
18

 
2,

73
0,

56
1 

 
12

 
28

5,
03

0 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

41
3,

08
8 

 
18

 
38

3,
61

9 
 

13
 

37
,5

79
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(1
,1

69
,8

21
) 

18
 

(1
,0

86
,3

68
) 

13
 

(1
06

,4
21

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
31

5,
93

7 
 

18
 

29
9,

47
0 

 
14

 
27

,6
92

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
(9

90
,3

79
) 

18
 

(9
53

,3
76

) 
15

 
(8

3,
63

3)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

5 
77

5,
87

4 
 

18
 

74
6,

88
5 

 
15

 
65

,5
19

  
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
(2

70
,7

31
) 

18
 

(2
64

,9
13

) 
16

 
(2

2,
14

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(8
36

,9
69

) 
18

 
(8

29
,3

19
) 

17
 

(6
6,

29
8)

 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(7

1,
91

5)
 

18
 

(7
1,

91
5)

 
18

 
(5

,5
17

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(9
85

,8
76

) 
18

 
(9

85
,8

76
) 

18
 

(7
5,

63
6)

 
Su

bt
ot

al
 –

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

 
  

 
$1

0,
06

9,
99

7 
 

 
$1

,5
59

,0
23

  
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

 
(2

) 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

0 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 n

ow
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

co
st

 g
ro

up
s.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 A

B 
19

7.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
97

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
Sp

ec
ia

l A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 P
O

Bs
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$(

45
3,

97
3,

31
9)

 
15

 
$(

21
9,

46
5,

61
2)

 
4 

$(
59

,9
92

,2
29

) 
M

or
ag

a 
G

en
er

al
 P

O
Bs

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(7
01

,4
12

) 
15

 
(3

39
,0

85
) 

4 
(9

2,
69

1)
 

C
C

C
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
PO

Bs
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
(1

27
,5

09
,7

11
) 

15
 

(6
1,

64
2,

38
3)

 
4 

(1
6,

85
0,

31
2)

 
Fi

rs
t F

iv
e 

U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

(1
,7

94
,2

05
) 

11
 

(8
14

,8
98

) 
4 

(2
33

,1
91

) 
LA

FC
O

 U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(3
0,

81
7)

 
18

 
(3

0,
53

5)
 

17
 

(2
,4

41
) 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 

 
  

 
$(

28
2,

29
2,

51
3)

 
 

$(
77

,1
70

,8
64

) 
N

ot
e:

 R
es

ul
ts

 m
ay

 b
e 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

du
e 

to
 ro

un
di

ng
. 

(1
) 

As
 o

f m
id

dl
e 

of
 y

ea
r. 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 p

ay
m

en
t a

m
ou

nt
s 

sh
ow

n 
fo

r t
he

 S
pe

ci
al

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 re
pr

es
en

t t
he

 c
re

di
t a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
re

ce
ip

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
ce

ed
s 

fo
r P

en
si

on
 

O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

Bo
nd

s 
(P

O
Bs

) o
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 s
pe

ci
al

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

. T
he

se
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 s

er
ve

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
 fo

r t
he

se
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 T

he
 c

os
t o

f d
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

PO
Bs

 is
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
is

 re
po

rt.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
98

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
Al

l C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

ta
rt 

of
 A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

7 
$1

,1
39

,9
49

,3
02

  
15

 
$5

51
,0

90
,7

99
  

4 
$1

50
,6

43
,9

46
  

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 P
O

Bs
(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(4
53

,9
73

,3
19

) 
15

 
(2

19
,4

65
,6

12
) 

4 
(5

9,
99

2,
22

9)
 

M
or

ag
a 

G
en

er
al

 P
O

Bs
(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(7
01

,4
12

) 
15

 
(3

39
,0

85
) 

4 
(9

2,
69

1)
 

C
C

C
FP

D
 S

af
et

y 
PO

Bs
(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
7 

(1
27

,5
09

,7
11

) 
15

 
(6

1,
64

2,
38

3)
 

4 
(1

6,
85

0,
31

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
8 

13
0,

93
8,

20
6 

 
18

 
99

,2
89

,3
60

  
8 

14
,5

37
,3

13
  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

27
8,

01
0,

63
7 

 
18

 
22

3,
89

9,
40

5 
 

9 
29

,6
37

,2
40

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

62
,9

68
,4

91
  

18
 

50
,7

12
,4

76
  

9 
6,

71
2,

73
7 

 
D

ep
oo

lin
g 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

1,
84

9,
08

6 
 

18
 

1,
48

9,
18

5 
 

9 
19

7,
12

0 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

28
3,

46
7,

73
5 

 
18

 
23

9,
53

8,
89

6 
 

10
 

29
,0

21
,0

72
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(3

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

15
,5

21
,4

64
  

18
 

13
,1

16
,1

11
  

10
 

1,
58

9,
06

7 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

19
3,

78
8,

37
1 

 
18

 
17

0,
12

0,
03

2 
 

11
 

19
,0

53
,0

51
  

Fi
rs

t F
iv

e 
U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
1 

(1
,7

94
,2

05
) 

11
 

(8
14

,8
98

) 
4 

(2
33

,1
91

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l L

os
s 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

2 
24

3,
82

5,
19

5 
 

18
 

22
0,

54
4,

76
3 

 
12

 
23

,0
21

,6
20

  
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

56
6,

55
3,

00
7 

 
18

 
51

2,
45

8,
52

0 
 

12
 

53
,4

93
,1

10
  

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 U
AA

L 
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

(4
,6

66
,4

77
) 

18
 

(4
,2

20
,9

22
) 

12
 

(4
40

,6
02

) 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l G

ai
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(2

01
,7

42
,3

23
) 

18
 

(1
87

,3
50

,4
19

) 
13

 
(1

8,
35

2,
89

9)
 

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e(3

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
3 

(2
04

,0
17

,2
83

) 
18

 
(1

89
,4

63
,0

87
) 

13
 

(1
8,

55
9,

85
7)

 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
(4

,6
62

,8
99

) 
18

 
(4

,3
30

,2
57

) 
13

 
(4

24
,1

93
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

(2
96

,7
04

,7
29

) 
18

 
(2

81
,2

40
,7

74
) 

14
 

(2
6,

00
5,

84
8)

 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e(4
)  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(5

1,
70

1)
 

18
 

(4
9,

00
6)

 
14

 
(4

,5
31

) 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
(2

,3
31

,8
96

) 
18

 
(2

,2
10

,3
60

) 
14

 
(2

04
,3

88
) 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 p
ay

m
en

t a
m

ou
nt

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r t

he
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 re

pr
es

en
t t

he
 c

re
di

t a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

re
ce

ip
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s 
fo

r P
en

si
on

 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s 

(P
O

Bs
) o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. T

he
se

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 s
er

ve
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
U

AA
L 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

 fo
r t

he
se

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 T
he

 c
os

t o
f d

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
PO

Bs
 is

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt.

 
(2

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f P

O
Bs

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
ou

rts
), 

Fi
rs

t 5
 –

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, L
oc

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
Fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, o
r M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 c

os
t g

ro
up

s 
or

 fo
r C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
ei

r S
af

et
y 

co
st

 g
ro

up
. 

(3
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
(4

)  
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

el
im

in
at

ed
 fo

r C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
99

 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 I 
– 

TA
B

LE
 O

F 
AM

O
R

TI
ZA

TI
O

N
 B

AS
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Ty
pe

 
D

at
e 

Es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

In
iti

al
 

Am
ou

nt
 

In
iti

al
 

Pe
rio

d 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

B
al

an
ce

 
Ye

ar
s 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 

An
nu

al
 

Pa
ym

en
t(1

)  
Al

l C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

$(
20

9,
12

5,
13

2)
 

18
 

$(
20

1,
31

1,
60

9)
 

15
 

$(
17

,6
59

,5
75

) 
As

su
m

pt
io

n 
C

ha
ng

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
5 

11
4,

38
9,

47
1 

 
18

 
11

0,
11

5,
54

8 
 

15
 

9,
65

9,
62

2 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
6 

(4
7,

88
5,

17
1)

 
18

 
(4

6,
85

6,
06

3)
 

16
 

(3
,9

16
,3

81
) 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
(3

03
,8

06
) 

18
 

(3
01

,0
29

) 
17

 
(2

4,
06

5)
 

LA
FC

O
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t(2

)  
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(3
0,

81
7)

 
18

 
(3

0,
53

5)
 

17
 

(2
,4

41
) 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

(3
9,

96
3,

44
0)

 
18

 
(3

9,
59

8,
18

7)
 

17
 

(3
,1

65
,6

04
) 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 U

AA
L 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(2

61
,5

01
) 

18
 

(2
61

,5
01

) 
18

 
(2

0,
06

2)
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l L
os

s 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

16
0,

59
6,

07
2 

 
18

 
16

0,
59

6,
07

2 
 

18
 

12
,3

20
,7

96
  

As
su

m
pt

io
n 

C
ha

ng
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
(8

9,
75

8,
47

7)
 

18
 

(8
9,

75
8,

47
7)

 
18

 
(6

,8
86

,1
96

) 
C

G
 #

6 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l S

ur
pl

us
(5

) 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

(4
98

,3
74

) 
N

/A
 

(4
98

,3
74

) 
N

/A
 

0 
 

Su
bt

ot
al

 –
 A

ll 
C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
 

 
 

$1
,0

23
,2

28
,5

88
  

 
$1

77
,0

51
,6

29
  

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s(6
)  

 
 

 
8,

73
6,

93
6 

 
 

To
ta

l C
C

C
ER

A 
 

 
 

$1
,0

31
,9

65
,5

24
 

 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
As

 o
f m

id
dl

e 
of

 y
ea

r. 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 p
ay

m
en

t a
m

ou
nt

s 
sh

ow
n 

fo
r t

he
 S

pe
ci

al
 A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 re

pr
es

en
t t

he
 c

re
di

t a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 to
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

re
ce

ip
t o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s 
fo

r P
en

si
on

 
O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
s 

(P
O

Bs
) o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. T

he
se

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 s
er

ve
 to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
U

AA
L 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

 fo
r t

he
se

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s.

 T
he

 c
os

t o
f d

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
PO

Bs
 is

 n
ot

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 th

is
 re

po
rt.

 
(2

) 
In

cl
ud

es
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f P

O
Bs

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

C
ou

rts
), 

Fi
rs

t 5
 –

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, L
oc

al
 A

ge
nc

y 
Fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, o
r M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 c

os
t g

ro
up

s 
or

 fo
r C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
ei

r S
af

et
y 

co
st

 g
ro

up
. 

(3
) 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
0 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t (

te
rm

in
al

 p
ay

) a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ow

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
 g

ro
up

s.
 E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

3 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
du

ce
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 A
B 

19
7.

 
(4

)  
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t (
te

rm
in

al
 p

ay
) a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

el
im

in
at

ed
 fo

r C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

9.
 

(5
)  

C
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 C

C
C

ER
A’

s 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l F

un
di

ng
 P

ol
ic

y,
 a

ll 
pr

io
r U

AA
L 

la
ye

rs
 a

re
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fu

lly
 a

m
or

tiz
ed

 d
ue

 to
 s

ur
pl

us
. 

(6
)  

St
ar

tin
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

6 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 th
e 

th
re

e 
te

rm
in

at
ed

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

(i.
e.

, D
ia

bl
o 

W
at

er
 D

is
tri

ct
, D

el
ta

 D
ia

bl
o 

Sa
ni

ta
tio

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 a

nd
 C

ity
 o

f P
itt

sb
ur

g)
 h

av
e 

be
en

 m
ov

ed
 fr

om
 C

os
t 

G
ro

up
s 

#1
, #

2 
an

d 
#7

 to
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
C

os
t G

ro
up

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

0 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 J
 –

 P
R

O
JE

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

U
AA

L 
B

AL
AN

C
ES

 A
N

D
 P

AY
M

EN
TS

 

 

 (1
,50

0)

 (1
,00

0)

 (5
00

)

 - 50
0

 1,
00

0

 1,
50

0

 2,
00

0

 2,
50

0

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

$ in Millions

GA
IN

S
& 

LO
SS

ES
AS

SU
MP

TIO
N 

/ 
PL

AN
CH

AN
GE

S
RE

ST
AR

T
/ 

OT
HE

R
CH

AN
GE

S

NE
T

OU
TS

TA
ND

IN
G

BA
LA

NC
E

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 B
al

an
ce

 o
f $

1,
02

3 
M

ill
io

n 
in

 N
et

 U
AA

L a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8

Ex
cl

ud
es

 T
er

m
in

at
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

er
s

N
ET

 O
UT

ST
AN

DI
N

G 
BA

LA
N

CE



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

1 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 J
 –

 P
R

O
JE

C
TI

O
N

 O
F 

U
AA

L 
B

AL
AN

C
ES

 A
N

D
 P

AY
M

EN
TS

 (C
O

NT
IN

U
ED

) 

 

 (2
00

)

 (1
00

)

 - 10
0

 20
0

 30
0

 40
0

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

20
25

20
26

20
27

20
28

$ in Millions

GA
IN

S
& 

LO
SS

ES
AS

SU
MP

TIO
N 

/ 
PL

AN
CH

AN
GE

S
RE

ST
AR

T 
/ 

OT
HE

R
CH

AN
GE

S
NE

TU
AA

L
PA

YM
EN

T

An
nu

al
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 R
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 A
m

or
tiz

e 
$1

,0
23

 M
ill

io
n 

in
 N

et
 U

AA
L a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8
Ex

cl
ud

es
 T

er
m

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s

N
ET

 U
AA

L 
PA

YM
EN

T



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 K
 –

 D
EF

IN
IT

IO
N

 O
F 

PE
N

SI
O

N
 T

ER
M

S 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
lis

t d
ef

in
es

 c
er

ta
in

 te
ch

ni
ca

l t
er

m
s f

or
 th

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

re
ad

er
: 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r A
ct

iv
es

: 
Th

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 o
f t

he
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
ts

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

ye
ar

s 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
da

te
. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
fo

r P
en

si
on

er
s 

an
d 

B
en

ef
ic

ia
rie

s:
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f l
ife

tim
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

pe
ns

io
ne

rs
 a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s.

 T
hi

s 
su

m
 

ta
ke

s 
ac

co
un

t o
f l

ife
 e

xp
ec

ta
nc

ie
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 th
e 

ag
es

 o
f t

he
 a

nn
ui

ta
nt

s 
an

d 
th

e 
in

te
re

st
 th

at
 

th
e 

su
m

 is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 e

ar
n 

be
fo

re
 it

 is
 e

nt
ire

ly
 p

ai
d 

ou
t i

n 
be

ne
fit

s.
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d:

 
A 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
al

lo
ca

tin
g 

th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

Be
ne

fit
s 

to
 v

ar
io

us
 ti

m
e 

pe
rio

ds
; a

 
m

et
ho

d 
us

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t a
nd

 th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
th

at
 a

re
 u

se
d 

to
 

de
te

rm
in

e 
th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l G
ai

n 
or

 L
os

s:
 

A 
m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ac
tu

al
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
th

at
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 a

 s
et

 o
f 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
tw

o 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

da
te

s.
 T

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 th
at

 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

di
ffe

rs
 fr

om
 th

at
 a

ss
um

ed
, A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
em

er
ge

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

as
 fo

re
ca

st
ed

, o
r m

ay
 b

e 
la

rg
er

 o
r s

m
al

le
r t

ha
n 

pr
oj

ec
te

d.
 A

ct
ua

ria
l g

ai
ns

 a
re

 d
ue

 to
 

fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e,

 e
.g

., 
as

se
ts

 e
ar

n 
m

or
e 

th
an

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
, s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

le
ss

 th
an

 
as

su
m

ed
, m

em
be

rs
 re

tir
e 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
as

su
m

ed
, e

tc
. F

av
or

ab
le

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

m
ea

ns
 a

ct
ua

l r
es

ul
ts

 
pr

od
uc

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l l

ia
bi

lit
ie

s 
no

t a
s 

la
rg

e 
as

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. O

n 
th

e 
ot

he
r 

ha
nd

, a
ct

ua
ria

l l
os

se
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

re
su

lt 
of

 u
nf

av
or

ab
le

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e,

 i.
e.

, a
ct

ua
l r

es
ul

ts
 y

ie
ld

 a
ct

ua
ria

l 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

th
at

 a
re

 la
rg

er
 th

an
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

.  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 E

qu
iv

al
en

t: 
O

f e
qu

al
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

, d
et

er
m

in
ed

 a
s 

of
 a

 g
iv

en
 d

at
e 

an
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
 g

iv
en

 s
et

 o
f 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

. 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 (A

PV
): 

Th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
n 

am
ou

nt
 o

r s
er

ie
s 

of
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

or
 re

ce
iv

ab
le

 a
t v

ar
io

us
 ti

m
es

, d
et

er
m

in
ed

 
as

 o
f a

 g
iv

en
 d

at
e 

by
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 s
et

 o
f A

ct
ua

ria
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. E

ac
h 

su
ch

 
am

ou
nt

 o
r s

er
ie

s 
of

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
is

: 
Ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

ba
bl

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 e

ffe
ct

 o
f c

er
ta

in
 in

te
rv

en
in

g 
ev

en
ts

 (s
uc

h 
as

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
le

ve
ls

, m
ar

ita
l s

ta
tu

s,
 e

tc
.) 

M
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

pr
ob

ab
ilit

y 
of

 th
e 

oc
cu

rre
nc

e 
of

 a
n 

ev
en

t (
su

ch
 a

s 
su

rv
iv

al
, d

ea
th

, d
is

ab
ilit

y,
 

te
rm

in
at

io
n,

 e
tc

.) 
on

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pa

ym
en

t i
s 

co
nd

iti
on

ed
, a

nd
  

D
is

co
un

te
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 a
n 

as
su

m
ed

 ra
te

 (o
r r

at
es

) o
f r

et
ur

n 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
tim

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 m

on
ey

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

3 
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
 o

f F
ut

ur
e 

B
en

ef
its

: 
Th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f b

en
ef

it 
am

ou
nt

s 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 b
e 

pa
id

 a
t v

ar
io

us
 fu

tu
re

 ti
m

es
 u

nd
er

 
a 

pa
rti

cu
la

r s
et

 o
f A

ct
ua

ria
l A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
, t

ak
in

g 
in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 s

uc
h 

ite
m

s 
as

 th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f 
ad

va
nc

em
en

t i
n 

ag
e,

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 fu
tu

re
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 fu
tu

re
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

re
di

ts
. T

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l 

Pr
es

en
t V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Be

ne
fit

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

fo
r a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, r

et
ire

d 
m

em
be

rs
, 

be
ne

fic
ia

rie
s 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
be

ne
fit

s,
 a

nd
 in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 e
ith

er
 a

 re
fu

nd
 o

f m
em

be
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 o
r a

 fu
tu

re
 re

tir
em

en
t b

en
ef

it.
 E

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
no

th
er

 w
ay

, i
t i

s 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

to
 b

e 
in

ve
st

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

 s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 in

ve
st

ed
 p

lu
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t e

ar
ni

ng
s 

w
ou

ld
 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t a
ss

et
s 

to
 p

ay
 a

ll 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 w
he

n 
du

e.
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n:
 

Th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 a

s 
of

 a
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

da
te

, o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t, 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y,
 A

ct
ua

ria
l 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s,

 a
nd

 re
la

te
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l P
re

se
nt

 V
al

ue
s 

fo
r a

 p
la

n,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
.  

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

(A
VA

): 
Th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

as
 o

f a
 g

iv
en

 d
at

e,
 u

se
d 

by
 th

e 
ac

tu
ar

y 
fo

r v
al

ua
tio

n 
pu

rp
os

es
. T

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
t o

r f
ai

r v
al

ue
 o

f p
la

n 
as

se
ts

, b
ut

 c
om

m
on

ly
 p

la
ns

 u
se

 a
 s

m
oo

th
ed

 v
al

ue
 in

 o
rd

er
 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ye
ar

-to
-y

ea
r v

ol
at

ilit
y 

of
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
re

su
lts

, s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

fu
nd

ed
 ra

tio
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 D
et

er
m

in
ed

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
n.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
: 

Va
lu

es
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 u
til

iz
in

g 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 o
f a

ct
ua

ria
l s

ci
en

ce
. A

n 
ac

tu
ar

ia
lly

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 v
al

ue
 is

 d
er

iv
ed

 b
y 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 to
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

va
lu

es
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 b

y 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 P

la
n.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 D

et
er

m
in

ed
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

(A
D

C
): 

Th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 p

er
io

di
c 

re
qu

ire
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

, e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

do
lla

r a
m

ou
nt

 o
r a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

co
ve

re
d 

pl
an

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 fu

nd
in

g 
po

lic
y.

 T
he

 A
D

C
 c

on
si

st
s 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t a

nd
 th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t. 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

M
et

ho
d:

 
A 

m
et

ho
d 

fo
r d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pa
ym

en
t. 

Th
e 

m
os

t c
om

m
on

 m
et

ho
ds

 u
se

d 
ar

e 
le

ve
l 

do
lla

r a
nd

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Le
ve

l D
ol

la
r m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t i
s 

on
e 

of
 a

 s
tre

am
 o

f p
ay

m
en

ts
, a

ll 
eq

ua
l, 

w
ho

se
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Le
ve

l P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 P

ay
 m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t 
is

 o
ne

 o
f a

 s
tre

am
 o

f i
nc

re
as

in
g 

pa
ym

en
ts

, w
ho

se
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
 th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 U

nd
er

 th
e 

Le
ve

l P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 P

ay
 m

et
ho

d,
 th

e 
st

re
am

 o
f 

pa
ym

en
ts

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
at

 th
e 

as
su

m
ed

 ra
te

 a
t w

hi
ch

 to
ta

l c
ov

er
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

of
 a

ll 
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ill 

in
cr

ea
se

. 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pa
ym

en
t: 

Th
e 

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n,
 o

r A
D

C
, t

ha
t i

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 p
ay

of
f t

he
 U

nf
un

de
d 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

4 
 

As
su

m
pt

io
ns

 o
r A

ct
ua

ria
l 

As
su

m
pt

io
ns

: 
Th

e 
es

tim
at

es
 u

po
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 P
la

n 
is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g:
 

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
- t

he
 ra

te
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t y

ie
ld

 th
at

 th
e 

Pl
an

 w
ill 

ea
rn

 o
ve

r t
he

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 fu
tu

re
; 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
s 

- t
he

 ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 d
ea

th
 a

t a
 g

iv
en

 a
ge

 fo
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
an

d 
pe

ns
io

ne
rs

;  
R

et
ire

m
en

t r
at

es
 - 

th
e 

ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 re
tir

em
en

t a
t a

 g
iv

en
 a

ge
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

; 
D

is
ab

ilit
y 

ra
te

s 
– 

th
e 

ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
re

tir
em

en
t a

t a
 g

iv
en

 a
ge

; 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
ra

te
s 

- t
he

 ra
te

 o
r p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
at

 w
hi

ch
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
of

 v
ar

io
us

 a
ge

s 
ar

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 to

 
le

av
e 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t f

or
 re

as
on

s 
ot

he
r t

ha
n 

de
at

h,
 d

is
ab

ilit
y,

 o
r r

et
ire

m
en

t; 
Sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

 ra
te

s 
- t

he
 ra

te
s 

of
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 to

 in
fla

tio
n,

 re
al

 w
ag

e 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 m
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s.
 

C
lo

se
d 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pe
rio

d:
 

A 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
nu

m
be

r o
f y

ea
rs

 th
at

 is
 c

ou
nt

ed
 d

ow
n 

by
 o

ne
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

, a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e 
de

cl
in

es
 to

 z
er

o 
w

ith
 th

e 
pa

ss
ag

e 
of

 ti
m

e.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 if
 th

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

is
 in

iti
al

ly
 s

et
 a

t 2
0 

ye
ar

s,
 it

 is
 1

9 
ye

ar
s 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 o
ne

 y
ea

r, 
18

 y
ea

rs
 a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

w
o 

ye
ar

s,
 e

tc
. S

ee
 O

pe
n 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Pe
rio

d.
 

D
ec

re
m

en
ts

: 
Th

os
e 

ca
us

es
/e

ve
nt

s 
du

e 
to

 w
hi

ch
 a

 m
em

be
r’s

 s
ta

tu
s 

(a
ct

iv
e-

in
ac

tiv
e-

re
tir

ee
-b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
) 

ch
an

ge
s,

 th
at

 is
: d

ea
th

, r
et

ire
m

en
t, 

di
sa

bi
lit

y,
 o

r t
er

m
in

at
io

n.
 

D
ef

in
ed

 B
en

ef
it 

Pl
an

: 
A 

re
tir

em
en

t p
la

n 
in

 w
hi

ch
 b

en
ef

its
 a

re
 d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
a 

fo
rm

ul
a 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 a
ge

 a
nd

/o
r y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
. 

D
ef

in
ed

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
Pl

an
: 

A 
re

tir
em

en
t p

la
n,

 s
uc

h 
as

 a
 4

01
(k

) p
la

n,
 a

 4
03

(b
) p

la
n,

 o
r a

 4
57

 p
la

n,
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 to

 
th

e 
pl

an
 a

re
 a

ss
ig

ne
d 

to
 a

n 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 e
ac

h 
m

em
be

r, 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
ar

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 e

ac
h 

ac
co

un
t, 

an
d 

ea
ch

 m
em

be
r’s

 b
en

ef
its

 a
re

 a
 d

ire
ct

 fu
nc

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ac

co
un

t b
al

an
ce

. 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
St

ud
y:

 
A 

pe
rio

di
c 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
 th

at
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 a
 re

vi
si

on
 o

f 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
. A

ct
ua

l r
at

es
 o

f d
ec

re
m

en
t a

nd
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
 a

ss
um

ed
 v

al
ue

s 
an

d 
m

od
ifi

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
y.

 

Fu
nd

ed
 R

at
io

: 
Th

e 
ra

tio
 o

f t
he

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
(V

VA
) t

o 
th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(A
AL

). 
Pl

an
s 

so
m

et
im

es
 a

ls
o 

ca
lc

ul
at

e 
a 

m
ar

ke
t f

un
de

d 
ra

tio
, u

si
ng

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s 
(M

VA
), 

ra
th

er
 

th
an

 th
e 

VV
A.

 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n:
 

Th
e 

ra
te

 o
f e

ar
ni

ng
s 

of
 th

e 
Pl

an
 fr

om
 it

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 in
te

re
st

, d
iv

id
en

ds
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l g
ai

n 
an

d 
lo

ss
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
, c

om
pu

te
d 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
. F

or
 a

ct
ua

ria
l 

pu
rp

os
es

, t
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
of

te
n 

re
fle

ct
s 

a 
sm

oo
th

in
g 

of
 th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

 to
 a

vo
id

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 s
w

in
gs

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 a

ss
et

s 
fro

m
 o

ne
 y

ea
r t

o 
th

e 
ne

xt
. 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t: 
Th

e 
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l P

re
se

nt
 V

al
ue

 o
f F

ut
ur

e 
Be

ne
fit

s 
an

d 
ex

pe
ns

es
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 a

 
va

lu
at

io
n 

ye
ar

 b
y 

th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d.

 A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t w
ith

 re
sp

ec
t t

o 
an

 U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

Ac
cr

ue
d 

Li
ab

ilit
y 

is
 n

ot
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t (
se

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t).
 F

or
 p

en
si

on
 p

la
n 

be
ne

fit
s 

th
at

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 p
ar

t b
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
ef

er
s 

to
 th

e 
to

ta
l o

f 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t u

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 s

ta
te

d.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

3:
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

5 
 

O
pe

n 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d:

 
An

 o
pe

n 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

is
 o

ne
 w

hi
ch

 is
 u

se
d 

to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t b
ut

 
w

hi
ch

 d
oe

s 
no

t c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

 ti
m

e.
 If

 th
e 

in
iti

al
 p

er
io

d 
is

 s
et

 a
s 

30
 y

ea
rs

, t
he

 s
am

e 
30

-y
ea

r p
er

io
d 

is
 

us
ed

 in
 e

ac
h 

fu
tu

re
 y

ea
r i

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
th

e 
Am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d.

  

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 

Li
ab

ili
ty

: 
Th

e 
ex

ce
ss

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

ov
er

 th
e 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s.
 T

hi
s 

va
lu

e 
m

ay
 

be
 n

eg
at

iv
e,

 in
 w

hi
ch

 c
as

e 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
as

 a
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 

Li
ab

ilit
y,

 a
ls

o 
ca

lle
d 

th
e 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Su
rp

lu
s 

or
 a

n 
O

ve
rfu

nd
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y.
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
D

at
e 

or
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

D
at

e:
 

Th
e 

da
te

 a
s 

of
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 a

nd
 a

s 
of

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l P

re
se

nt
 

Va
lu

e 
of

 F
ut

ur
e 

Be
ne

fit
s 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
. T

he
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

re
 

di
sc

ou
nt

ed
 to

 th
is

 d
at

e.
 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s:
 

Th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 n

on
-v

al
ua

tio
n 

re
se

rv
es

. 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

6 
 Se

ct
io

n 
4:

 A
ct

ua
ria

l V
al

ua
tio

n 
B

as
is

  
EX

H
IB

IT
 I 

– 
AC

TU
AR

IA
L 

AS
SU

M
PT

IO
N

S 
AN

D
 M

ET
H

O
D

S 
R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
al

ys
is

 u
se

d 
in

 s
el

ec
tin

g 
ea

ch
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
th

at
 h

as
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 a
ct

ua
ria

l 
va

lu
at

io
n 

is
 s

ho
w

n 
in

 th
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
5 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
St

ud
y 

re
po

rt 
da

te
d 

Ap
ril

 2
3,

 2
01

9.
 U

nl
es

s 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

no
te

d,
 a

ll 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

et
ho

ds
 s

ho
w

n 
be

lo
w

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ll 

tie
rs

. 
Th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 w
er

e 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d.
 

Ec
on

om
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
 

N
et

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n:
 

7.
00

%
; n

et
 o

f i
nv

es
tm

en
t e

xp
en

se
s.

 
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
St

ud
y 

re
fe

re
nc

ed
 a

bo
ve

, e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s 
re

pr
es

en
t a

bo
ut

 
0.

65
%

 o
f t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s.
  

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

: 
1.

10
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

no
rm

al
 c

os
t (

be
fo

re
 e

xp
en

se
s)

 fo
r 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r. 

Th
is

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r l
ea

di
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 
Fo

r t
he

 2
01

8 
ca

le
nd

ar
 y

ea
r, 

ac
tu

al
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

 w
er

e 
$9

,3
37

,0
53

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l p

ay
ro

ll 
w

as
 

$8
50

,9
29

,1
06

. T
hi

s 
re

su
lts

 in
 th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 1

.1
0%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll,
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
sh

ow
n 

be
lo

w
:  

 
Av

er
ag

e 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t R

at
e 

 
Be

fo
re

 A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
W

ei
gh

tin
g 

To
ta

l L
oa

di
ng

 

Av
er

ag
e 

N
or

m
al

 C
os

t R
at

e 
B

ef
or

e 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
W

ei
gh

tin
g 

To
ta

l  
Lo

ad
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

er
 

15
.3

3%
 

57
.1

2%
 

0.
63

%
 

M
em

be
r 

11
.5

1%
 

42
.8

8%
 

0.
47

%
 

To
ta

l 
 

10
0.

00
%

 
1.

10
%

 
Th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e 

is
 th

en
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rc

en
t o

f p
ay

ro
ll 

as
 th

e 
ba

si
c 

m
em

be
r r

at
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 lo

ad
in

g 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
 U

AA
L 

ra
te

. T
hi

s 
is

 d
on

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

50
/5

0 
sh

ar
in

g 
of

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t f
or

 th
os

e 
in

 th
e 

PE
PR

A 
tie

rs
. T

he
 ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 s

ho
w

s 
th

is
 a

llo
ca

tio
n.

 

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

Lo
ad

 a
s 

a 
%

 o
f P

ay
ro

ll 
Ad

di
tio

n 
to

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 B

as
ic

 N
or

m
al

 C
os

t R
at

e 
0.

47
%

 
Ad

di
tio

n 
to

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 B

as
ic

 U
AA

L 
R

at
e 

0.
16

%
 

Ad
di

tio
n 

to
 M

em
be

r B
as

ic
 R

at
e 

0.
47

%
 

To
ta

l A
dd

iti
on

 to
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
R

at
es

 
1.

10
%

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

7 
 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
C

re
di

tin
g 

R
at

e:
 

7.
00

%
, c

om
po

un
de

d 
se

m
i-a

nn
ua

lly
. 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x:
 

In
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 2
.7

5%
 p

er
 y

ea
r. 

 
Be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

 (n
on

-d
is

ab
ilit

y)
, T

ie
r 4

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 (n

on
-d

is
ab

ilit
y)

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r D

 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

a 
3.

00
%

 m
ax

im
um

 C
O

LA
 in

cr
ea

se
 d

ue
 to

 C
PI

 p
er

 y
ea

r (
va

lu
ed

 a
s 

a 
2.

75
%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
 

Be
ne

fit
s 

fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 2

, T
ie

r 3
 (d

is
ab

ilit
y)

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 (d

is
ab

ilit
y)

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

 4
.0

0%
 m

ax
im

um
 c

ha
ng

e 
pe

r 
ye

ar
 (v

al
ue

d 
as

 a
 2

.7
5%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
Be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 m
em

be
rs

 c
ov

er
ed

 u
nd

er
 c

er
ta

in
 m

em
or

an
da

 o
f u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 a

 2
.0

0%
 m

ax
im

um
 c

ha
ng

e 
pe

r y
ea

r (
va

lu
ed

 a
s 

a 
2.

00
%

 in
cr

ea
se

). 
Fo

r m
em

be
rs

 th
at

 h
av

e 
C

O
LA

 b
an

ks
, t

he
y 

ar
e 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 fu
tu

re
 C

O
LA

s.
 

Th
e 

ac
tu

al
 C

O
LA

 g
ra

nt
ed

 b
y 

C
C

C
ER

A 
on

 A
pr

il 
1,

 2
01

9 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

fle
ct

ed
 fo

r n
on

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 

Pa
yr

ol
l G

ro
w

th
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

of
 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r p
lu

s 
“a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ar
d”

 re
al

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 0
.5

0%
 p

er
 y

ea
r, 

us
ed

 to
 a

m
or

tiz
e 

th
e 

U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

as
 a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll.
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 In

te
rn

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

40
1(

a)
(1

7)
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Li

m
it:

 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
f 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 S

ec
tio

n 
75

22
.1

0 
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Li
m

it:
 

In
cr

ea
se

 o
f 2

.7
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

8 
 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
s:

 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 ra
te

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
cl

ud
es

: i
nf

la
tio

n 
at

 2
.7

5%
, p

lu
s 

“a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ar

d”
 re

al
 s

al
ar

y 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

of
 0

.5
0%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
pl

us
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

m
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s:
 

M
er

it 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

s 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 1

 
12

.0
0 

13
.0

0 
1 

– 
2 

7.
00

 
8.

00
 

2 
– 

3 
5.

25
 

5.
75

 
3 

– 
4 

3.
75

 
4.

75
 

4 
– 

5 
2.

75
 

2.
75

 
5 

– 
6 

2.
25

 
2.

00
 

6 
– 

7 
1.

75
 

1.
75

 
7 

– 
8 

1.
50

 
1.

50
 

8 
– 

9 
1.

40
 

1.
40

 
9 

– 
10

 
1.

30
 

1.
30

 
10

 –
 1

1 
1.

20
 

1.
25

 
11

 –
 1

2 
1.

10
 

1.
20

 
12

 –
 1

3 
1.

00
 

1.
15

 
13

 –
 1

4 
0.

90
 

1.
10

 
14

 –
 1

5 
0.

80
 

1.
05

 
15

 –
 1

6 
0.

75
 

1.
00

 
16

 –
 1

7 
0.

70
 

1.
00

 
17

 –
 1

8 
0.

65
 

1.
00

 
18

 –
 1

9 
0.

60
 

1.
00

 
19

 –
 2

0 
0.

55
 

1.
00

 
20

 &
 O

ve
r 

0.
50

 
1.

00
 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

to
ta

l a
ss

um
ed

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

 fo
r a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n 

is
 

5.
7%

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
10

9 
 D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

 

Po
st

-R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

H
ea

lth
y 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

G
en

er
al

 H
ea

lth
y 

R
et

ire
e 

Am
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

Ab
ov

e-
M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
), 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 H

ea
lth

y 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 1

00
%

 fo
r f

em
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Al
l B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 P
ub

-2
01

0 
C

on
tin

ge
nt

 S
ur

vi
vo

r A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
D

is
ab

le
d 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

N
on

-S
af

et
y 

D
is

ab
le

d 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
) m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 1

05
%

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 1
00

%
 fo

r f
em

al
es

, p
ro

je
ct

ed
 g

en
er

at
io

na
lly

 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 D

is
ab

le
d 

R
et

ire
e 

Am
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r 

m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
) m

ul
tip

lie
d 

by
 1

05
%

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 1
00

%
 fo

r f
em

al
es

, p
ro

je
ct

ed
 g

en
er

at
io

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

18
. 

Th
e 

Pu
b-

20
10

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

 a
nd

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 a
s 

sh
ow

n 
ab

ov
e 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

as
 

of
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e.

 T
he

se
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ta
bl

es
 w

er
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 to
 fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 u

si
ng

 th
e 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
to

 re
fle

ct
 fu

tu
re

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t d

at
e 

an
d 

th
os

e 
ye

ar
s.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

0 
 

Pr
e-

R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

G
en

er
al

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 A

m
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

Ab
ov

e-
M

ed
ia

n 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
(s

ep
ar

at
e 

ta
bl

es
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 fe

m
al

es
), 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 A
m

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

), 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
sc

al
e 

M
P-

20
18

. 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
(1

) 
Sa

fe
ty

(1
)  

M
al

e 
Fe

m
al

e 
M

al
e 

Fe
m

al
e 

20
 

0.
04

 
0.

01
 

0.
04

 
0.

02
 

25
 

0.
02

 
0.

01
 

0.
03

 
0.

02
 

30
 

0.
03

 
0.

01
 

0.
04

 
0.

02
 

35
 

0.
04

 
0.

02
 

0.
04

 
0.

03
 

40
 

0.
06

 
0.

03
 

0.
05

 
0.

04
 

45
 

0.
09

 
0.

05
 

0.
07

 
0.

06
 

50
 

0.
13

 
0.

08
 

0.
10

 
0.

08
 

55
 

0.
19

 
0.

11
 

0.
15

 
0.

11
 

60
 

0.
28

 
0.

17
 

0.
23

 
0.

14
 

65
 

0.
41

 
0.

27
 

0.
35

 
0.

20
 

70
 

0.
61

 
0.

44
 

0.
66

 
0.

39
 

 (1
)  

G
en

er
at

io
na

l p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

ba
se

 y
ea

r (
20

10
) a

re
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

s.
 

Al
l p

re
-re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d.
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

 fo
r M

em
be

r 
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

: 
• 

G
en

er
al

 M
em

be
rs

: P
ub

-2
01

0 
G

en
er

al
 H

ea
lth

y 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

), 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

30
 y

ea
rs

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
sc

al
e 

M
P-

20
18

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
30

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

70
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: P

ub
-2

01
0 

Sa
fe

ty
 H

ea
lth

y 
R

et
ire

e 
Am

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
Ab

ov
e-

M
ed

ia
n 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

(s
ep

ar
at

e 
ta

bl
es

 fo
r m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

) m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 1
05

%
 fo

r m
al

es
 a

nd
 1

00
%

 fo
r f

em
al

es
, p

ro
je

ct
ed

 3
0 

ye
ar

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
18

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
85

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

15
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

1 
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 In

ci
de

nc
e:

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 In
ci

de
nc

e 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 4

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 5

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
20

 
0.

01
 

0.
01

 
0.

02
 

25
 

0.
02

 
0.

02
 

0.
16

 
30

 
0.

04
 

0.
03

 
0.

32
 

35
 

0.
08

 
0.

05
 

0.
46

 
40

 
0.

22
 

0.
08

 
0.

56
 

45
 

0.
36

 
0.

11
 

0.
90

 
50

 
0.

52
 

0.
13

 
2.

54
 

55
 

0.
60

 
0.

16
 

3.
80

 
60

 
0.

60
 

0.
22

 
4.

30
 

65
 

0.
60

 
0.

25
 

4.
50

 
70

 
0.

60
 

0.
25

 
4.

50
 

60
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 4
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 4
0%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

30
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 7
0%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

10
0%

 o
f S

af
et

y 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

2 
 

Te
rm

in
at

io
n:

 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Le
ss

 th
an

 1
 

14
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

1 
– 

2 
9.

50
 

10
.0

0 
2 

– 
3 

9.
25

 
8.

25
 

3 
– 

4 
6.

50
 

5.
75

 
4 

– 
5 

5.
25

 
5.

00
 

5 
– 

6 
5.

00
 

4.
25

 
6 

– 
7 

4.
50

 
3.

50
 

7 
– 

8 
4.

25
 

3.
25

 
8 

– 
9 

3.
75

 
3.

00
 

9 
– 

10
 

3.
50

 
2.

50
 

10
 –

 1
1 

3.
25

 
2.

25
 

11
 –

 1
2 

3.
00

 
2.

10
 

12
 –

 1
3 

2.
75

 
2.

00
 

13
 –

 1
4 

2.
50

 
1.

90
 

14
 –

 1
5 

2.
50

 
1.

80
 

15
 –

 1
6 

2.
25

 
1.

70
 

16
 –

 1
7 

2.
25

 
1.

60
 

17
 –

 1
8 

2.
00

 
1.

50
 

18
 –

 1
9 

2.
00

 
1.

25
 

19
 –

 2
0 

1.
75

 
1.

00
 

20
 &

 O
ve

r 
1.

25
 

0.
75

 
Th

e 
m

em
be

r i
s 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

r o
f t

he
 m

em
be

r’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
or

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

re
tir

em
en

t 
be

ne
fit

.  
N

o 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
fte

r a
 m

em
be

r i
s 

fir
st

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 re

tir
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

3 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (G
en

er
al

): 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 3
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 1
  

N
on

-
En

ha
nc

ed
 

PE
PR

A 
 

Ti
er

 4
 a

nd
 

Ti
er

 5
 

Le
ss

 th
an

 
30

 Y
ea

rs
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 

O
ve

r 3
0 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

Le
ss

 th
an

 
30

 Y
ea

rs
 o

f 
Se

rv
ic

e 

O
ve

r 3
0 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
50

 
5.

00
 

9.
00

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

0.
00

 
51

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

5.
40

 
3.

00
 

0.
00

 
52

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

5.
40

 
3.

00
 

2.
00

 
53

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
4.

00
 

7.
20

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
54

 
12

.0
0 

21
.6

0 
6.

00
 

10
.8

0 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
55

 
15

.0
0 

27
.0

0 
8.

00
 

14
.4

0 
10

.0
0 

5.
00

 
56

 
17

.0
0 

30
.6

0 
8.

00
 

9.
60

 
10

.0
0 

5.
00

 
57

 
17

.0
0 

30
.6

0 
9.

00
 

10
.8

0 
10

.0
0 

6.
00

 
58

 
17

.0
0 

30
.6

0 
10

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

6.
00

 
59

 
22

.0
0 

26
.4

0 
12

.0
0 

14
.4

0 
10

.0
0 

8.
00

 
60

 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
13

.0
0 

15
.6

0 
25

.0
0 

8.
00

 
61

 
30

.0
0 

36
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

21
.6

0 
15

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
62

 
30

.0
0 

36
.0

0 
22

.0
0 

26
.4

0 
40

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
63

 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
22

.0
0 

26
.4

0 
35

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
64

 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
65

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
32

.0
0 

32
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
66

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
32

.0
0 

32
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
67

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
68

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
69

 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
70

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
71

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
72

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
73

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
74

 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
75

 &
 O

ve
r 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

10
0.

00
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

4 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (S
af

et
y)

: 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Ti
er

 C
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 

Ti
er

 A
 N

on
-

En
ha

nc
ed

 a
nd

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

an
d 

Ti
er

 E
 

Le
ss

 th
an

 3
0 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
O

ve
r 3

0 
Ye

ar
s 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 

45
 

7.
00

 
8.

75
 

2.
00

 
0.

00
 

46
 

3.
00

 
3.

75
 

1.
00

 
0.

00
 

47
 

10
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

4.
00

 
0.

00
 

48
 

10
.0

0 
12

.5
0 

4.
00

 
0.

00
 

49
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

12
.0

0 
0.

00
 

50
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

18
.0

0 
5.

00
 

51
 

25
.0

0 
31

.2
5 

18
.0

0 
4.

00
 

52
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
4.

00
 

53
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
5.

00
 

54
 

18
.0

0 
22

.5
0 

15
.0

0 
6.

00
 

55
 

20
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

56
 

20
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

57
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

58
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

59
 

22
.0

0 
33

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

60
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

61
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

62
 

25
.0

0 
37

.5
0 

25
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

30
.0

0 
45

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

40
.0

0 
60

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

it 
fo

r 
D

ef
er

re
d 

Ve
st

ed
 M

em
be

rs
: 

G
en

er
al

: 
59

 
Sa

fe
ty

 w
ith

 R
ec

ip
ro

ci
ty

: 
53

 
Sa

fe
ty

 w
ith

ou
t R

ec
ip

ro
ci

ty
: 

50
 

40
%

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 7

0%
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 d

ef
er

re
d 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

a 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. F

or
 re

ci
pr

oc
al

s,
 3

.7
5%

 a
nd

 4
.2

5%
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 p

er
 a

nn
um

 fo
r 

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y,

 re
sp

ec
tiv

el
y.

 

Fu
tu

re
 B

en
ef

it 
Ac

cr
ua

ls
: 

1.
0 

ye
ar

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 p

er
 y

ea
r f

or
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s.

 C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

ar
tia

l s
er

vi
ce

 a
cc

ru
al

 fo
r p

ar
t-t

im
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

5 
 

U
nk

no
w

n 
D

at
a 

fo
r M

em
be

rs
: 

Sa
m

e 
as

 th
os

e 
ex

hi
bi

te
d 

by
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 s

im
ila

r k
no

w
n 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s.
 If

 n
ot

 s
pe

ci
fie

d,
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

al
e.

 

D
ef

in
iti

on
 o

f A
ct

iv
e 

M
em

be
rs

: 
Al

l a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f C

C
C

ER
A 

as
 o

f t
he

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
.  

Fo
rm

 o
f P

ay
m

en
t: 

Al
l a

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 e
le

ct
 th

e 
un

m
od

ifi
ed

 o
pt

io
n 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t. 

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

ex
pl

ic
it 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
be

ne
fit

s.
 

Pe
rc

en
t M

ar
rie

d:
 

Fo
r a

ll 
ac

tiv
e 

an
d 

in
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

, 6
5%

 o
f m

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 5
0%

 o
f f

em
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 

m
ar

rie
d 

at
 p

re
-re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

 o
r r

et
ire

m
en

t. 

Ag
e 

an
d 

G
en

de
r o

f S
po

us
e:

 
Fo

r a
ll 

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, m

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

a 
fe

m
al

e 
sp

ou
se

 w
ho

 is
 3

 y
ea

rs
 

yo
un

ge
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

m
em

be
r a

nd
 fe

m
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 h
av

e 
a 

m
al

e 
sp

ou
se

 w
ho

 is
 2

 y
ea

rs
 o

ld
er

 th
an

 
th

e 
m

em
be

r. 

O
ffs

et
s 

by
 O

th
er

 P
la

ns
 o

f t
he

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 fo

r D
is

ab
ili

ty
 B

en
ef

its
: 

Th
e 

Pl
an

 re
qu

ire
s 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 re
tir

e 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
fro

m
 G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 G
en

er
al

 P
EP

R
A 

Ti
er

 5
 to

 
of

fs
et

 th
e 

Pl
an

’s
 d

is
ab

ilit
y 

be
ne

fit
s 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 P

la
ns

 o
f t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
er

. W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
ny

 o
ffs

et
s 

in
 th

is
 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 

Le
av

e 
C

as
ho

ut
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r l
ea

ve
 c

as
ho

ut
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 fi

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ay
 a

re
 u

se
d:

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
rs

 1
, 2

 a
nd

 3
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
s 

A
 a

nd
 C

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 2

 
0.

50
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 2

 
 

 
0.

75
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 3

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 3

 
4.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 4

 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 5

 
1.

25
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 6

 
0.

25
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 7

 
0.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 8

 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 9

 
0.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

0 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

1 
2.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

2 
2.

00
%

 
 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
0.

00
%

 
G

en
er

al
 P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 4

 a
nd

 5
 S

af
et

y 
P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 D

 a
nd

 E
 

 
N

on
e 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

6 
 Se

rv
ic

e 
fr

om
 A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 S

ic
k 

Le
av

e 
C

on
ve

rs
io

n:
 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
 c

on
ve

rte
d 

fro
m

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 s
ic

k 
le

av
e 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

se
rv

ic
e 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t a

re
 u

se
d:

 
S

er
vi

ce
 R

et
ire

m
en

ts
: 

 
G

en
er

al
: 

1.
10

%
 

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

80
%

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
ts

: 
 

G
en

er
al

: 
0.

06
%

 
 

Sa
fe

ty
: 

1.
20

%
 

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
tio

n 
31

64
1.

01
, t

he
 c

os
t o

f t
hi

s 
be

ne
fit

 fo
r t

he
 n

on
-P

EP
R

A 
tie

rs
 w

ill 
be

 c
ha

rg
ed

 o
nl

y 
to

 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

an
d 

w
ill 

no
t a

ffe
ct

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l F
un

di
ng

 P
ol

ic
y 

 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l C
os

t M
et

ho
d:

 
En

try
 A

ge
 A

ct
ua

ria
l C

os
t M

et
ho

d.
 E

nt
ry

 A
ge

 is
 th

e 
ag

e 
on

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
da

te
 m

in
us

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. N
or

m
al

 
C

os
t a

nd
 A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

ar
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 o

n 
an

 in
di

vi
du

al
 b

as
is

 a
nd

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
co

st
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
as

 a
 

le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n,

 a
s 

if 
th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 b
en

ef
it 

fo
rm

ul
a 

fo
r e

ac
h 

in
di

vi
du

al
 h

as
 a

lw
ay

s 
be

en
 in

 e
ffe

ct
 

(i.
e.

, “
re

pl
ac

em
en

t l
ife

 w
ith

in
 a

 ti
er

”).
 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s:

 
M

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

f a
ss

et
s 

(M
VA

) l
es

s 
un

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 re

tu
rn

s 
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

la
st

 n
in

e 
se

m
i-a

nn
ua

l a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pe
rio

ds
. U

nr
ec

og
ni

ze
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

ar
e 

eq
ua

l t
o 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 m
ar

ke
t r

et
ur

n 
an

d 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

re
tu

rn
 o

n 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
, a

nd
 a

re
 re

co
gn

iz
ed

 s
em

i-a
nn

ua
lly

 o
ve

r a
 fi

ve
-y

ea
r p

er
io

d.
  

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s:
 

Th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f A
ss

et
s 

re
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
va

lu
e 

of
 th

e 
no

n-
va

lu
at

io
n 

re
se

rv
es

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
na

tio
ns

. 

Am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

Po
lic

y:
 

Th
e 

U
AA

L 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 b

e 
am

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r s

ep
ar

at
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

la
ye

rs
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 e
ac

h 
se

pa
ra

te
 la

ye
r w

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
 

An
y 

ne
w

 U
AA

L 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 a

ct
ua

ria
l g

ai
ns

 o
r l

os
se

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
as

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 3

1 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

8 
ye

ar
s.

 

An
y 

ne
w

 U
AA

L 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 o
r m

et
ho

ds
 w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

8 
ye

ar
s.

 

U
nl

es
s 

th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ad

op
ts

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

d 
af

te
r r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
n 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l a
na

ly
si

s:
 

i. 
W

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

no
te

d 
in

 ii
., 

be
lo

w
, t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 U
AA

L 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 a

ny
 p

la
n 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 w

ill 
be

 
am

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

0 
ye

ar
s;

 

ii.
 

Th
e 

en
tir

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 U
AA

L 
re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 a

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 re

tir
em

en
t i

nc
en

tiv
e 

w
ill 

be
 fu

nd
ed

 in
 fu

ll 
up

on
 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
in

ce
nt

iv
e.

 If
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 U
AA

L 
is

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 re

su
lti

ng
 fr

om
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 in

 S
ec

tio
n 

31
64

1.
04

 o
f t

he
 1

93
7 

C
ER

L 
(G

ol
de

n 
H

an
ds

ha
ke

), 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 

U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 fu
nd

ed
 in

 fu
ll 

up
on

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

G
ol

de
n 

H
an

ds
ha

ke
. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

7 
 

Th
e 

U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r “

cl
os

ed
” a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

ds
 s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

fo
r e

ac
h 

la
ye

r d
ec

re
as

es
 b

y 
on

e 
ye

ar
 w

ith
 e

ac
h 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l v
al

ua
tio

n.
 

Th
e 

U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 a

s 
a 

le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay
ro

ll 
so

 th
at

 th
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

am
ou

nt
 in

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 b

e 
a 

le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 c

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll,
 ta

ki
ng

 
in

to
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
fo

r g
en

er
al

 p
ay

ro
ll 

in
cr

ea
se

 (i
.e

., 
w

ag
e 

in
fla

tio
n)

. 

If 
an

 o
ve

rfu
nd

in
g 

or
 “s

ur
pl

us
” e

xi
st

s 
(i.

e.
, t

he
 V

VA
 e

xc
ee

ds
 th

e 
AA

L,
 s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
to

ta
l o

f a
ll 

U
AA

L 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
la

ye
rs

 b
ec

om
es

 n
eg

at
iv

e)
, a

ny
 p

rio
r U

AA
L 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

la
ye

rs
 w

ill 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

fu
lly

 
am

or
tiz

ed
, a

nd
 a

ny
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t U
AA

L 
w

ill 
be

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
fir

st
 o

f a
 n

ew
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
la

ye
rs

, u
si

ng
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

ds
.  

If 
th

e 
su

rp
lu

s 
ex

ce
ed

s 
20

%
 o

f t
he

 A
AL

 p
er

 S
ec

tio
n 

75
22

.5
2 

of
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e,
 th

en
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f 

su
rp

lu
s 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 2
0%

 o
f t

he
 A

AL
 (a

nd
 a

ny
 s

ub
se

qu
en

t s
ur

pl
us

es
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

at
 a

m
ou

nt
) w

ill 
be

 
am

or
tiz

ed
 o

ve
r a

n 
“o

pe
n”

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
pe

rio
d 

of
 3

0 
ye

ar
s,

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

th
e 

ot
he

r c
on

di
tio

ns
 o

f 
Se

ct
io

n 
75

22
.5

2 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

be
en

 m
et

. I
f t

ho
se

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
 m

et
, t

he
n 

th
e 

su
rp

lu
s 

w
ill 

no
t b

e 
am

or
tiz

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
fu

ll 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t w

ill 
be

 c
on

tri
bu

te
d.

 

Th
es

e 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
po

lic
y 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

w
ill 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
pp

ly
 s

ep
ar

at
el

y 
to

 e
ac

h 
of

 C
C

C
ER

A’
s 

U
AA

L 
co

st
 

gr
ou

ps
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

th
at

 th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
of

 S
ec

tio
n 

75
22

.5
2 

ap
pl

y 
to

 th
e 

to
ta

l p
la

n.
 

O
th

er
 A

ct
ua

ria
l M

et
ho

ds
 

 

Em
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
: 

Em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 c
on

si
st

 o
f t

w
o 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s:

 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
 th

at
, i

f p
ai

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 fr

om
 a

 m
em

be
r’s

 fi
rs

t y
ea

r o
f m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ye

ar
 o

f 
re

tir
em

en
t, 

w
ou

ld
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 fu

lly
 fu

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r's
 re

tir
em

en
t-r

el
at

ed
 b

en
ef

its
. 

Ac
cu

m
ul

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

nn
ua

l c
re

di
tin

g 
of

 in
te

re
st

 a
t t

he
 a

ss
um

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

 ra
te

. T
he

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

 is
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

a 
le

ve
l p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
U

nf
un

de
d 

A
ct

ua
ria

l A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
(U

A
A

L)
 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
 th

at
, i

f p
ai

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 o

ve
r t

he
 U

AA
L 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pe
rio

d,
 w

ou
ld

 a
cc

um
ul

at
e 

to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 fu
lly

 fu
nd

 th
e 

U
AA

L.
  A

cc
um

ul
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
es

 a
nn

ua
l c

re
di

tin
g 

of
 in

te
re

st
 a

t t
he

 a
ss

um
ed

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

 ra
te

. T
he

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

(o
r r

at
e 

cr
ed

it 
in

 th
e 

ca
se

 o
f a

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
U

AA
L 

) i
s 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 to

 re
m

ai
n 

as
 a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 fu

tu
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
r p

ay
ro

ll 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

pa
yr

ol
l f

or
 n

ew
 m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
th

ey
 e

nt
er

 th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n)

 a
ss

um
in

g 
a 

co
ns

ta
nt

 n
um

be
r o

f a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
rs

. I
n 

or
de

r t
o 

re
m

ai
n 

as
 a

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

pa
yr

ol
l, 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 (c
re

di
ts

) a
re

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
t t

he
 a

nn
ua

l r
at

e 
of

 3
.2

5%
 (i

.e
., 

2.
75

%
 

in
fla

tio
n 

pl
us

 0
.5

0%
 “a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ar
d”

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

). 
 

Th
e 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

po
lic

y 
is

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 p

ag
e.

 
Th

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

em
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

2,
 S

ub
se

ct
io

n 
F.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

8 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

)  
Th

e 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) i

n 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
an

y 
ac

tu
al

 m
em

be
rs

 a
s 

of
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8.
 T

he
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r t

hi
s 

co
st

 g
ro

up
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 u

se
d 

to
 e

st
im

at
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r a
ll 

of
 th

e 
PE

PR
A 

tie
rs

 in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
2 

va
lu

at
io

n.
 W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ss
um

ed
 in

 th
is

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 p

ro
fil

es
 (e

.g
., 

en
try

 a
ge

, c
om

po
si

tio
n 

of
 

m
al

e 
ve

rs
us

 fe
m

al
e,

 e
tc

.) 
fo

r t
hi

s 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 c
an

 b
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

da
ta

 p
ro

fil
es

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 a

nd
 a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

1.
 

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

: 
N

on
-P

E
P

R
A

 M
em

be
rs

 
Ar

tic
le

s 
6 

an
d 

6.
8 

of
 th

e 
19

37
 A

ct
 d

ef
in

e 
th

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r b

as
ic

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r n

on
-P

EP
R

A 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
, r

es
pe

ct
iv

el
y.

 T
he

 m
em

be
r’s

 b
as

ic
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
 is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 s
o 

th
at

, i
f p

ai
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 fr
om

 a
 m

em
be

r’s
 fi

rs
t y

ea
r o

f m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 

re
tir

em
en

t a
ge

, w
ou

ld
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
to

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 to
 fu

nd
 a

n 
an

nu
ity

 th
at

 is
 e

qu
al

 to
: 

• 
1/

12
0 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r F

in
al

 A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

ar
y 

pe
r y

ea
r o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
t a

ge
 5

5 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 N
on

-
En

ha
nc

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 

• 
1/

10
0 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r F

in
al

 A
ve

ra
ge

 S
al

ar
y 

pe
r y

ea
r o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
t a

ge
 5

0 
fo

r S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

m
em

be
rs

  
• 

1/
12

0 
of

 o
ne

 y
ea

r F
in

al
 A

ve
ra

ge
 S

al
ar

y 
pe

r y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

t a
ge

 6
0 

fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 3
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

m
em

be
rs

 
• 

1/
10

0 
of

 o
ne

 y
ea

r F
in

al
 A

ve
ra

ge
 S

al
ar

y 
pe

r y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

t a
ge

 5
0 

fo
r S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
m

em
be

rs
 

• 
1/

10
0 

of
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 F
in

al
 A

ve
ra

ge
 S

al
ar

y 
pe

r y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

t a
ge

 5
0 

fo
r S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
m

em
be

rs
  

M
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 a

re
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 a

t a
n 

an
nu

al
 in

te
re

st
 ra

te
 a

do
pt

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d.

 N
ot

e 
th

at
 

re
ce

nt
ly

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

M
O

U
’s

 fo
r C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

50
%

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

' b
as

ic
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
. D

is
tri

ct
s 

pa
y 

va
ry

in
g 

po
rti

on
s 

of
 th

e 
m

em
be

rs
’ b

as
ic

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 o
n 

a 
no

nr
ef

un
da

bl
e 

ba
si

s.
 M

em
be

rs
 a

ls
o 

pa
y 

50
%

 o
f t

he
 c

os
t-o

f-l
iv

in
g 

be
ne

fit
. F

or
 m

os
t S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s,

 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 a
ls

o 
su

bv
en

t a
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 ra
te

, c
ur

re
nt

ly
 u

p 
to

 9
%

 o
f c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

(d
ep

en
di

ng
 

on
 th

ei
r M

O
U

). 
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

4 
va

lu
at

io
n,

 fo
r d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l b

en
ef

it 
(i.

e.
, b

as
ic

 a
nd

 
C

O
LA

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s)

, t
he

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 re
co

gn
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
as

 a
n 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 
m

em
be

r c
os

t. 
Pr

io
r t

o 
th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
4 

va
lu

at
io

n,
 fo

r d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f t
he

 b
as

ic
 b

en
ef

it 
(i.

e.
, n

on
-

C
O

LA
 c

om
po

ne
nt

), 
th

e 
le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 in

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
on

ly
 a

s 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 c

os
t 

an
d 

di
d 

no
t a

ffe
ct

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 In
 o

th
er

 w
or

ds
, t

he
 le

av
e 

ca
sh

ou
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 w

er
e 

on
ly

 u
se

d 
in

 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 C

O
LA

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 
As

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
ba

si
c 

m
em

be
r r

at
es

 fo
r t

he
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f e
ac

h 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

st
 g

ro
up

, t
he

 C
O

LA
 m

em
be

r r
at

es
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 p
oo

le
d 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 s
am

e 
tie

r. 
Th

is
 

re
su

lts
 in

 tw
el

ve
 d

iff
er

en
t s

et
s 

of
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r e
ac

h 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

st
 g

ro
up

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
11

9 
 

P
E

P
R

A
 M

em
be

rs
 

Pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 S

ec
tio

n 
75

22
.3

0(
a)

 o
f t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e,
 P

EP
R

A 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 a

t l
ea

st
 

50
%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 a
ss

um
ed

 th
at

 e
xa

ct
ly

 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t w

ou
ld

 b
e 

pa
id

 b
y 

PE
PR

A 
m

em
be

rs
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
th

e 
to

ta
l N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e 

fo
r t

he
 P

EP
R

A 
tie

rs
 to

 th
e 

ne
ar

es
t 

on
e-

fif
tie

th
 o

f o
ne

 p
er

ce
nt

 (i
.e

., 
th

e 
ne

ar
es

t e
ve

n 
on

e-
hu

nd
re

dt
h)

 a
s 

th
at

 w
ill 

al
lo

w
 th

e 
N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e 

to
 b

e 
sh

ar
ed

 e
xa

ct
ly

 5
0:

50
 w

ith
ou

t g
oi

ng
 b

ey
on

d 
tw

o 
de

ci
m

al
 p

la
ce

s.
 

Th
e 

m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r a

ll 
m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 S

ec
tio

n 
4,

 E
xh

ib
it 

III
. 

C
os

t S
ha

rin
g 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

: 
St

ar
tin

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n,
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

to
ok

 a
ct

io
n 

to
 d

ep
oo

l C
C

C
ER

A’
s 

as
se

ts
, 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
no

rm
al

 c
os

t b
y 

em
pl

oy
er

 w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ra

te
s.

 T
he

 B
oa

rd
 a

ct
io

n 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

ba
ck

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
2.

 T
hi

s 
di

d 
no

t i
nv

ol
ve

 re
ca

lc
ul

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 

ra
te

s 
pr

io
r t

o 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9.

 H
ow

ev
er

, i
t d

id
 in

vo
lv

e 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

th
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 

ea
ch

 in
di

vi
du

al
 c

os
t g

ro
up

 b
ac

k 
fro

m
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
2 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9.
 T

he
 c

os
t g

ro
up

s 
ar

e 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
V

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
ac

tio
n 

ca
lle

d 
fo

r a
 d

is
co

nt
in

ua
tio

n 
of

 c
er

ta
in

 c
os

t s
ha

rin
g 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 fo
r b

ot
h 

m
em

be
r a

nd
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

. E
ve

n 
un

de
r 

th
e 

de
po

ol
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
e,

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

fe
w

 re
m

ai
ni

ng
 c

os
t s

ha
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. H

er
e 

is
 a

 s
um

m
ar

y 
of

 th
e 

co
st

 
sh

ar
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 th

at
 w

er
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

00
9 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ua
tio

n:
  

• 
Sm

al
le

r e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

(le
ss

 th
an

 5
0 

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
00

9)
 w

er
e 

po
ol

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 
C

ou
nt

y 
tie

r. 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ea
st

 C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 F
ire

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 w
er

e 
po

ol
ed

 w
ith

 S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
. 

• 
D

ue
 to

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t, 

th
e 

Su
pe

rio
r C

ou
rt 

w
as

 p
oo

le
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f h
ow

 m
an

y 
m

em
be

rs
 th

e 
C

ou
rt 

ha
s.

  
• 

U
AA

L 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

po
ol

ed
 b

et
w

ee
n 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
an

d 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
2 

w
hi

ch
 re

pr
es

en
t G

en
er

al
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Sm

al
l D

is
tri

ct
s.

 U
AA

L 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 p
oo

le
d 

fo
r C

os
t G

ro
up

s 
#7

 a
nd

 #
9 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 S

af
et

y 
C

ou
nt

y 
tie

rs
. 

Ad
di

tio
na

l C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
e 

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

: 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

to
 s

om
e 

U
AA

L 
am

ou
nt

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nt
y,

 th
e 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
(C

C
C

FP
D

), 
th

e 
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

 F
ire

 D
is

tri
ct

 (M
or

ag
a)

, F
irs

t 5
 –

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 (F
irs

t F
iv

e)
 

an
d 

Lo
ca

l A
ge

nc
y 

Fo
rm

at
io

n 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 (L

AF
C

O
) t

o 
ac

co
un

t f
or

 P
en

si
on

 O
bl

ig
at

io
n 

Bo
nd

s 
(P

O
Bs

) a
nd

 a
ny

 
ot

he
r s

pe
ci

al
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 th

at
 th

ey
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
m

ad
e.

 T
he

se
 a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
 s

er
ve

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

U
AA

L 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
ra

te
 fo

r t
he

se
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s.
 T

he
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 b

al
an

ce
s 

of
 th

es
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

ar
e 

as
 fo

llo
w

s:
 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
 

G
en

er
al

 
M

or
ag

a 
 

G
en

er
al

 
Fi

rs
t F

iv
e 

G
en

er
al

 
LA

FC
O

  
G

en
er

al
 

C
C

C
FP

D
  

Sa
fe

ty
 

Ba
si

c 
$1

21
,8

36
,6

65
 

$2
14

,5
58

 
$4

63
,9

54
 

$2
2,

20
0 

$3
4,

97
1,

53
0 

C
O

L 
$9

7,
62

8,
94

7 
$1

24
,5

27
 

$3
50

,9
44

 
$8

,3
35

 
$2

6,
67

0,
85

2 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

0 
 

In
te

rn
al

 R
ev

en
ue

 C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
41

5:
 

Se
ct

io
n 

41
5 

of
 th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

(IR
C

) s
pe

ci
fie

s 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 b

en
ef

its
 th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
pa

id
 to

 a
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
 fr

om
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

pl
an

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 b

e 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r t
o 

an
 

in
di

vi
du

al
’s

 a
cc

ou
nt

 in
 a

 d
ef

in
ed

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

pl
an

.  
A 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 p
en

si
on

 p
la

n 
m

ay
 n

ot
 p

ay
 b

en
ef

its
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
41

5 
lim

its
. T

he
 u

lti
m

at
e 

pe
na

lty
 fo

r n
on

-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
is

 d
is

qu
al

ifi
ca

tio
n:

 a
ct

iv
e 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
s 

co
ul

d 
be

 ta
xe

d 
on

 th
ei

r v
es

te
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

an
d 

th
e 

IR
S 

m
ay

 s
ee

k 
to

 ta
x 

th
e 

in
co

m
e 

ea
rn

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pl

an
’s

 a
ss

et
s.

 
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, S

ec
tio

n 
41

5(
b)

 o
f t

he
 IR

C
 li

m
its

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 a
nn

ua
l b

en
ef

it 
pa

ya
bl

e 
at

 th
e 

N
or

m
al

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

Ag
e 

to
 a

 d
ol

la
r l

im
it 

of
 $

16
0,

00
0 

in
de

xe
d 

fo
r i

nf
la

tio
n.

 T
ha

t l
im

it 
is

 $
22

5,
00

0 
fo

r 2
01

9.
 N

or
m

al
 R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ge

 
fo

r t
he

se
 p

ur
po

se
s 

is
 a

ge
 6

2.
 T

he
se

 a
re

 th
e 

lim
its

 in
 s

im
pl

ifi
ed

 te
rm

s.
 T

he
y 

m
us

t b
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ea

ch
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

nt
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 fo

r s
uc

h 
th

in
gs

 a
s 

ag
e 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

fo
rm

 o
f b

en
ef

its
 c

ho
se

n 
an

d 
af

te
r t

ax
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

.  
N

on
-P

EP
R

A 
be

ne
fit

s 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

e 
lim

its
 m

ay
 b

e 
pa

id
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

qu
al

ifi
ed

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l e
xc

es
s 

pl
an

 th
at

 
m

ee
ts

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f S

ec
tio

n 
41

5(
m

). 
Le

ga
l C

ou
ns

el
’s

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 in

te
rp

re
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
la

w
 a

nd
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

ou
gh

t o
n 

an
y 

qu
es

tio
ns

 in
 th

is
 

re
ga

rd
. 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 in
 th

is
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
fo

r t
he

 S
ec

tio
n 

41
5 

lim
ita

tio
ns

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
it 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 P

EP
R

A 
m

em
be

rs
 w

ill 
no

t b
e 

lim
ite

d 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

PE
PR

A 
co

m
pe

ns
at

io
n 

lim
it 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
de

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

of
 th

ei
r b

en
ef

it.
 A

ct
ua

l l
im

ita
tio

ns
 w

ill 
re

su
lt 

in
 a

ct
ua

ria
l g

ai
ns

 a
s 

th
ey

 o
cc

ur
. 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

A
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
E

xp
en

se
s:

 
1.

13
%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 th
e 

m
em

be
r b

as
ed

 o
n 

no
rm

al
 c

os
t (

be
fo

re
 e

xp
en

se
s)

 fo
r 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 a
nd

 m
em

be
r. 

Th
is

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

 a
dm

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f a

ct
ua

l c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r l
ea

di
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

da
te

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

1 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

S
al

ar
y 

In
cr

ea
se

s:
 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 ra

te
 o

f c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

cl
ud

es
: i

nf
la

tio
n 

at
 2

.7
5%

, p
lu

s 
“a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
bo

ar
d”

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
of

 0
.5

0%
 p

er
 y

ea
r, 

pl
us

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
m

er
it 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s:

 

M
er

it 
an

d 
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

In
cr

ea
se

s 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Le

ss
 th

an
 1

 
10

.0
0 

10
.5

0 
1 

– 
2 

7.
25

 
7.

25
 

2 
– 

3 
5.

25
 

5.
75

 
3 

– 
4 

3.
75

 
4.

50
 

4 
– 

5 
2.

75
 

3.
00

 
5 

– 
6 

2.
25

 
1.

75
 

6 
– 

7 
1.

75
 

1.
25

 
7 

– 
8 

1.
50

 
1.

20
 

8 
– 

9 
1.

25
 

1.
15

 
9 

– 
10

 
1.

20
 

1.
10

 
10

 –
 1

1 
1.

15
 

1.
05

 
11

 –
 1

2 
1.

10
 

1.
00

 
12

 –
 1

3 
1.

00
 

0.
95

 
13

 –
 1

4 
0.

90
 

0.
85

 
14

 –
 1

5 
0.

80
 

0.
80

 
15

 –
 1

6 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
16

 –
 1

7 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
17

 –
 1

8 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
18

 –
 1

9 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
19

 –
 2

0 
0.

75
 

0.
75

 
20

 &
 O

ve
r 

0.
75

 
0.

75
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

2 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

P
os

t-R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

H
ea

lth
y 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t b
ac

k 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
• 

Al
l B

en
ef

ic
ia

rie
s:

 H
ea

dc
ou

nt
-W

ei
gh

te
d 

R
P-

20
14

 H
ea

lth
y 

An
nu

ita
nt

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e,

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 g

en
er

at
io

na
lly

 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
D

is
ab

le
d 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t f
or

w
ar

d 
ei

gh
t 

ye
ar

s,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 g
en

er
at

io
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t f
or

w
ar

d 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ge

ne
ra

tio
na

lly
 w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

. 

P
re

-R
et

ire
m

en
t M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
: 

• 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y 
M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 M
or

ta
lit

y 
Ta

bl
e 

m
ul

tip
lie

d 
by

 7
5%

, 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
lly

 w
ith

 th
e 

tw
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 s
ca

le
 M

P-
20

15
. 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
(1

) 
Sa

fe
ty

(1
)  

M
al

e 
Fe

m
al

e 
M

al
e 

Fe
m

al
e 

25
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

30
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

0.
05

 
0.

02
 

35
 

0.
05

 
0.

03
 

0.
05

 
0.

03
 

40
 

0.
06

 
0.

04
 

0.
06

 
0.

04
 

45
 

0.
09

 
0.

06
 

0.
09

 
0.

06
 

50
 

0.
16

 
0.

10
 

0.
16

 
0.

10
 

55
 

0.
26

 
0.

16
 

0.
26

 
0.

16
 

60
 

0.
42

 
0.

23
 

0.
42

 
0.

23
 

65
 

0.
73

 
0.

33
 

0.
73

 
0.

33
 

 (1
)  

G
en

er
at

io
na

l p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 b
ey

on
d 

th
e 

ba
se

 y
ea

r (
20

14
) a

re
 n

ot
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

s.
 

Al
l p

re
-re

tir
em

en
t d

ea
th

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

3 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
R

at
es

 fo
r M

em
be

r 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
: 

• 
G

en
er

al
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e,
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 to
 2

03
4 

w
ith

 
th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
30

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

70
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
: H

ea
dc

ou
nt

-W
ei

gh
te

d 
R

P-
20

14
 H

ea
lth

y 
An

nu
ita

nt
 M

or
ta

lit
y 

Ta
bl

e 
se

t b
ac

k 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
to

 2
03

4 
w

ith
 th

e 
tw

o-
di

m
en

si
on

al
 s

ca
le

 M
P-

20
15

, w
ei

gh
te

d 
85

%
 m

al
e 

an
d 

15
%

 fe
m

al
e.

 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 In

ci
de

nc
e:

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 In
ci

de
nc

e 

Ag
e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 4

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 
an

d 
Ti

er
 5

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
20

 
0.

01
 

0.
01

 
0.

02
 

25
 

0.
02

 
0.

02
 

0.
22

 
30

 
0.

04
 

0.
03

 
0.

42
 

35
 

0.
08

 
0.

05
 

0.
56

 
40

 
0.

22
 

0.
08

 
0.

66
 

45
 

0.
36

 
0.

13
 

1.
00

 
50

 
0.

52
 

0.
16

 
2.

88
 

55
 

0.
60

 
0.

20
 

4.
60

 
60

 
0.

60
 

0.
28

 
5.

00
 

65
 

0.
60

 
0.

32
 

5.
00

 
70

 
0.

60
 

0.
32

 
5.

00
 

65
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 4
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 3
5%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

30
%

 o
f G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 d

is
ab

ilit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 o

th
er

 7
0%

 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

no
n-

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 

10
0%

 o
f S

af
et

y 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
nn

ec
te

d 
di

sa
bi

lit
ie

s.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

4 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

Te
rm

in
at

io
n:

 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 

Ye
ar

s 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

e 

R
at

e 
(%

) 

G
en

er
al

 
Sa

fe
ty

 

Le
ss

 th
an

 1
 

13
.5

0 
13

.0
0 

1 
– 

2 
9.

25
 

8.
00

 
2 

– 
3 

9.
00

 
7.

00
 

3 
– 

4 
6.

00
 

5.
50

 
4 

– 
5 

4.
50

 
3.

75
 

5 
– 

6 
4.

25
 

3.
25

 
6 

– 
7 

3.
75

 
3.

00
 

7 
– 

8 
3.

50
 

2.
75

 
8 

– 
9 

3.
25

 
2.

50
 

9 
– 

10
 

3.
00

 
2.

25
 

10
 –

 1
1 

2.
75

 
2.

00
 

11
 –

 1
2 

2.
50

 
1.

90
 

12
 –

 1
3 

2.
40

 
1.

80
 

13
 –

 1
4 

2.
30

 
1.

70
 

14
 –

 1
5 

2.
20

 
1.

60
 

15
 –

 1
6 

2.
10

 
1.

50
 

16
 –

 1
7 

2.
00

 
1.

40
 

17
 –

 1
8 

2.
00

 
1.

30
 

18
 –

 1
9 

2.
00

 
1.

20
 

19
 –

 2
0 

1.
75

 
1.

10
 

20
 &

 O
ve

r 
1.

50
 

1.
00

 
Th

e 
m

em
be

r i
s 

as
su

m
ed

 to
 re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

r o
f t

he
 m

em
be

r’s
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
ba

la
nc

e 
or

 a
 d

ef
er

re
d 

re
tir

em
en

t 
be

ne
fit

.  
N

o 
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
is

 a
ss

um
ed

 a
fte

r a
 m

em
be

r i
s 

fir
st

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 re

tir
e.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

5 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (G
en

er
al

): 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 1
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
Ti

er
 3

 
En

ha
nc

ed
 

Ti
er

 1
  

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
 

50
 

5.
00

 
4.

00
 

3.
00

 
0.

00
 

51
 

4.
00

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
0.

00
 

52
 

5.
00

 
3.

00
 

3.
00

 
2.

00
 

53
 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

54
 

14
.0

0 
6.

00
 

3.
00

 
3.

00
 

55
 

20
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
5.

00
 

56
 

20
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
5.

00
 

57
 

20
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
6.

00
 

58
 

20
.0

0 
12

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
8.

00
 

59
 

25
.0

0 
13

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
9.

00
 

60
 

28
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

25
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

61
 

35
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

15
.0

0 
14

.0
0 

62
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

30
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

30
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

30
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

65
 

35
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

40
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

66
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

67
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

68
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

69
 

40
.0

0 
35

.0
0 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

70
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

71
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

72
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

73
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

74
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

50
.0

0 
50

.0
0 

75
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

6 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (S
af

et
y)

: 

Ag
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 (%
) 

Ti
er

 A
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
Ti

er
 C

 
En

ha
nc

ed
 

Ti
er

 A
 

N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

an
d 

Ti
er

 E
 

45
 

4.
00

 
2.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

46
 

3.
00

 
1.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

47
 

10
.0

0 
4.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

48
 

10
.0

0 
4.

00
 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

49
 

25
.0

0 
12

.0
0 

0.
00

 
0.

00
 

50
 

30
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

51
 

30
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

4.
00

 
4.

00
 

52
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

4.
00

 
4.

00
 

53
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

5.
00

 
5.

00
 

54
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

8.
00

 
6.

00
 

55
 

28
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

56
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

10
.0

0 
10

.0
0 

57
 

25
.0

0 
15

.0
0 

12
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

58
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

18
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

59
 

35
.0

0 
25

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

60
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
18

.0
0 

61
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

62
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

63
 

35
.0

0 
30

.0
0 

20
.0

0 
20

.0
0 

64
 

50
.0

0 
40

.0
0 

10
0.

00
 

30
.0

0 
65

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
30

.0
0 

66
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
10

0.
00

 
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

it 
fo

r 
D

ef
er

re
d 

V
es

te
d 

M
em

be
rs

: 
G

en
er

al
: 

59
 

Sa
fe

ty
: 

54
 

40
%

 o
f f

ut
ur

e 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 6

5%
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

Sa
fe

ty
 d

ef
er

re
d 

ve
st

ed
 m

em
be

rs
 a

re
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

a 
re

ci
pr

oc
al

 e
m

pl
oy

er
. F

or
 re

ci
pr

oc
al

s,
 4

.7
5%

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

ar
e 

as
su

m
ed

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 fo

r b
ot

h 
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 S

af
et

y.
 

P
er

ce
nt

 M
ar

rie
d:

 
Fo

r a
ll 

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
in

ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

rs
, 7

5%
 o

f m
al

e 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 5

0%
 o

f f
em

al
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 b

e 
m

ar
rie

d 
at

 p
re

-re
tir

em
en

t d
ea

th
 o

r r
et

ire
m

en
t. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

7 
 

C
ha

ng
ed

 A
ct

ua
ria

l A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

: 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 c

ha
ng

ed
 s

in
ce

 th
e 

pr
io

r v
al

ua
tio

n.
 R

at
io

na
le

 fo
r t

he
se

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
re

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

in
 th

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

5 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y.
 

Le
av

e 
C

as
ho

ut
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
: 

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 fo

r l
ea

ve
 c

as
ho

ut
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 fi

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 p

ay
 a

re
 u

se
d:

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
rs

 1
, 2

 a
nd

 3
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
s 

A
 a

nd
 C

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

 
1.

25
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 2

 
0.

50
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 2

 
 

 
1.

00
%

 fo
r T

ie
r 3

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 3

 
5.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 4

 
0.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 5

 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 6

 
0.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 7

 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 8

 
0.

75
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 9

 
0.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

0 
1.

00
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

1 
2.

50
%

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 1

2 
2.

50
%

 
 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
er

s 
0.

00
%

 
G

en
er

al
 P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 4

 a
nd

 5
 S

af
et

y 
P

E
P

R
A

 T
ie

rs
 D

 a
nd

 E
 

 
N

on
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 fr
om

 A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 S
ic

k 
Le

av
e 

C
on

ve
rs

io
n:

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
er

vi
ce

 c
on

ve
rte

d 
fro

m
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 s

ic
k 

le
av

e 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
at

 re
tir

em
en

t a
re

 u
se

d:
 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
ts

: 
 

G
en

er
al

: 
1.

20
%

 
 

Sa
fe

ty
: 

1.
90

%
 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 R

et
ire

m
en

ts
: 

 
G

en
er

al
: 

0.
08

%
 

 
Sa

fe
ty

: 
1.

30
%

 
Pu

rs
ua

nt
 to

 S
ec

tio
n 

31
64

1.
01

, t
he

 c
os

t o
f t

hi
s 

be
ne

fit
 fo

r t
he

 n
on

-P
EP

R
A 

tie
rs

 w
ill 

be
 c

ha
rg

ed
 o

nl
y 

to
 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
an

d 
w

ill 
no

t a
ffe

ct
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s.
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
PL

AN
 P

R
O

VI
SI

O
N

S 

Th
is

 e
xh

ib
it 

su
m

m
ar

iz
es

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s o
f t

he
 P

la
n 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 It
 is

 n
ot

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 b

e,
 n

or
 sh

ou
ld

 it
 b

e 
in

te
rp

re
te

d 
as

, a
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
st

at
em

en
t o

f a
ll 

pl
an

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s. 

Pl
an

 Y
ea

r:
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1 
th

ro
ug

h 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1 

M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

El
ig

ib
ili

ty
: 

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 

G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 h
ire

d 
be

fo
re

 J
ul

y 
1,

 1
98

0 
an

d 
el

ec
tin

g 
no

t t
o 

tra
ns

fe
r t

o 
Ti

er
 2

 P
la

n.
 C

er
ta

in
 G

en
er

al
 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
be

fo
re

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

hi
re

d 
by

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

w
ho

 d
id

 n
ot

 a
do

pt
 T

ie
r 2

 
ar

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 T

ie
r 1

. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

M
os

t G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 h
ire

d 
on

 o
r a

fte
r A

ug
us

t 1
, 1

98
0 

an
d 

al
l G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 h

ire
d 

be
fo

re
 J

ul
y 

1,
 1

98
0 

el
ec

tin
g 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 th
e 

Ti
er

 2
 P

la
n.

 E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

, 2
00

2,
 fo

r t
he

 C
ou

nt
y,

 T
ie

r 2
 w

as
 e

lim
in

at
ed

 a
nd

 a
ll 

C
ou

nt
y 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
(e

xc
lu

di
ng

 C
N

A 
em

pl
oy

ee
s)

 in
 T

ie
r 2

 w
er

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 T

ie
r 3

. E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
00

5,
 a

ll 
C

N
A 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

 T
ie

r 2
 w

er
e 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 T
ie

r 3
. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 

G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
be

fo
re

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 T

ie
r 1

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 

Ti
er

 3
. 

G
en

er
al

 P
E

P
R

A
 T

ie
r 4

 
G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

hi
re

d 
by

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

w
ho

 d
id

 n
ot

 
ad

op
t T

ie
r 2

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 T

ie
r 4

. 

G
en

er
al

 P
E

P
R

A
 T

ie
r 5

 
G

en
er

al
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 T

ie
r 4

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 

Ti
er

 5
. 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r C

 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
be

fo
re

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3.

 C
ou

nt
y 

Sh
er

iff
’s

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t S

af
et

y 
m

em
be

rs
 

hi
re

d 
on

 o
r a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
00

7,
 b

ut
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
ar

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

 E
nh

an
ce

d.
 

S
af

et
y 

P
E

P
R

A
 T

ie
r D

 a
nd

 T
ie

r E
 

Sa
fe

ty
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3.

 S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

 fr
om

 c
er

ta
in

 b
ar

ga
in

in
g 

un
its

 a
re

 p
la

ce
d 

in
 S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 E

. 

Fi
na

l C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r B
en

ef
it 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n:

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 (n
on

-
di

sa
bi

lit
y)

, S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 

H
ig

he
st

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

12
 m

on
th

s 
of

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
ea

rn
ab

le
. (

§3
14

62
.1

) (
FA

S1
) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(d

is
ab

ili
ty

), 
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 C

 
H

ig
he

st
 c

on
se

cu
tiv

e 
36

 m
on

th
s 

of
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

ea
rn

ab
le

. (
§3

14
62

) (
FA

S3
) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

,  
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

 a
nd

 T
ie

r E
 

H
ig

he
st

 c
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

36
 m

on
th

s 
of

 p
en

si
on

ab
le

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 (§

75
22

.1
0(

c)
, §

75
22

.3
2 

an
d 

§7
52

2.
34

) (
FA

S3
) 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
12

9 
 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
Li

m
it:

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 2

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 3
,  

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r C

 
Fo

r m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

da
te

s 
on

 o
r a

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 1
99

6,
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

Ea
rn

ab
le

 is
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 In
te

rn
al

 
R

ev
en

ue
 C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

40
1(

a)
(1

7)
. T

he
 li

m
it 

is
 $

28
0,

00
0 

fo
r c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r 2

01
9.

 T
he

 li
m

it 
is

 in
de

xe
d 

fo
r 

in
fla

tio
n 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

,  
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 D

 a
nd

 T
ie

r E
 

Pe
ns

io
na

bl
e 

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
is

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 $

12
4,

18
0 

fo
r 2

01
9 

($
14

9,
01

6,
 if

 n
ot

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
). 

Th
e 

lim
it 

is
 in

de
xe

d 
fo

r i
nf

la
tio

n 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 b

as
is

. 

So
ci

al
 S

ec
ur

ity
 P

rim
ar

y 
In

su
ra

nc
e 

Am
ou

nt
: 

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

Es
tim

at
ed

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
 a

w
ar

d 
at

 a
ge

 6
2 

as
su

m
in

g 
le

ve
l f

ut
ur

e 
ea

rn
in

gs
. (

PI
A)

 

Se
rv

ic
e:

 
 

A
ll 

Ti
er

s 
Ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 (Y

rs
) a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

m
em

be
r’s

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t d
ur

in
g 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 ti

m
e 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 
de

du
ct

io
ns

 a
re

 m
ad

e 
fro

m
 th

ei
r c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n.

 In
cl

ud
es

 a
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 s
ic

k 
le

av
e 

as
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 re
tir

em
en

t. 
(§

31
64

1.
01

) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

M
ax

im
um

 o
f 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

(Y
rs

30
). 

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

R
et

ire
m

en
t E

lig
ib

ili
ty

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 2

, a
nd

 T
ie

r 3
 

Ag
e 

50
 w

ith
 1

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
, o

r a
ge

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

, o
r a

fte
r 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f a

ge
. 

(§
31

67
2)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 
Ag

e 
52

 w
ith

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 o

r a
ge

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. (
§7

52
2.

20
(a

) a
nd

 §
31

67
2.

3)
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 T

ie
r C

 
Ag

e 
50

 w
ith

 1
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

, o
r a

ge
 7

0 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
, o

r a
fte

r 2
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f a
ge

. 
(§

31
66

3.
25

) 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
Ag

e 
50

 w
ith

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 o

r a
ge

 7
0 

re
ga

rd
le

ss
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. (
§7

52
2.

25
(a

)) 
an

d 
§3

16
72

.3
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a:

 
Th

e 
of

fs
et

s 
sh

ow
n 

in
 a

ll 
be

ne
fit

 fo
rm

ul
as

 o
nl

y 
ap

pl
y 

to
 m

em
be

rs
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
.  

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 (§
31

67
6.

11
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

1.
24

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

55
 

1.
67

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

60
 

2.
18

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

62
 

2.
35

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

61
%

 x
 (F

AS
1 

– 
$1

,4
00

) x
 Y

rs
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

0 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

 (§
31

67
6.

16
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

1.
43

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

55
 

2.
00

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

60
 

2.
26

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

62
 

2.
37

%
 x

 (F
AS

1 
– 

$1
,4

00
) x

 Y
rs

 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

42
%

 x
 (F

AS
1 

– 
$1

,4
00

) x
 Y

rs
 

Fo
r m

em
be

rs
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
co

ve
re

d 
un

de
r t

he
 n

on
-e

nh
an

ce
d 

§3
16

76
.1

1 
fo

rm
ul

a,
 th

ey
 a

re
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 a
t l

ea
st

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

th
ey

 c
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 u
nd

er
 §

31
67

6.
11

. 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 (§

31
75

2)
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

0.
83

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
0.

57
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

55
 

1.
13

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
0.

87
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

60
 

1.
43

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
1.

37
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

62
 

1.
55

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

– 
1.

67
%

 x
 Y

rs
30

 x
 P

IA
 

65
 &

 O
ve

r 
1.

73
%

 x
 F

AS
3 

x 
Yr

s 
– 

1.
67

%
 x

 Y
rs

30
 x

 P
IA

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 
(§

75
22

.2
0(

a)
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

52
 

1.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

55
 

1.
30

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

60
 

1.
80

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

62
 

2.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

65
 

2.
30

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

67
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

50
%

 x
 F

AS
3 

x 
Yr

s 
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
(§

31
66

4)
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

2.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

1 
x 

Yr
s 

55
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

62
%

 x
 F

AS
1 

x 
Yr

s 
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
(§

31
66

4.
1)

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ge

 
B

en
ef

it 
Fo

rm
ul

a 
50

 &
 O

ve
r 

3.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

1 
x 

Yr
s 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

1 
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
(§

31
66

4.
1)

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ge

 
B

en
ef

it 
Fo

rm
ul

a 
50

 &
 O

ve
r 

3.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
(§

75
22

.2
5(

d)
) 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ge
 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
 

2.
00

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

55
 

2.
50

%
 x

 F
AS

3 
x 

Yr
s 

57
 &

 O
ve

r 
2.

70
%

 x
 F

AS
3 

x 
Yr

s 
 

M
ax

im
um

 B
en

ef
it:

 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

, 
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 1

 a
nd

 T
ie

r C
 

10
0%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 (§

31
67

6.
11

, §
31

67
6.

16
, §

31
66

4,
 §

31
66

4.
1)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 4

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
, 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
N

on
e.

  

N
on

-S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 4

 
 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

. (
§3

17
20

) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

1.
5%

 p
er

 y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
. I

f t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

on
e-

th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 a

ge
 6

5,
 b

ut
 th

e 
to

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

-th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

(§
31

72
7)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 3

 a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

Te
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

. (
§3

17
20

.1
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

40
%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pl

us
 1

0%
 o

f F
in

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

us
ed

 in
 th

e 
be

ne
fit

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

m
in

or
 

ch
ild

 (m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

hr
ee

). 
(§

31
72

7.
01

) 

O
ffs

et
 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
ar

e 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

ot
he

r p
la

ns
 o

f t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 e

xc
ep

t W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 S
ec

ur
ity

. 

S
af

et
y 

 
 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 (§
31

72
0)

. 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

1.
8%

 p
er

 y
ea

r o
f s

er
vi

ce
. I

f t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

on
e-

th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is

 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

to
 a

ge
 5

5,
 b

ut
 th

e 
to

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

-th
ird

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 

(§
31

72
7.

2)
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

2 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 4

, 
S

af
et

y 
 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

N
o 

ag
e 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. (

§3
17

20
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

50
%

 o
f t

he
 F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n.
 (§

31
72

7.
4)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 3

, a
nd

 T
ie

r 5
 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 

N
o 

ag
e 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. (

§3
17

20
) 

B
en

ef
it 

Fo
rm

ul
a 

40
%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pl

us
 1

0%
 o

f F
in

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

fo
r e

ac
h 

m
in

or
 c

hi
ld

 (m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

hr
ee

). 
(§

31
72

7.
01

) 

O
ffs

et
 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
ar

e 
of

fs
et

 b
y 

ot
he

r p
la

ns
 o

f t
he

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 e

xc
ep

t W
or

ke
rs

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
So

ci
al

 S
ec

ur
ity

. 

Pr
e-

R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

, T
ie

r 4
,  

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
, 

S
af

et
y 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 A
  

N
on

e.
 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
A

 
R

ef
un

d 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 w

ith
 in

te
re

st
, p

lu
s 

on
e 

m
on

th
’s

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ye

ar
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

, t
o 

a 
m

ax
im

um
 o

f s
ix

 m
on

th
’s

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
(§

31
78

1)
. 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 B
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 (T
en

 y
ea

rs
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

). 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
B

 
O

pt
io

n 
2 

(1
00

%
 c

on
tin

ua
tio

n)
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r N
on

-S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ilit
y 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

. 

D
ea

th
 in

 li
ne

 o
f d

ut
y 

50
%

 o
f F

in
al

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
pa

ya
bl

e 
to

 s
po

us
e.

 (§
31

78
7)

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 A
  

N
on

e.
 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
A

 
R

ef
un

d 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 w

ith
 in

te
re

st
, p

lu
s 

$2
,0

00
 lu

m
p 

su
m

 b
en

ef
it 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
an

y 
So

ci
al

 S
ec

ur
ity

 
pa

ym
en

t. 
(§

31
78

1.
01

); 

E
lig

ib
ili

ty
 –

 B
 

Te
n 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

. 

B
en

ef
it 

– 
B

 
O

pt
io

n 
2 

(1
00

%
 c

on
tin

ua
tio

n)
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r N
on

-S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ilit
y 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 
de

si
gn

at
ed

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

3 
 

D
ea

th
 in

 li
ne

 o
f d

ut
y 

60
%

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 o

r D
is

ab
ilit

y 
R

et
ire

m
en

t B
en

ef
it 

(m
in

im
um

 b
en

ef
it 

is
 2

4%
 o

f F
in

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n)

 p
lu

s,
 fo

r e
ac

h 
m

in
or

 c
hi

ld
, 1

0%
 o

f t
he

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
pa

id
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r. 

M
in

im
um

 fa
m

ily
 b

en
ef

it 
is

 6
0%

 o
f t

he
 

m
em

be
r’s

 a
llo

w
an

ce
. M

ax
im

um
 fa

m
ily

 b
en

ef
it 

is
 1

00
%

 o
f m

em
be

r’s
 a

llo
w

an
ce

. 

D
ea

th
 A

fte
r R

et
ire

m
en

t: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

, T
ie

r 4
,  

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
, 

S
af

et
y 

 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r 
N

on
-S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ne

ct
ed

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

U
nl

es
s 

an
ot

he
r o

pt
io

n 
w

as
 s

el
ec

te
d 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

60
%

 o
f m

em
be

r’s
 u

nm
od

ifi
ed

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 

sp
ou

se
. A

n 
el

ig
ib

le
 s

po
us

e 
is

 a
 s

ur
vi

vi
ng

 s
po

us
e 

w
ho

 w
as

 m
ar

rie
d 

to
 th

e 
m

em
be

r a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 y
ea

r p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 re
tir

em
en

t o
r a

t l
ea

st
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f d

ea
th

 a
nd

 h
as

 a
tta

in
ed

 a
ge

 5
5 

on
 o

r p
rio

r t
o 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f d

ea
th

. (
§3

17
60

.2
) A

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l l

um
p 

su
m

 b
en

ef
it 

of
 $

5,
00

0 
is

 p
ay

ab
le

 to
 th

e 
m

em
be

r’s
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
. 

(§
31

78
9.

5)
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

ne
ct

ed
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
U

nl
es

s 
an

ot
he

r o
pt

io
n 

w
as

 s
el

ec
te

d 
at

 re
tir

em
en

t, 
10

0%
 o

f m
em

be
r’s

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 s

po
us

e.
 

(§
31

78
6)

 A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
um

p 
su

m
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 $
5,

00
0 

is
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

. (
§3

17
89

.5
) 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 

 

S
er

vi
ce

 R
et

ire
m

en
t o

r 
N

on
-S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
ne

ct
ed

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 R
et

ire
m

en
t 

U
nl

es
s 

an
ot

he
r o

pt
io

n 
w

as
 s

el
ec

te
d 

at
 re

tir
em

en
t, 

60
%

 o
f m

em
be

r’s
 u

nm
od

ifi
ed

 a
llo

w
an

ce
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 e

lig
ib

le
 

sp
ou

se
 p

lu
s 

20
%

 o
f a

llo
w

an
ce

 to
 e

ac
h 

m
in

or
 c

hi
ld

. (
§3

17
89

.1
1)

 M
ax

im
um

 b
en

ef
it 

is
 1

00
%

 o
f a

llo
w

an
ce

. A
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
um

p 
su

m
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 $
5,

00
0 

(§
31

78
9.

5)
 p

lu
s 

$2
,0

00
 le

ss
 a

ny
 S

oc
ia

l S
ec

ur
ity

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 p

ay
m

en
t 

(§
31

78
9.

01
) a

re
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
r’s

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

.  

W
ith

dr
aw

al
 B

en
ef

its
: 

 

Le
ss

 th
an

 F
iv

e 
Y

ea
rs

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

R
ef

un
d 

of
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 w
ith

 in
te

re
st

, o
r e

ar
ne

d 
be

ne
fit

 a
t a

ge
 7

0.
 (§

31
62

8)
 

Fi
ve

 o
r M

or
e 

Y
ea

rs
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
If 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 le
ft 

on
 d

ep
os

it,
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 e
ar

ne
d 

be
ne

fit
s 

co
m

m
en

ci
ng

 a
t a

ny
 ti

m
e 

af
te

r e
lig

ib
le

 to
 re

tir
e.

 
(§

31
70

0)
 

Po
st

-R
et

ire
m

en
t C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

B
en

ef
its

: 
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
, T

ie
r 3

 (n
on

-
di

sa
bi

lit
y)

, T
ie

r 4
, a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

, 
S

af
et

y 
Ti

er
 A

 a
nd

 T
ie

r D
 

Fu
tu

re
 c

ha
ng

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 3
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
ex

ce
ss

 “b
an

ke
d.

”  
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
, T

ie
r 3

 (d
is

ab
ili

ty
) 

an
d 

Ti
er

 5
 (d

is
ab

ili
ty

) 
Fu

tu
re

 c
ha

ng
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

to
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 4

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r, 

ex
ce

ss
 “b

an
ke

d.
” 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 (u
nd

er
 

ce
rta

in
 M

O
U

s)
,  

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 

Fu
tu

re
 c

ha
ng

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

C
on

su
m

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

um
 o

f 2
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r, 
ex

ce
ss

 “b
an

ke
d.

” 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

4 
 

M
em

be
r C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

: 
Pl

ea
se

 re
fe

r t
o 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
III

 fo
r s

pe
ci

fic
 ra

te
s.

 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r o

ne
-h

al
f o

f t
he

 §
31

67
6.

11
 b

en
ef

it 
pa

ya
bl

e 
at

 a
ge

 5
5.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 3

 
(E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r a

n 
an

nu
ity

 a
t a

ge
 6

0 
eq

ua
l t

o 
1/

12
0 

of
 F

AS
1.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 T

ie
r 5

 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
at

e.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r o

ne
-h

al
f o

f t
he

 §
31

66
4 

be
ne

fit
 p

ay
ab

le
 a

t a
ge

 5
0.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r a

n 
an

nu
ity

 a
t a

ge
 5

0 
eq

ua
l t

o 
1/

10
0 

of
 F

AS
1.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 C
 (E

nh
an

ce
d)

 
 

B
as

ic
 

En
try

-a
ge

 b
as

ed
 ra

te
s 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 fo
r a

n 
an

nu
ity

 a
t a

ge
 5

0 
eq

ua
l t

o 
1/

10
0 

of
 F

AS
3.

 

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
En

try
-a

ge
 b

as
ed

 ra
te

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r o
ne

-h
al

f o
f f

ut
ur

e 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

co
st

s.
 

S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 T

ie
r E

 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l N
or

m
al

 C
os

t r
at

e.
 

O
th

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n:
 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
fro

m
 T

ie
r 1

 to
 T

ie
r 2

 w
er

e 
m

ad
e 

on
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 ir

re
vo

ca
bl

e 
ba

si
s.

 C
re

di
t i

s 
gi

ve
n 

un
de

r 
Ti

er
 2

 fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

ly
. T

he
 C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

m
ax

im
um

 is
 4

%
 o

nl
y 

fo
r t

he
 c

re
di

t u
nd

er
 T

ie
r 2

. T
ra

ns
fe

rre
d 

Ti
er

 2
 m

em
be

rs
 k

ee
p 

th
e 

fiv
e-

ye
ar

 re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 n

on
se

rv
ic

e-
co

nn
ec

te
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
 T

ho
se

 w
ho

 w
er

e 
m

em
be

rs
 

on
 o

r b
ef

or
e 

M
ar

ch
 7

, 1
97

3 
an

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 m
em

be
rs

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 b

en
ef

it 
fo

rm
ul

a 
w

ith
 m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
da

te
s 

on
 o

r b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

w
ill 

be
 e

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 p

ay
in

g 
m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 a
fte

r 3
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

. 

Pl
an

 P
ro

vi
si

on
s 

N
ot

 V
al

ue
d:

 
Ad

di
tio

na
l $

5,
00

0 
lu

m
p 

su
m

 p
os

t-r
et

ire
m

en
t d

ea
th

 b
en

ef
it 

(e
xc

ep
t f

or
 $

2,
00

0 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 2
 m

em
be

rs
 p

ai
d 

ou
t o

f t
he

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s)
 p

ay
ab

le
 to

 a
 m

em
be

r’s
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
. T

hi
s 

be
ne

fit
 is

 p
ai

d 
fro

m
 a

 re
se

rv
e 

th
at

 
is

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

an
d 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 a

t a
ll 

tim
es

 to
 th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 fu
nd

s.
 

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 P

la
n 

Pr
ov

is
io

ns
: 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

no
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
la

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 s
in

ce
 th

e 
la

st
 v

al
ua

tio
n.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

5 
 N

ot
e:

 
Th

e 
su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

n 
pr

ov
is

io
ns

 is
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 o

ut
lin

e 
pr

in
ci

pa
l p

la
n 

be
ne

fit
s a

s i
nt

er
pr

et
ed

 fo
r p

ur
po

se
s o

f t
he

 a
ct

ua
ria

l 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 If
 th

e 
A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 fi
nd

 th
e 

pl
an

 su
m

m
ar

y 
no

t i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
ac

tu
al

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s, 

th
e 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 a

le
rt 

th
e 

ac
tu

ar
y 

so
 th

ey
 c

an
 b

ot
h 

be
 su

re
 th

e 
pr

op
er

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s a

re
 v

al
ue

d.
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 
G

en
er

al
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

3.
69

%
 

5.
30

%
 

1.
67

%
 

2.
51

%
 

5.
36

%
 

7.
81

%
 

16
 

3.
75

%
 

5.
39

%
 

1.
71

%
 

2.
56

%
 

5.
46

%
 

7.
95

%
 

17
 

3.
82

%
 

5.
49

%
 

1.
74

%
 

2.
61

%
 

5.
56

%
 

8.
10

%
 

18
 

3.
88

%
 

5.
59

%
 

1.
78

%
 

2.
67

%
 

5.
66

%
 

8.
26

%
 

19
 

3.
95

%
 

5.
69

%
 

1.
81

%
 

2.
72

%
 

5.
76

%
 

8.
41

%
 

20
 

4.
02

%
 

5.
79

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
77

%
 

5.
87

%
 

8.
56

%
 

21
 

4.
08

%
 

5.
89

%
 

1.
88

%
 

2.
82

%
 

5.
96

%
 

8.
71

%
 

22
 

4.
15

%
 

5.
99

%
 

1.
91

%
 

2.
87

%
 

6.
06

%
 

8.
86

%
 

23
 

4.
22

%
 

6.
10

%
 

1.
95

%
 

2.
93

%
 

6.
17

%
 

9.
03

%
 

24
 

4.
30

%
 

6.
21

%
 

1.
99

%
 

2.
99

%
 

6.
29

%
 

9.
20

%
 

25
 

4.
37

%
 

6.
32

%
 

2.
03

%
 

3.
05

%
 

6.
40

%
 

9.
37

%
 

26
 

4.
44

%
 

6.
43

%
 

2.
07

%
 

3.
10

%
 

6.
51

%
 

9.
53

%
 

27
 

4.
52

%
 

6.
55

%
 

2.
11

%
 

3.
17

%
 

6.
63

%
 

9.
72

%
 

28
 

4.
60

%
 

6.
66

%
 

2.
15

%
 

3.
22

%
 

6.
75

%
 

9.
88

%
 

29
 

4.
68

%
 

6.
78

%
 

2.
19

%
 

3.
29

%
 

6.
87

%
 

10
.0

7%
 

30
 

4.
76

%
 

6.
90

%
 

2.
23

%
 

3.
35

%
 

6.
99

%
 

10
.2

5%
 

31
 

4.
84

%
 

7.
03

%
 

2.
28

%
 

3.
42

%
 

7.
12

%
 

10
.4

5%
 

32
 

4.
92

%
 

7.
15

%
 

2.
32

%
 

3.
48

%
 

7.
24

%
 

10
.6

3%
 

33
 

5.
01

%
 

7.
28

%
 

2.
37

%
 

3.
55

%
 

7.
38

%
 

10
.8

3%
 

34
 

5.
10

%
 

7.
42

%
 

2.
41

%
 

3.
62

%
 

7.
51

%
 

11
.0

4%
 

35
 

5.
19

%
 

7.
55

%
 

2.
46

%
 

3.
69

%
 

7.
65

%
 

11
.2

4%
 

36
 

5.
28

%
 

7.
69

%
 

2.
51

%
 

3.
76

%
 

7.
79

%
 

11
.4

5%
 

37
 

5.
38

%
 

7.
83

%
 

2.
55

%
 

3.
83

%
 

7.
93

%
 

11
.6

6%
 

38
 

5.
47

%
 

7.
97

%
 

2.
61

%
 

3.
91

%
 

8.
08

%
 

11
.8

8%
 

39
 

5.
57

%
 

8.
12

%
 

2.
65

%
 

3.
98

%
 

8.
22

%
 

12
.1

0%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

7 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

5.
67

%
 

8.
27

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
06

%
 

8.
38

%
 

12
.3

3%
 

41
 

5.
78

%
 

8.
43

%
 

2.
76

%
 

4.
14

%
 

8.
54

%
 

12
.5

7%
 

42
 

5.
88

%
 

8.
58

%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
22

%
 

8.
69

%
 

12
.8

0%
 

43
 

5.
98

%
 

8.
73

%
 

2.
87

%
 

4.
30

%
 

8.
85

%
 

13
.0

3%
 

44
 

6.
08

%
 

8.
88

%
 

2.
92

%
 

4.
38

%
 

9.
00

%
 

13
.2

6%
 

45
 

6.
18

%
 

9.
04

%
 

2.
97

%
 

4.
46

%
 

9.
15

%
 

13
.5

0%
 

46
 

6.
29

%
 

9.
20

%
 

3.
03

%
 

4.
55

%
 

9.
32

%
 

13
.7

5%
 

47
 

6.
40

%
 

9.
36

%
 

3.
09

%
 

4.
63

%
 

9.
49

%
 

13
.9

9%
 

48
 

6.
50

%
 

9.
51

%
 

3.
14

%
 

4.
71

%
 

9.
64

%
 

14
.2

2%
 

49
 

6.
60

%
 

9.
66

%
 

3.
19

%
 

4.
79

%
 

9.
79

%
 

14
.4

5%
 

50
 

6.
70

%
 

9.
82

%
 

3.
25

%
 

4.
87

%
 

9.
95

%
 

14
.6

9%
 

51
 

6.
81

%
 

9.
98

%
 

3.
30

%
 

4.
95

%
 

10
.1

1%
 

14
.9

3%
 

52
 

6.
92

%
 

10
.1

4%
 

3.
36

%
 

5.
04

%
 

10
.2

8%
 

15
.1

8%
 

53
 

7.
02

%
 

10
.3

0%
 

3.
41

%
 

5.
12

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

15
.4

2%
 

54
 

7.
13

%
 

10
.4

6%
 

3.
47

%
 

5.
20

%
 

10
.6

0%
 

15
.6

6%
 

55
 

7.
23

%
 

10
.6

1%
 

3.
52

%
 

5.
28

%
 

10
.7

5%
 

15
.8

9%
 

56
 

7.
28

%
 

10
.6

8%
 

3.
55

%
 

5.
32

%
 

10
.8

3%
 

16
.0

0%
 

57
 

7.
26

%
 

10
.6

5%
 

3.
53

%
 

5.
30

%
 

10
.7

9%
 

15
.9

5%
 

58
 

7.
24

%
 

10
.6

2%
 

3.
53

%
 

5.
29

%
 

10
.7

7%
 

15
.9

1%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
7.

03
%

 
10

.3
1%

 
3.

41
%

 
5.

12
%

 
10

.4
4%

 
15

.4
3%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
1.

00
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.0

7%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

.  



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

3.
68

%
 

5.
29

%
 

1.
56

%
 

2.
34

%
 

5.
24

%
 

7.
63

%
 

16
 

3.
74

%
 

5.
38

%
 

1.
59

%
 

2.
38

%
 

5.
33

%
 

7.
76

%
 

17
 

3.
81

%
 

5.
48

%
 

1.
62

%
 

2.
43

%
 

5.
43

%
 

7.
91

%
 

18
 

3.
87

%
 

5.
57

%
 

1.
65

%
 

2.
47

%
 

5.
52

%
 

8.
04

%
 

19
 

3.
94

%
 

5.
67

%
 

1.
68

%
 

2.
52

%
 

5.
62

%
 

8.
19

%
 

20
 

4.
00

%
 

5.
77

%
 

1.
71

%
 

2.
57

%
 

5.
71

%
 

8.
34

%
 

21
 

4.
08

%
 

5.
88

%
 

1.
75

%
 

2.
62

%
 

5.
83

%
 

8.
50

%
 

22
 

4.
14

%
 

5.
98

%
 

1.
78

%
 

2.
67

%
 

5.
92

%
 

8.
65

%
 

23
 

4.
22

%
 

6.
09

%
 

1.
81

%
 

2.
72

%
 

6.
03

%
 

8.
81

%
 

24
 

4.
29

%
 

6.
20

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
78

%
 

6.
14

%
 

8.
98

%
 

25
 

4.
36

%
 

6.
31

%
 

1.
89

%
 

2.
83

%
 

6.
25

%
 

9.
14

%
 

26
 

4.
44

%
 

6.
42

%
 

1.
92

%
 

2.
88

%
 

6.
36

%
 

9.
30

%
 

27
 

4.
51

%
 

6.
53

%
 

1.
96

%
 

2.
94

%
 

6.
47

%
 

9.
47

%
 

28
 

4.
59

%
 

6.
65

%
 

2.
00

%
 

3.
00

%
 

6.
59

%
 

9.
65

%
 

29
 

4.
67

%
 

6.
77

%
 

2.
03

%
 

3.
05

%
 

6.
70

%
 

9.
82

%
 

30
 

4.
75

%
 

6.
89

%
 

2.
07

%
 

3.
11

%
 

6.
82

%
 

10
.0

0%
 

31
 

4.
83

%
 

7.
01

%
 

2.
11

%
 

3.
17

%
 

6.
94

%
 

10
.1

8%
 

32
 

4.
92

%
 

7.
14

%
 

2.
15

%
 

3.
23

%
 

7.
07

%
 

10
.3

7%
 

33
 

5.
00

%
 

7.
27

%
 

2.
20

%
 

3.
30

%
 

7.
20

%
 

10
.5

7%
 

34
 

5.
09

%
 

7.
40

%
 

2.
24

%
 

3.
36

%
 

7.
33

%
 

10
.7

6%
 

35
 

5.
18

%
 

7.
53

%
 

2.
28

%
 

3.
42

%
 

7.
46

%
 

10
.9

5%
 

36
 

5.
27

%
 

7.
67

%
 

2.
33

%
 

3.
49

%
 

7.
60

%
 

11
.1

6%
 

37
 

5.
36

%
 

7.
81

%
 

2.
37

%
 

3.
56

%
 

7.
73

%
 

11
.3

7%
 

38
 

5.
46

%
 

7.
96

%
 

2.
42

%
 

3.
63

%
 

7.
88

%
 

11
.5

9%
 

39
 

5.
56

%
 

8.
11

%
 

2.
47

%
 

3.
70

%
 

8.
03

%
 

11
.8

1%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
13

9 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

5.
66

%
 

8.
25

%
 

2.
51

%
 

3.
77

%
 

8.
17

%
 

12
.0

2%
 

41
 

5.
76

%
 

8.
40

%
 

2.
56

%
 

3.
84

%
 

8.
32

%
 

12
.2

4%
 

42
 

5.
86

%
 

8.
56

%
 

2.
61

%
 

3.
92

%
 

8.
47

%
 

12
.4

8%
 

43
 

5.
96

%
 

8.
71

%
 

2.
66

%
 

3.
99

%
 

8.
62

%
 

12
.7

0%
 

44
 

6.
06

%
 

8.
86

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
07

%
 

8.
77

%
 

12
.9

3%
 

45
 

6.
17

%
 

9.
02

%
 

2.
77

%
 

4.
15

%
 

8.
94

%
 

13
.1

7%
 

46
 

6.
28

%
 

9.
18

%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
22

%
 

9.
09

%
 

13
.4

0%
 

47
 

6.
38

%
 

9.
34

%
 

2.
87

%
 

4.
30

%
 

9.
25

%
 

13
.6

4%
 

48
 

6.
48

%
 

9.
48

%
 

2.
91

%
 

4.
37

%
 

9.
39

%
 

13
.8

5%
 

49
 

6.
59

%
 

9.
65

%
 

2.
97

%
 

4.
45

%
 

9.
56

%
 

14
.1

0%
 

50
 

6.
69

%
 

9.
80

%
 

3.
01

%
 

4.
52

%
 

9.
70

%
 

14
.3

2%
 

51
 

6.
80

%
 

9.
96

%
 

3.
07

%
 

4.
60

%
 

9.
87

%
 

14
.5

6%
 

52
 

6.
90

%
 

10
.1

2%
 

3.
12

%
 

4.
68

%
 

10
.0

2%
 

14
.8

0%
 

53
 

7.
03

%
 

10
.3

1%
 

3.
18

%
 

4.
77

%
 

10
.2

1%
 

15
.0

8%
 

54
 

7.
11

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

3.
22

%
 

4.
83

%
 

10
.3

3%
 

15
.2

6%
 

55
 

7.
20

%
 

10
.5

7%
 

3.
27

%
 

4.
90

%
 

10
.4

7%
 

15
.4

7%
 

56
 

7.
28

%
 

10
.6

8%
 

3.
30

%
 

4.
95

%
 

10
.5

8%
 

15
.6

3%
 

57
 

7.
26

%
 

10
.6

6%
 

3.
29

%
 

4.
94

%
 

10
.5

5%
 

15
.6

0%
 

58
 

7.
25

%
 

10
.6

4%
 

3.
29

%
 

4.
93

%
 

10
.5

4%
 

15
.5

7%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
6.

84
%

 
10

.0
3%

 
3.

09
%

 
4.

63
%

 
9.

93
%

 
14

.6
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

75
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

48
.4

8%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

0 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

5.
48

%
 

2.
64

%
 

8.
12

%
 

16
 

5.
57

%
 

2.
69

%
 

8.
26

%
 

17
 

5.
67

%
 

2.
74

%
 

8.
41

%
 

18
 

5.
77

%
 

2.
79

%
 

8.
56

%
 

19
 

5.
88

%
 

2.
85

%
 

8.
73

%
 

20
 

5.
98

%
 

2.
90

%
 

8.
88

%
 

21
 

6.
09

%
 

2.
96

%
 

9.
05

%
 

22
 

6.
20

%
 

3.
02

%
 

9.
22

%
 

23
 

6.
31

%
 

3.
08

%
 

9.
39

%
 

24
 

6.
42

%
 

3.
14

%
 

9.
56

%
 

25
 

6.
53

%
 

3.
19

%
 

9.
72

%
 

26
 

6.
65

%
 

3.
26

%
 

9.
91

%
 

27
 

6.
77

%
 

3.
32

%
 

10
.0

9%
 

28
 

6.
89

%
 

3.
38

%
 

10
.2

7%
 

29
 

7.
01

%
 

3.
45

%
 

10
.4

6%
 

30
 

7.
14

%
 

3.
52

%
 

10
.6

6%
 

31
 

7.
27

%
 

3.
58

%
 

10
.8

5%
 

32
 

7.
40

%
 

3.
65

%
 

11
.0

5%
 

33
 

7.
53

%
 

3.
72

%
 

11
.2

5%
 

34
 

7.
66

%
 

3.
79

%
 

11
.4

5%
 

35
 

7.
80

%
 

3.
86

%
 

11
.6

6%
 

36
 

7.
95

%
 

3.
94

%
 

11
.8

9%
 

37
 

8.
09

%
 

4.
02

%
 

12
.1

1%
 

38
 

8.
24

%
 

4.
09

%
 

12
.3

3%
 

39
 

8.
40

%
 

4.
18

%
 

12
.5

8%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

1 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

8.
55

%
 

4.
26

%
 

12
.8

1%
 

41
 

8.
71

%
 

4.
34

%
 

13
.0

5%
 

42
 

8.
86

%
 

4.
42

%
 

13
.2

8%
 

43
 

9.
02

%
 

4.
51

%
 

13
.5

3%
 

44
 

9.
18

%
 

4.
59

%
 

13
.7

7%
 

45
 

9.
35

%
 

4.
68

%
 

14
.0

3%
 

46
 

9.
50

%
 

4.
76

%
 

14
.2

6%
 

47
 

9.
66

%
 

4.
84

%
 

14
.5

0%
 

48
 

9.
82

%
 

4.
93

%
 

14
.7

5%
 

49
 

9.
98

%
 

5.
01

%
 

14
.9

9%
 

50
 

10
.1

4%
 

5.
10

%
 

15
.2

4%
 

51
 

10
.3

0%
 

5.
18

%
 

15
.4

8%
 

52
 

10
.4

7%
 

5.
27

%
 

15
.7

4%
 

53
 

10
.6

3%
 

5.
35

%
 

15
.9

8%
 

54
 

10
.7

7%
 

5.
43

%
 

16
.2

0%
 

55
 

10
.8

7%
 

5.
48

%
 

16
.3

5%
 

56
 

10
.9

8%
 

5.
54

%
 

16
.5

2%
 

57
 

10
.9

4%
 

5.
52

%
 

16
.4

6%
 

58
 

10
.7

0%
 

5.
39

%
 

16
.0

9%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

.2
6%

 
5.

16
%

 
15

.4
2%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
4.

75
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.7

0%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

3.
67

%
 

5.
27

%
 

1.
67

%
 

2.
51

%
 

5.
34

%
 

7.
78

%
 

16
 

3.
74

%
 

5.
37

%
 

1.
71

%
 

2.
56

%
 

5.
45

%
 

7.
93

%
 

17
 

3.
80

%
 

5.
46

%
 

1.
74

%
 

2.
61

%
 

5.
54

%
 

8.
07

%
 

18
 

3.
86

%
 

5.
56

%
 

1.
77

%
 

2.
66

%
 

5.
63

%
 

8.
22

%
 

19
 

3.
93

%
 

5.
66

%
 

1.
81

%
 

2.
71

%
 

5.
74

%
 

8.
37

%
 

20
 

4.
00

%
 

5.
76

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
77

%
 

5.
85

%
 

8.
53

%
 

21
 

4.
06

%
 

5.
86

%
 

1.
88

%
 

2.
82

%
 

5.
94

%
 

8.
68

%
 

22
 

4.
14

%
 

5.
97

%
 

1.
91

%
 

2.
87

%
 

6.
05

%
 

8.
84

%
 

23
 

4.
20

%
 

6.
07

%
 

1.
95

%
 

2.
93

%
 

6.
15

%
 

9.
00

%
 

24
 

4.
28

%
 

6.
18

%
 

1.
99

%
 

2.
98

%
 

6.
27

%
 

9.
16

%
 

25
 

4.
35

%
 

6.
29

%
 

2.
03

%
 

3.
04

%
 

6.
38

%
 

9.
33

%
 

26
 

4.
42

%
 

6.
40

%
 

2.
07

%
 

3.
10

%
 

6.
49

%
 

9.
50

%
 

27
 

4.
50

%
 

6.
52

%
 

2.
11

%
 

3.
16

%
 

6.
61

%
 

9.
68

%
 

28
 

4.
58

%
 

6.
63

%
 

2.
15

%
 

3.
22

%
 

6.
73

%
 

9.
85

%
 

29
 

4.
66

%
 

6.
75

%
 

2.
19

%
 

3.
28

%
 

6.
85

%
 

10
.0

3%
 

30
 

4.
74

%
 

6.
87

%
 

2.
23

%
 

3.
35

%
 

6.
97

%
 

10
.2

2%
 

31
 

4.
82

%
 

7.
00

%
 

2.
27

%
 

3.
41

%
 

7.
09

%
 

10
.4

1%
 

32
 

4.
90

%
 

7.
12

%
 

2.
32

%
 

3.
48

%
 

7.
22

%
 

10
.6

0%
 

33
 

4.
99

%
 

7.
25

%
 

2.
36

%
 

3.
54

%
 

7.
35

%
 

10
.7

9%
 

34
 

5.
08

%
 

7.
38

%
 

2.
41

%
 

3.
61

%
 

7.
49

%
 

10
.9

9%
 

35
 

5.
17

%
 

7.
52

%
 

2.
46

%
 

3.
69

%
 

7.
63

%
 

11
.2

1%
 

36
 

5.
26

%
 

7.
65

%
 

2.
50

%
 

3.
75

%
 

7.
76

%
 

11
.4

0%
 

37
 

5.
35

%
 

7.
79

%
 

2.
55

%
 

3.
83

%
 

7.
90

%
 

11
.6

2%
 

38
 

5.
45

%
 

7.
94

%
 

2.
60

%
 

3.
90

%
 

8.
05

%
 

11
.8

4%
 

39
 

5.
55

%
 

8.
09

%
 

2.
65

%
 

3.
98

%
 

8.
20

%
 

12
.0

7%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

3 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

5.
65

%
 

8.
24

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
06

%
 

8.
36

%
 

12
.3

0%
 

41
 

5.
75

%
 

8.
39

%
 

2.
76

%
 

4.
14

%
 

8.
51

%
 

12
.5

3%
 

42
 

5.
85

%
 

8.
54

%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
22

%
 

8.
66

%
 

12
.7

6%
 

43
 

5.
95

%
 

8.
69

%
 

2.
87

%
 

4.
30

%
 

8.
82

%
 

12
.9

9%
 

44
 

6.
05

%
 

8.
84

%
 

2.
91

%
 

4.
37

%
 

8.
96

%
 

13
.2

1%
 

45
 

6.
16

%
 

9.
01

%
 

2.
97

%
 

4.
46

%
 

9.
13

%
 

13
.4

7%
 

46
 

6.
26

%
 

9.
16

%
 

3.
03

%
 

4.
54

%
 

9.
29

%
 

13
.7

0%
 

47
 

6.
36

%
 

9.
31

%
 

3.
08

%
 

4.
62

%
 

9.
44

%
 

13
.9

3%
 

48
 

6.
46

%
 

9.
46

%
 

3.
13

%
 

4.
70

%
 

9.
59

%
 

14
.1

6%
 

49
 

6.
58

%
 

9.
63

%
 

3.
19

%
 

4.
79

%
 

9.
77

%
 

14
.4

2%
 

50
 

6.
67

%
 

9.
77

%
 

3.
24

%
 

4.
86

%
 

9.
91

%
 

14
.6

3%
 

51
 

6.
78

%
 

9.
94

%
 

3.
30

%
 

4.
95

%
 

10
.0

8%
 

14
.8

9%
 

52
 

6.
89

%
 

10
.1

0%
 

3.
35

%
 

5.
03

%
 

10
.2

4%
 

15
.1

3%
 

53
 

7.
01

%
 

10
.2

8%
 

3.
42

%
 

5.
13

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

15
.4

1%
 

54
 

7.
11

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

3.
47

%
 

5.
21

%
 

10
.5

8%
 

15
.6

4%
 

55
 

7.
20

%
 

10
.5

7%
 

3.
52

%
 

5.
28

%
 

10
.7

2%
 

15
.8

5%
 

56
 

7.
24

%
 

10
.6

3%
 

3.
54

%
 

5.
31

%
 

10
.7

8%
 

15
.9

4%
 

57
 

7.
27

%
 

10
.6

7%
 

3.
55

%
 

5.
33

%
 

10
.8

2%
 

16
.0

0%
 

58
 

7.
16

%
 

10
.5

1%
 

3.
50

%
 

5.
25

%
 

10
.6

6%
 

15
.7

6%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
6.

86
%

 
10

.0
5%

 
3.

34
%

 
5.

01
%

 
10

.2
0%

 
15

.0
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.2

7%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

4 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

5.
31

%
 

2.
55

%
 

7.
86

%
 

16
 

5.
40

%
 

2.
60

%
 

8.
00

%
 

17
 

5.
50

%
 

2.
65

%
 

8.
15

%
 

18
 

5.
60

%
 

2.
70

%
 

8.
30

%
 

19
 

5.
70

%
 

2.
76

%
 

8.
46

%
 

20
 

5.
80

%
 

2.
81

%
 

8.
61

%
 

21
 

5.
90

%
 

2.
86

%
 

8.
76

%
 

22
 

6.
01

%
 

2.
92

%
 

8.
93

%
 

23
 

6.
11

%
 

2.
97

%
 

9.
08

%
 

24
 

6.
22

%
 

3.
03

%
 

9.
25

%
 

25
 

6.
33

%
 

3.
09

%
 

9.
42

%
 

26
 

6.
45

%
 

3.
15

%
 

9.
60

%
 

27
 

6.
56

%
 

3.
21

%
 

9.
77

%
 

28
 

6.
68

%
 

3.
27

%
 

9.
95

%
 

29
 

6.
80

%
 

3.
34

%
 

10
.1

4%
 

30
 

6.
92

%
 

3.
40

%
 

10
.3

2%
 

31
 

7.
04

%
 

3.
46

%
 

10
.5

0%
 

32
 

7.
17

%
 

3.
53

%
 

10
.7

0%
 

33
 

7.
30

%
 

3.
60

%
 

10
.9

0%
 

34
 

7.
43

%
 

3.
67

%
 

11
.1

0%
 

35
 

7.
57

%
 

3.
74

%
 

11
.3

1%
 

36
 

7.
70

%
 

3.
81

%
 

11
.5

1%
 

37
 

7.
85

%
 

3.
89

%
 

11
.7

4%
 

38
 

7.
99

%
 

3.
96

%
 

11
.9

5%
 

39
 

8.
14

%
 

4.
04

%
 

12
.1

8%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

5 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

8.
29

%
 

4.
12

%
 

12
.4

1%
 

41
 

8.
45

%
 

4.
20

%
 

12
.6

5%
 

42
 

8.
60

%
 

4.
28

%
 

12
.8

8%
 

43
 

8.
75

%
 

4.
36

%
 

13
.1

1%
 

44
 

8.
90

%
 

4.
44

%
 

13
.3

4%
 

45
 

9.
06

%
 

4.
53

%
 

13
.5

9%
 

46
 

9.
22

%
 

4.
61

%
 

13
.8

3%
 

47
 

9.
38

%
 

4.
69

%
 

14
.0

7%
 

48
 

9.
53

%
 

4.
77

%
 

14
.3

0%
 

49
 

9.
69

%
 

4.
86

%
 

14
.5

5%
 

50
 

9.
85

%
 

4.
94

%
 

14
.7

9%
 

51
 

10
.0

1%
 

5.
03

%
 

15
.0

4%
 

52
 

10
.1

6%
 

5.
11

%
 

15
.2

7%
 

53
 

10
.3

3%
 

5.
20

%
 

15
.5

3%
 

54
 

10
.4

9%
 

5.
28

%
 

15
.7

7%
 

55
 

10
.6

0%
 

5.
34

%
 

15
.9

4%
 

56
 

10
.6

7%
 

5.
37

%
 

16
.0

4%
 

57
 

10
.7

3%
 

5.
41

%
 

16
.1

4%
 

58
 

10
.6

1%
 

5.
34

%
 

15
.9

5%
 

59
 &

 O
ve

r 
10

.2
9%

 
5.

17
%

 
15

.4
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
1.

25
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

52
.6

9%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

15
 

4.
18

%
 

6.
03

%
 

1.
62

%
 

2.
43

%
 

5.
80

%
 

8.
46

%
 

16
 

4.
25

%
 

6.
14

%
 

1.
65

%
 

2.
48

%
 

5.
90

%
 

8.
62

%
 

17
 

4.
32

%
 

6.
24

%
 

1.
69

%
 

2.
53

%
 

6.
01

%
 

8.
77

%
 

18
 

4.
40

%
 

6.
36

%
 

1.
72

%
 

2.
58

%
 

6.
12

%
 

8.
94

%
 

19
 

4.
47

%
 

6.
47

%
 

1.
75

%
 

2.
63

%
 

6.
22

%
 

9.
10

%
 

20
 

4.
55

%
 

6.
59

%
 

1.
79

%
 

2.
68

%
 

6.
34

%
 

9.
27

%
 

21
 

4.
62

%
 

6.
70

%
 

1.
82

%
 

2.
73

%
 

6.
44

%
 

9.
43

%
 

22
 

4.
70

%
 

6.
82

%
 

1.
85

%
 

2.
78

%
 

6.
55

%
 

9.
60

%
 

23
 

4.
78

%
 

6.
94

%
 

1.
89

%
 

2.
83

%
 

6.
67

%
 

9.
77

%
 

24
 

4.
87

%
 

7.
07

%
 

1.
93

%
 

2.
89

%
 

6.
80

%
 

9.
96

%
 

25
 

4.
96

%
 

7.
20

%
 

1.
97

%
 

2.
95

%
 

6.
93

%
 

10
.1

5%
 

26
 

5.
04

%
 

7.
33

%
 

2.
00

%
 

3.
00

%
 

7.
04

%
 

10
.3

3%
 

27
 

5.
13

%
 

7.
46

%
 

2.
04

%
 

3.
06

%
 

7.
17

%
 

10
.5

2%
 

28
 

5.
22

%
 

7.
59

%
 

2.
08

%
 

3.
12

%
 

7.
30

%
 

10
.7

1%
 

29
 

5.
31

%
 

7.
73

%
 

2.
12

%
 

3.
18

%
 

7.
43

%
 

10
.9

1%
 

30
 

5.
40

%
 

7.
87

%
 

2.
16

%
 

3.
24

%
 

7.
56

%
 

11
.1

1%
 

31
 

5.
50

%
 

8.
01

%
 

2.
20

%
 

3.
30

%
 

7.
70

%
 

11
.3

1%
 

32
 

5.
60

%
 

8.
17

%
 

2.
25

%
 

3.
37

%
 

7.
85

%
 

11
.5

4%
 

33
 

5.
70

%
 

8.
31

%
 

2.
29

%
 

3.
43

%
 

7.
99

%
 

11
.7

4%
 

34
 

5.
80

%
 

8.
47

%
 

2.
33

%
 

3.
50

%
 

8.
13

%
 

11
.9

7%
 

35
 

5.
91

%
 

8.
63

%
 

2.
38

%
 

3.
57

%
 

8.
29

%
 

12
.2

0%
 

36
 

6.
02

%
 

8.
79

%
 

2.
43

%
 

3.
64

%
 

8.
45

%
 

12
.4

3%
 

37
 

6.
12

%
 

8.
95

%
 

2.
47

%
 

3.
71

%
 

8.
59

%
 

12
.6

6%
 

38
 

6.
23

%
 

9.
11

%
 

2.
52

%
 

3.
78

%
 

8.
75

%
 

12
.8

9%
 

39
 

6.
34

%
 

9.
27

%
 

2.
57

%
 

3.
85

%
 

8.
91

%
 

13
.1

2%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

7 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

  
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 b
ef

or
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
3 

(c
on

tin
ue

d)
 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 

B
as

ic
 

C
O

LA
 

To
ta

l 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

Fi
rs

t $
35

0 
O

ve
r $

35
0 

40
 

6.
45

%
 

9.
44

%
 

2.
62

%
 

3.
93

%
 

9.
07

%
 

13
.3

7%
 

41
 

6.
56

%
 

9.
60

%
 

2.
67

%
 

4.
00

%
 

9.
23

%
 

13
.6

0%
 

42
 

6.
66

%
 

9.
76

%
 

2.
71

%
 

4.
07

%
 

9.
37

%
 

13
.8

3%
 

43
 

6.
78

%
 

9.
93

%
 

2.
76

%
 

4.
14

%
 

9.
54

%
 

14
.0

7%
 

44
 

6.
88

%
 

10
.0

9%
 

2.
81

%
 

4.
21

%
 

9.
69

%
 

14
.3

0%
 

45
 

6.
99

%
 

10
.2

5%
 

2.
85

%
 

4.
28

%
 

9.
84

%
 

14
.5

3%
 

46
 

7.
11

%
 

10
.4

3%
 

2.
91

%
 

4.
36

%
 

10
.0

2%
 

14
.7

9%
 

47
 

7.
22

%
 

10
.5

9%
 

2.
95

%
 

4.
43

%
 

10
.1

7%
 

15
.0

2%
 

48
 

7.
34

%
 

10
.7

8%
 

3.
01

%
 

4.
51

%
 

10
.3

5%
 

15
.2

9%
 

49
 

7.
44

%
 

10
.9

3%
 

3.
05

%
 

4.
58

%
 

10
.4

9%
 

15
.5

1%
 

50
 

7.
54

%
 

11
.0

7%
 

3.
09

%
 

4.
64

%
 

10
.6

3%
 

15
.7

1%
 

51
 

7.
61

%
 

11
.1

8%
 

3.
13

%
 

4.
69

%
 

10
.7

4%
 

15
.8

7%
 

52
 

7.
58

%
 

11
.1

3%
 

3.
11

%
 

4.
67

%
 

10
.6

9%
 

15
.8

0%
 

53
 

7.
52

%
 

11
.0

5%
 

3.
09

%
 

4.
63

%
 

10
.6

1%
 

15
.6

8%
 

54
 &

 O
ve

r 
7.

22
%

 
10

.5
9%

 
2.

95
%

 
4.

43
%

 
10

.1
7%

 
15

.0
2%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

25
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

43
.7

7%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

16
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

17
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

18
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

19
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

20
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

21
 

9.
46

%
 

6.
27

%
 

15
.7

3%
 

22
 

9.
60

%
 

6.
37

%
 

15
.9

7%
 

23
 

9.
74

%
 

6.
47

%
 

16
.2

1%
 

24
 

9.
89

%
 

6.
57

%
 

16
.4

6%
 

25
 

10
.0

4%
 

6.
68

%
 

16
.7

2%
 

26
 

10
.1

9%
 

6.
78

%
 

16
.9

7%
 

27
 

10
.3

5%
 

6.
89

%
 

17
.2

4%
 

28
 

10
.5

0%
 

7.
00

%
 

17
.5

0%
 

29
 

10
.6

6%
 

7.
11

%
 

17
.7

7%
 

30
 

10
.8

3%
 

7.
23

%
 

18
.0

6%
 

31
 

11
.0

0%
 

7.
34

%
 

18
.3

4%
 

32
 

11
.1

7%
 

7.
46

%
 

18
.6

3%
 

33
 

11
.3

5%
 

7.
59

%
 

18
.9

4%
 

34
 

11
.5

3%
 

7.
71

%
 

19
.2

4%
 

35
 

11
.7

2%
 

7.
85

%
 

19
.5

7%
 

36
 

11
.9

1%
 

7.
98

%
 

19
.8

9%
 

37
 

12
.1

0%
 

8.
11

%
 

20
.2

1%
 

38
 

12
.2

9%
 

8.
24

%
 

20
.5

3%
 

39
 

12
.5

0%
 

8.
39

%
 

20
.8

9%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
14

9 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
7 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.7

2%
 

8.
54

%
 

21
.2

6%
 

41
 

12
.9

3%
 

8.
69

%
 

21
.6

2%
 

42
 

13
.1

6%
 

8.
85

%
 

22
.0

1%
 

43
 

13
.3

9%
 

9.
01

%
 

22
.4

0%
 

44
 

13
.6

5%
 

9.
19

%
 

22
.8

4%
 

45
 

13
.8

7%
 

9.
35

%
 

23
.2

2%
 

46
 

13
.8

9%
 

9.
36

%
 

23
.2

5%
 

47
 

13
.9

2%
 

9.
38

%
 

23
.3

0%
 

48
 

13
.7

3%
 

9.
25

%
 

22
.9

8%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.2
1%

 
8.

89
%

 
22

.1
0%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

75
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

69
.7

5%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

0 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

16
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

17
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

18
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

19
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

20
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

21
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
41

%
 

15
.8

5%
 

22
 

9.
58

%
 

6.
51

%
 

16
.0

9%
 

23
 

9.
72

%
 

6.
61

%
 

16
.3

3%
 

24
 

9.
87

%
 

6.
72

%
 

16
.5

9%
 

25
 

10
.0

2%
 

6.
83

%
 

16
.8

5%
 

26
 

10
.1

7%
 

6.
94

%
 

17
.1

1%
 

27
 

10
.3

2%
 

7.
04

%
 

17
.3

6%
 

28
 

10
.4

8%
 

7.
16

%
 

17
.6

4%
 

29
 

10
.6

4%
 

7.
27

%
 

17
.9

1%
 

30
 

10
.8

0%
 

7.
39

%
 

18
.1

9%
 

31
 

10
.9

7%
 

7.
51

%
 

18
.4

8%
 

32
 

11
.1

5%
 

7.
64

%
 

18
.7

9%
 

33
 

11
.3

2%
 

7.
76

%
 

19
.0

8%
 

34
 

11
.5

1%
 

7.
89

%
 

19
.4

0%
 

35
 

11
.7

0%
 

8.
03

%
 

19
.7

3%
 

36
 

11
.8

8%
 

8.
16

%
 

20
.0

4%
 

37
 

12
.0

8%
 

8.
30

%
 

20
.3

8%
 

38
 

12
.2

7%
 

8.
44

%
 

20
.7

1%
 

39
 

12
.4

7%
 

8.
58

%
 

21
.0

5%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

1 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.6

9%
 

8.
74

%
 

21
.4

3%
 

41
 

12
.9

1%
 

8.
90

%
 

21
.8

1%
 

42
 

13
.1

4%
 

9.
06

%
 

22
.2

0%
 

43
 

13
.3

7%
 

9.
22

%
 

22
.5

9%
 

44
 

13
.6

2%
 

9.
40

%
 

23
.0

2%
 

45
 

13
.8

3%
 

9.
55

%
 

23
.3

8%
 

46
 

13
.9

0%
 

9.
60

%
 

23
.5

0%
 

47
 

13
.8

4%
 

9.
56

%
 

23
.4

0%
 

48
 

13
.7

5%
 

9.
50

%
 

23
.2

5%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.2
4%

 
9.

13
%

 
22

.3
7%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

71
.5

1%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

16
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

17
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

18
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

19
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

20
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

21
 

9.
04

%
 

3.
86

%
 

12
.9

0%
 

22
 

9.
17

%
 

3.
92

%
 

13
.0

9%
 

23
 

9.
31

%
 

3.
99

%
 

13
.3

0%
 

24
 

9.
45

%
 

4.
05

%
 

13
.5

0%
 

25
 

9.
59

%
 

4.
11

%
 

13
.7

0%
 

26
 

9.
73

%
 

4.
18

%
 

13
.9

1%
 

27
 

9.
88

%
 

4.
24

%
 

14
.1

2%
 

28
 

10
.0

3%
 

4.
31

%
 

14
.3

4%
 

29
 

10
.1

8%
 

4.
38

%
 

14
.5

6%
 

30
 

10
.3

4%
 

4.
45

%
 

14
.7

9%
 

31
 

10
.5

0%
 

4.
52

%
 

15
.0

2%
 

32
 

10
.6

7%
 

4.
60

%
 

15
.2

7%
 

33
 

10
.8

4%
 

4.
68

%
 

15
.5

2%
 

34
 

11
.0

1%
 

4.
75

%
 

15
.7

6%
 

35
 

11
.1

8%
 

4.
83

%
 

16
.0

1%
 

36
 

11
.3

6%
 

4.
91

%
 

16
.2

7%
 

37
 

11
.5

4%
 

4.
99

%
 

16
.5

3%
 

38
 

11
.7

1%
 

5.
07

%
 

16
.7

8%
 

39
 

11
.9

1%
 

5.
16

%
 

17
.0

7%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

3 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.1

0%
 

5.
24

%
 

17
.3

4%
 

41
 

12
.2

9%
 

5.
33

%
 

17
.6

2%
 

42
 

12
.4

9%
 

5.
42

%
 

17
.9

1%
 

43
 

12
.6

6%
 

5.
50

%
 

18
.1

6%
 

44
 

12
.7

6%
 

5.
54

%
 

18
.3

0%
 

45
 

12
.7

7%
 

5.
55

%
 

18
.3

2%
 

46
 

12
.6

5%
 

5.
49

%
 

18
.1

4%
 

47
 

12
.3

9%
 

5.
37

%
 

17
.7

6%
 

48
 

12
.7

2%
 

5.
52

%
 

18
.2

4%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.3
0%

 
5.

79
%

 
19

.0
9%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

00
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

45
.0

9%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

4 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

16
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

17
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

18
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

19
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

20
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

21
 

9.
44

%
 

6.
15

%
 

15
.5

9%
 

22
 

9.
58

%
 

6.
24

%
 

15
.8

2%
 

23
 

9.
72

%
 

6.
34

%
 

16
.0

6%
 

24
 

9.
87

%
 

6.
44

%
 

16
.3

1%
 

25
 

10
.0

2%
 

6.
54

%
 

16
.5

6%
 

26
 

10
.1

7%
 

6.
65

%
 

16
.8

2%
 

27
 

10
.3

2%
 

6.
75

%
 

17
.0

7%
 

28
 

10
.4

8%
 

6.
86

%
 

17
.3

4%
 

29
 

10
.6

4%
 

6.
97

%
 

17
.6

1%
 

30
 

10
.8

0%
 

7.
08

%
 

17
.8

8%
 

31
 

10
.9

7%
 

7.
19

%
 

18
.1

6%
 

32
 

11
.1

5%
 

7.
32

%
 

18
.4

7%
 

33
 

11
.3

2%
 

7.
43

%
 

18
.7

5%
 

34
 

11
.5

1%
 

7.
56

%
 

19
.0

7%
 

35
 

11
.7

0%
 

7.
69

%
 

19
.3

9%
 

36
 

11
.8

8%
 

7.
82

%
 

19
.7

0%
 

37
 

12
.0

8%
 

7.
96

%
 

20
.0

4%
 

38
 

12
.2

7%
 

8.
09

%
 

20
.3

6%
 

39
 

12
.4

7%
 

8.
22

%
 

20
.6

9%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

5 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.6

9%
 

8.
37

%
 

21
.0

6%
 

41
 

12
.9

1%
 

8.
52

%
 

21
.4

3%
 

42
 

13
.1

4%
 

8.
68

%
 

21
.8

2%
 

43
 

13
.3

7%
 

8.
84

%
 

22
.2

1%
 

44
 

13
.6

2%
 

9.
01

%
 

22
.6

3%
 

45
 

13
.8

3%
 

9.
15

%
 

22
.9

8%
 

46
 

13
.9

0%
 

9.
20

%
 

23
.1

0%
 

47
 

13
.8

4%
 

9.
16

%
 

23
.0

0%
 

48
 

13
.7

5%
 

9.
10

%
 

22
.8

5%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.2
4%

 
8.

75
%

 
21

.9
9%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
0.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

68
.5

2%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

16
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

17
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

18
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

19
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

20
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

21
 

9.
61

%
 

6.
55

%
 

16
.1

6%
 

22
 

9.
76

%
 

6.
66

%
 

16
.4

2%
 

23
 

9.
90

%
 

6.
76

%
 

16
.6

6%
 

24
 

10
.0

5%
 

6.
86

%
 

16
.9

1%
 

25
 

10
.2

0%
 

6.
97

%
 

17
.1

7%
 

26
 

10
.3

6%
 

7.
09

%
 

17
.4

5%
 

27
 

10
.5

1%
 

7.
19

%
 

17
.7

0%
 

28
 

10
.6

7%
 

7.
31

%
 

17
.9

8%
 

29
 

10
.8

3%
 

7.
42

%
 

18
.2

5%
 

30
 

11
.0

0%
 

7.
54

%
 

18
.5

4%
 

31
 

11
.1

7%
 

7.
67

%
 

18
.8

4%
 

32
 

11
.3

5%
 

7.
80

%
 

19
.1

5%
 

33
 

11
.5

3%
 

7.
92

%
 

19
.4

5%
 

34
 

11
.7

2%
 

8.
06

%
 

19
.7

8%
 

35
 

11
.9

0%
 

8.
19

%
 

20
.0

9%
 

36
 

12
.0

9%
 

8.
33

%
 

20
.4

2%
 

37
 

12
.2

9%
 

8.
47

%
 

20
.7

6%
 

38
 

12
.4

9%
 

8.
61

%
 

21
.1

0%
 

39
 

12
.6

9%
 

8.
76

%
 

21
.4

5%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

7 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.9

0%
 

8.
91

%
 

21
.8

1%
 

41
 

13
.1

2%
 

9.
06

%
 

22
.1

8%
 

42
 

13
.3

5%
 

9.
23

%
 

22
.5

8%
 

43
 

13
.5

9%
 

9.
40

%
 

22
.9

9%
 

44
 

13
.8

2%
 

9.
57

%
 

23
.3

9%
 

45
 

14
.0

5%
 

9.
73

%
 

23
.7

8%
 

46
 

14
.0

8%
 

9.
75

%
 

23
.8

3%
 

47
 

14
.0

2%
 

9.
71

%
 

23
.7

3%
 

48
 

13
.7

6%
 

9.
52

%
 

23
.2

8%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
12

.9
9%

 
8.

97
%

 
21

.9
6%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
2.

50
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

71
.6

5%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

8 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

15
 

9.
57

%
 

4.
61

%
 

14
.1

8%
 

16
 

9.
57

%
 

4.
61

%
 

14
.1

8%
 

17
 

9.
57

%
 

4.
61

%
 

14
.1

8%
 

18
 

9.
57

%
 

4.
61

%
 

14
.1

8%
 

19
 

9.
57

%
 

4.
61

%
 

14
.1

8%
 

20
 

9.
57

%
 

4.
61

%
 

14
.1

8%
 

21
 

9.
57

%
 

4.
61

%
 

14
.1

8%
 

22
 

9.
71

%
 

4.
68

%
 

14
.3

9%
 

23
 

9.
86

%
 

4.
76

%
 

14
.6

2%
 

24
 

10
.0

0%
 

4.
83

%
 

14
.8

3%
 

25
 

10
.1

6%
 

4.
91

%
 

15
.0

7%
 

26
 

10
.3

1%
 

4.
99

%
 

15
.3

0%
 

27
 

10
.4

6%
 

5.
06

%
 

15
.5

2%
 

28
 

10
.6

2%
 

5.
14

%
 

15
.7

6%
 

29
 

10
.7

8%
 

5.
22

%
 

16
.0

0%
 

30
 

10
.9

5%
 

5.
31

%
 

16
.2

6%
 

31
 

11
.1

2%
 

5.
40

%
 

16
.5

2%
 

32
 

11
.3

0%
 

5.
49

%
 

16
.7

9%
 

33
 

11
.4

7%
 

5.
57

%
 

17
.0

4%
 

34
 

11
.6

6%
 

5.
67

%
 

17
.3

3%
 

35
 

11
.8

6%
 

5.
77

%
 

17
.6

3%
 

36
 

12
.0

4%
 

5.
86

%
 

17
.9

0%
 

37
 

12
.2

3%
 

5.
96

%
 

18
.1

9%
 

38
 

12
.4

3%
 

6.
06

%
 

18
.4

9%
 

39
 

12
.6

4%
 

6.
17

%
 

18
.8

1%
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
15

9 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 b

ef
or

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

3 
(c

on
tin

ue
d)

 

En
tr

y 
Ag

e 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

40
 

12
.8

6%
 

6.
28

%
 

19
.1

4%
 

41
 

13
.0

7%
 

6.
38

%
 

19
.4

5%
 

42
 

13
.3

1%
 

6.
51

%
 

19
.8

2%
 

43
 

13
.5

4%
 

6.
62

%
 

20
.1

6%
 

44
 

13
.7

6%
 

6.
73

%
 

20
.4

9%
 

45
 

13
.9

7%
 

6.
84

%
 

20
.8

1%
 

46
 

14
.0

3%
 

6.
87

%
 

20
.9

0%
 

47
 

13
.9

5%
 

6.
83

%
 

20
.7

8%
 

48
 

13
.7

9%
 

6.
75

%
 

20
.5

4%
 

49
 &

 O
ve

r 
13

.0
5%

 
6.

37
%

 
19

.4
2%

 

In
te

re
st

: 
7.

00
%

 p
er

 a
nn

um
 

M
or

ta
lit

y:
 

Se
e 

S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I 

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
: 

In
fla

tio
n 

(2
.7

5%
) +

 A
cr

os
s-

th
e-

Bo
ar

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 (0

.5
0%

) +
 M

er
it 

(S
ee

 S
ec

tio
n 

4,
 E

xh
ib

it 
I) 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e:
 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll 
ad

de
d 

to
 B

as
ic

 ra
te

s 
Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

: 
2.

00
%

 
C

O
LA

 L
oa

di
ng

 F
ac

to
r: 

50
.6

7%
, a

pp
lie

d 
to

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s 

pr
io

r t
o 

ad
ju

st
m

en
t f

or
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

0 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

G
en

er
al

 M
em

be
rs

’ C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
R

at
es

 (a
s 

a 
%

 o
f M

on
th

ly
 P

ay
ro

ll)
 

M
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 M
em

be
rs

hi
p 

D
at

es
 O

n 
or

 A
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
3 

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
68

%
 

1.
99

%
 

10
.6

7%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

1 
– 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
80

%
 

2.
96

%
 

11
.7

6%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
16

%
 

1.
84

%
 

10
.0

0%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

2 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 5

 (3
%

/4
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
39

%
 

2.
76

%
 

11
.1

5%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
23

%
 

2.
83

%
 

11
.0

6%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

8.
96

%
 

3.
02

%
 

11
.9

8%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

10
.0

7%
 

2.
27

%
 

12
.3

4%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

11
.3

8%
 

3.
79

%
 

15
.1

7%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

9.
39

%
 

3.
21

%
 

12
.6

0%
 

Th
e 

PE
PR

A
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s a
re

 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e.

 T
he

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll.
 

N
ot

e:
 

It 
is

 o
ur

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
en

si
on

 b
en

ef
its

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
PE

PR
A

 fo
rm

ul
as

, t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
th

at
 c

an
 

be
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 2

01
9 

is
 e

qu
al

 to
 $

12
4,

18
0;

 fo
r a

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
, t

he
 m

ax
im

um
 a

m
ou

nt
 is

 
$1

49
,0

16
. (

§7
52

2.
10

) T
he

se
 a

m
ou

nt
s s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dj

us
te

d 
fo

r c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

fo
r A

ll 
U

rb
an

 C
on

su
m

er
s a

fte
r 

20
19

. (
§7

52
2.

10
(d

))
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

1 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 II
I –

 M
EM

B
ER

 C
O

N
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 R

AT
ES

 (C
O

N
TI

N
U

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 M

em
be

rs
’ C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
at

es
 (a

s 
a 

%
 o

f M
on

th
ly

 P
ay

ro
ll)

 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

at
es

 O
n 

or
 A

fte
r J

an
ua

ry
 1

, 2
01

3 

 
B

as
ic

 
C

O
LA

 
To

ta
l 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
14

.3
1%

 
5.

73
%

 
20

.0
4%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
8 

- P
EP

R
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

13
.0

5%
 

5.
35

%
 

18
.4

0%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
- P

EP
R

A 
Ti

er
 E

 
12

.0
9%

 
3.

32
%

 
15

.4
1%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

- P
EP

R
A 

Ti
er

 E
 

13
.1

7%
 

3.
57

%
 

16
.7

4%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 - 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
12

.7
0%

 
5.

23
%

 
17

.9
3%

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
11

 - 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

11
.4

4%
 

4.
71

%
 

16
.1

5%
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 - 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
11

.6
5%

 
4.

82
%

 
16

.4
7%

 

Th
e 

PE
PR

A
 m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

ra
te

s a
re

 5
0%

 o
f t

he
 N

or
m

al
 C

os
t r

at
e.

 T
he

 B
as

ic
 ra

te
s s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
e 

an
 a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 0

.4
7%

 o
f p

ay
ro

ll.
 

N
ot

e:
 

It 
is

 o
ur

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 th

at
 in

 th
e 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
of

 p
en

si
on

 b
en

ef
its

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
PE

PR
A

 fo
rm

ul
as

, t
he

 m
ax

im
um

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
th

at
 c

an
 

be
 ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 fo
r 2

01
9 

is
 e

qu
al

 to
 $

12
4,

18
0;

 fo
r a

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 e
nr

ol
le

d 
in

 S
oc

ia
l S

ec
ur

ity
, t

he
 m

ax
im

um
 a

m
ou

nt
 is

 
$1

49
,0

16
. (

§7
52

2.
10

) T
he

se
 a

m
ou

nt
s s

ho
ul

d 
be

 a
dj

us
te

d 
fo

r c
ha

ng
es

 to
 th

e 
C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

fo
r A

ll 
U

rb
an

 C
on

su
m

er
s a

fte
r 

20
19

. (
§7

52
2.

10
(d

))
 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

2 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 IV
 –

 R
EF

U
N

D
AB

IL
IT

Y 
FA

C
TO

R
S 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 

Le
ga

cy
 T

ie
rs

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

s 
Le

ga
cy

 T
ie

rs
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
s 

G
en

er
al

 
 

 
 

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
1 

– 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 1

) 
0.

95
77

 
 

0.
96

02
 

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

95
74

 
 

0.
96

05
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 (3

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
95

82
 

 
0.

96
13

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
2 

– 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

Sm
al

l D
is

tri
ct

s 
(T

ie
r 3

) 
0.

95
40

 
 

0.
95

76
 

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 5

 (2
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

95
80

 
 

0.
96

11
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 (3

%
/4

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
96

04
 

 
0.

96
31

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
3 

– 
 

C
en

tra
l C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tri

ct
 

0.
95

60
 

0.
96

61
 

0.
95

88
 

0.
96

70
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
– 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

0.
95

36
 

0.
96

43
 

0.
95

71
 

0.
96

54
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
– 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

0.
95

63
 

 
0.

95
91

 
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
95

68
 

 
0.

96
30

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

95
85

 
 

0.
96

06
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
– 

 
Sm

al
l D

is
tri

ct
s 

(N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d 
Ti

er
 1

 a
nd

 4
) 

0.
95

12
 

0.
96

47
 

0.
95

56
 

0.
96

43
 

Sa
fe

ty
 

 
 

 
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

7 
– 

 
C

ou
nt

y 
(T

ie
r A

 a
nd

 D
) 

0.
95

99
 

0.
97

16
 

0.
96

57
 

0.
97

58
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
– 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 a

nd
 E

as
t F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
s 

 
0.

96
06

 
 

0.
96

66
 

 
 

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 (3
%

 C
O

LA
) 

 
0.

97
32

 
 

0.
97

70
 

 
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 E
 (2

%
 C

O
LA

) 
 

0.
97

19
 

 
0.

97
48

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
9 

– 
 

C
ou

nt
y 

(T
ie

r C
 a

nd
 E

) 
0.

96
13

 
0.

97
03

 
0.

96
70

 
0.

97
52

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
10

 –
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

ire
 D

is
tri

ct
 

0.
96

39
 

0.
97

33
 

0.
96

88
 

0.
97

87
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 –

 
Sa

n 
R

am
on

 V
al

le
y 

Fi
re

 D
is

tri
ct

 
0.

96
18

 
0.

97
35

 
0.

96
65

 
0.

97
94

 
C

os
t G

ro
up

 #
12

 –
 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
0.

96
67

 
0.

97
69

 
0.

97
18

 
0.

98
03

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

3 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
C

O
ST

 G
R

O
U

PS
 A

N
D

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

S 
G

en
er

al
 

C
os

t 
G

ro
up

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 N

am
e 

B
en

ef
it 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l  
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
1 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

   
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
Lo

ca
l A

ge
nc

y 
Fo

rm
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

  
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 M

os
qu

ito
 a

nd
 V

ec
to

r C
on

tro
l D

is
tri

ct
  

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
Be

th
el

 Is
la

nd
 M

un
ic

ip
al

 D
is

tri
ct

 (N
on

-In
te

gr
at

ed
) 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
Fi

rs
t 5

-C
hi

ld
re

n 
& 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

Su
pe

rio
r C

ou
rt 

 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
Ea

st
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

ire
 D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

Ye
s 

 
R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
2 

C
ou

nt
y 

G
en

er
al

 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

Ye
s 

 
In

-H
om

e 
Su

pp
or

tiv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

 
 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 M
os

qu
ito

 a
nd

 V
ec

to
r C

on
tro

l D
is

tri
ct

 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

 
 

Su
pe

rio
r C

ou
rt 

 
Ti

er
 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 5
 

Ye
s 

 
 

 
 

3 
C

en
tra

l C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 D
is

tri
ct

 (N
on

-In
te

gr
at

ed
) 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
 

 
 

4 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

Ti
er

 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
 

 
 

5 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 (N

on
-In

te
gr

at
ed

) 
Ti

er
 1

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 4
 

 
 

 
 

 
6 

R
od

eo
 S

an
ita

ry
 D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 1
 N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 
By

ro
n 

Br
en

tw
oo

d 
C

em
et

er
y 

Ti
er

 1
 N

on
-E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 4

 
 

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

4 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
 –

 S
UM

M
AR

Y 
O

F 
C

O
ST

 G
R

O
U

PS
 A

N
D

 E
M

PL
O

YE
R

S 
(C

O
N

TI
NU

ED
) 

Sa
fe

ty
 

C
os

t 
G

ro
up

 
Em

pl
oy

er
 N

am
e 

B
en

ef
it 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
Sp

ec
ia

l  
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t 
7 

C
ou

nt
y 

Sa
fe

ty
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

8 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

/E
 

Ye
s 

 
Ea

st
 C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 F

ire
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

9 
C

ou
nt

y 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Ti

er
 C

 E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 E
 

 
 

 
(M

em
be

rs
 h

ire
d 

on
 o

r a
fte

r J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

00
7)

 
 

 
 

 
 

10
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 F

ire
 D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

11
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 V

al
le

y 
Fi

re
 D

is
tri

ct
 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d/

PE
PR

A 
Ti

er
 D

 
 

 
 

 
 

12
 

R
od

eo
-H

er
cu

le
s 

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tri
ct

 
Ti

er
 A

 N
on

-E
nh

an
ce

d/
PE

PR
A 

Ti
er

 D
 

 

N
ot

e:
 A

 sp
ec

ia
l a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
s m

ad
e 

fo
r e

m
pl

oy
er

s t
ha

t h
av

e 
a 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 b

al
an

ce
 o

f a
 P

en
si

on
 O

bl
ig

at
io

n 
Bo

nd
 o

r a
ny

 o
th

er
 sp

ec
ia

l 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

s d
es

cr
ib

ed
 o

n 
pa

ge
 1

19
. 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

5 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
I –

 A
LL

O
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

 V
AL

U
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
 A

S 
O

F 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

 
#1

 a
nd

 #
2 

 
G

en
er

al
 C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Sm

al
l 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

3 
C

en
tr

al
 C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 S
an

ita
ry

 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

4 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

Au
th

or
ity

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

5 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 
C

ou
nt

y 
Fi

re
 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

6 
Sm

al
l D

is
tr

ic
ts

 
(G

en
er

al
 N

on
-

En
ha

nc
ed

) 
Te

rm
in

at
ed

 
Em

pl
oy

er
s 

1 
Al

lo
ca

te
d 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
as

 o
f 

Be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 Y
ea

r 
$4

,5
83

,6
79

,0
28

  
$3

17
,1

88
,7

61
  

$5
3,

42
4,

56
8 

 
$4

8,
48

4,
69

0 
 

$6
,7

80
,5

93
  

$5
6,

54
2,

06
8 

 

2 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
:(1

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a.
 T

ot
al

 M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

$6
9,

69
8,

40
2 

 
$3

,8
76

,9
89

  
$6

10
,1

54
  

$6
10

,9
15

  
$1

18
,7

51
  

$0
  

 
b.

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Ex
cl

ud
es

 
PO

B 
an

d 
ot

he
r S

pe
ci

al
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

17
7,

74
2,

80
5 

 
17

,5
20

,6
15

  
2,

25
4,

45
4 

 
1,

69
3,

62
1 

 
24

1,
04

6 
 

0 
 

 
c.

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Sp
ec

ia
l (

PO
B,

 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 e

tc
.) 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

1,
08

9,
68

0 
 

 
d.

 T
ot

al
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

$2
47

,4
41

,2
07

  
$2

1,
39

7,
60

4 
 

$2
,8

64
,6

08
  

$2
,3

04
,5

36
  

$3
59

,7
97

  
$1

,0
89

,6
80

  
3 

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

ts
 E

xc
lu

di
ng

 P
os

t-
R

et
ire

m
en

t D
ea

th
 

25
5,

20
7,

70
2 

 
20

,0
41

,1
87

  
3,

14
1,

08
4 

 
3,

23
3,

92
3 

 
36

6,
99

5 
 

5,
34

7,
73

4 
 

4 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

(2
)  

7,
06

8,
13

6 
 

37
2,

65
8 

 
60

,5
69

  
55

,8
15

  
9,

22
9 

 
0 

 
5 

Su
bt

ot
al

 (1
 +

 2
d 

– 
3 

– 
4)

 
$4

,5
68

,8
44

,3
97

  
$3

18
,1

72
,5

20
  

$5
3,

08
7,

52
3 

 
$4

7,
49

9,
48

8 
 

$6
,7

64
,1

66
  

$5
2,

28
4,

01
4 

 
6 

W
ei

gh
te

d 
Av

er
ag

e 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 

4,
57

6,
26

1,
71

0 
 

31
7,

68
0,

64
1 

 
53

,2
56

,0
46

  
47

,9
92

,0
89

  
6,

77
2,

38
0 

 
54

,2
54

,9
63

  
7 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 A
llo

ca
te

d 
in

 P
ro

po
rti

on
 to

 (6
) 

28
9,

34
1,

88
5 

 
20

,0
85

,8
96

  
3,

36
7,

20
4 

 
3,

03
4,

38
1 

 
42

8,
19

5 
 

3,
43

0,
36

2 
 

8 
Al

lo
ca

te
d 

Va
lu

at
io

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
As

 
of

 E
nd

 o
f Y

ea
r (

5 
+ 

7)
 

$4
,8

58
,1

86
,2

82
  

$3
38

,2
58

,4
16

  
$5

6,
45

4,
72

7 
 

$5
0,

53
3,

86
9 

 
$7

,1
92

,3
61

  
$5

5,
71

4,
37

6 
 

9 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
  

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

10
 F

in
al

 V
al

ua
tio

n 
Va

lu
e 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
As

 o
f 

En
d 

of
 Y

ea
r (

8 
+ 

9)
 

$4
,8

58
,1

86
,2

82
  

$3
38

,2
58

,4
16

  
$5

6,
45

4,
72

7 
 

$5
0,

53
3,

86
9 

 
$7

,1
92

,3
61

  
$5

5,
71

4,
37

6 
 

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
Em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
“m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

” a
nd

 e
xc

lu
de

 “e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
”. 

(2
) 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

 



 

Se
ct

io
n 

4:
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ua

tio
n 

B
as

is
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
fo

r t
he

 C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

 
16

6 
 

EX
H

IB
IT

 V
I –

 A
LL

O
C

AT
IO

N
 O

F 
VA

LU
AT

IO
N

 V
AL

U
E 

O
F 

AS
SE

TS
 A

S 
O

F 
D

EC
EM

B
ER

 3
1,

 2
01

8 

 

C
os

t G
ro

up
s 

 #
7 

&
 9

  
Sa

fe
ty

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

8 
C

on
tr

a 
C

os
ta

 &
 

Ea
st

 F
ire

 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

D
is

tr
ic

ts
 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

10
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
 

Fi
re

 D
is

tr
ic

t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

11
 

Sa
n 

R
am

on
 

Va
lle

y 
Fi

re
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

C
os

t G
ro

up
 #

12
 

R
od

eo
-

H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

To
ta

l 
1 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

as
 o

f 
Be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 Y

ea
r 

$1
,6

78
,7

68
,4

88
  

$8
79

,8
30

,5
04

  
$1

60
,2

48
,9

90
  

$3
62

,5
97

,4
96

  
$3

2,
34

6,
00

5 
 

$8
,1

79
,8

91
,1

91
  

2 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
:(1

)  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a.
 T

ot
al

 M
em

be
r C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

$1
7,

14
9,

12
5 

 
$6

,5
63

,2
06

  
$1

,3
46

,4
50

  
$3

,2
64

,0
50

  
$3

03
,4

87
  

$1
03

,5
41

,5
29

  
 

b.
 E

m
pl

oy
er

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 - 
Ex

cl
ud

es
 

PO
B 

an
d 

ot
he

r S
pe

ci
al

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 
69

,3
92

,7
85

  
29

,8
41

,8
17

  
5,

16
4,

01
1 

 
16

,9
36

,7
67

  
2,

98
5,

50
2 

 
32

3,
77

3,
42

3 
 

 
c.

 E
m

pl
oy

er
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 - 

Sp
ec

ia
l (

PO
B,

 
Te

rm
in

at
io

n,
 e

tc
.) 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

25
4,

00
0 

 
0 

 
1,

34
3,

68
0 

 

 
d.

 T
ot

al
 C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 

$8
6,

54
1,

91
0 

 
$3

6,
40

5,
02

3 
 

$6
,5

10
,4

61
  

$2
0,

45
4,

81
7 

 
$3

,2
88

,9
89

  
$4

28
,6

58
,6

32
  

3 
To

ta
l P

ay
m

en
ts

 E
xc

lu
di

ng
 P

os
t-

R
et

ire
m

en
t D

ea
th

 
90

,4
78

,1
68

  
56

,9
30

,9
42

  
10

,3
20

,4
42

  
17

,0
18

,6
41

  
1,

87
2,

12
9 

 
46

3,
95

8,
94

7 
 

4 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

(2
)  

1,
04

6,
09

3 
 

38
7,

29
3 

 
79

,7
70

  
23

3,
71

2 
 

23
,7

78
  

9,
33

7,
05

3 
 

5 
Su

bt
ot

al
 (1

 +
 2

d 
– 

3 
– 

4)
 

$1
,6

73
,7

86
,1

37
  

$8
58

,9
17

,2
92

  
$1

56
,3

59
,2

39
  

$3
65

,7
99

,9
60

  
$3

3,
73

9,
08

7 
 

$8
,1

35
,2

53
,8

23
  

6 
W

ei
gh

te
d 

Av
er

ag
e 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 
1,

67
6,

27
7,

31
3 

 
86

9,
37

3,
89

8 
 

15
8,

30
4,

11
5 

 
36

4,
19

8,
72

8 
 

33
,0

42
,5

46
  

8,
15

7,
41

4,
42

9 
 

7 
Ea

rn
in

gs
 A

llo
ca

te
d 

in
 P

ro
po

rti
on

 to
 (6

) 
10

5,
98

5,
46

8 
 

54
,9

67
,6

35
  

10
,0

09
,0

45
  

23
,0

27
,0

81
  

2,
08

9,
17

1 
 

51
5,

76
6,

32
3 

 
8 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

As
 

of
 E

nd
 o

f Y
ea

r (
5 

+ 
7)

 
$1

,7
79

,7
71

,6
05

  
$9

13
,8

84
,9

27
  

$1
66

,3
68

,2
84

  
$3

88
,8

27
,0

41
  

$3
5,

82
8,

25
8 

 
$8

,6
51

,0
20

,1
46

  

9 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t f
or

 P
re

-P
ai

d 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
(3

) 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
(8

41
,9

20
) 

(8
41

,9
20

) 
10

 F
in

al
 V

al
ua

tio
n 

Va
lu

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s 

As
 o

f 
En

d 
of

 Y
ea

r (
8 

+ 
9)

 
$1

,7
79

,7
71

,6
05

  
$9

13
,8

84
,9

27
  

$1
66

,3
68

,2
84

  
$3

88
,8

27
,0

41
  

$3
4,

98
6,

33
8 

 
$8

,6
50

,1
78

,2
26

  

N
ot

e:
 R

es
ul

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
du

e 
to

 ro
un

di
ng

. 
(1

) 
Em

pl
oy

er
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
“m

em
be

r s
ub

ve
nt

io
n 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

” a
nd

 e
xc

lu
de

 “e
m

pl
oy

er
 s

ub
ve

nt
io

n 
of

 m
em

be
r c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
”. 

(2
) 

Al
lo

ca
te

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

ad
m

in
is

tra
tiv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

io
r v

al
ua

tio
n.

 
(3

)  
Th

is
 a

dj
us

tm
en

t i
s 

to
 e

xc
lu

de
 6

 m
on

th
s 

of
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 R

od
eo

-H
er

cu
le

s 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tri

ct
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
20

18
 c

al
en

da
r y

ea
r t

ha
t w

er
e 

pr
e-

pa
id

 fo
r t

he
 2

01
9 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r. 
Th

es
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 w
ill 

be
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
 

 55
87

00
4v

3/
05

33
7.

00
2 

 



 

180 Howard Street  Suite 1100  San Francisco, CA 94105-6147 
T 415.263.8200  www.segalco.com 

 
 
John W. Monroe, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Vice President & Actuary 
jmonroe@segalco.com 

 

 Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting. Member of The Segal Group. Offices throughout the United States and Canada 

 

October 1, 2019 
 
Ms. Gail Strohl 
Chief Executive Officer 
Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 
1200 Concord Avenue, Suite 300 
Concord, CA 94520 
 
Re: Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association 

Contribution Rate Packet for the Period from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 

Dear Gail: 
 
As requested, we have prepared the enclosed contribution rate packet that contains the employer 
and member contribution rates for the period from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021.  
 
The following documents are enclosed: 
 
 Contribution Rate Packet Cover Page 

 Contribution Rate Packet Table of Contents 

 Contribution Rate Packet Cover Memo 

 Board of Supervisors Resolution 

 Employer Contribution Rates (Exhibits A and B) 

 Member Contribution Rates (Exhibits C through O) 

 Examples for Subvention and Employee Cost Sharing 

 Prepayment Discount Factor for 2020-2021 

The information enclosed is based on the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation results 
including the participant data and actuarial assumptions on which that valuation was based. That 
valuation was completed under the supervision of John Monroe, ASA, MAAA, EA. 
 



Ms. Gail Strohl 
October 1, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

5597520v1/05337.001 

We will also send these documents to you electronically. Please let us know if you have any 
questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Monroe 
 
EK/gxk 
Enclosures (5598969) 
 
 



__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960 
FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

CONTRIBUTION RATE PACKET FOR 
JULY 1, 2020 through JUNE 30, 2021 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960    
FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 Page Description 
 
 i Memo from CEO 
 

1  Board of Supervisors Resolution  
 

2 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for General Tiers 1 and 3 
(Exhibit A - 1) 

 
3 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for General PEPRA Tiers 4 

and 5 with 2% Maximum COLA (Exhibit A - 2) 
 

4 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for General PEPRA Tiers 4 
and 5 with 3% Maximum COLA (Exhibit A - 3) 
 

5 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for Safety Tiers A and C 
(Exhibit B - 1) 

 
6 Employer Rates & Refundability Discount Factors for Safety PEPRA Tiers D 

and E (Exhibit B - 2) 
 

 7 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #1 Member Rates (Exhibit C) 
 
 8 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #2 Member Rates (Exhibit D) 
 
 9 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #3 Member Rates (Exhibit E) 
 
 10 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #4 Member Rates (Exhibit F) 
 
 11 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #5 Member Rates (Exhibit G) 
 
 12 General Non-PEPRA Cost Group #6 Member Rates (Exhibit H) 
 

13 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #7 Member Rates (Exhibit I) 
 
14 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #8 Member Rates (Exhibit J) 
 
15 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #9 Member Rates (Exhibit K) 
 
16 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #10 Member Rates (Exhibit L) 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960    
FAX: 925.646.5747      www.cccera.org 

17 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #11 Member Rates (Exhibit M) 
 
18 Safety Non-PEPRA Cost Group #12 Member Rates (Exhibit N) 
 
19 General and Safety PEPRA Member Rates (Exhibit O) 

 
20  Examples for Subvention and Employee Cost Sharing 
 
21 Prepayment Discount Factor for 2020-21 

 



 
 

MEMORANDUM 

i 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1200 Concord Avenue   Suite 300   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960    
FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Date:  October __, 2019 

To:  Interested Parties and Participating Employers 

From:  Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Contribution Rates Effective July 1, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

At its October 9, 2019 meeting, the Retirement Board reviewed the actuary’s valuation report 
for the year ending December 31, 2018. The Board also adopted the recommended employer 
and employee contribution rates, which will become effective on July 1, 2020. A copy of the 
December 31, 2018 Actuarial Valuation can be found on CCCERA’s website at www.cccera.org 
under the Actuarial Valuations link.  
 

Enclosed are the employer and employee contribution rates to be used effective July 1, 2020 
through June 30, 2021.  
 
Please note the following: 
 

 The rates are effective July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 and have not yet been 
adopted by the County Board of Supervisors. 

 

 The rates are BEFORE ANY EMPLOYER SUBVENTION of the employee contribution. 
The rates quoted here are the employer required rates without taking into 
consideration any employer subvention of employee contributions. A convenient 
methodology for adding subvention is included for your use on page 20. Note that 
subvention is not always permitted for PEPRA members. 

 

 The rates are BEFORE ANY INCREASE IN EMPLOYEE RATE to pay a portion of the 
employer contribution. 
If an employee’s rate needs to be increased to pay a portion of the employer 
contribution, both employee and employer rates would need to be adjusted 
accordingly. A convenient methodology for adding subvention is included for your use 
on page 20. 
 



ADMINISTRATION 
   CONTRIBUTIONS   - 1 - 
      (Resolution)  

 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

 
Adopted this Order on _____________________________________, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
 
SUBJECT: Approving Contribution Rates to be charged  Resolution No.______ 

 by the Contra Costa County 
 Employees’ Retirement Association. 

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 31454 and on recommendation of the Board of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement  Association, 
BE IT  RESOLVED that the following contribution rates are approved to be effective for the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 
 

I. Employer Contribution Rates for Basic and Cost-of-Living Components  
and Non-refundability Discount Factors 

 
A. For General Members (Sec. 31676.11, Sec. 31676.16 and Sec. 7522.20(a)) 

See attached Exhibit A  
 

B. For Safety Members (Sec. 31664, Sec. 31664.1 and Sec. 7522.25(d)) 
See attached Exhibit B 

 
II. Employee Contribution Rates for Basic and Cost-of-Living Components 

 
   See attached Exhibits C through O 
 
The Pension Obligation Bonds (POB) issued by the County in March 1994 and April 2003, affected contribution rates for certain 
County employers. The following non-County employers who participate in the Retirement Association are referred to as “Districts”.  
 
Bethel Island Municipal Improvement District Contra Costa County Fire Protection District 
Byron, Brentwood Knightsen Union Cemetery District East Contra Costa Fire Protection District 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District 
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District 
Contra Costa Housing Authority San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District 
Contra Costa Mosquito and Vector Control District  
Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)  
Rodeo Sanitary District  
In-Home Supportive Services Authority  
First 5 - Children & Families Commission  
 
All other departments/employers are referred to as “County” including the Superior Court of California, Contra Costa County. 
 
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District and Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection District issued Pension Obligation Bonds in 2005 
which affected contribution rates for these two employers. Subsequently, Contra Costa County Fire Protection District has made 
additional payments to CCCERA for its UAAL in 2006 and 2007.  
 
First 5 - Children & Families Commission made a UAAL prepayment in 2013 which affected contribution rates for that employer. 
 
Central Contra Costa Sanitary District made a UAAL prepayment in 2013, 2014 and 2015 which affected contribution rates for that 
employer. 
 
Local Agency Formation Commission made a UAAL prepayment in 2017 which affected contribution rates for that employer. 
 
San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District made a UAAL prepayment in 2017 and 2018 which affected contribution rates for that 
employer. 



Ex
hi

bi
t A

 - 
1

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t A

-1
Pa

ge
 2

09
/2

7/
20

19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 a

nd
 3

 L
eg

ac
y 

M
em

be
rs

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

3
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
4

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

5
G

EN
ER

AL
 T

IE
RS

 - 
EN

HA
N

CE
D

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
Di

st
ric

ts
Ce

nt
ra

l C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
Ti

er
 1

 B
AS

IC
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Co
un

ty
Fi

re
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
rs

t 5
LA

FC
O

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
Ho

us
in

g 
Au

th
or

ity
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
F

ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
 &

 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

1
5
.2

8
%

N
/A

1
5
.4

4
%

1
8
.1

6
%

1
8
.6

2
%

N
/A

1
9
.8

6
%

N
/A

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
 &

 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

2
2
.9

1
%

N
/A

2
3
.1

5
%

2
7
.2

4
%

2
7
.9

3
%

N
/A

2
9
.7

9
%

N
/A

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

2
2
.9

1
%

2
0
.6

2
%

N
/A

N
/A

2
7
.9

3
%

3
5
.5

9
%

N
/A

2
2
.2

8
%

Ti
er

 1
 C

O
L 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
F

ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
3
.6

0
%

N
/A

3
.8

7
%

6
.1

5
%

6
.3

2
%

N
/A

9
.6

8
%

N
/A

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
5
.4

1
%

N
/A

5
.8

2
%

9
.2

3
%

9
.4

8
%

N
/A

1
4
.5

1
%

N
/A

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

5
.4

1
%

5
.3

1
%

N
/A

N
/A

9
.4

8
%

1
5
.2

5
%

N
/A

1
1
.3

8
%

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

77
0.

95
77

0.
95

77
0.

95
77

0.
95

77
0.

95
60

0.
95

36
0.

95
63

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

N
a
m

e
T

ie
r

Di
st

ric
ts

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

1
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

Ti
er

 3
 B

AS
IC

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
Co

un
ty

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

L
A

F
C

O

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
1
5
.5

1
%

1
8
.9

2
%

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
2
3
.2

7
%

2
8
.3

9
%

B
e
th

e
l 
Is

la
n
d
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t

F
ir
s
t 

5
 -

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

2
8
.3

9
%

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

S
u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

Ti
er

 3
 C

O
L 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
E

a
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
3
.5

9
%

6
.3

3
%

M
o
ra

g
a
-O

ri
n
d
a
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
5
.3

8
%

9
.4

9
%

R
o
d
e
o
-H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
a
n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

9
.4

9
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

2
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

3
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

40
0.

95
40

In
-H

o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

6
S

u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

G
EN

ER
AL

 T
IE

R 
 N

O
N

-E
N

HA
N

CE
D

Di
st

ric
ts

Ti
er

 1
 B

AS
IC

 N
O

N
-E

nh
an

ce
d

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

3
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 S
a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
8
.6

2
%

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
1
2
.9

2
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

4
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

T
ie

r 
1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

5
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
1
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

5
)

Ti
er

 1
 C

O
L 

N
O

N
-E

nh
an

ce
d 

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

6
R

o
d
e
o
 S

a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

1
 N

o
n
-e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

1
.6

7
%

 @
 5

5
)

F
ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
2
.5

9
%

B
y
ro

n
 B

re
n
tw

o
o
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

E
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
3
.8

9
%

B
a
s
ic

 r
a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll.
 T

h
is

 l
o
a
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
 i
f 

N
O

T
 i
n
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

N
/A

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

$
3
5
0
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
$
3
5
0
 m

o
n
th

ly
 r

a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
.

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

12Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

2

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

1



Ex
hi

bi
t A

 - 
2

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t A

-2
Pa

ge
 3

09
/2

7/
20

19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 5

 P
EP

RA
 M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 2

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

3
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
4

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

5
G

EN
ER

AL
 P

EP
RA

 T
IE

RS
 

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
Di

st
ric

ts
Ce

nt
ra

l C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
Ti

er
 4

 B
AS

IC
Co

un
ty

Fi
re

 D
is

tr
ic

t
Fi

rs
t 5

LA
FC

O
w

ith
ou

t P
O

B
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Ho
us

in
g 

Au
th

or
ity

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

Di
st

ric
t

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
1
9
.7

6
%

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

2
0
.6

0
%

Ti
er

 4
 C

O
L

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
3
.9

4
%

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
0
.2

0
%

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

74
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
0.

95
68

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

N
a
m

e
T

ie
r

Di
st

ric
ts

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

1
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

Ti
er

 5
 B

AS
IC

 
Co

un
ty

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

L
A

F
C

O

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
1
9
.2

4
%

2
4
.2

9
%

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
e
th

e
l 
Is

la
n
d
 M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t

Ti
er

 5
 C

O
L

F
ir
s
t 

5
 -

 C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
3
.7

9
%

7
.8

4
%

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
' 
R

e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

S
u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

80
0.

95
80

E
a
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

M
o
ra

g
a
-O

ri
n
d
a
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

R
o
d
e
o
-H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
a
n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

2
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e
n
e
ra

l
T

ie
r 

5
  

(2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

In
-H

o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

iv
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
C

 M
o
s
q

u
it
o
 &

 V
e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

S
u
p
e
ri
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

3
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 S
a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

4
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

T
ie

r 
4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

5
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

6
R

o
d
e
o
 S

a
n
it
a
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ie
r 

4
 (

2
.5

%
 @

 6
7
)

B
y
ro

n
 B

re
n
tw

o
o
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
o
m

e
 t

ie
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
rs

 a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

 t
a
b
le

.

B
a
s
ic

 r
a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll.

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

2

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

1



Ex
hi

bi
t A

 - 
3

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t A

-3
Pa

ge
 4

09
/2

7/
20

19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H 

JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 4
 a

nd
 5

 P
EP

RA
 M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 3

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

3
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
4

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

5
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
6

G
EN

ER
AL

 P
EP

RA
 T

IE
RS

 
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

Di
st

ric
ts

Ce
nt

ra
l C

on
tr

a 
Co

st
a

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

Di
st

ric
ts

Ti
er

 4
 B

AS
IC

Co
un

ty
Fi

re
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
rs

t 5
LA

FC
O

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 D
is

tr
ic

t
Ho

us
in

g 
Au

th
or

ity
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
w

ith
ou

t P
O

B
 A

ll 
E

lig
ib

le
 $

1
9

.8
8

%
1

7
.8

7
%

2
0

.1
1

%
2

4
.1

8
%

2
4

.9
3

%
3

1
.4

6
%

2
5

.4
0

%
2

1
.9

1
%

9
.5

5
%

Ti
er

 4
 C

O
L

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
4

.9
1

%
4

.8
7

%
5

.3
1

%
8

.6
8

%
8

.9
6

%
1

4
.4

1
%

1
3

.5
9

%
1

1
.7

2
%

3
.2

1
%

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

82
0.

95
82

0.
95

82
0.

95
82

0.
95

82
0.

96
61

0.
96

43
0.

95
85

0.
96

47

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
N

a
m

e
T

ie
r

Di
st

ric
ts

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

1
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e

n
e

ra
l

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

Ti
er

 5
 B

AS
IC

 
Co

un
ty

w
ith

ou
t P

O
B

L
A

F
C

O

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
1

9
.4

7
%

2
4

.5
2

%
C

C
 M

o
s
q
u
it
o

 &
 V

e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

B
e

th
e

l 
Is

la
n
d

 M
u
n
ic

ip
a

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Ti
er

 5
 C

O
L 

F
ir
s
t 
5

 -
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n

 A
ll 

E
lig

ib
le

 $
4

.7
1

%
8

.7
6

%
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n
ty

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
' R

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n

S
u
p
e

ri
o

r 
C

o
u
rt

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
96

04
0.

96
04

E
a

s
t 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

M
o

ra
g
a

-O
ri
n
d

a
 F

ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

R
o

d
e

o
-H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

S
a

n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

2
C

o
u
n
ty

 G
e

n
e

ra
l

T
ie

r 
5

  
(2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

In
-H

o
m

e
 S

u
p
p
o

rt
iv

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

C
C

 M
o

s
q
u
it
o

 &
 V

e
c
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

is
tr

ic
t

S
u
p
e

ri
o

r 
C

o
u
rt

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

3
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 S
a

n
it
a

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

4
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

5
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o

u
n
ty

 F
ir
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

C
o

s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

6
R

o
d

e
o

 S
a

n
it
a

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
4

 (
2

.5
%

 @
 6

7
)

B
y
ro

n
 B

re
n
tw

o
o

d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t

B
a

s
ic

 r
a

te
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 e
x
p
e

n
s
e

 l
o

a
d

 o
f 

0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a

y
ro

ll.

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

2

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

1



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 - 
1

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t B

-1
Pa

ge
 5

09
/2

7/
20

19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H

 JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 a

nd
 C

 L
eg

ac
y 

M
em

be
rs

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

7
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
10

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

11
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

RS
 E

N
HA

N
CE

D
Co

nt
ra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y
Ea

st
 C

on
tr

a 
Co

st
a

M
or

ag
a-

O
rin

da
Sa

n 
Ra

m
on

 V
al

le
y

Sa
fe

ty
 A

 B
AS

IC
 E

nh
an

ce
d

Co
un

ty
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
A

ll 
e
lig

ib
le

 $
4
4
.3

7
%

3
3
.8

5
%

5
9
.7

6
%

3
4
.4

1
%

5
1
.3

9
%

Sa
fe

ty
 A

 C
O

L 
En

ha
nc

ed
A

ll 
e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
6
.5

3
%

3
3
.5

3
%

5
3
.3

0
%

3
8
.1

6
%

2
6
.8

4
%

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
95

99
0.

96
06

0.
96

06
0.

96
39

0.
96

18

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

9
C

o
s
t 
G

ro
u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

N
a
m

e
T

ie
r

Sa
fe

ty
 C

 B
AS

IC
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

Co
un

ty
C

o
s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

 7
C

o
u
n
ty

 S
a
fe

ty
T

ie
r 

A
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

3
%

 @
 5

0
)

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
4
2
.4

9
%

C
o
s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

 8
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
A

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

3
%

 @
 5

0
)

Sa
fe

ty
 C

 C
O

L 
En

ha
nc

ed
E

a
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
3
.8

5
%

C
o
s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

 9
C

o
u
n
ty

 S
a
fe

ty
T

ie
r 

C
 E

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

3
%

 @
 5

0
)

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
96

13
C

o
s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

 1
0

M
o
ra

g
a
-O

ri
n
d
a
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
A

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

3
%

 @
 5

0
)

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

12
SA

FE
TY

 T
IE

R 
 N

O
N

-E
N

HA
N

CE
D

Ro
de

o-
He

rc
ul

es
C

o
s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

 1
1

S
a
n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
A

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

3
%

 @
 5

0
)

Sa
fe

ty
 A

 B
AS

IC
 N

O
N

-E
nh

an
ce

d
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Di

st
ric

t
A

ll 
e
lig

ib
le

 $
1
4
.3

0
%

C
o
s
t 
G

ro
u
p
 #

 1
2

R
o
d
e
o
 H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
A

 N
o
n
-e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 (

2
%

 @
 5

0
)

M
o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 T

o
w

a
rd

s
 U

A
A

L
$
6
1
,5

5
4

B
a
s
ic

 r
a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
0
.6

3
%

 o
f 
p
a
y
ro

ll.

Sa
fe

ty
 A

 C
O

L 
N

O
N

-E
nh

an
ce

d
A

ll 
e
lig

ib
le

 $
4
.9

9
%

M
o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 T

o
w

a
rd

s
 U

A
A

L
$
4
4
,5

1
1

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
96

67

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

8



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 - 
2

Al
l C

os
t G

ro
up

s 2
02

0-
21

Ex
hi

bi
t B

-2
Pa

ge
 6

09
/2

7/
20

19

CO
N

TR
A 

CO
ST

A 
CO

U
N

TY
 E

M
PL

O
YE

ES
' R

ET
IR

EM
EN

T 
AS

SO
CI

AT
IO

N
EM

PL
O

YE
R 

CO
N

TR
IB

U
TI

O
N

 R
AT

ES
 E

FF
EC

TI
VE

 F
O

R 
JU

LY
 1

, 2
02

0 
TH

RO
U

G
H

 JU
N

E 
30

, 2
02

1 
fo

r S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 D
 a

nd
 E

 P
EP

RA
 M

em
be

rs

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

7
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
10

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

11
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
12

SA
FE

TY
 P

EP
RA

 T
IE

RS
 

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

Ea
st

 C
on

tr
a 

Co
st

a
M

or
ag

a-
O

rin
da

Sa
n 

Ra
m

on
 V

al
le

y
Ro

de
o-

H
er

cu
le

s
Sa

fe
ty

 D
 B

AS
IC

 (3
%

 M
ax

im
um

 C
O

LA
)

Co
un

ty
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
re

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

D
is

tr
ic

t
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
3
6
.3

2
%

2
4
.9

6
%

5
0
.8

7
%

2
6
.7

5
%

4
1
.1

9
%

1
1
.6

5
%

M
o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 T

o
w

a
rd

s
 U

A
A

L
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
$
1
7
,7

4
5

Sa
fe

ty
 D

 C
O

L 
(3

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

)
A

ll 
e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
5
.2

0
%

3
1
.8

8
%

5
1
.6

5
%

3
6
.6

4
%

2
4
.6

3
%

4
.8

2
%

M
o
n
th

ly
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 T

o
w

a
rd

s
 U

A
A

L
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
$
1
2
,8

3
2

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
97

16
0.

97
32

0.
97

32
0.

97
33

0.
97

35
0.

97
69

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

8
Co

st
 G

ro
up

 #
9

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p

E
m

p
lo

y
e
r 

N
a
m

e
T

ie
r

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 7
C

o
u
n
ty

 S
a
fe

ty
T

ie
r 

D
 (

2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

Sa
fe

ty
 E

 B
AS

IC
 (2

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

)
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
D

is
tr

ic
t

Co
un

ty
 

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
4
.0

0
%

3
5
.1

8
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 8
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

E
a
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Sa
fe

ty
 E

 C
O

L 
(2

%
 M

ax
im

um
 C

O
LA

)
C

o
n
tr

a
 C

o
s
ta

 C
o
u
n
ty

 F
ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
E

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 $
2
9
.8

5
%

2
3
.0

4
%

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 9
C

o
u
n
ty

 S
a
fe

ty
T

ie
r 

E
 (

2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

N
on

-R
ef

un
da

bi
lit

y 
Fa

ct
or

0.
97

19
0.

97
03

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 1
0

M
o
ra

g
a
-O

ri
n
d
a
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 1
1

S
a
n
 R

a
m

o
n
 V

a
lle

y
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

C
o
s
t 

G
ro

u
p
 #

 1
2

R
o
d
e
o
 H

e
rc

u
le

s
 F

ir
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ie

r 
D

 (
2
.7

%
 @

 5
7
)

B
a
s
ic

 r
a
te

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
 l
o
a
d
 o

f 
0
.6

3
%

 o
f 

p
a
y
ro

ll.

Co
st

 G
ro

up
 #

8



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit C   Page 7

Exhibit C

GENERAL Cost Group #1 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 5.30% 5.31% 2.51% 7.81% 7.82%

16 5.39% 5.40% 2.56% 7.95% 7.96%

17 5.49% 5.50% 2.61% 8.10% 8.11%

18 5.59% 5.60% 2.67% 8.26% 8.27%

19 5.69% 5.70% 2.72% 8.41% 8.42%

20 5.79% 5.80% 2.77% 8.56% 8.57%

21 5.89% 5.90% 2.82% 8.71% 8.72%

22 5.99% 6.00% 2.87% 8.86% 8.87%

23 6.10% 6.11% 2.93% 9.03% 9.04%

24 6.21% 6.22% 2.99% 9.20% 9.21%

25 6.32% 6.33% 3.05% 9.37% 9.38%

26 6.43% 6.44% 3.10% 9.53% 9.54%

27 6.55% 6.56% 3.17% 9.72% 9.73%

28 6.66% 6.67% 3.22% 9.88% 9.89%

29 6.78% 6.79% 3.29% 10.07% 10.08%

30 6.90% 6.91% 3.35% 10.25% 10.26%

31 7.03% 7.04% 3.42% 10.45% 10.46%

32 7.15% 7.16% 3.48% 10.63% 10.64%

33 7.28% 7.29% 3.55% 10.83% 10.84%

34 7.42% 7.43% 3.62% 11.04% 11.05%

35 7.55% 7.56% 3.69% 11.24% 11.25%

36 7.69% 7.70% 3.76% 11.45% 11.46%

37 7.83% 7.84% 3.83% 11.66% 11.67%

38 7.97% 7.98% 3.91% 11.88% 11.89%

39 8.12% 8.13% 3.98% 12.10% 12.11%

40 8.27% 8.28% 4.06% 12.33% 12.34%

41 8.43% 8.44% 4.14% 12.57% 12.58%

42 8.58% 8.59% 4.22% 12.80% 12.81%

43 8.73% 8.74% 4.30% 13.03% 13.04%

44 8.88% 8.89% 4.38% 13.26% 13.27%

45 9.04% 9.05% 4.46% 13.50% 13.51%

46 9.20% 9.21% 4.55% 13.75% 13.76%

47 9.36% 9.37% 4.63% 13.99% 14.00%

48 9.51% 9.52% 4.71% 14.22% 14.23%

49 9.66% 9.67% 4.79% 14.45% 14.46%

50 9.82% 9.83% 4.87% 14.69% 14.70%

51 9.98% 9.99% 4.95% 14.93% 14.94%

52 10.14% 10.15% 5.04% 15.18% 15.19%

53 10.30% 10.31% 5.12% 15.42% 15.43%

54 10.46% 10.47% 5.20% 15.66% 15.67%

55 10.61% 10.62% 5.28% 15.89% 15.90%

56 10.68% 10.69% 5.32% 16.00% 16.01%

57 10.65% 10.66% 5.30% 15.95% 15.96%

58 10.62% 10.63% 5.29% 15.91% 15.92%

59 10.31% 10.32% 5.12% 15.43% 15.44%

60 and over 10.31% 10.32% 5.12% 15.43% 15.44%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.07% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

              The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit D   Page 8

Exhibit D

GENERAL Cost Group #2 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 5.29% 5.30% 2.34% 7.63% 7.64%

16 5.38% 5.39% 2.38% 7.76% 7.77%

17 5.48% 5.49% 2.43% 7.91% 7.92%

18 5.57% 5.58% 2.47% 8.04% 8.05%

19 5.67% 5.68% 2.52% 8.19% 8.20%

20 5.77% 5.78% 2.57% 8.34% 8.35%

21 5.88% 5.89% 2.62% 8.50% 8.51%

22 5.98% 5.99% 2.67% 8.65% 8.66%

23 6.09% 6.10% 2.72% 8.81% 8.82%

24 6.20% 6.21% 2.78% 8.98% 8.99%

25 6.31% 6.32% 2.83% 9.14% 9.15%

26 6.42% 6.43% 2.88% 9.30% 9.31%

27 6.53% 6.54% 2.94% 9.47% 9.48%

28 6.65% 6.66% 3.00% 9.65% 9.66%

29 6.77% 6.78% 3.05% 9.82% 9.83%

30 6.89% 6.90% 3.11% 10.00% 10.01%

31 7.01% 7.02% 3.17% 10.18% 10.19%

32 7.14% 7.15% 3.23% 10.37% 10.38%

33 7.27% 7.28% 3.30% 10.57% 10.58%

34 7.40% 7.41% 3.36% 10.76% 10.77%

35 7.53% 7.54% 3.42% 10.95% 10.96%

36 7.67% 7.68% 3.49% 11.16% 11.17%

37 7.81% 7.82% 3.56% 11.37% 11.38%

38 7.96% 7.97% 3.63% 11.59% 11.60%

39 8.11% 8.12% 3.70% 11.81% 11.82%

40 8.25% 8.26% 3.77% 12.02% 12.03%

41 8.40% 8.41% 3.84% 12.24% 12.25%

42 8.56% 8.57% 3.92% 12.48% 12.49%

43 8.71% 8.72% 3.99% 12.70% 12.71%

44 8.86% 8.87% 4.07% 12.93% 12.94%

45 9.02% 9.03% 4.15% 13.17% 13.18%

46 9.18% 9.19% 4.22% 13.40% 13.41%

47 9.34% 9.35% 4.30% 13.64% 13.65%

48 9.48% 9.49% 4.37% 13.85% 13.86%

49 9.65% 9.66% 4.45% 14.10% 14.11%

50 9.80% 9.81% 4.52% 14.32% 14.33%

51 9.96% 9.97% 4.60% 14.56% 14.57%

52 10.12% 10.13% 4.68% 14.80% 14.81%

53 10.31% 10.32% 4.77% 15.08% 15.09%

54 10.43% 10.44% 4.83% 15.26% 15.27%

55 10.57% 10.58% 4.90% 15.47% 15.48%

56 10.68% 10.69% 4.95% 15.63% 15.64%

57 10.66% 10.67% 4.94% 15.60% 15.61%

58 10.64% 10.65% 4.93% 15.57% 15.58%

59 10.03% 10.04% 4.63% 14.66% 14.67%

60 and over 10.03% 10.04% 4.63% 14.66% 14.67%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 48.48% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

              The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit E   Page 9

Exhibit E

GENERAL Cost Group #3 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 5.48% 2.64% 8.12%

16 5.57% 2.69% 8.26%

17 5.67% 2.74% 8.41%

18 5.77% 2.79% 8.56%

19 5.88% 2.85% 8.73%

20 5.98% 2.90% 8.88%

21 6.09% 2.96% 9.05%

22 6.20% 3.02% 9.22%

23 6.31% 3.08% 9.39%

24 6.42% 3.14% 9.56%

25 6.53% 3.19% 9.72%

26 6.65% 3.26% 9.91%

27 6.77% 3.32% 10.09%

28 6.89% 3.38% 10.27%

29 7.01% 3.45% 10.46%

30 7.14% 3.52% 10.66%

31 7.27% 3.58% 10.85%

32 7.40% 3.65% 11.05%

33 7.53% 3.72% 11.25%

34 7.66% 3.79% 11.45%

35 7.80% 3.86% 11.66%

36 7.95% 3.94% 11.89%

37 8.09% 4.02% 12.11%

38 8.24% 4.09% 12.33%

39 8.40% 4.18% 12.58%

40 8.55% 4.26% 12.81%

41 8.71% 4.34% 13.05%

42 8.86% 4.42% 13.28%

43 9.02% 4.51% 13.53%

44 9.18% 4.59% 13.77%

45 9.35% 4.68% 14.03%

46 9.50% 4.76% 14.26%

47 9.66% 4.84% 14.50%

48 9.82% 4.93% 14.75%

49 9.98% 5.01% 14.99%

50 10.14% 5.10% 15.24%

51 10.30% 5.18% 15.48%

52 10.47% 5.27% 15.74%

53 10.63% 5.35% 15.98%

54 10.77% 5.43% 16.20%

55 10.87% 5.48% 16.35%

56 10.98% 5.54% 16.52%

57 10.94% 5.52% 16.46%

58 10.70% 5.39% 16.09%

59 10.26% 5.16% 15.42%

60 and over 10.26% 5.16% 15.42%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.70% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit F   Page 10

Exhibit F

GENERAL Cost Group #4 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 5.27% 5.28% 2.51% 7.78% 7.79%

16 5.37% 5.38% 2.56% 7.93% 7.94%

17 5.46% 5.47% 2.61% 8.07% 8.08%

18 5.56% 5.57% 2.66% 8.22% 8.23%

19 5.66% 5.67% 2.71% 8.37% 8.38%

20 5.76% 5.77% 2.77% 8.53% 8.54%

21 5.86% 5.87% 2.82% 8.68% 8.69%

22 5.97% 5.98% 2.87% 8.84% 8.85%

23 6.07% 6.08% 2.93% 9.00% 9.01%

24 6.18% 6.19% 2.98% 9.16% 9.17%

25 6.29% 6.30% 3.04% 9.33% 9.34%

26 6.40% 6.41% 3.10% 9.50% 9.51%

27 6.52% 6.53% 3.16% 9.68% 9.69%

28 6.63% 6.64% 3.22% 9.85% 9.86%

29 6.75% 6.76% 3.28% 10.03% 10.04%

30 6.87% 6.88% 3.35% 10.22% 10.23%

31 7.00% 7.01% 3.41% 10.41% 10.42%

32 7.12% 7.13% 3.48% 10.60% 10.61%

33 7.25% 7.26% 3.54% 10.79% 10.80%

34 7.38% 7.39% 3.61% 10.99% 11.00%

35 7.52% 7.53% 3.69% 11.21% 11.22%

36 7.65% 7.66% 3.75% 11.40% 11.41%

37 7.79% 7.80% 3.83% 11.62% 11.63%

38 7.94% 7.95% 3.90% 11.84% 11.85%

39 8.09% 8.10% 3.98% 12.07% 12.08%

40 8.24% 8.25% 4.06% 12.30% 12.31%

41 8.39% 8.40% 4.14% 12.53% 12.54%

42 8.54% 8.55% 4.22% 12.76% 12.77%

43 8.69% 8.70% 4.30% 12.99% 13.00%

44 8.84% 8.85% 4.37% 13.21% 13.22%

45 9.01% 9.02% 4.46% 13.47% 13.48%

46 9.16% 9.17% 4.54% 13.70% 13.71%

47 9.31% 9.32% 4.62% 13.93% 13.94%

48 9.46% 9.47% 4.70% 14.16% 14.17%

49 9.63% 9.64% 4.79% 14.42% 14.43%

50 9.77% 9.78% 4.86% 14.63% 14.64%

51 9.94% 9.95% 4.95% 14.89% 14.90%

52 10.10% 10.11% 5.03% 15.13% 15.14%

53 10.28% 10.29% 5.13% 15.41% 15.42%

54 10.43% 10.44% 5.21% 15.64% 15.65%

55 10.57% 10.58% 5.28% 15.85% 15.86%

56 10.63% 10.64% 5.31% 15.94% 15.95%

57 10.67% 10.68% 5.33% 16.00% 16.01%

58 10.51% 10.52% 5.25% 15.76% 15.77%

59 10.05% 10.06% 5.01% 15.06% 15.07%

60 and over 10.05% 10.06% 5.01% 15.06% 15.07%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.27% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

              The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit G   Page 11

Exhibit G

GENERAL Cost Group #5 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 5.31% 2.55% 7.86%

16 5.40% 2.60% 8.00%

17 5.50% 2.65% 8.15%

18 5.60% 2.70% 8.30%

19 5.70% 2.76% 8.46%

20 5.80% 2.81% 8.61%

21 5.90% 2.86% 8.76%

22 6.01% 2.92% 8.93%

23 6.11% 2.97% 9.08%

24 6.22% 3.03% 9.25%

25 6.33% 3.09% 9.42%

26 6.45% 3.15% 9.60%

27 6.56% 3.21% 9.77%

28 6.68% 3.27% 9.95%

29 6.80% 3.34% 10.14%

30 6.92% 3.40% 10.32%

31 7.04% 3.46% 10.50%

32 7.17% 3.53% 10.70%

33 7.30% 3.60% 10.90%

34 7.43% 3.67% 11.10%

35 7.57% 3.74% 11.31%

36 7.70% 3.81% 11.51%

37 7.85% 3.89% 11.74%

38 7.99% 3.96% 11.95%

39 8.14% 4.04% 12.18%

40 8.29% 4.12% 12.41%

41 8.45% 4.20% 12.65%

42 8.60% 4.28% 12.88%

43 8.75% 4.36% 13.11%

44 8.90% 4.44% 13.34%

45 9.06% 4.53% 13.59%

46 9.22% 4.61% 13.83%

47 9.38% 4.69% 14.07%

48 9.53% 4.77% 14.30%

49 9.69% 4.86% 14.55%

50 9.85% 4.94% 14.79%

51 10.01% 5.03% 15.04%

52 10.16% 5.11% 15.27%

53 10.33% 5.20% 15.53%

54 10.49% 5.28% 15.77%

55 10.60% 5.34% 15.94%

56 10.67% 5.37% 16.04%

57 10.73% 5.41% 16.14%

58 10.61% 5.34% 15.95%

59 10.29% 5.17% 15.46%

60 and over 10.29% 5.17% 15.46%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 52.69% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit H   Page12

Exhibit H

GENERAL Cost Group #6 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age

Basic not in Social 

Security

Basic in Social 

Security* COLA

Total not in Social 

Security

Total in Social 

Security*

15 6.03% 6.04% 2.43% 8.46% 8.47%

16 6.14% 6.15% 2.48% 8.62% 8.63%

17 6.24% 6.25% 2.53% 8.77% 8.78%

18 6.36% 6.37% 2.58% 8.94% 8.95%

19 6.47% 6.48% 2.63% 9.10% 9.11%

20 6.59% 6.60% 2.68% 9.27% 9.28%

21 6.70% 6.71% 2.73% 9.43% 9.44%

22 6.82% 6.83% 2.78% 9.60% 9.61%

23 6.94% 6.95% 2.83% 9.77% 9.78%

24 7.07% 7.08% 2.89% 9.96% 9.97%

25 7.20% 7.21% 2.95% 10.15% 10.16%

26 7.33% 7.34% 3.00% 10.33% 10.34%

27 7.46% 7.47% 3.06% 10.52% 10.53%

28 7.59% 7.60% 3.12% 10.71% 10.72%

29 7.73% 7.74% 3.18% 10.91% 10.92%

30 7.87% 7.88% 3.24% 11.11% 11.12%

31 8.01% 8.02% 3.30% 11.31% 11.32%

32 8.17% 8.18% 3.37% 11.54% 11.55%

33 8.31% 8.32% 3.43% 11.74% 11.75%

34 8.47% 8.48% 3.50% 11.97% 11.98%

35 8.63% 8.64% 3.57% 12.20% 12.21%

36 8.79% 8.80% 3.64% 12.43% 12.44%

37 8.95% 8.96% 3.71% 12.66% 12.67%

38 9.11% 9.12% 3.78% 12.89% 12.90%

39 9.27% 9.28% 3.85% 13.12% 13.13%

40 9.44% 9.45% 3.93% 13.37% 13.38%

41 9.60% 9.61% 4.00% 13.60% 13.61%

42 9.76% 9.77% 4.07% 13.83% 13.84%

43 9.93% 9.94% 4.14% 14.07% 14.08%

44 10.09% 10.10% 4.21% 14.30% 14.31%

45 10.25% 10.26% 4.28% 14.53% 14.54%

46 10.43% 10.44% 4.36% 14.79% 14.80%

47 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

48 10.78% 10.79% 4.51% 15.29% 15.30%

49 10.93% 10.94% 4.58% 15.51% 15.52%

50 11.07% 11.08% 4.64% 15.71% 15.72%

51 11.18% 11.19% 4.69% 15.87% 15.88%

52 11.13% 11.14% 4.67% 15.80% 15.81%

53 11.05% 11.06% 4.63% 15.68% 15.69%

54 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

55 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

56 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

57 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

58 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

59 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

60 and over 10.59% 10.60% 4.43% 15.02% 15.03%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 43.77% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: For members in Social Security, the rate should only be applied to monthly compensation in excess of $116.67.

              The rate should be applied to compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit I   Page 13

Exhibit I

SAFETY Cost Group #7 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

16 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

17 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

18 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

19 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

20 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

21 9.46% 6.27% 15.73%

22 9.60% 6.37% 15.97%

23 9.74% 6.47% 16.21%

24 9.89% 6.57% 16.46%

25 10.04% 6.68% 16.72%

26 10.19% 6.78% 16.97%

27 10.35% 6.89% 17.24%

28 10.50% 7.00% 17.50%

29 10.66% 7.11% 17.77%

30 10.83% 7.23% 18.06%

31 11.00% 7.34% 18.34%

32 11.17% 7.46% 18.63%

33 11.35% 7.59% 18.94%

34 11.53% 7.71% 19.24%

35 11.72% 7.85% 19.57%

36 11.91% 7.98% 19.89%

37 12.10% 8.11% 20.21%

38 12.29% 8.24% 20.53%

39 12.50% 8.39% 20.89%

40 12.72% 8.54% 21.26%

41 12.93% 8.69% 21.62%

42 13.16% 8.85% 22.01%

43 13.39% 9.01% 22.40%

44 13.65% 9.19% 22.84%

45 13.87% 9.35% 23.22%

46 13.89% 9.36% 23.25%

47 13.92% 9.38% 23.30%

48 13.73% 9.25% 22.98%

49 and over 13.21% 8.89% 22.10%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 69.75% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit J   Page 14

Exhibit J

SAFETY Cost Group #8 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

16 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

17 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

18 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

19 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

20 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

21 9.44% 6.41% 15.85%

22 9.58% 6.51% 16.09%

23 9.72% 6.61% 16.33%

24 9.87% 6.72% 16.59%

25 10.02% 6.83% 16.85%

26 10.17% 6.94% 17.11%

27 10.32% 7.04% 17.36%

28 10.48% 7.16% 17.64%

29 10.64% 7.27% 17.91%

30 10.80% 7.39% 18.19%

31 10.97% 7.51% 18.48%

32 11.15% 7.64% 18.79%

33 11.32% 7.76% 19.08%

34 11.51% 7.89% 19.40%

35 11.70% 8.03% 19.73%

36 11.88% 8.16% 20.04%

37 12.08% 8.30% 20.38%

38 12.27% 8.44% 20.71%

39 12.47% 8.58% 21.05%

40 12.69% 8.74% 21.43%

41 12.91% 8.90% 21.81%

42 13.14% 9.06% 22.20%

43 13.37% 9.22% 22.59%

44 13.62% 9.40% 23.02%

45 13.83% 9.55% 23.38%

46 13.90% 9.60% 23.50%

47 13.84% 9.56% 23.40%

48 13.75% 9.50% 23.25%

49 and over 13.24% 9.13% 22.37%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 71.51% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit K   Page 15

Exhibit K

SAFETY Cost Group #9 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

16 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

17 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

18 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

19 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

20 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

21 9.04% 3.86% 12.90%

22 9.17% 3.92% 13.09%

23 9.31% 3.99% 13.30%

24 9.45% 4.05% 13.50%

25 9.59% 4.11% 13.70%

26 9.73% 4.18% 13.91%

27 9.88% 4.24% 14.12%

28 10.03% 4.31% 14.34%

29 10.18% 4.38% 14.56%

30 10.34% 4.45% 14.79%

31 10.50% 4.52% 15.02%

32 10.67% 4.60% 15.27%

33 10.84% 4.68% 15.52%

34 11.01% 4.75% 15.76%

35 11.18% 4.83% 16.01%

36 11.36% 4.91% 16.27%

37 11.54% 4.99% 16.53%

38 11.71% 5.07% 16.78%

39 11.91% 5.16% 17.07%

40 12.10% 5.24% 17.34%

41 12.29% 5.33% 17.62%

42 12.49% 5.42% 17.91%

43 12.66% 5.50% 18.16%

44 12.76% 5.54% 18.30%

45 12.77% 5.55% 18.32%

46 12.65% 5.49% 18.14%

47 12.39% 5.37% 17.76%

48 12.72% 5.52% 18.24%

49 and over 13.30% 5.79% 19.09%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 45.09% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit L   Page 16

Exhibit L

SAFETY Cost Group #10 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

16 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

17 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

18 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

19 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

20 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

21 9.44% 6.15% 15.59%

22 9.58% 6.24% 15.82%

23 9.72% 6.34% 16.06%

24 9.87% 6.44% 16.31%

25 10.02% 6.54% 16.56%

26 10.17% 6.65% 16.82%

27 10.32% 6.75% 17.07%

28 10.48% 6.86% 17.34%

29 10.64% 6.97% 17.61%

30 10.80% 7.08% 17.88%

31 10.97% 7.19% 18.16%

32 11.15% 7.32% 18.47%

33 11.32% 7.43% 18.75%

34 11.51% 7.56% 19.07%

35 11.70% 7.69% 19.39%

36 11.88% 7.82% 19.70%

37 12.08% 7.96% 20.04%

38 12.27% 8.09% 20.36%

39 12.47% 8.22% 20.69%

40 12.69% 8.37% 21.06%

41 12.91% 8.52% 21.43%

42 13.14% 8.68% 21.82%

43 13.37% 8.84% 22.21%

44 13.62% 9.01% 22.63%

45 13.83% 9.15% 22.98%

46 13.90% 9.20% 23.10%

47 13.84% 9.16% 23.00%

48 13.75% 9.10% 22.85%

49 and over 13.24% 8.75% 21.99%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 68.52% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit M   Page 17

Exhibit M

SAFETY Cost Group #11 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

16 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

17 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

18 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

19 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

20 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

21 9.61% 6.55% 16.16%

22 9.76% 6.66% 16.42%

23 9.90% 6.76% 16.66%

24 10.05% 6.86% 16.91%

25 10.20% 6.97% 17.17%

26 10.36% 7.09% 17.45%

27 10.51% 7.19% 17.70%

28 10.67% 7.31% 17.98%

29 10.83% 7.42% 18.25%

30 11.00% 7.54% 18.54%

31 11.17% 7.67% 18.84%

32 11.35% 7.80% 19.15%

33 11.53% 7.92% 19.45%

34 11.72% 8.06% 19.78%

35 11.90% 8.19% 20.09%

36 12.09% 8.33% 20.42%

37 12.29% 8.47% 20.76%

38 12.49% 8.61% 21.10%

39 12.69% 8.76% 21.45%

40 12.90% 8.91% 21.81%

41 13.12% 9.06% 22.18%

42 13.35% 9.23% 22.58%

43 13.59% 9.40% 22.99%

44 13.82% 9.57% 23.39%

45 14.05% 9.73% 23.78%

46 14.08% 9.75% 23.83%

47 14.02% 9.71% 23.73%

48 13.76% 9.52% 23.28%

49 and over 12.99% 8.97% 21.96%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 71.65% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit N   Page 18

Exhibit N

SAFETY Cost Group #12 Non-PEPRA Member Contribution Rates

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

Entry Age Basic COLA Total

15 9.57% 4.61% 14.18%

16 9.57% 4.61% 14.18%

17 9.57% 4.61% 14.18%

18 9.57% 4.61% 14.18%

19 9.57% 4.61% 14.18%

20 9.57% 4.61% 14.18%

21 9.57% 4.61% 14.18%

22 9.71% 4.68% 14.39%

23 9.86% 4.76% 14.62%

24 10.00% 4.83% 14.83%

25 10.16% 4.91% 15.07%

26 10.31% 4.99% 15.30%

27 10.46% 5.06% 15.52%

28 10.62% 5.14% 15.76%

29 10.78% 5.22% 16.00%

30 10.95% 5.31% 16.26%

31 11.12% 5.40% 16.52%

32 11.30% 5.49% 16.79%

33 11.47% 5.57% 17.04%

34 11.66% 5.67% 17.33%

35 11.86% 5.77% 17.63%

36 12.04% 5.86% 17.90%

37 12.23% 5.96% 18.19%

38 12.43% 6.06% 18.49%

39 12.64% 6.17% 18.81%

40 12.86% 6.28% 19.14%

41 13.07% 6.38% 19.45%

42 13.31% 6.51% 19.82%

43 13.54% 6.62% 20.16%

44 13.76% 6.73% 20.49%

45 13.97% 6.84% 20.81%

46 14.03% 6.87% 20.90%

47 13.95% 6.83% 20.78%

48 13.79% 6.75% 20.54%

49 and over 13.05% 6.37% 19.42%

Adminstrative Expense: 0.47% of payroll added to Basic rates.

COLA Loading: 50.67% applied to Basic rates prior to adjustment for administrative expenses.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation up to the annual IRC 401(a)(17) compensation limit.

Membership Date before January 1, 2013



Member Rates 2020-21 Exhibit O   Page 19

Exhibit O

PEPRA Tiers Member Contribution Rates

Membership Date on or after January 1, 2013

Effective 7/1/20 - 6/30/21

Expressed as a Percentage of Monthly Payroll*

General Tiers Basic COLA Total

Cost Group #1 – PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) 8.68% 1.99% 10.67%

Cost Group #1 – PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 8.80% 2.96% 11.76%

Cost Group #2 - PEPRA Tier 5 (2% COLA) 8.16% 1.84% 10.00%

Cost Group #2 - PEPRA Tier 5 (3%/4% COLA) 8.39% 2.76% 11.15%

Cost Group #3 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 8.23% 2.83% 11.06%

Cost Group #4 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 8.96% 3.02% 11.98%

Cost Group #5 - PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) 10.07% 2.27% 12.34%

Cost Group #5 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 11.38% 3.79% 15.17%

Cost Group #6 - PEPRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) 9.39% 3.21% 12.60%

Safety Tiers Basic COLA Total

Cost Group #7 - PEPRA Tier D 14.31% 5.73% 20.04%

Cost Group #8 - PEPRA Tier D 13.05% 5.35% 18.40%

Cost Group #8 - PEPRA Tier E 12.09% 3.32% 15.41%

Cost Group #9 - PEPRA Tier E 13.17% 3.57% 16.74%

Cost Group #10 - PEPRA Tier D 12.70% 5.23% 17.93%

Cost Group #11 - PEPRA Tier D 11.44% 4.71% 16.15%

Cost Group #12 - PEPRA Tier D 11.65% 4.82% 16.47%

The Basic rates shown above also include an administrative expense load of 0.47% of payroll.

*NOTE: The rate should be applied to all compensation (whether or not in Social Security) up to the

             applicable annual Gov. Code 7522.10(d) compensation limit.



Page 20 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

SUBVENTION 

All rates are shown as a percent of payroll. 

Employee contribution rates vary depending upon their tier and age at entry. To compute the exact 
subvention percent for each employee, do the following: 

Employee rate – Decrease the employee’s rate by the subvention percent (i.e. 25%, 50%, etc.). 

Employer rate – Increase the employer’s rate by a percent of the employee’s decrease using the 
applicable refundability factor (found on Exhibits A and B): 

EXAMPLE FOR COST GROUP #3 LEGACY MEMBERS: 

 If the subvention percent is 25%, and  
the employee’s rate is 6.00%,  

 Employee rates should be decreased by 1.50% (25% × 6.00%) 
The employer rate should be increased by 1.4340% (1.50% × 0.9560) 

Please note that for PEPRA members, subvention is generally not permitted. The standard under 
Gov. Code §7522.30(a) is that employees pay at least 50 percent of normal costs and that employers not 
pay any of the required employee contribution, but there are some exceptions. Gov. Code §7522.30(f) 
allows the terms (regarding the employee’s required contribution) of a contract, including a memorandum 
of understanding, that is in effect on January 1, 2013, to continue through the length of a contract. This 
means that it is possible that an employer will subvent a portion of a PEPRA member’s required 
contribution until the expiration date of the current contract, so long as it has been determined that the 
contract has been impaired. 

CAUTION – these rates are for employer subvention of up to one-half the member contribution under 
Gov. Code §31581.1, NOT employer pick-up of employee contribution rates. When an employer 
subvents, the contribution subvented is not placed in the member’s account and is therefore not available 
to the member as a refund. For this reason, the employer pays the contribution at a discount (i.e. 
“Refundability Factor”). 

Employer pick-ups of employee contributions are those made under Gov. Code §31581.2 and Internal 
Revenue Code §414 (h)(2) for the sole purpose of deferring income tax. These contributions are added to 
the member’s account, are available to the member as a refund and are considered by CCCERA as part of 
the member’s compensation for retirement purposes. 

EMPLOYEE PAYMENT OF EMPLOYER COST 

There are several reasons why the attached contribution rates may need to be adjusted to increase the 
employee portion including the following: 

Gov. Code §31631 allows for members to pay all or part of the employer contributions. 

Gov. Code §31639.95 allows for Safety members to pay a portion of the employer cost for the “3% at 50” 
enhanced benefit. 

Gov. Code §7522.30(c) requires that an employee’s contribution rate be at least equal to that of similarly 
situated employees.



Page 21 

Gov. Code §7522.30(e) allows the employee contributions to be more than one-half of the normal cost 
rate if the increase has been agreed to through the collective bargaining process. 

If you need to increase the employee contribution rate for any reason, you will need to adjust both 
employee and employer rates as follows: 

Employee rate – Increase the employee’s rate by the desired percent of payroll. 

Employer rate – Decrease the employer’s rate by a percent of the cost-sharing percent of payroll 
using the applicable refundability factor: 

EXAMPLE FOR COST GROUP #11 LEGACY MEMBERS:  

 If the required increase in the employee rate is 8.0%, 

 Employee rates should be increased by 8.0%. 
The employer rate should be decreased by 7.6944% (8.0% × 0.9618) 

PREPAYMENT DISCOUNT FACTOR FOR 2020-21 

Employer Contribution Prepayment Program & Discount Factor for 2020-21 is 0.9696 

If you are currently participating in the prepayment program and wish to continue, you do not need to do 
anything other than prepay the July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 contributions on or before 
July 31, 2020. If you wish to start participating, please contact the Accounting Department at CCCERA 
by March 31, 2020. 

The discount factor is calculated assuming the prepayment will be received on July 31 in accordance with 
Gov. Code §31582(b) in lieu of 12 equal payments due at the end of each month in accordance with Gov. 
Code §31582(a). The discount factor for the fiscal year July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 will be 0.9696 
based on the interest assumption of 7.00% per annum. It is calculated by discounting each of the 12 equal 
payments back to the date that the prepayment is made and is the sum of the discount factors shown in the 
table below divided by 12. Each of the discount factors below is based on how many months early the 
payment is made. 

Payment Number Number of Months  
Payment is Made Early Discount Factor 

1 0 1.0000 
2 1 0.9944 
3 2 0.9888 
4 3 0.9832 
5 4 0.9777 
6 5 0.9722 
7 6 0.9667 
8 7 0.9613 
9 8 0.9559 

10 9 0.9505 
11 10 0.9452 
12 11 0.9399 

Sum of Discount Factors Divided by 12: 0.9696 
 



P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
n

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h
 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#8



D
r.

 B
au

m
b

ac
h

er
h

as
 w

o
rk

ed
 w

it
h

  t
h

e 
So

n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 E

m
p

lo
ye

e 
R

et
ir

em
en

t 
 A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

, t
h

e 
M

en
d

o
ci

n
o

 C
o

u
n

ty
  r

et
ir

em
en

t 
b

o
ar

d
, 

an
d

 t
h

e 
Sa

n
 F

ra
n

ci
sc

o
 C

it
y 

an
d

 C
o

u
n

ty
 c

ar
ve

 o
u

t 
p

ro
gr

am
 f

o
r 

Fi
rs

t 
R

es
p

o
n

d
er

s 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
.  

 H
e 

h
as

 a
 b

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 in
 a

ca
d

em
ic

 
m

ed
ic

in
e,

 c
lin

ic
al

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d
 m

ed
ic

al
 le

ga
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t.
 H

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 

m
ed

ic
al

 s
ch

o
o

l a
t 

N
o

rt
h

w
es

te
rn

 U
n

iv
er

si
ty

, c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 r

es
id

en
cy

 
tr

ai
n

in
g 

at
 t

h
e 

U
n

iv
er

si
ty

 o
f 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 M
ed

ic
al

 c
en

te
r 

in
 S

an
 F

ra
n

ci
sc

o
, 

an
d

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 y
ea

r 
as

 c
h

ie
f 

re
si

d
en

t.
 H

e 
th

en
 jo

in
ed

 t
h

e 
fa

cu
lt

y 
at

 t
h

e 
U

n
iv

er
si

ty
 o

f 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 S

an
 F

ra
n

ci
sc

o
 w

h
er

e 
h

e 
w

as
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 t

ea
ch

in
g 

an
d

 r
es

ea
rc

h
 f

o
r 

h
e 

n
ex

t 
2

0
 y

ea
rs

. H
e 

is
 a

 g
ra

d
u

at
e 

o
f 

th
e 

Sa
n

 F
ra

n
ci

sc
o

 P
sy

ch
o

an
al

yt
ic

 In
st

it
u

te
 a

n
d

 h
ad

 a
ls

o
 s

er
ve

d
 o

n
 

th
e 

fa
cu

lt
y 

th
er

e.
 H

is
 c

u
rr

en
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

cu
se

s 
o

n
  d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ta
l 

is
su

es
, p

sy
ch

o
p

h
ar

m
ac

o
lo

gy
, a

n
d

  n
eu

ro
m

o
d

u
la

ti
o

n
 t

ec
h

n
o

lo
gy

 f
o

r 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

o
f 

re
si

st
an

t 
d

ep
re

ss
io

n
. 



D
if

fe
re

n
t 

Ty
p

es
 o

f 
D

is
o

rd
er

s

•
M

aj
o

r 
d

ep
re

ss
io

n

•
B

ip
o

la
r

•
Po

st
 T

ra
u

m
at

ic
 S

tr
es

s 
D

is
o

rd
er

•
H

id
d

en
 t

ra
u

m
a 

(P
o

st
 T

ra
u

m
at

ic
 S

tr
es

s 
D

is
o

rd
er

) 

•
A

n
xi

et
y 

D
is

o
rd

er
s



D
ep

re
ss

io
n

 

•
D

ep
re

ss
io

n
 is

 a
 s

ys
te

m
ic

 il
ln

es
s

•
O

n
se

t 
o

ft
en

 y
o

u
n

g 
ad

u
lt

 t
o

 m
id

 li
fe

•
N

o
t 

ra
re

, a
ff

ec
ts

 3
%

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 a
t 

an
y 

o
n

e 
ti

m
e 

(5
.7

 m
ill

io
n

 p
eo

p
le

) 
&

 6
-7

%
 li

fe
 t

im
e 

in
ci

d
en

ce
. 

•
4

0
%

 r
el

ap
se

 r
at

e 

•
Si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
 g

en
et

ic
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

, 1
/3

 n
o

 c
au

sa
l 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
 



B
ip

o
la

r 
D

is
o

rd
er

•
In

ci
d

en
ce

 2
.6

%
 o

f 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

•
St

ro
n

g 
ge

n
et

ic
 c

o
m

p
o

n
en

t:
 1

 p
ar

en
t,

 1
0-

1
5

%
; 

2
 p

ar
en

ts
, 3

0-
4

0
 %

 in
ci

d
en

ce
; I

d
en

ti
ca

l t
w

in
, 

4
0

-7
0

%
. 

•
Su

cc
es

sf
u

l t
re

at
m

en
t,

  8
0

%

•
R

el
ap

se
 r

at
e 

 7
3

%
 o

ve
r 

5
 y

ea
rs

•
1

8
-2

5
 %

 m
o

rt
al

it
y 

ra
te

 



Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

M
aj

o
r 

D
ep

re
ss

io
n

 
an

d
  B

ip
o

la
r 

D
is

o
rd

er
 

•
M

aj
o

r 
D

ep
re

ss
io

n
: 

•
A

n
n

u
al

 C
o

st
: $

2
1

0
 b

ill
io

n

•
Lo

st
 w

o
rk

: $
6

3
 b

ill
io

n

•
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 p
ay

m
en

ts
: 

$
2

5
 b

ill
io

n

•
B

ip
o

la
r 

D
is

o
rd

er
: 

•
A

n
n

u
al

 C
o

st
:  

$
4

5
 b

ill
io

n
 



Po
st

 T
ra

u
m

at
ic

 S
tr

es
s 

d
is

o
rd

er

•
A

 m
en

ta
l h

ea
lt

h
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

 t
ri

gg
er

ed
 b

y 
a 

te
rr

if
yi

n
g 

ev
en

t 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
co

n
st

el
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
sy

m
p

to
m

s.

•
M

ay
 h

av
e 

d
el

ay
ed

 o
n

se
t,

 in
 s

o
m

e 
ca

se
s 

ap
p

ea
ri

n
g 

o
n

ly
 d

ec
ad

es
 a

ft
er

 t
h

e 
ev

en
t.

  

•
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ta
l T

ra
u

m
a



A
n

xi
et

y 
D

is
o

rd
er

s

•
Su

b
je

ct
iv

e 
ex

p
e

ri
en

ce
 a

n
d

 s
ym

p
to

m
s 

ar
e 

lik
e 

fe
ar

 b
u

t 
n

o
 id

en
ti

fi
ab

le
 t

h
re

at

•
Si

x 
ty

p
es

: G
A

D
, S

o
ci

al
 A

n
xi

et
y,

 S
p

ec
if

ic
 P

h
o

b
ia

, 
Pa

n
ic

 d
is

o
rd

er
, O

b
se

ss
iv

e 
C

o
m

p
u

ls
iv

e 
D

is
o

rd
er

 
Po

st
 T

ra
u

m
at

ic
 D

is
o

rd
er



Ev
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

B
ra

in

•
R

ep
ti

le
s 

em
er

ge
d

 3
1

0
 m

ill
io

n
 y

ea
rs

 a
go

. T
h

e 
b

ra
in

 w
as

 m
ai

n
ly

 a
 b

ra
in

 s
te

m
.

•
M

am
m

al
s 

em
er

ge
d

 2
0

0
 m

ill
io

n
 y

ea
rs

 a
go

. T
h

e 
b

ra
in

 c
o

n
ta

in
ed

 a
 d

ev
el

o
p

in
g 

m
id

 b
ra

in
 w

it
h

 
b

eg
in

n
in

g 
Ly

m
b

ic
sy

st
e

m
.

•
Th

e
n

e
o

co
rt

ex
d

ev
el

o
p

ed
, s

ep
ar

at
in

g 
m

am
m

al
s 

fr
o

m
 e

ar
lie

r 
an

ce
st

o
rs

 9
0-

1
0

0
 

m
ill

io
n

 y
ea

rs
 a

go
. 



Em
o

ti
o

n
s

•
Em

o
ti

o
n

s 
A

re
 H

ar
d

 W
ir

ed

•
Fe

ar
, A

n
ge

r,
 S

u
rp

ri
se

, H
ap

p
in

es
s,

   

•
Sa

d
n

es
s,

 d
is

gu
st



B
io

lo
gy

/P
sy

ch
o

lo
gy



R
ep

ti
le

 B
ra

in



B
ra

in
 t

h
re

e 
Pa

rt
s



Pe
t 

Sc
an

 in
 d

ep
re

ss
io

n



Fu
n

ct
io

n
al

 Im
ag

in
g 

in
 B

ip
o

la
r 

M
an

ia



B
ra

in
 d

u
ri

n
g 

a 
fl

as
h

b
ac

k



CALAPRS, 575 Market Street, Suite 2125, San Francisco, CA 94105 
Tel: (415) 764-4899    Fax: (415) 764-4915 

register@calaprs.org    www.calaprs.org 

TRUSTEES’ ROUNDTABLE 

Friday, October 25, 2019 

Hilton Oakland Airport 
1 Hegenberger Road, Oakland, CA 

AGENDA 

8:30 a.m. Registration & Continental Breakfast 

9:00 a.m. Welcome & Introductions 

9:15 a.m. Special Guest Kevin Parker from Sustainable Insight Capital 
Management (SICM).  Evolving themes in Enviromental, Social 

and Governance (ESG) investing. 

10:15 a.m. Break 

10:30 a.m. Speaker Kevin Parker: ESG performance and integration. 

12:00 p.m. Lunch Buffet 

1:00 p.m. Speaker Kevin Parker: Inside ESG, screening metrics, 
performance, opportunities and investment vehicles. 

2:00 p.m. Speaker Kevin Parker:  Practical matters of ESG including 

innovations and integration. 

3:00 p.m. Select chair (or co-chairs) for next Roundtable. 

3:15 p.m. Adjourn 

The next Trustees’ Roundtable will be in 2020. Details will be posted to the 

CALAPRS website and emailed to you as soon as they are available. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date10/09/19Agenda Item#9a.


	Agenda 10.09.2019
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9



